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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKLNG SI A lEMENTS 

Thi.t Annual Report coniainv .tiaiemenls ihal wc believe are, or may he con.tidereJ lo be, "fnm-anl-hoking staiemenis" within ihe meaning oflhe Private 
Securities Liii^aiion Reform Acl of 1993. All slaiemenl.\ oiher ihan siaiemcnix.uf hisiorical fad incluiled in ihi.f Annual Report regarding the prospects ofour 
indusuy or our prospecLV, plans, financial piisiiion orbusine.ss siratc^V,f':'ay conslilule forwaril^^ In achlition, forwaril-looking staiemenis 
generally can be identified by the use of forward-looking words such as "may," "will," "expect." "intend." "esiimaie." "foresee." "prnjecl," "anticipate," 
"believe;" "plans," "forecasts, ""cartiimie" or "could" or the negaiiws oflhese terms or variaiitms of ihem or similar terms. Furthermore, such forward-
looking statements may be included in various filings ihat we make with ihe SEC or press releasee or oral .staiemenis made by or with the approval of one of 
our authorized executive officers. Although we believe ihal the expeciaiions refiecled in these farv\-ard'loaking statements are reasonabte.wc'cannot a.wwre 
ynuthai thc.\e cxpixtaiions will prove lo he correct. The.se forward-looking .staiemenis are .•iubject to certain known and unknown ri.sks and unceriainiics, us 
well as assumpiions thai could cause aclual re-vults ta differ materially frorn those refiecled in these for^vdrd-looking slalements. Facior.v that might cause 
aciual refills.to differinclude, but are nol limited lo. those discussed in ihc.leciion cniiilcd "Risk Factors" beginning on page'l I of this repori. Readers arc 
cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking .siaiement.-! cantainiid herein, which refiect management's opinions only ax of ihe dale hereof 
Excepi as required by law, we undertake no ohligaiion to revise or publicly release the rexults ofany revision l<> any fonvard-Iooking statements. You are 
ad}'ised. however, to consult any additional disclosures we make, in our reporLs lo the SEC. All..subsequenl wrilien and oral forward-looking siatemenis 
allrihuiable lo us or persons acling on our behalf are expressly <pialified in iheir entirety hy ihe cautionary .vialements contained in this Annual Report. 
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PART I 

ITEM I. BUSINESS 

Ovei^vicw 

Wc are a ieaciing developer, owner and operaior of r^oiuiIg.iming facilities and related diiiing, lodging and entenainraeni facilities inthe United Stales. 
We currently own and operate 15 gaiuing andcntejiaiiimcnt faciiities iniLouisiana, Mississippi, Missouri, [owa, Colorado andFlon'da. Collectively, these 
properties feature approxirnateiy 14,000 slot machines and over 330 table games (including approximaiely 90 poker tables) over 3.000 hotel rooms and more 
than 45 restaurants. We also operate a hamessracing track at our casino in Florida. Our ponfulio of properties provides us with a diverse geographic footprint 
that minimizes geographically concentrated risks caused by "weather, regional economic ditTicullies, gaming tax rates and regulations imposed by local 
gaming authorities.-

We operate primarily under two brand,̂ , Lsle and I-ady Luck, isle-branded facilities are generally"in larger markels with a larger regional draw and offer 
e.xpanded amenities, whereas Lady Luck-branded facihties arc typically'in smaller markets drawing primarily from alocalcustoirier base. Our senior 
management team has over 200 collective yeaix ofexperienccspanning 20 stales, and multiple foreign jurisdictions. This team has established and executed 
against a strategic plan for growth focusing on Ihrce core principles, (1) reiincd fiscal discipline, (2) restyled customer experiences, and (3) a renewed asset 
base. 

/. Refined Fiscal Discipline—We believe thai ourbusiness benefits from a cost-effective approach to" creating valuable customer cxperieiices and a 
stronger balance shecL We focus on tlscal discipline by utilizing technology and our customer research platform, responsibly reducing our cost structure and 
idenlif\'ing opportunitie.s for operating efficiencies at our properties. 

Overlhcpast four fiscal years, since current management joined the Company, wehave reduced our debt by approximately S350 million, or 3.3%, and 
reduced our leverage ratio through "the disciplined application ofour free cash flow and a scries of llnancing transactions including retiring approximately 
$143 millibiiof Hebt ihrough a tender offer for approximaiely .S83 tnillinn, a $51 inillion equity offering, a senior notes oiTering and an extension ofour .senior 
secured ciedii facility. We plan to maintain this discipline throuj^h continued efforls to fiinher reduce ouroverhead costs, achieving operatirig efficiencies by 
realigning our casino floore, and applying cost discipline inthe evaluation and execution of future capital piojects. 

2. Restyled Customer Kxperiences—We focus on customer salislaclioii and delivering superior guest experiences by providing populai' gaming, dining 
arid entertainment experictKeslhat are designctl lo exceed customer expectations in a clean,safe, friendly andfiin environment We have introduced 
initiatives to increase customer time on device, refreshed several of our casino floors, and introduced an improved loyalty program, and have introduced 
several targeted non-gaming amenities. 

These non-gaming amenities have included the development of several custom food, beverage and entertainment offerings, incluiling the introduction of 
Lone Wolf bare and Otis and Henry's restaurants, a new buffet concept called Farmer's Pick, focused on iocally-sourced, fresh foodarida liveeniertainnient 
series, Jcstei's Jam. In fiscal 2013; we expect Id add addilional Farmer's'Pick Buffets, new Otis" and Heiu>''s rcstauranls and LoneWolf bars across several of 
our properties, and to complete the intn)duction of our enhanced customer loyalty program, the Fan Club, at our remaining properties aimed to attract new 
custoiiiers and increase visitation. 

J. Renewed Asset Base—We believe our long-term success-willilcpend substantially upon increasing the quality, reach and scope ofour operating 
portfoiio, including new-build deyelopmcnt.>, acquisitions, rebranding projecis and, where appropriate, asset sales. Recently wc have renovated the 
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gaming floors at our Lake Charles, Louisiana and Black Hawk, Colorado properties. Currently we are in the process of renovating hotel rooms at each of 
these locations. 

We have corapleled the Lady Luck rebrdndingofoiir facilities in Marquette, Iowa, Caruthersville, Missouri and oiie ofour two facilities in Black Hawk, 
Colorado. We currently are rebranding Rainbow Casino in Vicksburg, Mississippi to a Lady Luck and expect to be completed by the end ofthe second quarter 
of fiscal 2013. We anticipate lebranding'additional facilities in the future. 

'We were selected by regulatory agencies to develop an Isle-branded $135 million ganiing and entcrtainnienl facility in Cape Girardeau, Missouri, as well 
as a Lady Lui:k-branded facility at Nehiacolin Woodlands Resort in Fayette County, Pennsylvania. Subject to rcgtJlatory apprbvalwe anticipate opening our 
facility in Cape Girardeau by November 1; 20|2. An appeal has been filed by one ofthe other applicants regarding the selection bythe Penn.sylvania Gaming 
Board to award a casino to thefaeiliiy at Nemacolin Woodlands Rcsort."Tlic appeal is uiidcr consideration by the Pennsylvania Supreme Court. No date has 
been determined for an expected ruling or the ultimate resolution of the matter. Following a successful resolutioii to the appeal and the receipt ofany 
necessary regulatory orother approvals, we anticipate construction on the faiiility would take approximately nine months. 

During fiscal 2012, wc sold one ofoiu^two riverboat licenses in Lake Charles, Louisiana and eiitered into an agreerncnt to .sell our facility in Biloxi, 
Mississippi for approximately $45 million..We expect the sale of tlie Biloxi facility to close by the end of Sunimer 2012. 

Inaddition to the items discussed above, we plan to continue to refresh our hotel room product, pursue third-party development partners for additional 
•hotel and restaurant concepts, consider opportunistic monetization of non-core operating assets and renovate select facilities to improve our product tjffcrings. 
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Casino Proper t ies 

The following is an overview ofour exisling casino properlies as of April 29,'20l 2; 

Property , 
Date Ari|iiired or-

Oiwned 
.Slot Table Hotel Pairking 

Machines Games Rooms Spaces 

Louisiana 2 
Lake Charles 

.Ui.ssiisiopi^ , ,^-' ",ii>" 

Luia 

.luly 1995. 
i/U^-. 

1,275 4.S 
J i - , - „ V . -

493 2,335 

^/Nalchez""- "T^-r,!i.~. 
March 2000 .1,024 23 485 1,611 :zm .^.lii. 

Vjcksbdrg 
iWf.v.vi-Jlfj L - ^ - ..il); 

1^'Mareh 2000i 
June20r0 

:V¥-= 
Kansas City June 2000 

ly^Btxinville. •'^"j, ^>r^ Z-^'< ' •'•" 

Caruthersville 
„ * i £ ^ Dcce mbc/2flO I Lr J^saa 

June 2007 

.'lowaii.,. n^f'.lo.i , /^ ; ; s ^ ••j*-.^..r 

Bettendorf. March 2000 988 
L . RhythmT Ci ty^Da venpdrt i _ _ 

^ Marquette 
i;̂  VValerloo -X'^' .*f-°' 'g'̂ -^-

2 2 ' . 514 2,057 

SI3n] -..^•^^••••i-. j ^ T T IOctobi;iv200l)_l. 
.March20"o6: 

-1931. 
'590 

,1,013-

.r^, „ 
7 r^ 480 

27 •• 195 _ .1:501)1 
Colofaih 
Ei^rsle.Casino'Hpt'elTBlack'Hawk^ 

Lady Luck Casino.-Black 1 lawk 
F l o r i d a . ' '.^ :" , . ' -.-;•, '• 

238 ' >l.lOOl 
1 ^ 1.200 

3Decemberl998>v: 
___Aprilj003_ ^ 

^ r 

-.957_ 
-522 —^ 

-31_ 
16 

Pompano'Park' 
1-^: '^:''V'!v';-;<-^'-' 

July 1995/April 2007 1,454 38 r - ' .3,800 

I.J.•"'•'[! ' ^ ' ' - ' • J^F ' -=:• 12:648; ' 298 2r370:"• -20.432i 
j\ssets HcM for Sale ^̂  , 
f--^Biloxi?Mis'sissiDph_ '••.- . ^"l- • / Aug'u^i9f2^T?^^~~^"Tj; 1 3 6 ; ^ _ j 3 8 L ^ 7 0 9 ' ~ ^ 1 .'5121 

13,784 336 3,079 21,944 

Louisiana 

Lake Charles 

Our Ljikc Charles property commenced operations in Juiy:l995 and is located ona 19-acre site along Intcr>latelO; the main thoroughfare connecting 
Houston, Texas to Lake Charles, Louisiana. In FebiTiary 2012 we consolidated our gaming operations onto one gaming vessel offering 1,275 slot machines, 
48 table games, 8 pokei tables, two hotels offering 493 rooms; a 105^000 square foot lanli-based pavilion and entertainment center, and 2335 parking spaces, 
including approximately 1,400 spaces in an attached parking garage. The pavilion and entertainment center offerxustomcrs a wide variety of non-gaming 
amenities, including a 109-seat Otis & Henry's ri^statiranl, a 290-seat Calypso's buffet, a 64-seal Lucky Wins Asian-inspired restaurant; which also includes a 
grab and go deli, and Caribbean Cove featuring free live entertainment arid can accommodate 180 guests. The pavilion also has aj 14,750 square foot 
entertainment center comprised of al,100-scat special events center designed for conccns,'banquets and odicr events, meeting facilities and administrative 
otTiees. 

The Lake Charles market currently consists of two dockside gaming facilities; a Native American casino and a pari-muiuel facilitj'/racino. The cunenl 
number of slot machines in the markel is approximately 7,800 machines.andtablcgamesare approximately, 240,tables. In calendar year 2011, the two gaming 
facilities and one racino. in the aggregate, generated gaming revenues of approximaiely S673 million. Revenues for the Native Aiiicrican property are not 
published. Gaming revenues forour 
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Lake Charles property for calendar year 2011 were approximately S142 million. Lake Charles is,ihe closest gaming market to the Houston metropolitan area, 
which has a population of approximately 5.5 million and is located approximately 140 miles wesi of Lake Charles. We believe that our Lake Charles properly 
attracts customers prima'rily from southeast Texas, including Houston, Beaumont, Galveston,.Orange and Port Arthur and from local area residents. 
Approximately" 500,000 and 1.6 million people reside within'50 and 100 miles,-respectively, ofthe I-ake Charles properly. 

Afis.fissippi, 

Lula 

Our Lula property, which we acquired in,Vlarch 2000, is straicgicallylocated off of Highway 49, the only road crossing the Mississippi R.iyer. between 
Mississippi and Arkansas for more than 50 iniles in cither direction. The property consistsof two dockside casinos containing 1,024 slot machiiies and 23 
table games, t«-o on-site hotels with a total of 485 rooms, a land-based paviliouandentenainmeiit center,'!i6ll.parking spaces, and a 28-'space RV Park. The 
pavilion and entertaiiimeni center offer a wide variety of non-gaming amenities; including a 122-scal Farraddays'restaurant, a 283-,scat Calypso's buffet and a 
35-scat Tradewifids Marketplace, and a gift shop. 

Our Lula property is the only gaming facility in Coahoma Couniy, Mississippi andgenerated net gamingrevcnucsof approximately S56 million in 
calendar ycar.20 II. Liila draws a significant amount of business from the Litlle Rock, Arkansas metropolitan area, which has a population of approximately 
710,000 and is located approximaiely 120 niiles west of the property. Coahoma Cotiriiy is also located approximate^ 60 miles southwest of Memphis, 
Tennessee, which is primarily ser\'ed by nine casinos in Tunica County, Mississippi. Approximaiely Ll'million people'reside within 60 miles (if the property. 
Lula also competes with Naiive American casinos in Oklahoma and a racino,in West Memphis, Arkansas. 

iWaichez 

Our Nalchcz"^propcrty, which we acquired in March 2000, is located offof Higliways 84 and 61 in western .Mississippi; The property consists ofa 
dockside casino bSering 583 slot machines and 9 table games, a 141-room off-site hotel located approximatelyone mile from the casino, a 150-seat Calypso's 
buffet and 645 parking spaces. 

Our, Natchez property is currently the only gaming facility in the Natchez market and generated tolal gaming revenues of approximately S29 million in 
calendar year 2011. We believe that the Natchez property attracts customers primarily from'amorig the approximately 350,000 people itrsiding within 60 miles 
oflhe Natchez properly. 

Vicksbiirg 

Our Vicksburg propcrt\', which we acquired in June 2010, is located off Interstate 20 and Highway 61 in western Mississippi^ approximately 50 miles 
west of Jackson, Mississippi; 'fhe^property consists of a dockside casino offering 695 slot machines and eight "table games, a 224-,seat Riverview Buffet, a 2&-
seat Crossroads Deli and 977 parking spaces. 

'ITie Vicksbiirg market consistsof live dockside casinos which generated total gaming revenues of approximaiely S261 million in calendar year 2011. 
Our Vicksburg propcrtj- generated gaming revenues of approximalcly $40 million in calend;irycar 2011. Approximately 700,000 people reside witliin 
60 miles ofthe propcrtj'. 
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Missouri 

Kansas City 

Our Kansas City property, which wc acquired in June 2000, is the closest gaming facility to downtown ̂ Kansas City and consists ofa dockside casino 
offering 1,081 slot machines and 20 table games, a 202-scal Calypso's buffet, a 176-seat Lone Wolf restaurant, a 32-seat Tratlewinds.Marketplace and 1,715 
parking spaces. 

The Kansas City market consists of tour dockside ganiing facilities, a land-based facility which opened in February 2012 and a Native American casino. 
Operating stairstics for the Native American casino are not published, .The fourdockside gaming facilities generated gaming revenues of approjdmately 
S710 millioi) in calendar year 2011. Our Karis'as City piibperiy generated gaming revenues of approximately S85 titillion during calendar year 2011. We 
believe that our Kansas City casino atlrdcts customers primarily from the Kansas City metropolitan area, which ha.s approximately r.9 million residents 

Boonvdie 

Our Boonville properly, which opened in December 2001, is located tltrcc miles off Interstate 70, approximately'halfway between Kansas City and 
St. Louis. The property consists ofa siiigle level dockside casino offering ,940 slot machines, 19 table games, a 140-ro6m hotel, a 32,400 square foot pavilion 
and entertainment center and 1,101 parking spaces. In Februaiy 2012 die Company launched anew branded restaurant within the Boonville property pavilion. 
The Farmer's Pick buffet. The neii'ly renovated 201-scat restaurant features locally sourced food products that are prepared at action stations in view of the 
guests. In additiori, the pavilion and entertainmenl cenler also offere customers a wide '̂ariety of other non-gaming amenities, including an 83-seat Farraddays' 
restaurant, a-36-seat Tradewinds"Marketplace, an 800 seat event center, arid a historic display.^ar_ea.pur Boonville property is the orily, gaming facility in 
central Missouri and generated gaming revenues of approximately S82 million in calendar year 2011. We believe that our Boonville casino atlracls customers 
primarily from the approximately 580,000 people.who reside within,60 miles ofthe property which ini:ludes the Columbia and Jefferson City areas. 

Cohilhehville 

OurCarulhci^'ville property was acquired in June 2007 and is ariverboat casino localed along the Mississippi, River in Southeast .Vlissouri. The dockside 
casino offers 595 slot machines, 1 l.tablegamesand 5,pciker tables. The property offers a 40,000 square foot p.ivilion,'which includes a 130-seat Lone Wolf 
restaurant, bar and lounge and a 270-scai Otis & Henry's restaurant The property also operates a 10,000 square fooi exposition cenler with seating for up to 
1,100 patrons and has 1,000 parking spaces.,Our Caruthersville faciliiy.is the only casino located in Southeast Missouri and generated gaming revenues of 
approximaiely S33 million iii calendar year 2011. Approximately 650,000 people reside within 60 miles of the property. 

Iowa 

Benendorf 

Our Beittrndon" property was acquired in March 2000 and is located offof Interstate 74, an interstate highway serving the Quad Cities metropolitan area, 
which consists of Betiendorf and Davenport, iowa and Molinc and Rock Island, Illinois. The property consists of a dockside casino offering 988 slot 
machirics, IS^tablc games, 4 poker tables, 514 hotel rooms, 40.000 square feet of flexible convention/banquet space, a'120-scat Farraddays" restaurant, a 260-
seat Calypso's buffet, a 24-seat Tradewinds .Marketplace and 2,057 parking spaces. We have entered into agreements with the 
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City of Batcndorf, iowa under which we manage and provide financial and operating support for the QC Waterfront Convention Center ihal is adjacent to our 
hotel.'The QC Waterfront Convention Cenler opened in January' 2009. 

Davenport 

Our Davenport property, which we acquired in October 2000, is located at the inlersection of River Drive and Highway 61, a state highway serving die 
Quad Cities metropolitan area. The property consists ofa dockside gaming facility offering 93LsIol machines, 14 lable garrK:s,a 209.Tseat Hil Parade buffet, a 
Grab-n-Go food outlet and 911 parking spaces. 

The Quad Cities metropolitan area ciurently has three gaming operations^our two gamiiig facilities in Bettendorf and Davenport, and a larger land-
based facility, including a holel, which openedin Deceniber 2008. Ihe dirce operations iiiUic Cjhiad Cilics generated total gaming revenues of approximately 
5212 million in calendar year 2011. Our Bettendorf and Davenport properties generated casino revenues t"6r calendar year 2011 of approximately S77 million 
and S49 miliion, respeclivcly. Our operations in die Quad Cities also compete with other'gamtrig operadons in Illinois and Iowa. Approximately 
923,000 people reside witliin 60 miles ofour Bettendorf and Davenport properties. 

Marquette 

Our Marquene property, which we acquired in March 2000, is localed in Marquette, Iowa, approximately 60 miles north of Dubuque, Iowa. The property 
consLsts of a do^ckside casino offering 590 slot machines and 7 table games, a marina and 480 parking spaces. The facility was rebranded as a Lady Luck 
casino in fiscal 2010 and includes a 142-scal buffet restaurant, a 15-seat Otis and Henry's Express food bullet and a 155-seal LoneWolf re.st.iurant and bar. 

Our.Marquelte property is the only gaming faciliiy in the Maiqucne, Iowa maikcl and generated gaming revenues of approximately S30 nullion in 
calendar year 2011. We believe most ofour Marqueile customers are from "northeast Iowa and Wisconsin, which includes approximaiely 490,000 people 
within 60 miles ofour propcrtj', and we compete for Uiosc customers with other-gaiiiing facilitife iiiOubiiquc, Iowa and Native American casinos in 
southwestern Wisconsin. 

Waterloo 

Our Waterloo property opened on June 30, 3007 and is localed adjaceni to llighway 218 and US 20 in Waterloo, Iowa. The property consists of a single-
level casino offering 1,013 slotmachines, 23 table games and 4 poker tables. The property also offers a wide variety of non-gaming amenities, including a 
1 l8-scal Otis & Hem^''s,restaurant, a 205-scai buffet a 44-scai Tradewinds marketplace,,Club.Capri Lounge, Fling feature bar, 5,000 square feet of meeting 
space, t.500 parking spaces and a 195-robm hotel, which includes 27 suites, as well as an indoor pool and hot tub area; 

Our VVaicrloo property is the only gaming facility in the Waterloo, Iowa market and approximately 640,000 people, live wiihiri 60 miles ofthe property. 
We compete wilh other casinos in eastern Iowa. We generated gaming revenues of approximaiely S82 niillionlin calendar year 2011.. 

Colorado 

Isle Casino Hoiel-Black Hawk 

Isle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk commenced operalions in December 1998; is located on an approximately.lO-acre sile and is one ofthe first gaming 
facilities reached by customers arriving from Denver via llighway 119. the main thoroughfare connecting Denver to Blackliawk. Theproperty includes a 
land-based casino with 957 slol machines, 24 .standard lable games, a 7 tabic poker room,'a 238-room hotel and 1,100 parking spaces in an"attached parking 
garage. Isle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk 
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also offers customers three restaurants, including a 128-scat Farraddays' rcstaui^ant, a 270-seal Calypso's buffci and a 42-seal Tradewinds Marketplace. 

Lady Luck Casino-Black Hawk 

Lady Luck Casino-Black Hawk, which we acquired in April 2003 and rebranded in June 2009, is located across the intersection of .Main Street and Mill 
Streei from die Isle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk. The property consists ofa land-based casino with 522 slol machines, 10 standard lable gamts, 6 poker tables, a 
164-room hotel that opened in December 2005 and 1,200 parking spaces in our parking structure connecting isle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk and Lady. Luck 
Casino-Black Hawk. TTie piroperty also offers guests diiiing iri a 93-seat Otis &. Henry's restaurant as well as a grab-and-go fast serve food cart thai is located 
in the main level ofthe faciliiy. The property has also recenlly converted approximately. 2.250 square feet of space to flex space that can be used for meetings 
and special events. Our Black Hawk sites are connected via sky bridges. 

When casinos having multiple gaming licenses in the same building arc combined, the Black Hawk/CcnlraLCity rnarkel consists of 24 ganiing faciliiies 
(seven of which have morethan 600 slot machines), which in aggregate, generated gamingrevcnucsof approximately $619 million in calendar year 201 f. 
Our Black Hawk properties generated casino revenues forcalcndarycar2011 of approximately SI 2"? million.'Black Hawk is the closest gaming market to the 
Denver, Colorado metropolitan area, which has a population of approximately 2.9 million and is localed approximately ,40 mjlcseast of Black Hawk and 
serves as die primaiy feeder market for Black Hawk. 

Florida 

Pompano 

,ln 1995, we acquired Pompano Park, a harness racing track localed in Pompano Beach, Florida. Pompano Park is localed off of Inlerslate 95 aixl ihe 
Florida Turnpike on a 223-acre owned site, near Fort Lauderdale, midway between iMiami and West Palm Beach. Pompano Park is the only racetrack licensed 
to conduci harness racing in Floritia. 

Ou"r Pompano facility includes 1,454 slot machines, a 38-tablc poker room, a 120r.se3t Farradday's resiaurani, a 110-seal Bragozzo'S Italian restaurant, a 
250-seat buffet, a 100-scai deli, a 60-seal casual restaurant, an express grab and go food oiitiel; a feature bar and 3,800 parking spaces. 

Approximalcly, 2.6 million people reside wiihin a 25-milc radius of our Pompano, facility; which competes with l""onr other racinos and three Narive 
American gaming facilities in the niarket While casino revenues are not available for all inarket compelilors, we estimate that wc operate approximaiely 10% 
ofthe slot machines in the maikei arid generated approximately $142 million in casino revenues for. calendar year, 201 L 

Assets Held for Sale 

Bilo.Ki 

Our Biloxi property, which commenced operalions in August 1992, is localed on a 17-acre sile al the eastern end ofa cluster of facilities formerly known 
as "CasinoRow" in Biloxi; Mississippi, and is'ihe first property reached by visitors coming from Alabama, Floridaand Georgia m'Highway 90, 

Our Biloxi properiy offers approximaiely 1,200 skit niachines, 27 uible games, a nine-iable poker room, a 709-room hotel including 200 whirlpool suites, 
a 120-seat banquet room called "Paradise Room," 138-seai Farraddays'resiaurani, a 200-seaI,Calypso's buffet, a I28-.seal Cafi: al Uie Point restaurant, a 94-
seal Tradewinds marketplace, a mulii-stdry feature bar, a frill service Starbucks and over 1,300 parking spaces. 
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The Mississippi Gulf Coast market (which includes Biloxi, Gulfport and Bay St. Louis) consists of 11 dockside gaming facilities, which in the aggregate, 
generated nel gaming revenues of approximaiely SLI billion during calend;ir year 2011, Our Biloxi property generated net gaming revenues of approximately 
$51 million during calendar year 2011. Approximatelyone million people reside within 60 miles ofthe property. 

In March 2012 we entered into an agreement to sell our Biloxi operation for approximately S45 mdlion. The transaiftion is expected to close in fiscal 
2013. 

Marketing 

Our marketing program's are designed lo promote our overall business strategy,of providing custo'mers with a safe,'clean, friendly.and fim gaming 
experience al each of our propenies. We have developed an exierisive proprietary database of customers that allows us to create effective targeted markciirig 
and promoiional programs that are designed lo reward customer loyalty,-aiu^act new'"custoincrs lo'our properties and maintaiii high recognition ofour brands. 

Specifically, our marketing programs and initiatives are tailored to support this corporate strategic plari and arc generally focused on the following areas: 

*. Customer Research: Our marketing strategies have been developed and implemented to: meet the needs and desires of our casino customers in 
each ofour locaiions. In order io assess these needs and desires, we engage in significani customer research in each ofour martcels by conthicting 
periodic surveys. Upon receipt of these surveys"; we assess Ihcattitudes^of ouncustorfie'rs'arid'lhe ciJsiomeiTi of our'compelilors', properties 
towards the mosi importanl atlribules of their, experience in a regional and'or local ganiing facility? We use the extensive information gathered 
from these research initiatives lo make marketing, operating and devclopmerit decisions that, wc believe, will optimize the position ofour 
properties relative to our competition. 

Branding Initiaiives: Our strategic plan is designed to consolidate our property portfolio from four brands into two brands as the economy 
iraprovesand we undertake.signitlcant new capilal improveilient programs. To date, our. Lady. Luck re-branding initiadve includes our.propertics 
in Caruthersville, .Missouri and Marquette, iowa. Additioii^ally, wc have converted Colora'do Central Siaiion in Black Hawk, Colorado to Lady 
Luck-Black Hawk. In addition, wc are currcnlly rebranding our casino in Vicksburg, Mississippi to Lady Luck Casino Vicksburg, with expected 
completioriby Uie end ofthe second quarterof fiscal 2013. Asa component of these re-Hnindirig programs, we have also implemented newly-
branded customer outlets, including custom restaurants and lounges that we arc expanding Uirough our portfolio to olher prope;rlies: We believe, 
over time, this approach \vill allow us to more effectively align and pforiibtc Viir properties based upon customer needs and dcsire.s and market 
our properties on a consolidated basis; FurUiermore, we expect our approach will streamline the cosis associated with liiarkeling our portfolio. 

Database Markeiing: We have streamlined our database marketing iriitialivcs across the Company in order to focus our marketing efforts on 
profitable cusiomers who have demonstrated a willingness to rcgulariy'visit oiir properties. Specifically, we have focused on eliniinaling from 
our database customers who have historically been included in significani marketing efforts but have proven costly cither as a resuh of excessive 
marketing expenditures on ihc part ofthe Company, or because Ihese customere have become relatively dormant in terras of customer aclivity. 
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• Segmeniaiion: We have compiled an cxtensiir'c database ofcustomer informalion over time. Ariaong our-mosl importanl niarketiiig initiatives, we 
have introduced database segmcnlation io our properties and'al the corporate level in'ofrler to adjust investment rates lo'a level ai.which wc 
expect lo meel a reasonable level ofcustomer profit contribution. 

Retail Development: We believe that we must more effectively attract new; non-database custoriiers to our properties in order lo increase 
profitability and free cash flow. These customers are generally less expensive to attraci and retain and, iherclbre, currendy represenl a significant 
opportunity Tor our, operations. 

Employees 

As of April 29, 2012, wc employed approximately 7,700 fiill and part-time petiple. Wchave a collective bargaining agreement with UNITE HERE 
covering approximately 450 etuployees at our Pompano property" which was renewed in May 2012 and expires in May 2015. We believe that our relationship 
with our employees is satisfactory. 

Governmental Regulations 

'Ifie gamiiig and racing industries arc highly regulated, and wc must niainlaiii our licenses and pay gaming taxes to continue otu- operations. Each ofour 
facilities is subject to extensive regulation under the laws,'rules and regulations uf llic jurisdiclion where il is located. These lawsfmles and regulations 
generally relate to the responsibility, fmancial stability and character ofthe owners,-managers and persons with financial ititcrests'in ihe ganiing operalions. 
Violations of laws in one jurisdiction could result in disciplinary action in;odierjun'sdictions, A more.detailed description of the regulations to which we are 
subjcci is'containcd iri [•xhibit99.I to this/Vnnual Report on Form 10-K. 

Our businesses aresubjeci to various ttderal, state and local laws and regulations in addition to gaming regulations. These laws and regulations include. 
but ."ire not limited to, restrictions and conditions concerning alcoholic beverages, food service, smoking; environmental matters, employees and employment 
practices, ciirrency trajisaclions, taxation, zoning and building codes, and marketing and advertising. Siich laws and regulations could change or could be 
interpreted diiferenlly in the fuiure, br new laws and regulations could be enacted. Material changes, new laws or regulations, or maierial differences in 
interpretations by courts or governmental authorities could adversely affect our operating results. 

Available Information 

For more information about us, vi.sil our web site at www.isIeofcapricasinos.com. Our electronic filings with the U.S. Securities and E.xchange 
Commission (including all aririual reports on Form 10-K, quarter rqmrts on Form i 0-Q, and curreni reports on Form 8-k, and any anicridments lo these 
reporis), including the exhibits, arc available free of charge ihrough oiir web site as .soon as reasonably practicable afler we electronically file diem with or 
fumish them to the U.S.'Securities and Exchange Commission. 
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ITEM I A. RISK FACTORS 

fVefdce significant competition from other gaming operalions, including !*̂ alive American gaming facilities, that could have a maierial adverse 
effect on our fuiurc operations. 

'The gaming industry is intensely compeiiiive, and we face a high degree of competition in the markets in which wc operate. We have numerous 
competitors,-including larid-based casinos, dockside casinos, riverboat casinos, casinos located on racing, pari-mutuel operalions or Native American-owned 
lands and video lottery and poker machirics not located in casinos. Some ofour compedtors may have better name recognition, inarkcting ond financial 
resources than we do; competitors with more fmancial resources niay thereforebcable to improve the quality of, or expand, their gaming facilities in away 
that we rriay be unable to match. 

Legalized gaming is currentlv pemiitted in various forms throughout the Uniled Stales. Certain states have recenlly legalized, and othei" stales are 
currently considering legalizing garning. Our existing gaming feciliiies corripete'directiy with oiher gaming properties in the states in which we operate. Our 
existing casinos attract asignificant number.oflhctrcusidtriers frorii Houston, Texas; Mobile, Alabama: Kansas City, Kansas; Southern Florida; LilUe.Rtick, 
Arkaiisas: and Denver, Colorado. Legalization of gaming in jurisdictions closer lo Uiese geographic markets other than the jurisdictions in which oiir facilities 
are located would have a materia) adverse effect ori our operating results. Olher jurisdiciions, including siatcs in close proxiriiity to jurisdictions where we 
currently have operations, have considered and may consider legalizingcasinogamirigandothcf'fofmsof competition. In addiUdn^ there is no hmit on Ihe 
number ofgaming licenses that may be granted in several of Ihc markets in which we operate. Asa resuli, new gaming licenses could be "awarded in these 
markets, which could allow new,gaming"operators locntef our markets that could have an adverse effecl on "oiu-operating results. For example, on 
February 17, 2011, a project was awarded a gaming license in Lake Charles, Louisiana which; if completed, will compete with our existing Lake Charles 
property. A casino propcrt>', which could compete wilh our Natchcz.'.Mississippi propcrty;is currently under development. 

"Our conlinued success depends upon drawing customers from each of these geographic markets. Wc expect competition to increase as new gaming 
operaldis enteioiir "markels, existing compelilors", expand Uieir operations, gaming activities expand in exisling jurisdiciions and gaming is legalized in new 
jurisdictions. We cannoi predici wilh any certainly the effects of existing arid future competition.on our operating results. 

We also compete wilh other forms of legalized gaming and entertainment such as online computer.gambling, bingo, pull tab games, card parlors, sports 
books, "cruise-io-110where' operations, pari-mumcl or telephonic betting on horse racing and dog racing, state-sponsored lotteries, jai-alai, and, in the future, 
may. compete with gaming at other venues. In addiiion, wc compete more generally with other tbrms ofcritertairiment forthe discretionary spending ofour 
customers. 

.We are .'iuhjeci to ejctensive regulation fnim gaming and other regulatory authorities ihat could adversely affect us. 

Licensing requirements. As owners and operators ofgaming and pari-mutuci wagering facilities, wc are subjecl to extensive state and local regulation. 
Slate and local auUiorhies require us and our subsidiaries to demonstrate suitability lo obtain and retain varkms licenses and require that wchave registrations, 
permits and approvals to conduct gaming operations. The regulatory authorities iii the jurisdictions in which wcoperatc have very broad discretion with 
regard to their regulation ofgaming operators, and may fora broad variety of reaiions and in accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations, limit, 
condilion, suspend, fail to renew or revoke a license to conduci gaming opcnitions or prevent us from owning the securities ofany of our gaming subsidiaries, 
or prevent oiher persons from owning an interest in us or doing business with us. Wc may al.so be deeriicd responsible for the acts and conduct ofour 
employees. Substantial fines or forfeiture of .issets for violalions ofgaming laws or 
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reflations may be levied against us, our subsidiaries and die pcrsons'involved;and some "regulatory aulhorilies have the ability to require us lo suspend our 
operadons. The suspension or revocation of any ofour licenses or our operations orthe levy on us or otu" subsidiaries ofa substantial fine would have a 
material ad\'erse effect on our business. 

To dale, wc have demonstrated suilabilily to obiain and have obtained all governmental licenses, registrations, permits and approvals necessary for us to 
operate oiir ejusting gaming facilities. Wc caimot assure you dial we will he able lb retain these licenses* regislralions, permits and approvals or ihal we will 
be able to obtain any. new ones in order loexpand ourbusiness, or that our attempts to do'so will be timely. Like all gamirig operators in the jurisdicdons in 
which wc operate, we niust peiiodically apply to renew our gaming licenses and have.the suitability of ceriain of our du-ectors, officers and employees 
approved,'We cannoi assure you thai we will be able to obtain such renewals or approvals, 

.In addiiion, regulatory authorities in certain jurisdictions must approve, inadvancc, any resiriciiijns on iranslcrs of, agreements riot to encumber or 
pledges of equiiy securities issued by a corporation that is regisiered as an iritermediary company with siich state, orthat holds a gaming license. If these 
restrictions are not approved in advance, they will be invalid. 

Compliance with other laws. We are also subject to a variety of olher federal, slate and local laws, nilcs,'regulauons and ordinances thatapply to non-
gaming businesses, including zoning, environmental,' constrociion and land-use laws and regulations governing" the serving of alcoholic beverages. Under 
various federaLsfate and local laws and regulations, an owner ur operator of real property may be held liable for the costs of removal or remetliaiion of certain 
hazardous or.toxic subslances'or wastes localed on its property.- regardless of whetjicr or not the present owner or operaior knows of, br is responsible for, the 
presence of such substances or wastes. Wc have not identified any issues associated with our properties that coiild'reasonably be expecied lo have a material 
adverse effccton us'or the results of our operalions. However, .several ofour properties are located in industrial areas or were used for industrial purposes for 
many, years. /\sa consequence, it is possible ihat historical or neighboring activities have'affecled oneor more of our properties arid that, asa result, 
erivironmenial'issues could arise in the future, the precise nature ofwhich we cannot now predict The coverage and attendant compliance costs associaied 
with ihesejaws, regulations and ordinances may result in fuiure additional cosis. 

Regulations adopted by the Financial Crimes Iinfoiccment Network ofthe U.S, treasury Departmeni require us lo report currency iransacdons in excess , 
of S 10,000 occUrting wiihb a gaming day, including idenliiication ofthe patron byname and social security number. U.S. Treasury Departmeni reguladons 
also rcqtiire us lo rcport certain suspicious acUvity, including any iransaction" that exceeds S5,0(K) if we know, suspect of have reason to believe Ihat the 
iransaciion involves tunds from illegal activity or is designed to evade federal regulaiions or rcporting'requiremenis. SubstanUal penalties can be imposed 
againsl us if wc fail to comply with these regulations. 

Several of bur riverboats must comply with U.S. Coasl Guard requirements as to boat design, on-board facilities, equipment,'personnel and safety and 
must hold U.S. Coast Guard Certificates of Documeniaiion and Inspeclion.The,U.S.'Coasl Guard requirements also set limits on the operation ofthe 
riverboalsand mandaleliceiising of certain personnel involved wiilftheopcralion ofthe riverboats. Loss ofa riverboat's Certificate of Documentatiori and 
inspeciiori-cdiild preclude its use as a riveiboat casino: The U:S.' Coast Guard has~shiflcd inspection duties relaled to permanendy moored casino vessels to die 
individual stales. Louisiana and Missouri have elected to udlize the services of the American Bureau of Shipping to undertake the inspections. Iowa has 
elected to handle ihc'inspecrions through the Iowa Department of Natural Resources. The .states will continue the same inspecfion criteria asthe U.S, Coast 
Guard in regard lo annual anti five year inspections. Depending on the 
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outcome oflhese inspections a vessel could become subjcci lo dry-docking for inspection of its hull, which could result in a temporary loss of scr\'ice. 

We are required to have third parties periodically inspect and certify all ofour casino^bargcs for stability and single compartment llotxiing integrity. Our 
ca'sino barges arid other facilities mu'sl also meet local fire safay standards. Wc would incur additional costs if any ofour gaming faciliues weft: not in 
compliance.wilh one or niore of lhe.se regulations. 

Polehiiat changes in legislation and regulation of our operalions. From time to time, legislators and special inierest groups have [irbposed legislation 
that would exp,ind, restrict or prevent gamirig operations in Ihe jurisdictions in which we operate. In additiori, fiom time to dme, certain anti-gaming groups 
have challenged constitutional amendments or legislation that would limit our ability to continue to operate in those jurisdicuons in which these consiitudonal 
amendments or legislation have been adopied. 

Taxation andfee.\-. Siaicand local authorities raise a significant amoutii of rcvenue Uirough taxes and fees on gamirig acdvides: We believe that the 
prospect of significant revenue is one of the primary reasons that jurisdictions permit legalized gaming. As a result, gaming companies are typically .subject to 
significani laxes and fees b addiiion lo borrhal tederal, state, local and prtiviricial income taxes, and such taxes "and'fees arc subjecl to increase at any tiriit;. 
Wc pay subsianiial taxes and fees wilh respect lo our operations. From time to dme, federal, stale, local and provincial legislators and officials have proposed 
changes in tax laws, or in die administration of such law^, affecting the gaming industry. Ariy m'aierial mcrcase,or die adoption of addidonal taxes or fees, 
could have a matcriaradversc effect on our future fmancial resulis. 

Effeciive July I, 2011, Ihe Colorado Limited Gaming Control Commission reduced allgaminglax ders by 5%, which resulled in a reduction ofthe top 
rale tier from 20% to 19%. The Commission has announced ihai il plans to restore the rales lo iheir preyiduslcvels effeciive July 1, 2012; 

Ourbusiness may he adversely affected by legislation prohibiting tobacco snioking. 

Legislation in various foriiis lobari indoor lobacco smoking has ia:endy been enacted or introduced rii many slates and local jurisdictions, including 
several of the jurisdicdons in whicli we operate. If additional restricfions on smokuig are enacted in jurisdictions in which we operate, we could e.xperience a 
significant decrease iri gaming revenue and particularly, if such reslricdons are nol upplicabie.lo all compedtive faciiifies in that gaming market, ourbusiness 
could be materially adversely affected. 

Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our financial health and restrict our operations. 

Wc have a significani amounl of indebledness. As ofApril 29, 20l2,.we had approximately Sf.2.billion,of total debt outstanding. 

Our significant indebtedness could have importanl consequences lo our financial health, such as: 

limiting our.ibility louse operaiing cash" flow or obtain additional financing to fimd,working capilal, capilal cxpentlimres, expansion and other 
important areas ofour business because"wc must dedicate a significarit portion of our cash tlow to make'pruicipal and interest payments on our 
indebledness; 

causing an event of defauh if we fail lo safisfy Ihc firiancial and restrictive covenants contained in the indentures and agreements governing our 
.senior secured crcdit facility,"our.7.75%-scnior notes, our-7% senior subordinated notes and our other indebtedness, which could result in all of 
our debt becoming triimediaiely due and payable, couid permit our secured lenders lo foreclose 
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on die asseis securing our secured debt and have oiher adverse consequences, any ofwhich, if not cured or wai\'cd, could have a maierial adverse 
effecl on us; 

Jf the uideblcdness under our 7.75% senior notes, our 7% senior.subordinaied notes, our seniorsecured credit facility, or our other" indebledness 
were IO be accelerated, there can be no assurance that our assetswould be sufficient to repay such indcbicdricss in frill; 

placing us at a compedtive disadvantage lo our compedlofs who are not as highly leveraged; 

• increasing our vulnerability to and limiting our ability to react to changing market conditions, changes in our uidustry and economic downturris 
or downturns in our business; and 

our agreements governing our indcblctlncss, among oiher Uiings, require us to mairitain certain specified financial ratios and to meet certain 
financial tests. Our debt agreements also limit ourability lo: 

i. bortow money; 

ii. make capilal expenditures; 

iii, • use assels as security in other transactions: 

iv. make restricted paymenis or restricted investments: 

V. incur confingenl obligalions; and. 

vi. sell assets and enter into leases and tran.sactions with aftil tales. 

A substantial portion of our outstanding debt bears interest at variable rales, although ,we have entered into inlercstratc protecfion agreements expiring 
Ihrough fiscal 2014 with counterparty banks with respect to SI 50 million ofour term loans under our senior secured credit facility'. If shori-ierm interesi rales 
rise, our interest cost will increase ori the unhedgcdportionof our variable rate indcbictlness, which will advcrsclyaffcct our results of operations and 
arailabic cash. 

Any ofthe faciors lisied above could have a materia] adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operolions: We cannot assure you 
that our business will continue to generate siiflicient cash flow, or thai future available draws under our seriior secured credit facility will be sufficient to 
enable us to,meel"our liquidity needs, including those needed lo Ser\'ice ourindebledncss. 

Despite our .significant indebtedness, we may still be able to Incur significantly more debi. This could intensify the risks described above. 

The terms ofthe indentiircs and agreements govcmiiig bur senior securedcredit faciiitj-, our 7.75% senior notes, our 7% senior subordinaied notes and 
our other indebtedness limit, bul do not prohibit, us or our subsidiaries from' incurring significani additional indebtedness in die fuiurc. 

As ofApril 29, 2012, wc had the capaciiy to incur adtlitional indebtedness, including the ability to'incur additional indebtedness under our line of credii, 
'of approximaiely $258 million. Approximately S29 million of capaciiy of our.senior .secured crcdit facility was used to .support letters of credit and sureij' 
bonds. Our capaciiy to issue addifional indebtedness is subjecl to the liriiiladons imposed by the covenants in our seniorsecured cretlit facility, ihe indenture 
govemirigoui 7;75% senio"r notes and die indenture governing our 7% senior subordin'atediioles: 'l"he indenture governing our 7% senior,suboidinated notes, 
the indenture governing oiir 7:75% senior notes and our senior secured crcdit facility contain financial and other rcsirictivccovcnarilSi bul will not fiilly 
prohibil us from incurruig additional debt. If new debt is added lo our current levelof indebledness, die related risks diai wcnow face could intensify. 
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If we cannot refinance our 7% senior subordinated notes on or prior to November I, 2013, then our seniorsecured credit facility matures on that 
dale arid we may nol be able to renew or extend our senior .secured crcdit facility or enter into a new cred'a facility in today's difficult markets. In addition, 
our ability to renew or extend our .senior secured credii facility or.to enter into a new credit facility may be impaired further if market conditions worsen. 
If we are able to refinance our 7% senior subordinated holes or, in the tilternative, renew dr extend our senior secured credit facillt}; it may be on terms 
suhstandally less favorable thati the 7% senior subordinaied notes or senior secured credit facility. 

Our senior secured crctiit facility maiurcs on November 1, 2013 if wchave not refinanced or otherwise retired the 7% senior subordinated notes on or 
prior to such date. Our cash flow from operalions is unlikely lo be sufficient to retire all of such notes al or prior to November I, 2013.We may therefore be 
forced to refmance the 7% .senior subordinated notes on subslanfially less favorable terms than.we have currendy. Failure to obiain new debt on favorable or 
reasonable terms to replace existing debt could affect our liquidity and the value of our other securities, including our equiiy. Our ability to refinance or 
othcrwi.sc rctjni oiir 7% senior suborduiated notes prior io Noveniber I, 2013, or inlhealicmaiiye to renew or extend our existing seniorsecured credii facility 
or to enter into a new credii facility lo replace the exisfing senior secured credii facility could be impaired if market condiiions worsen. In thecurtcnt 
environment, lenders may seek more restrictive lending provisions and higher uitcrcst rales that may.rcducc our borrowing capacity and increase our costs. 
We can make no assurances" thai we will be able lo"ri;firia'nce or otherwise rctirc,oiu 7% senior subordinated notes prior to November I, 2013, and if wc are 
unable to do so, that we will be able to enter, into a new credit facility or renew or extend our'exisling .senior seeiired credit facility, or whether any siich credit 
facility wdl be available under acceptable temis. Failure toobtaui sufficieni financing or financing on acceptable terms would constrain our ability lo operate 
our btisiness and to coniinue our development and expansion projects. Any of dicse circumstances could havea material ad\'ersc effect on ourbusiness, 
financial condilion and resuhs of operations; 

Wc may nol be able to succes.sfully expand lo new locations or recover our investment in new properties which would adversely affect our operalions 
and available resources. 

Wc regularly evaluate opportuifilics for growth through developmeni ofgaming operations in exisfing or new markets, dirdugh acquiring or managing 
other ganiuig entertairunenl facilities or through" rcdevclopriig our exisdrig facilities. The expansion ofour operalions, wheiher through acq"'uisilions, 
development manageriienl conlracts or internal growth, could divert management's attenUon and could also cause us to incur substanfial costs, including 
legal, professional and consuldng fees. To theextenithat we elect Itj pursue ariy new gaming acquisition, managcnienl or development opportunity, ourability 
lo benefit from our investment will depend on many factors, including; 

our ability to successfully ideniiiy attracfive acquisilion and development opportunities; 

ourability to succcssiiillyoficraic any developed, managed or acquired properties; 

our ability lo altraa and retain competent management and employees for the new locations; 

ourability to secure required federal.state and local licenses, permits and approvals, which in somcjiirisdictions are limited in number and 
subjecl to intense eompelilion; and 

the availability of .idequale financing on acceptable terms. 

Mariy of diese factors are beyond our conU ôl. There have been significant disrapfions in ihe global capital markels that have adversely impacted the 
ability of borrowers to access capilal. Accordingly, it is likely that we are dependenl on free cash tlow frorii operations and remaining borrowing capacity 
under our senior secured credit facility to implemenl our near-lemi expahsiori plans and fund our planned capiUil expenditures. Asa result of these and other 
considerations, we cannot be sure that we 
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will be able to recover our investmenis in any new gaming developmeni or managcmerit opportunillcs or acquired facihties, or successfully expand lo 
additional locaiions. 

Tfl may experience cbrtstruction delays during our expansion or development projects that could adversely affecl our operadons. 

From lime lo time we may commence conslmction projects at our properties. Wc also evaluate oiher'expansion opportunities as Ihcy become available 
and we may in the fuiure engage in additional construction projects. On Deceniber l; 2010, the Missouri Gamirig Commission selccied our proposed Cape 
Girardeau Project for prioriiizafion for the I3di and finalgaming license in the Slate of Missouri. The CapeGirardeau Projeci is expected lo include 
approximaiely 1,000 slot machines, 28 table games, 3 restaurants, a loungcand terrace overlooking the Mississippi River and a,750-seaievent center, at an 
estimated cost of SI 35 million. On April 14, 2011, our project al ihe Kemacoiin Woodlands Resort ("Nernacolin") was selected by the Pennsylvania Gaming 
Conlrol Board for the final Category 3 resort gaming license. We had previously entered into an agreement with Nemacolin to complete the build-out ofthe 
casino space and provide managemeni ser\'iccs to the casino; The Nemacolin,projccl is expected to inchide 600 slot machines, 28 table games, a casual dining. 
restaurant and lounge. Wecurrenlly estimate the project cost at approxinialely $50, million.'Following a successful resolution of an appeal,tiled by another ^ 
applicant'arid receipt ofany necessary regulaiory approvals, we expect lo coiiiplele Ihe project widiin nine months ofthe commcricenieni of conslruclion. The 
anticipated costs and consirucuon periods for the Cape Girardeau projeci, the Nemacolin project arid odieV projects are^bascd upon budgets, conceptual design 
documents and construciion schedule eslimales prepared by us in consuliation wilh our arcliilccts. Construction projecis entail significant risks, which can 
subslanfially increase costs or delay completion of a project Such risks include shortages of materials or skilled labor,,unforeseen engineering, environmental 
or geological problems, work stoppages, weather inlerference and unanticipaied cost increases. Most oflhese fa(;lors are bi^'bnd our control. In addifion, 
difficulties or delays irioblainuigany of the requisite licenses, pcniiits or authorizations from regulatory authorities cari increase the cost or delay the 
completion of an expansion or development SigriificanI budget overrons or delays with respect lo e.xpflnsioii and developmeni projects could adversely affect 
our results of operations.' 

If we construct the Cape Girardeau Project and we are not grdntcd gaming.licenses, our financial condition could be materially ad\'er.sely affected. 

On December 1, 2010, the .Missouri Gaming Commission selected our proposed,Cape Girardeau Project for prioridzaiion fof the 13th and finalgaming 
license in the Slate (if Missouri. Asa jKuiicipant in this process, our subsidiary iOC-Capc, Girardeau LLC applied fora Class B Rivcrboal Gaming License in 
Missouri. The decision by the Missoiiri Ganiing Comibission to prioriiize lis casino development docs not provide IOC-Capc Girardeau LLC with any license 
to open the casino dncc developed or any assurance that such a license will be granted. The Class B license rcquircdfor IOC-Cape Girardeau LLC to operate 
its proposed gaming facility cannot be granted by die Missouri Gaming Commission until the gaming facility development is substantially complete and ready 
to accept patrons.-"The grant ofthis license would be subjecl to numerous conditions as described in "Dcscriptibri of Government Regulaiions—Missouri" in 
Exhibil 99:1'to this Annual Report on Form! 0-K forthe fiscal year ended-April 29, 2012. If, asa resuli of these regulatory conditions or otherwise, wc are 

'Unable to receive die gaming Ikense after we construct .the Cape Girardeau Project,,our, tlnanclal condition could be materially adversely affected. 
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If we are not licensed in Pennsylvania in connection with the proposed resort ca.sino at i**'einacoUn Woodlands Resort or if our management 
agreement is not approved in its current form or if eilher of these matters are materially delayed, we may not manage Ihe casino or the terms upon which 
we manage may be less favorable to us. 

On April 14, 2011, Nemacolin Woodlands Resort {"Nemacolin") ui Farmington, Pennsylvania was selected by die Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board 
for Ihe final Category 3 resort gaming license. Wc had previously entered uilo anagrt;cmcnt willi Nemacolin lo compleie the build-oul of die casuio space and 
"provide management services of the casino. We currently e.stim'alc the "project cost at approximately S50 mdlion. The award ofthe Pennsylvania license lo 
Nemacolin has been appealed lO the Pennsylvania Supreme Court by one ofthe other applicants. Subject lo a successful ruling in the appeal, and the receipt of 
all necessary regulatory arid other approvals we expect to coriiplele the facility wilhbi approximately nriie monUis after commencing construcfion. 

If our key personnel leave us, our business could be adversely affected. 

Our conlinued success will depend, among oiher ihifigs, on the efforts and skills ofa few key execufive bfiicers and die experience of our property 
managers. Ourability lb nrtiiiri key personnel is affected by die comptidlivencssof bur compensation packagtis and the other temis and conditions of 
employmenl, our continued ability to compete'effectively against odier gaming companies and our.growlh prospects. The loss of the services ofany of Utesc 
key individuals could have a maierial adverse effect on our business, fmancial condilion and results of operations. We do nol mainiain "key man" life 
insurance for any of our employees. 

We are effeaively controlled by members ofthe Goldstein Family and their decisions may differ from those that may be made by otherstockholders. 

Robert S. Goldstein, our Vice Chairman of Uie Board, and Jeffrey D. Goldstein and Richard A. Goldstein, Iwo ofour directors, and various family trusts 
associaied with members of the Goldsicin family and entifies associated with certain'members of die Goldslein family, (collectively the "Goldslein Parties") 
directly, and indirectly collectively own and conuol approximaiely 42.1% of our comnion stock as ofApril 29, 2012. 

Tlie Goldstein Panics have subsianiial cnnlrol over the election of our.board of directors and,the outcome ofthe vote on subslanfially all other matters, 
including amendment ofour amended and restated cerdiicate of incorporation, amendmeni of bur by-laws and significant corporale transacfions, such as the 
approval ofa merger or odier transaciions involving a sale of the Company. Such substantial control riiay have the effect of tfiscouraging iransaclions 
involving an actual or potential change of control, which in turn could have a riialcrial adverse effect oniheriiarkct price ofour common siock or prevent our 
.stockholders from realizing a premium over the markel price for their shares oftrbinmon stock.'fhe interests ofthe Goidstein Parties may ditTer from Uiose of 
our other stockholders. 

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation contains pro visions that could delay attd discourage takeover attempts Ihat stockholders may 
consider favorable. 

Certain provisions ofour amended and restated certificate" of riicorporaiion may make it more difficull or prevent a third party from acquiring control of 
us, including: 

we may nol, unlil the Supermajority Expiration Time (as defined below) without the affirniafive vote oflhe holders of ill least 66'/3% oflhe 
Company's voting power, voling as a single class, authorize; a'dopl or approve.ccnainexmiordinary corporale transactions: and 
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• the classificaikin ofour board of directors and slaggered ihree-year-lciriis of service tor each class of direclors. 

"Supermajority Expirafion Time" means the first to occur of (i) the Goldsieui,Group ceasing Io hold common stock ofthe Company representing at least 
22.5% of our oulsianduig common stock, not including any shares of Class B^cnmmon siock or shares of common stock-issued upon conversion ofany 
prefertcd stock and (ii) April 8, 2021. 'I'he "Goldstein Group" means Robert S. Goldslein, our Vice Chairman, and Jeffrey D. Goldstein and Richard .•\. 
Goldstein, iwo ofour directors, spouses, children and grandchildren of certain members ofthe Goldstein family and enUlies associaied with certain members 
of die Goldstein family. 

These provisions may make mergers, acquisidons, tender ofltrs, the removal of management and certain other transacfions more ififficull ormorecosdy 
and could discourage or limit stockholder participation in such lypes of transacfions, whciheror not such trarisaclioris are favored by the stockholders. 'I'he 
provisions also could limit the price Ihal invesiors might be willing to pay in the fuiure for shares ofourcommon stock. Further, dicexistenccof these anli-
takeover measures may cause potential bidders to look elsewhere, rather ihan uiiliaiing acquisifion discussionsiwiih us. Any of these faciors could reduce the 
price ofour common stock. 

We have a history offiuctuations in our operating income flosses) from.continuing operations:.and we mayJncur'addilional operafing losses from 
continuing operalions in the future. Our operating results could fiuctuate .significantly an a periodic basis. 

-We sustained a (loss) frorii continuing operafions of S(l 7.4) million in fiscal 2012, earned income from confinuing opierafions of S3.7 nullion in fiscal 
2011 and earned income from confinuing operalions of S5,0 million in fiscal'2010. Companies with fluctuadbns in income Ooss) from continuing operafions 
oflcn find il more challenging to raise capital to finance improvements in iheir busuies.ses and to undertake other activifies that return value to their 
stockhojclers. In addifion, companies with operating results that tlucluate significaiitly ori'a quarterly or annual basis experii;nce increased volatility in their 
siock prices in addition to dit'ffcuhics in raising capital. Wc cannot assure you dial we will not have flucluadons in our income (losses) from confinuing 
operafion,s in the future, and should that occur, that we would not suffer adverse consequences to our business as a result, which could decrease the valiic of 
ourcorairion slock. 

Inclement weather and other conditions could seriously disrupt our. business and have a maierial, adverse effect an our financial condilion and 
results of'operations. 

The operations ofour facilities are subject to disruptions or reduced pauonage as a result of severe weather condidons, natural disasters and other 
casuahics. Because many ofour gaming operations arc located on or adjacent lb bodies of water, these facilities are subjcci to risks rii addifion to those 
associated wilh other casinos, incliidirig loss of service due to casually, forces of nature, rriechariical failure, exleridcd or extraordinary maintenance, flood, 
hurricane or other severe weather conditions and other disasieis. For example, floodirig along the Mississippi River resulted iri five bf our properties being 
closed for differing p<:riodsoftime in fiscal 2012. In addition, severe weaiher,such as high winds and blizzards occasionally limits access to bur land-based 
facilities in Colorado. We cannot be sure ihal die proceeds from any fuiurc insurance claim will be sufiicienl'lo cbmpen!!aie us if one or more of our casinos 
experience' a closure. 
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• Reductions in discretionary consumer spending could have a material adverse effect on our business. 

Our business has been and may'corilinue lo be adversely affected by ecunoniic flucluadons experienced in the United Slates, as wc are highly dependent 
on discretionaiy spending by our patrons.-Reducfions in discrefionary consumer spending or changes" in consumer preferences brought about by factors such 
as increased unemployment, significant increases in energy prices, perceived or;aclual deterioration in general economic condidons, housing markel 
instability, bank faihircsand the potenfial for addilional bank failures, perceived or actual decline in disposable consumer income and wealth, thegbba) 
economic recession and changes in consumer confidence in the ccorioriiy could reduce customer demand for ihe leisure acdvities we'offer and may adversely 
affeciour revenues and operadng cash flow. .We are iinabic to predici the frequency, length or severity of econoriik: circurasiariccs. 

The market price ofour comnion siock may fiuctuate significanlly. 

The markel price of our common slock has historically been volatile and may confiriue to fluctuate subslanfially due to a nmnber of factors, includuig 
actual or anticipated changes m our lesulls of operations, die ariridunce'meni of sigitificani u-ansaciioris or odier agreements by. our competitors, condiiions or 
U-ends in the our industry orother entertainmenl industries widi which we compctei general economic conditions including those affecting bur customers' 
discrefionary spcndirig, changes in the cost of air travel or die cost of gasoline; changes in'the gaming maikcts iri.which weoperalc and changes in the tradirig 
value ofour common stock; The slock market in general, as well as slocks in the gaming .sector have been subjecl to significani volatility and extreme price 
flucluations thai have sometimes been unrelated or disproportionate lo individual companies' operating performances. Broad market or inthisiry factors may 
harm the markel price ofour common stock, regardless of oiir operating performance.-

Work .stoppages, organizing drives and other labor problems could negatively impact our fuiure profits-

Some ofour employees are curtentiy represented by a labor union or have begun orgariizui'g a drive forlabbr.uniori repiescntafion. Labor unions are 
rnaking a concerted effort lo recrliil riiore crriployccs in the ganung industry. In addition, organized labor may benefil fix)ra new legisladon or legal • 
inlerpretaUons by the curreni presidenfial admuiislration. We cannot provide any assurance that we will not experience addifional or more successful union 
activity in trie fuiure. 

.Addifionally, lengthy strikes or other work stoppages at any of our casino properties or construct ion projects could have anadvcrseefftxt on ourbusiness 
and result of operafions: 

We are or may become involved in legal proceedings that, if adversely adjudicated or.seitlcd, could impact our financial condition. 

From lime lo fime, we are defendants in various lawsuits and ganiing regulatory proceedings reliiting to mailers incidental to our business. As with all 
litigation, no assurance can be provided as to ihe outcome oflhese matters and, in general, liligafioh can be ex'pensive and time consumriig. We may not be 
successful in the defense or proseculion ofour current or fuiure legal proceedings, which could result in settlements or damages that could significandy 
impact our business, financial condifion and results of operations. 

Our insurance coverage may not be adei/uaie to cover all possible losses thai our properties could suffer. In addidon, our insurance costs may 
increase and we may nol be able tn obtain the same insurance coverage in the future. 

We may suffer damage to our property caused by.a casualty loss (such as fire, natural disasters, acts of warorlerrorisin), thatcoukl severely disrupt our 
business or subjecl us to claims by third parties who are injured or harmed. Although we maintain insurarice customary in our industry, 
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(inclutling property', ca,sualrj', tcrtorisrp and business interruption insurance) that insurance may not bcadequatcorav'aUable tocovcr all the risks to which our 
business and assets ruay be subject The lack of sufficient uisurancc for these lypes of ads could expose us tu heavy losses if any damages occiu-, directly or 
indirealy, that could have a significant adverse impact on our operations. 

Wc renew our irisuiance policies on an annual basis; The cost of coverage may become so high dial we may need to fiirther reduce our policy limits or 
agree to certain exclusions from our coverage". Among other factors, it is possible'ihat regional political tensions, homeland security concems, olher 
catastrophic events or any change in government legisladon governing insurance coverage for acts of lereorism could materially adversely atTecI available 
insurance coverage arid result in increased premiums on available coverage (which may cause us to elect to reduce our,policy limits), addifional exclusions 
l'"rom coverage or higher deductibles. Among other potenfiaf future adverse changes, in the fiiture wc may eleci to not; or may not be able to, obtain any 
coverage for losses due to acts of lereortsm. 

The concentration and evolution of the slot machine manufacturing industry could impose additionalcosts on us,, 

A large' miijoriiy tjf our revenue's ari; attributable, to slot machines at our casinos, Il is important, for conipefifive rcasoris, we offer die mo'slpopular and 
up-loKlate slot machine games, with the latest technology to our customers:' 

In recent years, slot machine mariufacturers have freqiienfiy refused loscH slot machines featuring the mosl popular games, in.stead requiring 
participating lease arrangements. Generally, a pardcipaluig lea.sc is subslanfially more expensive over the long-lemi than the cost to purchase a new slot 
machine; 

Forcoriipcfiiivc rea'sons, wc may. be forced to purchase new slot niachines, slot machincsystcms, or enter into participating lease an-angcmenis thai are 
more expensive ihan our current costs associaied wilh the continued operaiiriri of ourexisting slot machines. If the newer skit machines do not result in 
sufficieni uicremenlal revenues to offsel die'.increascdinvKtiuenl and participaiing lease.cosis, il could adversely affect our profiiabilily. 

* * * * * * * 

In adtlition to the foregoing; you should consider each of the faciors set forth in this Annual Report in evaluating our business and our prospet;is. The 
faciors dcscribctl rii^our Parti', Ilcm I Aarc not ihe only oncs.wc face .-Additional risks and uncertauilics not presently known to us or that we currently 
consider immaterial riiay also impair our busuiess operafions.,ThisAnnual Report is qualified in its entirety by diese"riskfaciors. If any of the foregoing risks 
actually occur, ourbusiness, financial condition and residts of operaiion couldibe riiaierially harmed. In that case;, the irading price ofour seeurilies, including 
otw commori stock, could decline significanily. 

ITEM IB. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMAIENTS 

None. 

ITE.M2. PROPERTIES 

Lake Charles 

We own approximalcly 2.7 acres and lease approximaiely 16.2 acres of land in Calcasieu Parish, Louisiana for use in connection with our Lake Charles 
of>erations. This lease auiomaiicaliy renewed in March 2010 for five years and wc have thcopdori to renew it for 1'4 addilional terms of five years each, 
subjcci to increases based on ihc Consumer Price Index ("CPI") wilh a miniriium of 10% and 
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construcfion of hotel facilities on the property. Weown two hotels in Lake Charies with a lolal of 493 rooms. Arinual renl paymenis under the Lake Charles 
lease ai'c approximately S2:l million. 

Lula 

Wc lease approxrinately 1,000 acres of land rii Coahoma Couniy;Mississippi and utilize approximately 50 acres in connecdon with the operalions in 
Lula, Mississippi. Unless terminated by us at an eariier date, die lease expires in 2033. Rent under the lease is currendy 5.5% of gro.ss ganiing revenue as 
reported lo the Mississippi Garning Commission, phis SIOO.OOO annually. We also ownapproximaiely lOO acres in Coahoma County, which may be utilized 
for future development 

h'aiche: 

Through numerous lea.se agreements, we lease approximaiely 24 acres of land in.Nalchez, Mississippi that are used in connecdon with the operafions of 
our, Natchez prtjperty; Unless terminated by us al an earlier date, the leases have varying cxpu-alion dates through 2037. Annual rent under the leases total' 
approximately $1.2 million. We also lease approximalcly 7.5 acres of land thai is udlized for parking at the facility. We own "approximateiy 6 additionalacres 
ofproperty in Natchez, Mississippi, as weD asthe property upon which our hotel is located; 

yickshurg 

We own approximately 60 acres in Vicksburg, Mississippi which are used in connection with die operalions ofour Vicksburg property. 

Kansas City 

We lease approximately 28 acres of land from the Kansas City Port Authority ih connection ..with .the operation of our Kansas Ciiy property. The temi of 
the original'lease wa's ten years ahd was renewed in October 2006 and October 201 [-"for. addition a I five-year terms.,The lease includes six addifioria) five-year-
icncwal opfions. Tlic minimiirii lease paymenis correspond lo any rise or fall in the CPl, inifially after.the ten-year term oflhe lease or October 18, 2006 and 
thcieaftej-, at each frveyear renewal daie^ Rent under die Irasc currendy is the greater of $2;9 million {minimuriircni)peryear, or 3:25% of gross revenues, 
less complimeniaries. 

Boonville 

We lease qur 27 acre" casino site in Boonville pursuant lo.a lease agreemeiri widi die Cilyof Btxinville. Under the terms of the agrcenient, we lease the 
sile for a period of ninety-nine years. In lieu of rent, wc are assessed additional amounls by the Cily of Boonville based on a 3.5% tax on gaming revenue, up 
to Sl.O million, which we recognizeas additional gaming taxes. 

Cin-uther.svHle 

We own approximately 37 acres, including our riverboat casino and 1,000 paiiing .spaces in Carodicrsville, Missouri. 

Bettendorf 

We own approximaiely 24.6 acres of land in Bettendorf; Iowa used in connecdon with the operations ofour Bettendorf property. Wc also operate.under a 
longTlerm lease widi the City of Bettendort", the QC Waterfront Coriverilion Center that is adjaceril lo.our new hotel tower. Futun: minimum paymenis 
associaied wilh ihe convenfion center arc approximately SLI million per year. We also lease approximalcly eight acres of land on a month-to-month basis 
from an edfiiy owned by 
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members ofthe Goldstein family, including Robert S. Goldsicui, our Vice Chairman of the Board and Jeffrey D. Goldstein and Richard A.'Goldsiein,. 
directors ofour company; which we utilize for parking. The inriial term ofthe lease expires 60 days after wrilten nofice is given to eithenparty and renl under 

•the lease is currendy $60,000 annually. 

Davenport 

Pursuantto various lease agreements with the City of Davenport, we lease approximaiely 12 acres of land iri Davenport,- Iowa used in connection with 
the'operations of oiir Davenport property. The aggregate annual rent on these leases is appriiximaiely $0.2;million and they have varying expiration dates 
diiou^ 2022. 

Marqueile '_ 

We lease Ihe dock siie in Marquette, Iowa thai is ttsed in eonnecliori with our Miirquetle operations: The lease expires in 2019, andtinnual renl under the 
lease is approximaiely SI 80,000, plus SLOO per passenger, plus 2.5% ofgaming leverirics (less state wageruig taxes) rii excess of S20.0 million but less than 

'S40.0 million; 5% ofgariiing revenues (less siale wagering taxes) in excess of S40;0 million but less than $60.0 million: and 7:5% ofgaming revenues (less 
state wagering taxcs)'rii excess of $60.0 million. We have an easement related to an overhead pedestrian bridge and tiriveway that is an annual paymeni of 
approximately 56,300. Wc also own approxirbalely 25 acres of land tor the pavilion, satellite offices, warehouse, lots bythe marina and other property. 

Waterloo 

We own approximately 54 acres of land in Waterloo, Iowa used in connecfion wiUi the operation ofour Waterioo property. We also entered intoa three-
year lease agrtx'ment for 17,517 square feel of wareho'use'spaee. Rent under lids lease is currenlly $5,021 per.month. . 

Isle-Black Hawk 

We own approximately 10 acres of land in Black Hawk, Colorado for use inconntxtion wjth qiir'Black Hawk operafions. The property leases an 
addilional parcel of land adjoining die Isle-Black Hawk where die Lady Liick Hotel and parking are located. Tins leaseis for an initial temi of nine years widi 
opfions to renew for 18 addilional terms of five years ca(;h with the final opiion period coricludriigjurie I, 2094. Annuajrent i.s currently $1.85 mdlion 
indexed lo correspond to any rise or fall in die CPI at one-year intervals, not lo exceed a 3% increase or decrease from the previous year's raie. 

Lady Luck-Black Hawk 

Wc own or lea.sc approximately seven acres of laiid in Black Hawk, Colorado for use in connecfion with the Lady Luck-Black Hawk. The property leases 
an additional pareel of limdnear the Lady Luck-Black Hawk for parking as described above. This lease is.for an initial temi of 10 years with options to renew 
for nine additional lerms of 10 years each with the fmal option period concluding August 2094. Curtcndy the annual renl is 5576,000 and renewals are subject 
to 20% rem increases over the rate oflhe previous term. 

Pompano 

We own approximately 223 acres al Pompano. 
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Olher 

We own all ofthe riverboats and barges utilized al our facilities. We also own or lease all ofour gaming and non-gaming equipment 

We lease our principal corporate office in Creve Cocur, Missouri, and office space in Riloxii'Mississippi. 

Weown addifional property and have various property leases and options to eidier lease or purc-hase property that are not tlireclly related lo ourexisting 
operadons and that maybe ufilized in the future in connecfion with expansion projects at bur existing facilides,or development of new projecis. 

A.S.M;IS Held for Sale 

Bilo.xi 

Wc lease the real estate upon which sbi'iie ofour land-based facihties, including the casino, arc located from the Cily of Bdoxi and the Mississippi 
Secretary of Slate al curteni annual rent of 5595,508 per year, plus 3% of out; Biloxi propcrty'sgrossgamriig revenues, net of slate arid local gaming taxes and 
fees, in excess of S25.0 radlion-The lease temfinaies on July I, 20! 4,-but it is renewable at our option for fouraddidonal temisof five years each and one-
more option renewal term, concluding on January 31, 2034, subject to rent increases based on the CPI, limiled to 6% for each renewal period. 

In April 1994,, in connection with the construction of ahold, wecnlcrcd into a lease for addifional land adjoining our Biloxi property. This" lease with the' 
City of Biloxi and ihc .Mississippi Secretary of State is for an initial term of 25 yeare, withoplions to renew for six addifional terms of len years each and a 
final opiion period concluding December 31, 2085. Curreni aimual rent is $665,500 plus 4% of gross non-gaming revenues, as defined ui the lease, and 
renewals are subject to rent uicreases based on die CPL The arinual rent is adjusied afler each five-year period based on increases in the CPI, limiled lo a 10% 
increase in any five-year period. 

In Augusi 2002,.we entered intoa lease for two addilional parcels of land adjoining our property and the hotel. On the parcel adjoriiing the Biloxi 
property, we constructed a mulfirlcvel parking garage that has approxinialely 1,000 parking spaces.jThere is addilional ground level parking on a parcel of 
land in front ofthe garage, also subject to this'lease, with approximaiely 600 parking spaces. We have constructed a 400-room addition to the existing hoiel on 
the parcel leased nexl to the existing hotel." In addition, we may construct a hotel above ihe parking garage. This lease wilh the Cityof Bilo.-O andthe 
Mississippi Secretary of Slate is for'an initial term of forty ycars,"wiU) one opiion io renew for an additional twenty-five years and addidonal opdons 
thereafter, wiUi the consent of the Mississippi .Secretary of Stale, eonsisienl withthe temi ofthe lease described in the pfetreding paragraph. When combined 
with ihc base and percentage rents described for the leases in the preceding two paragraphs, amiual rent undcrthosc two leases and this lease was S3.8 million 
for lease year ending July,'31, 20 M, and esfimaled lobe $3.8 million for.lhc lease yeatcnding July 31, 2012. Such amounls are subject id decreases due to 
markel adjustments and increases based on the CPL Also, wc are responsible for annual rent equal to 4% of gross relail revenue and gross cash revenue (as 
defined in the lease), but widiout double counting. If the reril.minimuin dcs(:ribcd in the picceilriig sentences is not otherwise sadsficd from other rents, then 
this percenlage renl is not in addition to Ihc minimum renl, but ratheris to be applied,to ihal minimum. 

We also lease our Biloxi berth from die Biloxi Port Commission at an anriual rent of the greater of $510,000 or T/uof die gross gaming revenue net of 
state" and local gaming taxes. The lease lermuiates on July 1, 2014 and we have the option lo'renew it for six addilional terriis of five years each subjecl lo 
increases based on the CPI. linuted to 6% ibr each renewal period. 
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In connecfion with ajid pursuanl loa sertlemcnl between ihe City of Biloxi and ihc State ofMississippi concerning ihc controland riianagenacnt of die 
atiea where we are located, wcalso have agreed lopav the Cily of Biloxi's least; obligations to the Style ofMississippi for an agreed upon period of time. This 
amounl is $580,000 per year, payable on June 30, subjecl lo iricreascs based on the CPIanddeaeascs'if there are other tenants of die subject property. This 
obligafion ends after June 2018 but may be renewed for thirty yean>. 

In March 2012 we cnlercd uiio an agreemeni lo sell our Biloxi operalionfor,approximalely.S45 million. The. transaction is expecied to close in fiscal 
2013. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

We and our wholly-owned subsidiary, Rivcrboal Coiporation ofMississippi ("RCM"), are defendants in a lawsuit fikd ui the Cireuit Court of Adams 
Couniy, Mississippi by Silver Land, Inc., alleging breach of contract in connctilion with our 2006 sale of casino operations in Vick.sburg, Mississippi, 10 a 
thirdparty. in January 2011, the court ruled iri favor of Silver Land and in September 2011 the court awarded damages of approximateiy S2 million. We filed 
a notice ofappeal in November 2011. While the outcome ofthis inatlc'ris still in doiibtand cannot be predicted widi any degree of i:ertainiy,'we hiivc accrued 
an estimated liability, including interest, of approximately $2 million in fiscal 2012. We intend to continue a vigorous and appropriale appeal ofthis judgment. 

! Our wholly owned subsidiary. Lady Luck Gaming Corporafion,'and severaijoinl venturepartnefs have been defendants inthe Greek Civil Courts andthe 
Greek Administradve Courts in similar lawsuits brought by the country of Greece. The actions allege that the defendants failed to make specified payments in 
conneciion with the gaming license bid process for Patras, Greece; Although il is difficult id determine the damages beuig sought from the lawsuits, the action 
may seek damages up to that aggregate amounl plus interest I'rom die date ofthe action. 

In the Civil Court lawsuil, the Civil Court of First Instance mled in our favor and dismissed die law.suit in;2001. Greece appealed lo the Civil Appeal 
Court and, in 2003, Ihc Courl lejecied die appeal. Greece dien appealed to the Civil Supreme Court arid, in 2007, the Supreme Court ruled that die matter was 
not properiy before the Civd Courts and slio'uld be before die Adniiriistfalivc Court. 

In the Administralive Court lawsuit, the Administralive Court of Firsi Inslance rejected ihe'lawsult stafing dial ii was nol competent to hear the mutter. 
Greece then appealed lo the Adminisuative Appeal Court, which court rejected the appeal in 2003. Greece then appealed to the Supreme Athriuiisiralive 
Court, which a-nianded the matterback to the Administrative Appeal Court fora hearing on die merits. The rc-hcaring took place in 2006,• and in 2008 the 
Admini.slralive Appeal Court rejected Greece's appeal on procedural grounds. On December 22, 2008 and January 23, 2009, Greece appealed the ruling to the 
Supreme Adminislrafive Court. A hearing has tentatively been scheduled foriOctober 2012; however, the Supreme Adminislrafive Court has repeatedly 
postponed the hearing on the appeal. 

The outcome ofthis matier is sfill in doubl and cannoi be predicted with any degree of certainty. We intend to condnue a vigorous aiid appropriale 
defense lo the claimf asserted in this maitcr. Through April29,-2012 vie have accrued an esdmated liability, includuig uiteresl, of approximately $13 million. 
Our accrual is based upon maiiagemeril's estimate ofthe origuial claim by the plaintiffs for lost payments. We confinue to accrue inli:re.si on the asserted; 
claim: We are unable lo estimate a total possible loss as informalion as to possible addidonal claims, if any, have not been asserted, or quantified bythe 
plaintiffs at this tiriie. 
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We are subject to certain federal, state and local cnvironmenlal prbteelion, health and safely laws, regulafions and ordinances,dial apply to businesses 
generally, and are subjecl to cleanup requirements at certain of our, faci lit ies as a result thereof We have not made, and do not anticipate making maierial 
expendilures, nor do we anticipate incurting delays with respeci to environmenla fir mediation or protection. However, in part because bur present and fiiture 
development sites have, in some cases, been used as manufacturing facfiities orother facilhies that generate materials dial arc requiredto be remediated under 
environmental laws and regulations, there can be no guarantee dial addilional pre-exisdng condidons will riot be discovered and we will nol experience 
material liabilities or delays. 

We are subjecl to various confingencies and lifigalibri matters arid have anumber of unrc.solved claims; Although die ultimate liability oflhese 
contingencies, ihis litigation and these claims cannoi be determined at Uiis dme, we believe they will not havea tnalerial adverse effecl on ourconsolidated 
financial position, resuUs of operadons oreash flows. 

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY' DISCLOSURES 

None. 

PART 11 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCH^XSES OF 
EQUITY SECURITIES 

(a) 

.Market Information. Our common stock is traded on die NASDAQ Global Select .Market under the symbol "ISLE". The following lable 
presents the high and low closing sales prices forour common slock as reported by the NASDAQ Global Select Markel forthe fiscalperiods 
indicated. 

High 
FiiyrOu^erfthroughyime8?201?^^ ^... v;?̂ ..-w W,:iv:gS.^-^:,: " J i ^ ^ ' . ' S;-. 6:32'':$'. -4:841 

Fiscal 'J'ear Endin.g April 29, 2012 
FourthOtiart'er:- .'' • • , ' - \J'"..: '-•'^-TT^^T^TS.--1.,"f-T^f-»^T^"':,f :. S_ > -,'7;48>"$1_L,4.S4:J 
Thirdpjjaner . •• 5.68 3^0 
S^orid Ouriî ey?- "̂ -̂ > ^̂  ,̂-"''̂ - •'••'•'" ̂ yfJr i^^^^^^WJ'- '^r , ""-'""T^-;^' .•;937j^'/V^:46l 
First Quarter '^ " _ ^ _ _ _̂  9.86 . 7.67 

Fiscal'-Yea>;Hn'dinB'A'pril'24.-'201IV ' .;.,•̂ ^̂ ••̂ &̂•̂ i.•̂  ...ra:̂ -;̂ '̂̂ ..'-'''̂ /̂ '"-̂ '̂  V^.. -• i,"." : .r''*'. .̂ •-' . .?• 
Fourth Quarter , . __, .., _ _ S 9.89 S .8.85 

Second Quaiier ' " 8.95 6.66 

Holders of Common Stock. Asof June 8; 2012, there werc^approximalcly 1,333 holdersof record of our common slock.. 

Dividends. We have never declared or paid any dividends, with respeci lb our common stock and die cuirent policyof our board of directors is 
to relain earnings to provide for the grow'di of our company. In addition, our senior securedcredit facility and the iiKlentures governing our 7% 
.senior subordinated notes and our 7.75% senior notes liiiiit our ability to pay dividends. See "liem 8—Financial Statements and Siipplcmentary 
Dala—Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc;—Notes lo Consolidated Financial Statements—Note 8." Consequendy, no cash dividends are expecied to be 
paid on our common stock in ihc"foreseeable future. Further, 
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Uiere can be no assurance dial our current and proposed operadoris would generale die funds needed to declare a cash dividend or tfiat we wou|d 
have legally available fiinds to pay dividends. In addition, wcVnay fu'n'd part ofour operations iii'thc fumrc from indebledness; die It-mis ofwhich 
may.furdicr prohibit or restrict Ihe payment of cash dividends, [fa holder of common s'lock is disqualified by the regulatory atiihorides from 
owningsuchshares, such holder will not be permitted lo receive any dividends \yith respetil m such stock. Sec "Item 1—Business—Governmental 
Regulations." 

(b) issuance of Unregistered Securities 

None. 

(c) Purchases of our Common Stock 

'We'havc purchased our common Slock understock repurchase programs. These programs allow t'ordic repurchase of up to 6,000,000 shares.-To dale we 
have purchased 4,895,792 shares of common slock under these programs, '["hese programs have no approved dollar amount, nor expu-adon dales. No 
purchases were made during the fiscal year ended April 29, 2012, 

COMPARISON OF 5 VE.\R CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN* 
Among Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc., die NASDAQ Composite Index, 

and die Dow Jones US Gambling Index 

4/29/07 4/27/08 4/26/09 4/25/10 4/24/11 4/29/12 

-B—Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. - -A- -NASDAQ Composite •-•O— Dow Jones US Gambling 

5100 invested on 4/29/07,ui stock or 4B0/0'1 in index, including reinvestment of dividends. 
Indexes calculated on monlh-end basis. 

Copyright© 2012 Dow Jones ACo. All rights reser\'ed. 
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ITEiM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DA IA. 

The following table presents our selected consolidaled financial data for. the five most reccnlTiscal years, which is derived from our audited consolidated 
financial statements and die notes to Uiose statements. Because the data in Uii.s table docs not provide all ot^Ihc data contauied in our consolidaled financial 
staiemenis, including Ihe related notes, you should read ".Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finaricial Condifion and Results of Operafions," our 
consolidated fmancial sialcriienls, uicluding the relaled notes contained elsewhere iri this document and other data we have filed with ihe U:S. Securities and 
Ii-xchange'Commission. 

Slategiepl of Opcr i l iom 

Fiscal Year l iodcdn) 
April 29, April 24, April 2.S, April 26, April 17, 

2012 2011 2010 2009 Z0Q8 
(dullars in miUlons, except per ^hure &jta) 

Revenues:.: .̂i,r-'f ^ '• ••- - i - S . 
Casino 

" . • ^ .1T jw- .•tjV',;_ t .M--<- •-'.- •'l /"^x^tv ^^ ' -^ . . ' •^ :> rz^ 
S1.006.5 S 968:4 $ 943:2 5 977.4 S1,0Q7:6 

3 6 ^ 
Food, beyerage, pari-mutuel and other 

5^'«--32:4: 
'128.6 

.^32 
122 

n .̂  33:5 
0 122.2 

:--:35 
124 

î _^ • Insurance recbyerie.Sjai 

Gross revenues 
r~'"-'"Trr'-^"-'- j ^ - t w 1,.:,..^ .Les? 

- ^ • 6 ^ _ L - ^ : ^ _ ^ . ^ 2.9: 
135.1 

ess'pfbraoiioria lallbwances ^il/. 

Net revenues 
.JiL 

1,177-1 •1.122.5 1,098.9 .1140.5 LI79.2^ 
I(199i7)^(185l9)^(17l^)V£tlZ6.4)l( 178.9) 

Operating expenses:^ 
Casino 

• T r 
977.4 936.6 927.2 964.1 I.000.'3 

c 
153.7 142.6 137.3 135.1 133.6 

.; GaniiriR taxes_j:,, j _ 
Rooms 

.Jl. 

'-r.2...LFoo'd,'bev'erage,''piiri-:mut'uel'and'6the'fj_ 
Marine and facilities 

D v ^ Marketing arid adiiiiriisirauveil_ 
^_Corporatc and develoomerit 

j234L5il_;-225 
40.2. 42 

A/ahiadori charges and expense recoycrie's,''riei.^i 
Insurance recoveries 

LJ..-. preopening; 

^ 

7. 
:7 

.30.6 —.' 

^'223:8., 
46.8 

222 
41 

s: 
iF^ 

, - ^ T 
• ^ 

Depreciation and amortizalion 

i z - * . ^:.;'Total operating expcriscs'-

Operating income 
T^rei^e.xrierise"^?;;!^.^' ^ . ^ '•-'• ^1 •>,-?:•: 
Iniercst income 

j 2373] 
47.3 

^ : 3 . 7 i 
77.6 95.5 105:4 110.4 

,(6.8). 
Jo. 

^0:6^ ^'^ : ^ - : ^ - - ^ - ^ : 
76.0 

^^ 1 1 ^ IK •-i893!Q'̂  .'834.7'"": :854.9;-.902.0: -931-.6.| 

84,4 IOI 9 72,3 62. 68.7 

. ^ i Derivative income (expcnse) '̂.̂ ,;; ^ f 
Gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debl 
Incoine (loss) from^contiriuing opera i ions; before Jncome taxesandjincliulmgi ."V'-. 
f •noricoritbllirigirilercsi'-'!';!^, ' k " ..'" ••!. -'̂ -M:.. ' ..•"'̂ '•^ r--.!". ''̂ '̂ •̂"K-•'"f̂ .̂"' 

9)^(107.6) 
_ ^ _ _ _ ^ J 3.2 0.8' 1.9 2.1 

— — — 57.7 (15.3) 

(2.3). 
Income lax benefit (provision) (I5.I) 

JIO. 
(7. 6:6 (14 

•O'll 
,3) 

,(5i':o) 
19.9 

.-•; "7Jr:T,f;:?'5nwr*?T« — • 
incbiiie^dbss) from ctMitiriuing operations! inclijdiriie "rioricoriifbll liiR'irilercsi '̂ -̂L 
Income (loss) froni discontinued operations, nel of income taxes 

Net incoiiie, (loss) incliidirig n(il^conlolliri^r'inleIysl. '̂ ' "^ ;'".-•'', ^r; ' - . . ,'-">LV' jH29':8V' 

J;( I7 . '4) , 

(112:4) 
7' L'5.0 

(8.3) 
:(3i:i) 
(60.9) 

•4:5-"'- '(3^V: <13.6_ 
Less net bicome (loss) allributabic to the noconiroiling inieresi ^ 
Net income '(loss) aTmbulable,to^corirmmril^bc5ibid"r.s J ,.::-?r^^^'>^^-;^^''^Si( !,29;g}S.;_.̂ "4, 

'27 = = = = = 

(92.0) 
(4.9) 

5{S: _(3i3)$: _43:6';$-•(96.9)• 
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nsca lVe»rEndf t l ( l ) 
April 29. April 2J. April 2.S. April Zh. April 27. 

Mlatetnenlgl Operations 1012 2011 20lO 2Q09 JflOS 
(dollars in million^ eicepi per ^ a r e data) 

I n c o m e (ln.ss> per. ' romm"orishnri? all r ihii tahle tb 'cr imi i ion s lock holders'-^•.^;;;;^;i'- .'̂  i . -."" ,.,' / ' -" - ' .^ .V. '.^<^'- •' :.-̂ : -J •° ^̂  ' . ^ ^ . ' I j 

Basic ^ _ - „ _ _ _ ,.•,.. .^..^.^.•.^. ..,. 

V ' ' ^ . ' l i i ro r i iFf lnss ' l ' fmm'co t i t inn inf 'nppra i i f i i i ^yr . s f i . . ^ . ' ^ • ' a - - , f ' y . | , v ' - ^ v f a S ' " ' • ( 0 . 4 5 ) £ - - , , . 0 . 1 1 'Sf • • • 0 : i 5 i S : : ' iQ.47;S.- ' " t - L l ? ) 

Income (loss) from discontinued operations (2.90) 0.02 (0.25) 0,92 (1.99) 
W.'̂ :. Net fiicon^Iossr' \ . "".g'.« ' \ ' \ \ ^ ' : I ' ^ ^ K § . ' ^ k . ->> ,^:...-^-•''^H^d^;-35)$J...0:1 liSjJ(0,10)S^jl.'3_9^%^0'l_6)'• 

Diluted' ^ .̂ ^ ^-_ ^̂  . . • • . .... .- ,-,.-, •, 
f'^>\income"'floss^''from'cbVitiiiuini;'o'n'eratio^ ^f^ij-' l̂ .-̂ j,'"' •̂ [r̂ -̂% ,̂'-'.(̂ Ay\%-' .O.H.S..,".Q--15;S-v.Q.47-;St ,.(1.F7) 

Income (loss) from disconiinuwl operations (2,90) 0.02 (0.25) 0.92 (1.99) 

L-"- Nei"lnroriib'?loss)^>-"' a-' ' ^ : : ' ^ H ^ - ^ ^ ' ; ^ %^'^*K'^^^^^^S^J^^--%^{1>A^)%'^ '<i^J i^±^^}^^l>^A9y>lS\ \J>) 

Olbcr Data; 

Operating acliviiies ^ - , . . . . . . . . . '., ,. r.,„, . _ ^ ^-^-llg'LA J^rlLZ ^.-.j"?'-'* ^ J90.6^£ .133.4 
• S v e s d n g adiivitics ̂ J' -V. :..-.- • ".-.̂  W^ I. ' ^ 'w • ../^g^.-;^, ;„-̂ . t • ^-I't :US^:C^X6^i.,- ( 1 4 4 ^ . f3 r.Q) -' • f27.9^ ^ f302.4^ 
_^Financriigactivities. _̂ ^ ' ^ " , _" ,,-(38.7). _28.I . (lOfg) (15^2), _ J 2 j 
Cnnilal'eijpe'jjdilures '. " '̂ "^i "-_";' ".. '^':' / ' ' % :'T'"^t^O^- f^"^^C^l . --.''-V75.2^ ;:-fSS.6^ m - T i ^ l S r d Y i \9n^\ 

Balance Sheet palii: ,„ ,. - " ^ 
C^5hknd'cashcQuivalenLŝ '̂ . >:'.-*"-"j . l / j ^ -'''•> •°'"-Jr^"3'^''''^?^^>''"S.' 9AJtS-. -75.2.SL .':68.1^SlZ9ir7iSv_ 19r8] 
Tolalassets . . . j . _ : ^1.575,0, 1.733:9 1;,674.8 J.782.7 T,974.2 
Loii&^iermdeb^^ 
SlockholdersVequiiy ' m . 6 309.0 24U.2 2^8.4 ' isS.O 
— y 'r-_^' T-- - p - 5 -— _^v" " - W ' ' T .*—f̂ " ."^..T—--T"Tr^^i^-"—r-J^"*-' -—..-.—-- .-—— — 
• ' T : ' ' W y ' - , ; ' ' - " ' . . - . • ' . • , .•.•̂ " •"•--•.•• "^""^}s' ".•''>''••' '̂'̂ .C'"*. •''' • '"'• 

Operaiing Dalg:.' -..-^- -"--• "'^/'•>-- '• ' ' "̂  .•'-/ r^-'!;'', ,:?'„•,, \ K _ , , Y - %,,. Z!Z] 
Number of slot machines ^ '13,784 14,947 14,579 15,373 15,393 
Nut^^^gn^n^hi^^^^eT^^^ 
Numberof hotel rooius , , . , . . _ 3.079 . .3,078 3.079 3,IW J ,107 
N S e r of n^rkiiit;' ŝ aceŝ ^ "^'';. ŷ  ;^.^^ '̂tg-^ -/ -"^g-J ^̂ - '.^-,;g^ ^l;:..-'. -:»^^.2 ['.944, '21.782- "^^20.69'6TJ22"J290,:; 21-.2291 

(1) Our fiseal year ended April 30, 2012 includes 53 weeks while olher fi&cal years presented include 52 weeks. The results reflect Biloxi, 
Lucaya, Blue Chip and Coventry as disconfinued operations. We opened new casino operadons'in PompantJ, Florida and Waterloo, 
Iowa in April 2007 and June 2007,̂  respccdvcly. We acquired our casino operalions in Canidien;yille, Misstiuri in June 2007. We 
acquired ourcurrenl casino operadons in Vicksbu'rg.Mississippi in June 2010. 
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ITEM 7. ALVXAGEMENI "S DISCUSSION AND .VN'ALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPEIUTIONS 

Vou .'thoiild read the following discussion together with the financial .slatemenls, including the related noles and the other financial informalion. 
coniained in this .Annual Report on Form IO-K. 

E.xecutive Overview 

We are a leading developer, owner and operaior of branded gaming facilities and related dining, lodguig and entertainment faciiifies ui regional markets • 
in the Uniled States. We have souglii and eslabiished geographic diversity to lirriit Ihc risks caused by weadier, regional economic difficulties, gaming tax 
rates arid regulations of local gaming aulhorilies. We currently operate casinos rii'Misslssippi, Louisiana, .Vlissouri, lowa, Colorado and Florida. We also 
operate a harness racing track al our casino in Florida. 

Operating Results—Our operaiing results foi die periods presented have been affecled, both positively and negafively, by current economic condidons 
and several other factors discussed in detail below. Our historical operaiing results may not be. indicative ofour fuiure rcsiilts ofoperalions because oflhese 
factors and the changing competitive landscape In each ofour markets, as well as by faciniri discus-sed elsewhere herein. This Managcnienl's Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be read in conjunction with and giving considcradon to the following: 

Items Impacting Income (Loss) from Conlinuing Operations—Significant ilems impacting our uicohie (loss) from continuing operations duririg the fiscal 
years endedApril 29, 2012. April 24, 2011 and April 25, 2010 are as follows; 

JJ" ' Mvek in Fiscal 2012-^ Our fiscal year ends on the lasl Sunday.in April. .This fiscal year convention creates more comparability ofour 
qua'rterly opeiations, by generally having an equal nuriiber of weeks (13) and weekend days (26) in each quarter. Periodically, diis coriverilion 
riccessiiates a 53-week year. The fiscal year enduig'April 29, 2012 was a 53-wcck year with the extra week in the fourth fiscal quarter. The fiscal years 
tending April 24; 2011 and -April 25, 2010 were 52-wcck years. 

Flooding and Insurance Recoveries— Our fiscal 2012 operating results were impacted by flooding along ihc Mississippi River, which resulted in 
five ofour properties being closed for diffcn'ng periods of lime'. 

,Number Da.vs 
_______ Closing Dale Rrnptrning Date Clnsfd 

Davcriportyfowa'^^ " ' =>' •" y ,̂• r ; : j "April j5.-2011^";^"'- -̂ ' • •'̂ •lav'l'. 201 L'- - " =• • :. ".'-i' - rSfA)! 
Cartilhersvillc. Missouri May I, 2011 ' May I3,_20IJ 12 , 
Lula,Misii^ppi-'v-.."'.-^: S ' '-' M ^MayT ;̂ 20111.'^'-^' •af' '^Juii?3*-2011-, i'- ' •• ^ •" ,- '-^ ^ l - ^ ' • 
^^ •^^ . : . ^ ^''•,.:- - ^ ^ ' . ^ . K . - ^ ' . ' • > ; : ^:--.-^.4^;-i^iSemeniber2i,201l. 'J. ' ? .4 ' <^ -9iiB) ^ 
Nalchez, \lissis_sippi May 7,20M _̂_ .June 17,2011, .̂  . _̂ ^̂ . 41^ . . 
yiSksburg,',MikissippiZ2IC-lSL^l.M^iy^l ,1.01,!,ii:;^£2lii'i\l:|y.2"7, 201 f - '"̂ -.'y _. - ' ^ " " ' - . 1 6 - ^ ' 

(A) Six ilays of closure in die first quarterof fiscal 2012 and nine.days of closure in ihe fourth quarter of fiscal 2011. 

(B) The second casino barge reopened on Seplcmber 2, 2011 af̂ ier fiood damage was remediated. 
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Related to Ihe flooding, we filed and scrtled flood insurance claims rcsullriig in the recognition of S9.6 million business inicrniption recoveries in 
our statement ofoperalions in fiscal 2012 

Valuation Allowances and Fxpen.sc Recoveries— As a resuh of ou'r annual impairment tests of goodwill and long-lived intangible as.scts under we 
recorded an imparinienl charge ofS14,4 million related lo goodwill at our Luia property in fiscal 2012. 

In cotmeciion wilh the sale of Grand Palais Riverboat, Lnc, including its gaming lk:ense, a riverboat gaming vessel and certain olher etjuipment, we 
recorded a vahiation chargcof S16.I mdlion to reduce the carr^'ing value of llic net assets sold to Ihc net proceeds realized upon'salc during fiscal 2012. 

During fiscal 2010, wc recorded a rcducikin in other expense of $6.8 million representing Ihc tliscbunicd value of a receivable for reimbursement 
of developmeni costs expensed in prior periods relating to a Icirainate'd 'plan to de'velop a casino in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.' This receivable was 
recorded toliowing our assessment of ixjileclability. 

Income Tax Provision(Benefii}— During tlscal 2012, asa resultof evaluating the expecied net realizable value of our defereed tax assets, including 
biir nel opefaiuig loss cairy fortt'ards, wc recorded a valuation allowanire of approxinialely $8:7 mdlion relaled lb oiir income ficim coriliriuing' 
operadons. Our fiscal 2012 tax provision of $15.1 millioriincludcs the S8.7, related to the valuation charge as well as the impaci of permanent items and 
other items. 

Florida Gaming IMW Changes— Effective July I, 2010, the state portionofgaming taxes tipplicable to our Pompano properly was reduced from 
50% to 35% ofgaming revenues. Additionally, this legislation'removcd pokef.betting limits and allowed us to expand oiu- poker hours from 12 hours 
per day to 18 hours per day Monday ihrough Thursday and 24 hours per day on Friday through Suntiay. Our casino revenues and gamirig taxes reflecl 
the favorable impact of these changes in state gaming laws in fiscal years 201 Tand 2012. 

Increased Competition— From driic to time, new or expanded facilitics'by our competitors impact our results. For example, competition from a 
newcasino in Kansas opened during February 2012 negatively, impacted our Kansas City casino and expansion by a Native American casino in 
Febniary 2012 negatively impacted our Pompano^casino. 

Items Impacting Current and Fuiure Operations—During the fiscal years ended April 29, 2012, April 24, 2011 and April 25, 2010, we have entered into 
agreerrients or completed transactions as follows: 

Discontinued Operalions 

Agreement to Sell Bilosi— Duririg March 2012, we entered into adefmilivc purchase agreemeni to sell otu subsidiary, which owns and operates 
our casino and hotel operations in Biloxi for $45 million subjecl to regulatory approval and'other cusiomary closing condiiions. In fiscal 2012, our loss 
from discontinued operafions includes a noncash valuafion charge of SI 12:5 mdlion lb reduce the carrying value of Biloxi's rieiasscis held for sale to 
the expected net realizable value. Wecxpecl ihis transaction inclose during fiscal 2013. 

Saleof Blue Chip Ca.sinos— During fi.scal 2010, we completed the saleof ourBlue Chip casino properties, located in England under a plan of 
administration and have no continuing involvement in its operation. During fiscal 2011 we recognized a gain of S2.7 million, including tax benefits of 
SL2 million, upon completion ofthe aiJIministralibn process. We also recogiiized in fiscal 2011 a 
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tax benefil of iEO.8 million in discontinued operalions represendng the resolution of previously tmrecognizcd tax positions following the completion of 
certain federal lax reviews. 

Acqiiisition 

Acquisition of Rainbow Casino— We acquired Rainbow Casino-Vicksburg Partnership; L.P. ("Rairibow") localed in Vicksburg, Mississippi on 
'June 8, 2010 acquiring 100% oflhe partnership interests for $76.2 niilliori and havt^includcd the results of Rainbow iii our consolidated financial 
statements subsequenl to June 8, 2010. The acquisition was funded by bortowings fiom our.scrdor secured credit faci|iiy. 

Developmeni Activities 

CapeGirardeau— We coniinue construction ofa new casino'located in Cape Gu-aidcau.Under our developmeril agreement with die City of Cape 
Girardeau, our planned casino is expecied to include 1,000 slot machines,,28 .table games, three restaurants, a lounge and terrace overlooking the 
Mississippi River arid a 750-scai event cenlcr. We currently esfimate thecostofilhe projeci at approximalcly S135 million with S49.9 mdlion "spent. 
Ihrough April 29, 2012. Subjecl lo regulatory approval, weanlicipale'bpcnirig by November 1,2012. During fiscal 2012, wc incurred 50.6 niiliion in 
preopening costs and expect to incur addilional prcopenriig cosis qf approximately $5,5 niidion during fiscal 2013. 

Nemacolin— On AprU 14, 2011, our proposed casino in Nemacolin, Pennsyivania was selcctird by die Pennsylvania Gaming Conlrol Board to 
receive the firial resort gaming license in Pennsylvania. We have enlcri-'d irilo a'devclopmeni and management agreement wilh Neriiacolin Woodlantis 
Resort to build and operate a casino which is expecied to include approximately 600 slot machines and 28 table games. We currently estimate the 
projeci cost at approximately $50 million. The award oflhe Pennsylvania license lo Nemacniiri has bccri appealed to the Pennsylvania Supreme Court 
by oneof thc'otherappliearits. Subject to a successful ruling in the appeal, wc expect to complete consiniciion ofthe facdily within approximately nine 
months afier commcnCuigconsUTiction. The fiming of addifional significant experithlures is dependenl upon rcsolulion oflhe items discussed above. 

Capital Transactions 

Equity Offering— During January 2011, we completed the sale oJ'5:3 million shares of common slock generating net proceeds of S5L2 milhon. 
Proceeds from our equity olYcring have been used to repay long-term. debt. 

Senior Notes—On March 7, 201 i, we issued S300 million of.7,75% senior noies due 2019. Proceeds from diis debl issuance were used to repay 
borrowings under our .senior secured credit faciliiy. 

Senior Secured Credii FacUiiy— On March 25,2011, wc amended our senior .secured credit facility. Foilowriig diis amendmeni, our credit facility 
totals S800 million, consisting ofa $300 millionrevolvriig line of credit and a S500 million term loan. The credit facility matures on Novcri:)ber 1; 2013, 
or if the 7% senior subordinaied noles arc refinanced on or prior to that date, the revolving line of crcdri matures on March 25, 2016 and the term loan 
mamres on Mareh 25,2017. 

These equiiy and debl transactions have resulled rii a reducfion in our total debt, exiensiori ofour mamrilies and provide borrowing capaciiy to fund 
curreni and furare capital expendimres for bolh our existing properties and for our dcvejopnieni projecis. 
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Results of Operations 

Our results,of conlinuing operalions for die fiscal years endctJ April 29, 2012, April 24,-2011 and April 25,2010 reflect die consolidated operations of all 
ofour subsidiaries. Our Hiloxi and Blue Chip entities are presented as discontinued operations. Our results been reclassified to reflect the classification of 
Biloxi as a discontinued operations during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, as well as to conform our fmaricial preseniafion lo ourcurrenl year financial 
statement format. 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

Nel Revoiuei KUc«l Vear Knilcti 
Operating Income (Lots) 

Fiscai VcVr Ended 

(In Ihousands) 

Mis'siSippi'*''.' U'.. .,v. -̂  f -̂V' 

April 29, April 2J. April I?, April 29. April 2J, April 25, 
201Z 2011 '2010 2012 2011 2010 

Natchez 
l : u l a _ : _ _ ^ 
Vicksburg(l) 

•i-.-J. '^^,^Li^:'«.~:^<..£ ••• '-^ ,""--^ -—,.: _:-»_;.—IU 
S 28,643 $ 30,787$ 32.826 $ 6,478 S 7,591 S. 8.868 

__Missis*sjripi.Tdlal_ 
Louisiana 

32,695 27,935 — 4,145 4;188 

J22:863_sI26;062^100.973^'20;2?4ij24;250_Ll?,56.0j' 

jlJtkes.Gharles_ 
.Missouri 

.C ^••.]"38r634'TiTl.214.J'^139:423Bli:671,''::i3:638-.!:l3;-3F7j 

i Kansas Citv" ' ". '<• v. ..<.: 
Boonville 

,v^80,-703.^7.7;710ii!:76,815^J 3,902. 
. I l ,7 i6_ . 78,776 77,75926,0r8 

-•Carulhersville.." r, .. ^ 

Missouri Total 

,^ 35.03?^-_33i6?61132'^Sl^i49J^ 

»:V ,̂619j_,13,-7,l:7i 
.22,670, 2j,l25 
^ 3.909 '- SSSU. 

Iowa, 
197,538 "̂ 190.182 187,259 44,417 41,198 38,695 

— —^ ~~ ;;.—"'*rTr-y"""'t?r'"-—'»~^ z ~"—~'-?"."i 
^ ,-S:_s~Jii:_J-.if» :'l..,i'—- :—-—..-1. . . . i Benendorf 

[ I I jDavcnpor t ' I^CEISZ! 
Marquette 
.Waterioo^ 
lowa 'Total 

_79,156 
^44.426^..:43i65i 
"28;03'6 27,397 

79,003 79,527 ' 2,793 I3,.386 12,624 
:'';48.o_75. i.-8";26i: ^ 8.171 "Ho.^494} 

27,176 4,169 .3:780 L330 
_ ^ ;86;4842' 83;'l97iV81i26T320,-399ti,l,7,953_:il I - S H ] 

Colorado^ 
^ ^Blackjrlawk 
Floritia • '-' • t.'' ' 

Pompant), 

238,102 233,248' 236.039' 45.622 43,290' 36,062 

. 124,051 llj.4_82 126,140 17,468^. 10,993 14,891 

154,740 138,704 135 998^ .1,7.393 _..12.030 (6,951) 

^ ' - c ' ' ' ^ r . : ^ • ^ M ^ : £ f e ^ 3 ( ^ 5 4 9 i - - > - ^ ' ^ ^.'"6?762 
1,443 1,769 1,403 (41,933) (43,468) (49,975) 

f .. f" -• ^ '".'•' ••• -̂  '• • ' .• 
.Valuaiion chargcs_arid e.xpensef- .,• 
LfrrecbveTies<2V '~ ' ' •- . "t^-' 
Corporate and olher . . 

Fronrconunriing,QpcraiioiC3^.wS^773?ri$936,661:S927,235:Si^^ ^ § ^ J 

Note: This table excludes our Biloxi and Blue Chip operalions which have been classified as discontinued operations. 

(I) Reflects results since ihe June 2010 actiuisilion effeciive date. 

(2) Valuation charges and expense recoveries include valuation charges, expense recoveries and other charges. See Execufive Ovendew-
Valuation charges and expen.se recoveries fora detailed discussion of such ilems. 

32 



Tabic of Contenis 

Fiscal 2012 Comparcti to Fiscal 2011 

. Revenues 

Revenues and operaiuig expenses for ihe fiscal years 2012 and 2011 arc as follows: 

Kiscnl Vi'ar Knded 

(in ItioiiUnds) 

.Revcnues:;_hfc-
Casino 

I, Rooms ""' - ^ 

~3^ •">^i'^rpiL 
•T^ '^^w^-^. ; *? '^ ••••-: 

April 29, 
2012 

April 24, 
2011 Variance 

Porceniagc 
Variance 

. $ 1,006,523 $ _ 968,423 S 
• ' ' : ? ^ ^ T ^ ^ ^ ; f r T ^ ? ^ . 32 :438- ' - • 32^j44T:" 

Food, beverage, pari-mutuel and oiher 
f"'insuraricefecoveriesH^;"-?^?;'"#*•. ?,-̂ 'itf""'A., '?•", 4^:^ 

Gross revenues 
r„, j , -'V,Less promotiorial'allo'warioe'slr- »..- *•: t-"" f^\iff'.S 

/128,560 I21;955 

^ 3 8 ; j ^ 
L i 294:/ 
J,605_ 

_3,9"/0 

5.4% 
-9,63 7-t-! 

1,177,158 

• , ^ ^ . i \ . : 9 . 6 3 7 _ .. • j\Ni>l 

54,636 1,122,522. 4.9»/i 

Nel revenues 

^ ^ n 199,787)^-_.^(185;861) • -.(l3.926)f-.- •^•.•(•7:5)%j 

40,710 977,371 -936,661 4.3% 

P.^.^--^ y^:-^^^-^y^^^-.^^'y^-^:r>!^-:^^M0^\ ^ - '• •: "̂ '̂̂ '̂  ^̂  -•'."•-"• V̂ "• --^"•'•^ 'f-
•Oaeratinoexoeiises:;!-., •<r^-'>--. - .r^^ •rA:.'̂  ~>̂ : M:.̂ i< .•..•lj>ii î .s:-;..ĵ  ..,:... ... -:. . . • .̂ ^ ? ' •,• - •:^'' 'I'H, 

Casino 
ulGamirig ta'xes"g,iii^.l^ 

Rtx)ms 

153.743 li=.6«_ 
1i-...:R^,ivJ25T,-78Qi. . ' ...242.949_ 

7,027 _ 7,290 

11,101 

I. ..Food. Keverapc, pari-niiitueland oiher:-'i;..:^.;|i;_."v.-t'- ;'^;- ,-"::•-„'̂  -:4r.2Sf. 
Marine and faciliiies .-.,„. L' .. ^ •̂̂ .--•L-

i- "fylarkctirip^fiiladiriiriislralive':, -''_'- -""'Vf ^'r. .•>"••: :fe#.:.'^•. ••a.234:470. 
Corporate and development' / _ _ _ _ _ _ 40,248 

7.8*/i 

.il' '0.559 
55,211 

i;-:8,831 
(263) _ _ , . 

• • '•722-^:v-. "7:r;8%3 
2,014 3.6% 

i225:757^ . : " > ~ : 7 1 3 f _ - ^ Z F . 3 . 9 % J 

L^Valuauon charRes;and.cxt>enserec"o'vct-icsi,_ 
Preopening 

E—?f-«' —r^.^- -? :^- , -g-3 ;—:—r"-—-, ' - r '>>: ' ^j*f 
1 Deprecialion and amortization -̂ " .. .' 

j30,549_:_ 
615 

76.050^: J 

'Iqial operating expenses 892.988 $ 834,730 

42,709 (2,461)^ 
T30.-^-»9_ 

_ _ ^_61.5_ 
r77,6i3"TT ̂ 1̂7563) '•" 

58.259 

(5J)%_ 

N/M 
..(2.,g}%j • 

7.0% 

Casino—Casino revenues increased $38.1 mdlion, or 3.9%, in fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 2011. For tlscal 2012, casino revenues for our properties 
not closed due to flooding incre-ascd S49.1 milhon, or 6.6%.'This included riicreascd casino revenues of SI 8.7 million at our Pompano property. Si 0.4 million 
at our Lake Charles property and S9.5 million at our Black Hawk properties. Our olher properties cnriibined for an increa.se of $10.5 million in casino 
revenues. The properties closed for part ofthe fiscal year due lo flooding had decreased casino revenues of SI 1.0 rnillion, or 4.9%. 

Casino operadng expenses increased SI 1.1 mdlion,; or 7.8% for fi.scal 2012 compared to fiscal 2011. Ket increases in casino expenses reflects the cost of 
increased complimentary' rooms and food and beverages provided lo our ciisino cusiomers and, increased salaries and wages due to expanded hours of 
operation at Pompano and a new poker room at our Black Hawk property. 

Gaming Taxes—State and local gaming taxes increa.sed $8.8 million, or 3.6%, forfiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 2011 consistent with the 3.9% increase 
in gaming revenues. 

Rooms—Rootns revenue increased S0.3 nu'lhon, or 0.9%, in fiscal 2012 comparedto fiscal 2011. Rooms revenue tor our properties not closed due lo 
flooding increased S1.0 million, or 3.4%. 

Food. Beverage, Pari-Muluel and Olher—Food, beverage, pari-muluel and odiei revenues increased $6.6 million, or 5.4%, in fiscal 2012 compared to 
fiscal 2011. Food, beverage and olher revenues forfiscal 2012, increased $6.5 million, including incrcises at our Pompano propcrtj'of S3.4 million. 
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Prtiffir)//on(7/>l//oM-(Wcc,v—Promotional allowances increased S13.9miUion, or 7.5%; in fiscal 3012 compared to fiscal 2011. The increase in promotional 
allowances is primarily atnibutable lo our 3.9% increase in gaming revenues as we revise to our marketing plans as a result of competitive factors, economic 
conditions and regulations. 

Marine a/id Facilities—.Marine and facilities expenses increased S2,0 million,-or 3.6%, for-fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 2011. The overall riicrcasc in 
marine and facilities reflecl utcreased spending for repairs and mauilenancc. 

Markeiing arid Atbninistralive—Markeiing and administralive expenses increased $8.7 million, br3.9?u, for fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 201 L.The 
overall increase corresponds to a 3.9% increase in casino revenues and reflects addilional marketing expendituriJS designed to increase market share and 
customer visits. 

Corporate and Developmeni—During tlscal 2012, our corporate and developmeni expenses were S40.2 million compared toS42.7 million forfiscal 
2011. The decrease is a primarily a re.sult of financing related costs of $4.0 million and acquisition and developmeni costs of $3.8 million in fiscal 2011 offsel 
by increased irisurance costs and a S2.0'million accrual relaled to Iriigation. 

Preopening—Preopening expenses relate to our casino under construction in Cape Girardeau, Missouri and include payroll, outside services, insurance, 
ritilities, travel arid various other expenses relaled to the new operation. The new casino is expected lo'operi during Oclober 2012, subjecl to rcgiilalory 
approval. 

Deprecialion and Amortizalion—Depreciation and amortization expense for.fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal,2011 decreased $1.6 million, primarily due to 
certain assets becoming fully depreciated. 

Olher Income (E.xpen.se). income Taxes and Disconlinued Operalions 

Interesi expense, inieresi income, derivaiive expense, income tax (provision) henefil and'income from discontinued operations, net of riicome laxes for 
the fiscal years 2012 and 2011 are as follows: 

liscal Vear lindcd 
April 29. AprH 2J, Percenlage 

linChouMods) „ _ ,,, 2012 2011 Varinnce Variance 
'lntctcslcxp€n5c\ZI~~Iir.,^.^ :^'^5^Z' -^-^Z^^ -4:030; , . T4.4)'%! 
tiiteresi income . 8.1.9 1,903 (1,084) (57.6)% 
Derivative mcbmefexpeniielr i -X,. . -:•;. _ l i _ l _ - . . lU .^ : z . ^^^ . rL>-e.-<39.̂  .flT2l4)- ^iv653; L N / - M I J 
Uic^tMax_provisiori^ „ , - , , . ,__, ^ (i5.il2) (6,950) (8^169) 'j?-^'^"., 
Iriconie,(loss)frpm,di,scoritinued.operjtibn,s,'nel of incqmctaxcs^-.,^_. l.,-{..i;.̂ (112^370) .'•'- , 805 ^(113.1751 ..,, ", N/M^ ;^ 

.Interest Expense—Interest expense decreased $4.0 million, or 4.4%, in fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 2011. The decrease is primarily a result of interest 
rate swaps maturing in fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2012, Wc capilalized SLI million in interesi relaled to construclibnprojccls durriig fiscal 2012. 
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Fiscal 2011 Compared to Fiscal 2010 

Re\-enues 

Revenues forthefiscalyears 2011 arid 2010 arc a.s follows: 

n.Mral Vcar Knded 
April 24, April 25, 

(inilioiuandi) 2011 ' 201 o: Variance 

Revenues: s'. . .. -•: ." " .'•'-^-;'^-..; f" *-.">. -..".•.•••' |'-"^'^i *'!=• •.'•".• •" • •*• • • , . " - 7 ' . ' i ' ' 

Casuio $ 968,423 S 943;234 $ 25:189 
I'-RwiuV. " ' l ' ^ . -r%; .-"-^ .-••'-,'*^'?'-.'^^_ •=^-- "•..^£fV^.-\:3£l44--'.- - ' 33:548;' .::••'(1:4041' 

Food, beverage, pari-mulucl and odier 121,955 :i 22,200 (245) 

[,? ./Gross revenues ••• '••"^''.•'*:r ." •"•'l^.'-' V f ' " ^ J ' - T :-''":-'-V,-i:i22:.5?7"̂ ^ •-':i':098.982S. ••-;:-23:540 ' 
Less promofional allowances (185,862). . (I'7i,747) (14,115) 

U^'"'; . .- •Nct'rcv'eiiucs-,--V'-'v -.-" •" -̂-f*?.̂ -'•'•:> ".'^/.-S'.'n ^936:660'^S'- "'927.235:- .;- '^9:425. 

percentage 
Variance 

• . '• - , ' ' 1 
2.7% 

.•̂  . -(•4;2)%] 
(0,2)% 

' -'* '•'2;i%': [ 
(8.2)%-

\ - " ••.L.0%' i 

Casino Revemies—Casuio revenues Increased S25.2 million, or 2.7%, in fiscal 2011 compared to fiscal 2010. For fiscal-2011, casino revenues iricreased 
S8.9 million at our Pompano property, and included $36.8 million from our Vicksburg'casirio. These increases were of&et by decreased casino revenues at our 
Black Hawk and Quad Cities properties of$I5.2 million reflecting the impaci of competition and a decrease at our Lake Charles; Lula and Nalchez properties 
of approximately Sl L4 million primarily due to current economic conditions. Our other propcrtitjs combined for a nel increase of S6.1 million in casino 
revenues. 

Rooms Re\'enue—Rooms revenue decreased S 1.4 million, or 4.2%, in fiscal 2011,'compared to fiscal 2010. The majorilj-ofthis decrease has occurred al 
our Black Hawk property where we have experienced declines in both room rales and occupancy, following the opening of a competitor's new hotel during 
October. 2 009, 

Food, Beverage, pari-mtmtel and Olher Revenues—Food, beverage, pari-miitucl and other revenues decreased SO.2 mdlion, or 0.2%, in fiscal 2011 
compared to fiscal 2010. Food, beverage and oihcr revenues for,fiscar20l I.included$2.3 million from our recently acquired Vicksburg casino. 

Promoiional Allowances—Promotional allowances increased SI4;1 miUion, or 8:2%, in tlscal 2011 compared to fiscal 2010. Promotional albwanccs for 
fiscal 2011 included $11.1 milhon fromour Vicksbiirgcasino. At our cxistingproperties, changes in our promotional allowances refiect revisions loour 
rnarkeling plans as a result of competitive faciors, economic conditions and regukitioris. 
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Operating Expen.ses 

Operating expenses for Ihc fiscal years 2011 and 2010 arc as follows: 

Fiscal Vear tndcd 
April 24, April 25, Percentage 

lin ihotiMinds) 2011 2010" Variance Variance 
-„ -- . .- .;•"•?-; ' •-.-,-. ' '-• '- ••;•• ;~r- 5—yy-... . -•• ..—gr-jTr-. . —71 • - . , • • . ? , - r ^ 
Operaiing exnenses: .f---:^ ^ .̂  ,̂ -,V,.̂ „1̂ ^̂ ,•̂ f , :,, ;<i; ".:-- ".• •• ..'..i . f-: •'-••^.•-. •• . >•• , , • • • - . .: -y \ 

Casino S 142,642.$ 137,305 'S '5,337; 1 2 ^ 
r?Ganii^.aV^^-^— >:.•>^'•-- . ^ ' '^ ^^^ .^^^^^^l^Jm: '^ '^^^ -^^IWiH 

Rooms ' . . 7;296 7,960 (670) (8.4)% 
l^F^d:beveratte?pa-rii"rili^l:and-Qtherr,.^'^'v^^^'--^^:TTr?^^ -̂  -..~^40.088: ̂  --T . '47l£~rZZLl;-2%B 

Marine and facilities . 55,211 55.559 (348) <0:6)i»_ 
l-;fMark-etriiVandadminiri^ali"Vc: J:^--^--^.--^--'^^:^'^ ;757. " ':-^223.778:„^'.y 1.979: ,.- - • ..0.9%-j 

" Corporate and developtnenl -- •• 42,709 46,750 (4,041) (MT''" 
Valuation charges arid expcrise recovRries''.^'^; ,,̂ ;'-,. . '•*'. - -s- • " S.— -- ..,.f6.-762);.- ^̂  ,".6:762"'- . ' N/M /^ [ 
Depreciation and amortization 77.613 95,478 (17.865) (18.7)% 

I ,-^;j-TQiaropchitinKexVerise'sg- -i.' ,̂  <-^L-?.^ ^ - r ' 4 i ^ l ' -" " S l . J34.',-730^$^_854;8J4.~~-(2O.r44) _" . ::':(2:4)%:J 

Casino—Casin'o opei^ting'cxpensas riicreascd S5.3,million, or 3,9% forfiscal 2011 compared to fiscal 2010.'ExcIuding casino costs of S4.8 million 
incurted by. our Vicksbiirgcasino, our casuio costs .wouldhaveincrcased $0:5 million, "rhis net change ui casino operating expenses" refiects a slight increase 
in casino expenses at our Pompano property following Ihe expansion ofgaming hours effective July 1, 2010 offset by net cosl reductions in casino expense at 
most of ourproperties. 

Gaming Taxes—State and local gaming taxes decreased SI 1.8 mdlion, or4.6% for fiscal 2011 cornpared lo fiscal 2010. Reductions in gaming laxes for 
fiscal 2011 reflect ihe decrease in slaie gaming laxes al our Pompano facility from 50% to 3.5% effective July 1, 2010 and changes'in ihc niix ofour gaming 
revenues derived from .states with different ganiing tax rates. Gaming taxes for fiscal 2011'included S3.2 million fro'm our Vicksburg casino. 

Rooms—Rooms expenses decreased by SO.7 million or 8.4% in fiscal 2011'compared to I'iscal 2010. This decrease in rooms expense is reflective ofa 
4.2% reduction in our hotel revenues forfiscal 2011, respectively, as compared Hi fiscal 2010., 

Food. Beverage, Pari-mutuel and Olher—^Yocxi, bc\'erage, pari-muluel and olher expenses increased by S0.5 rnillion, or 1.2%, in fiscal 2011 compared lo 
fiscal 2010. l-xcluding food beverage and olher costs of SI. f million incurred by our Vicksburgcasuio, our footl, beverage and other expenses would have 
decreased $0.6 mdlion. 

Marine and Faciliiies—yiatinE and facilities expenses dc<:reased $0.3 million, or 0.6%. for fiscal 2011 compared to fiseal 2010. Excluding marine and 
facility costs of SI.4 nullion incurred by otif'acquired Vicksbuig casino, otu- marine^and facility costs would have decreased $1.1 million. This decrease 
includes reductions in facility costs across most propenies as we coniinue to focus on cost reductions efforts. 

Marketing and Adminislraiive—Markeiuig arid administrative expenses incre;ised $2.0 million, orO.9% for fiscal 2011 compared to fiscal 2010. 
Excluding marketing and administrative costs of $8.6 million incuned by our Vicksburg casino, our marketing and administrative costs would have decreased 
$6.6 million. These decreases reflect reductions in our operaiing cost lo align such expenditures with changes iri visitation and spend per visit by our 
customers. ' 
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Corporate ond Development—During ri$ca\ 2011, our corporate and development expenses were $42:7 million compared to S46.8 million forfiscal 
2010. The net decrease in corporate and development expense reflects decreases ininsurance^costs and incentive compensation. Corporate and development 
expenses for fiscal 2011,include financing relaled costs of S4.0 million and deyclopnienl and acquisilion costs of $4.0 million. In fiscal 2010 we incurred 
$1.8 million in costs relaled to an amendment of our senior credii facility. 

Depreciation and Amortizalion—Depreciation and amonizalion expense for fiscal 2011 comparedto fiscal 2010 decreased $17.9 million, primarily due 
to certain assets becoming fully depreciated offsel by depreciation at Vicksburg of S4:6 niillibn. 

Olher Income (Expense), Income Taxes and Discontinued Operalions 

Interesi expense, interesi income, derivaiive expense, riicomc tax (provision) benefit and income from"disconlinued operations, net of income taxes for 
the fiscal years 20JI and 2010 are as follows: 

Rscal Vcar Knded 
April 24. April 25, ^ Percenlage 

(in Ibousands) 2011. 2010' .-..Variance, Variance 
lnl^r.^.a"-^vn^.Kfs. . ^ .-^Jt ' -- :^^' :^-^,^ , . / . - . - - ^-^, ^ - ^ v ' - r ^ v ^.•. 1 ;>:,$S79L9.35i 5;„f75:434-isai6:.50li .. . 2l-.9%' 
jruercstin.rome' . 1,903 ' 1,814: 89 4.9% 
berivaHveexberise:..'.^ - ' .^^^..^r^L • - • ; - • ; ; -^v^.;:^'^«-^ ,.-.. -•- .^-n:2T4T?rrf370i:i ' ' : ,fS441 > ^ N/M'1 

- Income tax (provision) benefit ' " (6,950) 6,909 (13,859) .._ NAI 
Incomeflos'sifrbni'disctiiilinued operatioris.'̂ neltiifiricoiTie'Ia.xe.s:'*- .."?-" JT .- ->'.:8Q5"/? '(8.253)'- ^ 9:05S " ":~" N/M 1 

Interesi Expense—Inierest expense" increased $16.5 million, or21.9'^; rii fiscaf 2012 compared to fiscal 2011'primarily due iricreased inieresi rates on 
borrowings under our senior secured crcdri facility following our amendment of ihis facility during the fourth quarterof fiscal 2010 arid higher outstanding 
borrowings following our, acquisition of Vicksburg casino during-June-2010. Fiscal 2012 interest expense includes a'S3.2, mdlion write-off of deferred 
financing costs as a result of the amendriient ofour seniorsecured credit facility during the fourth quarter and .in $8:5 million decrease Inintercst associated 
with our iniercst rate swaps as certain ofour swaps have matured. 

Income Tax (Provision) Beriffil^Our income tax (provision) benefil from continuing operations and our effective income lax rale have been impacied 
by our stale income taxes and our'uicomc Ibr financial slatement purposes as well as bur-percentage of permanent and qlhcrilems in relation lo our income or 
loss. During fiscal 2010, ourefTccdve iriconic tax rale was also impacied by our selllenienl of ceriain tax liabilities for S4.7. million less than our estimated 
accrual. 

Liquidity und Capilal Resourci-j 

Cash Flows from Operaiing Activities^^^Durmg fiscal 2012, we geheialcd SI 18.1 million in cash flows from operating activities compared logenerairiig 
$123.7 million duiing fiscal 201 l.due piimarily loa net use of working capital of S3.7 million; 

Cash Flows used in Invesiing Activities—During fiscal 2012 wc used S60,0 million for invesfing activities compared lousing $144.6 million during 
fi.stial 2011. Significani invcsiirig aciivriies duruig fiscal 2012 included capital expendiltu-cs of $75.2 million, includuig $34.9 million relating loCapc 
Griardcau and net proceeds from die sale of Grand Palais Riverboat; Inc. of $14.8 milliori. Significant investing activities during fiscal 2011 included the 
purchase of the Rainbow Casino in Vicksburg, Mississippi for $76.2 million, capital expendilures of S58.6'million,'uicluiling S 13.3 million relatriig lo 
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Cape Girardeau and Nemacolin, and increases In restricted cash and investments ai our captive insurance company by S9.5 million to fund irisurance reserves 
in lieu of providing letters ofcredit. 

Cash Flows used by Financing Activities—During fiscal 2012 our nel cash flows used in financing activities were $38.7 million primarily,comprised of 
net reductions ui our Senior Secured Crcdri Facility tif $38.4 million. 

During fiscal 2011 our net cash flowsprovided by financing activilies were S28.1 million primarily comprised of: 

Nel proceeds from our common slock offerriig of $51.2 mdlion; 

Net proceeds from the issuance ofour 7.75% scnioi,notes.of $297.8 million; 

Net reductions in our Senior Secured Credit Facility of $306.1 million; arid 

• Payment of $14.8 million in deferred financing costs associaied widi the issuance of our 7.75% senior noles and amendment ofour senior 

.secured credit facility. 

.AvailahdityofCash and Additional Capital—Al April 29, 2012, wc had cash and cash equivalents of $94.5 mdlion and markelable securities of 
$24.9 million. Asof April 29. 2012, we had no"oulstariding boriowings uridcr our revolving credit and S495.0 million rii term loans oulsmnding under, our 
senidr secured credii facility. Our net line of credit availability al'April 29,2012 was approximately S258 million as limited by our senior secured leverage 
covenant 

Capital Expenditures and Developmeni Aciiviiie.y^^As part ofour business devt;lopn]cnt activifies, historically wc have entered riilo agrcemenis which 
have resulted in the acquisition or, development of businesses oras.sels. These business developmeni efforts and related agreements typically require Ihc 
expenditure of cash, which may be significant. The amounl and liiriingof ourcash expenditures relating tb development activifies may vary based upon our 
ex-alualion of current and future developmeni oppbiluriilieii. our financial condition arid die condilion oflhe financing markets. Our developmeni aetivhies are 
s'ubjeci to a variety of factors'in'cluding but not liniiied'to: qbiaining permits; licenses and-approvals from appropriale regulaiory and other agencies, 
legislative changes and, in certain circumstances, negotiating acceptable leases. 

Consirucuon is proceeiling ahead of schedule forour Isle Casriio Cape Girardeau devclbpmeiit. We anticipate opening by November I, 2012, subjecl to 
regulaiory approvals. We currenlly cstimaie the cost ofthe projeci at'apprbximalcly.$i35 million'arid have incurred capiia! expenditures, irielutJing capilalized 
interest, of S50 million through April 29, 2012' In fiscal 2013, we plan to invest apptoximalely $85 million in,project capital in our Cajre Girardeau 
development project, barting any delays related to licensing and permitting, contractor negotiations; w-calhcr or other items. 

Our proposed casino in Nemacolin, Pennsylvania was selected by the Pennsylvania Gamirig Coriliol Board to receive the final resort gaming license in 
Pennsylvania in April 2011. This award has been appealed lo the Pennsylvania Supreme Court by anodicr applicaril. We have a developmeni'and managemeni 
agreemeni with Kemacblin.Wobdlands resort to build aricl operate a casino wiih 600 slot machines and 28 table games. Subjecl lo a .successful mling in the 
appeal'and the receiplofal| regulaiory and other approvals, we expcci to complete conslruclion ofthe facility within approximately nine months afier 
commencing corislrijcdon. Wc currendy esiiiiiale the cost ofthe project at approximately S50 million: To date, wc have incurred capilal expenditures, 
inclutling capitalized Interest of Sl.O million. 1'he timing of additional sigitificani expenditures is dependent upon resolution ofthe appeal. 

Historically, we have made significant investments in property and equipment and expeci that our operalions will coniinue to demand ongoing 
inveslmenls to k<;ep our properties compeiiiive. 
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Wc have idenlified several capital projects primarily focused on refreshing our hotel room uivcniory.as.well as addilional improvements to our Black 
Hawk and Lake Charies properties, and further Lady Luck conversions. In ihe fourth quarterof fiscal 2012, we commenced improvements lo the hotel at our 
Lake Charies property and began rebranduig our Vicksburg pKipeny to a Lady Luck. Addriionally we expect to make several other improvements to our 
properties inclutling additional Farmers Pick buffets and other food arid beverage outlets'as well as ongoing maintenance capital. Wecxpecl lb incur capital 
expenditures of approximaiely S55 million to S65 million in fiscal 2013 relaled to these ilems. The timing, completion aridamount of additional capital 
•projecis will be subjecl to improvement of cconoiiuc and local market condiiions, cash flows from our coritriiuing operations and bonowing availability under 
oui- Credit Facility. 

Typically, we have funded our daily operalions ihrough net cash provided by, operating activities and our significani capital expenditures through 
operating cash'flow and debl financing. While wc believe that cash on hand, cash flow from operation's, and available borrowings under our Credii Faciliiy 
wUI be sufficient lo support our working capital needs, planned capital expendimres and debt service ra|uircmcrils for die foreseeable fuiure, there is no 
assurance that these sources will in fact provide adequate funding for our planned and necessaiy expenditures or dial the level ofoincapiial investments will 
be sufficient to allow us to remaui competifive in our exisiuig markets, 

Wc are highly leveraged and may be unable lo obiain additional debt or equiiy'finaricing on acceplable terras'if om- ciurcnt sources of liquidity arc not 
sufficieni or if we fail loslay rii compliance widi Ihe covenanlsofour Credit Facility. Wc will continue to cvaluale our plaimed capital expendimres at each of 
our existing locations in light ofthe operating performance oflhe facilities al such locations. 

Critical Accounting Kstimales 

Our corisolidaled finaricial statements are prepared in accordance with U:S. gcneraily accepied accounting pruiciples dial rcquire'orir managemeni 10 
make esfimales and assumpiions tliat affecl reported amounts and related disclosures. Management identifies critical aixounling estimates as: 

• those dial require the use of assumpiions about "matters that are inherently and highly uncerlairi"at the time the esiimates arc made; 

• those estimates \yherc, had we chosen different estimates or assumptions; the rcsulling differences would have had a material impact on our 
financial condition, changes in financial condition bi-results ofoperalions; and 

• those estimates that, if ihcy were lo change from period to period, hkely would result in a maierial impact on our financial condition, changes in 
financial condition or results ofoperalions. 

Based upon management's discussion of the developmeni and selection of these critical accounting estimates widi the Audit Committee of our Board of 
Dri-cctors, we believe die following accounling estimates involve a higher degree of judgment and complexity. 

Goodwill and Other Intangible A.S.SCIS—At April 29, 2012, we had goodwill arid other inlangible assels ofS387.5 million, representing 24.6% of total 
asseis. In accordance with ASC Topic 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other, if necessary, we peffbrm an annual Impairnienl test forgoodwill and indefinite-
lived riilangible asseis iri die fourth fiscal quarier-of each year, bf on an inlerini basis if riidicatoi-s of irripairriicnl exist For properties widi gtiodwill antl/or 
Olher inlangible assels with indefinite lives, this lest requires the comparisbri ofthe implied fair value ofeach reporting unit to carrying value. 

We must make various assumptions and eslimales in performriigour impariment testing. The implied fair value uicludes esiimates of future cash flows 
thai are based on reasonable and .supportable 
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' assumptions which represent our best esfimales of die cash flows expecied io result from the use oflhe assets uicluding their eventual disposition and by a 
markel approach based upon'valuation multiples fbr simdar companies. Changes in esiimates, increases in our cost of capital, reductions iri transaction 
multiples, operaiing and capilal expenditure assumptions or applitraiion of alternative assumpiions and definitions could produce significanlly different results: 
Fuiure cash flow,eslimales are, by iheir nature', .subjective ahd aclual riisulls may diD'er materially,from our estimates. Ifouf ongoirig estimates of fuiure cash 
flows are nol mel, we may have lo record addriiorial impairment charges in future accounting periods. Ourcsfiriiates of cash flows are basedon Ihe current 
regulatory, sotiial and economic chmales, recent operating information and budgets of die various properties where we conduct operalions. These estimates 
could be negatively, impacied by "changes in federal, state or local regulations, economic downriims, or other events affecting vari'ous forrosof Uavel and 
access loour properties. We engage an independent third party valuation firm to assist niariagenient in our annual impairmenl testing. 

Based upon our fiscal 2012 annual impairment lesting, we noted reporting units wilh'goodwill and/or olher long-lived intangibles had fair values which 
exceeded dieir carrying values by al least 10%, except forour Lula and Black Hawk reporting units. In conjunction with diis itnparimcnl testing,-we recorded 
an impairment charge related lo goodwill at our Lula property of Si 4.4 milliori, resulting in aTemaining goodwill balance of $80.6 million. Black Hawk's 
gtxidvvill and indefinite-lived assets as ofApril 29,2() 12. were $37.7 mi!lion,-,whieh fairvalue.excecdcd its carrying value by 9%, 

Property and Equipment—At April 29, 2012, wc had property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of S950 million, representing 60.3% of 
our total assets: Wc capitalize the cosl of property and equipment Mainienarice and repairs dial neither materially add to the value of die property or 
cquipmcni nor appreciably prolong its life'are charged to expense as incurred. Wc depreciate property and equipment on a straighl-line basls'over their 
estimated usetiil lives. 'I'he estimated useful lives are basedon the nalure ofthe assets as wcl| as ourcurrenl operating strategy.'Future events such as property 
expansions, new competition, changes in lechnology and new rcgulationscouidrcsult in a change ui the mariner in which we are using certain asseis requri-uig 
a change ui the estimated useful lives of jjuch assets. 

Impairmenl of iMng-lived As.sels—We evaluate long-lived asseis t'or impairmenl in accordance.with the guidance in the Impairment or Disposal of Long 
Lived .-Vsscls subsection of ASC Topic 360, Property. Plant and Equipment (ASC Topic 360''). For a long-lived assel to be held and used, we re\'iew the' asset 
for impairment whenever evenls or changes in circumslanees riidicalc the t^ny'ing am'qiim may "bl be recoverable. In assessing the recoverability of the 
carrying value of such property, equipment and other long-lived assets, we make assumptions regarding fuiure cash flow; and residual values. If these 
estimates or die related assumptions are not achieved or,change'in the fuiure, we riiay be required Io record an impairment loss for these assets. In evalualing 
impairmenl of long-lived assets for newly opened operations, estimates of future cash flows arid residual values may require some peritxl ofacnial results to 
provide Ihe basis for an'opinion of fuliue cashflows and residual values used inthe determination of an impairmenl loss for these,assels. For asseis held I'or 
disposal, we recognize the asset al the lower of carrying value or" fair market value, less cost of disposal based upon appraisals, discounted cash flows orother 
methotlsas appropriate. An irnpairriicnt loss would be recognized as_̂ a non-cash co'niponenl of operaiing income. JDuring fiscal 2012, following our agreement 
loscllour Biloxi property, we recognized an impairmeni loss of $112.6 mijljon in discontinued operalions related to the asseis held for sale. Wcalso 
recognized during fiscal 2012 an impairmenl chai^ of $16:1 million related lothe saleof certain long-lived assels al our Lake Charles properly. 

Self Insurance Liabdiiies—We are self-funded up to a maximum amount per claim for our employee-related health care benefits program, workers' 
compensation and general liabililics.'Claims in excess ofthis maximum are fully insured through a stop^loss riisurance policy. We accrue a discounted 
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estimate for workers' compensadon llabdily and general liabilities based on claims filed and estimates of claims mcurtcd but not reported. We rely on 
independent consultants to assisi in Ihe delermmafion of estimated accraals: While the ullimalecosi of claims incurred depends on fuiurc developments, such 
as increases rii healdi care costs, rii our opinion, recorded reserves are adequate to cover fuiure clariiis payments. Based upon our current accrued insurance 
liabdides; a 1% change in ou'r discount faclor would cause a $0.7 itiillion change inoui^accrued self-insurarice liability. 

Income Tax As.sels and Liabllilies—We account for income laxes in accordance witii die guidance in ASC 'fopic 740. Income Taxes ("/\SC Topic 740"). 
We are subject to income taxes in the United Stales and in several slates in which we operate. We reco^izc a curtenI tax asset or liability for the estimated 
laxes payable or refundable based upon applicafion of the'enacied Uix rates to taxable income ui the current year.Additionally.'wc arc required to recognize a 
deferred tax liabiiily or asset for ibc estimated future tax tjffecis atiribuiable to temporary differences. Temporary differences occur when differences arise 
between: (a) ihe amounlof taxable income and pretax finaricial income fora year, and (b) die lax basis ofassels or liabilities and their reported amounts in 
financial statements. Deferred lax assets recognized must be reduced by a valuation allowance for any tax benefits that,- In our judgment arid based upon 
available evidence, may noi be realizable. At April 29, 2012 we have reduced our deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance of $54:2 million. 

Wt" assess our tax positions using a iwo-slep process. A la.x position'is recognized if il meets a "more likely than not"- threshold, arid is measured at the 
largest amounl of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being rcaUzed/Uncertain tax-posidons must be reviewed at each balance sheet date. 
Liabilriies recorded asa resultof this analysis rausi generally be recorded separately; from ariy cunenl or deferred income lax accounls, and are classified as 
curreni or long-term iri the balaricc sheet based on the dme unlil'expecled paymeni in accoimts accraed liabilities-odicr or other long-term liabihdes. 
respectively. We recognize accrued interesi and penalties related to umecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. 

Sio{:k Ba.sed Compensation—We apply die guidance of ASC Topic 718, Compen satitiii—Slock Compensation ("ASC Topic 718") in accounling for 
stock compensation: Generally, wc arc required Io measure die cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity riisirumcnis based on 
the grant-date fairvalue ofthe award. The estimate of the fair value ofthe stock oplions is calculated using the Blaek-Scholes-Merton opiion-pricing model. 
This model requires the use of various assuiuptions, including the hisiorical vobtilily ofour stock price, Ihe risk free interest rate, estimated expected life of 
the grants, Ihc estimated divitiend yield arid estimated rate of forfeiiures. Subsequent loour fiscal yearended April 29, 2012, we grained restricted stock units 
("RSUs") containuig market performance condiiions which will delerminc the amounl bf shares to vest, if any: The fair value oflhese RSUs is dclcrmined 
utilizing a lallice pricing model which considers a range of assumpiions including, volatility and risk-fiee interest rates.-Sloek based compensation expense is 
included in the expense category concsponding to the employees' regular compensation:in ihc accompanying consolidaled statements of operations. 

Derivative Instruments—We utilize an irivesmienl policy for managriig risks associated with our current and anticipated future boreowings, such as 
iniercst rate risk and its potenlial impact on our fixed and variable rate debt The policy does nol altow for die use of derivative financial instrumenls for 
Irading or speculative purposes. To the extent we empk>y;such financial instniments pursu.int.to this policy, and the instrumenls qualify for hedge accounting, 
we may designate and accotinl for ihem as hedged insiruments. In tirdcr to qiialify'for hedge accounting, the underlying hedged item musi expose us to risks 
associaied with markel fluctualions and the financial instrumenl used must be designated as ahedge and musl reduce our exposure to market tluctuations 
ihroughoul the hedged period. If these cn'teria are noi'met, a change in the market value ofthe firiancial instrument is recognized as a gain (loss) in the period 
ofchangc. Olherwise, gains and losses related to the change in the markel value 
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are not recognized excepi to Ihc extern that the hedged debt is disposed of prior to maturity or lolhe cxtcntlhai unacceptable ranges of inclTcclivcness exist in 
Ihc hedge. Net inierest paid or received pursuant to the hedged financial instrument is included in interesi e.xpense rii the period. Oiu- ctureni interest rate swap 
agrecmenls, which were designated as cash flow hedges, became ineffecfive upon the amendment of our senior securedcredit facility rii Februar)- 2010. We 
record Iherii at fair value and measure theri-effectiveness using die long-haul m.ethod.'Thecffecfivcportioii of any gain or loss on our interest rate swaps is 
recorded rii olher compichcnsree income (loss). Wc use the hypothetical derivative mediod to measure die inciffective portion of our riilcrest rale swaps. The 
ineffective portion, if any. is recorded rii other income (expense). We measure die mark'Io-markel value of our interest rale swaps using a discounled cash 
flow analysis ofthe projected future receipts or payments based upon die forv?ard yield curve on Ihe date of measurement We adjusl dus amounl to measure 
die fari value of our uiierest rate swaps by applying a credri valuation adjustment to the"mark-to^markel expo.sure profile. 

Contingencies—We are involved in various legal proceedings and have identified certain loss contingencies. We record liabilities re|aiedIo these 
eonluigcncies when h is determined that a loss is probable and reasonably estimable in accordance with ihcguidaiiccof ASC Topic .450 Contingencies ("ASC 
Topic 450"). These assessments arc based on our knowledge and experience as well as the advice of legal counsel regarding curTcnl and past events. /\ny such 
esiimates are also subjecl to future evenls, court rulriigs, negoiiauons between the panics and oOier uncertauities: If an actual loss differs from our estimate, or 
the actual dulcoriie ofany oflhe legal proceedings differs frorii expectations, fuiurc op'eratriig resulis could be impacred. 

CoDlractual Obligations and Commercial Cummitmcnis 

The following tabic [Hovides information as of the end of fiscal 2012, about our contraciuai obligations and commercial comiiutriierits.-The table presents 
contractual obligations by due dales and related contraciuai commitments by expiralion dales (in millions). 

PavmenIs Due hv Period 
Lc<iiTha[i 

Conlractual Obligalions -Tnlal. I Vear l-3Vcars 4 - 5 Vear» AflfrSVear^ 

L o n g - t c r m P e b l / - ; ^ _ .- , . . • - . -^ V - . ' • : , . $ ; L I 5 6 : 4 , " ; S <;_^5MjS 8 4 8 : L : _$•. : 0 . 3 - - J S . ,302:61 

Esiimalcdmiercstpaymenisonfong-^^^ ^ 25L7 '" 72.8, 82.3 ^ '̂ '̂ -.̂ ., .. \^-,' 
Opgrairiie Leases" ."•" ^ ^ ^ ^ ' ^ • • •., , '^Tr^f^- •;-'-470.2^ . -^f 18:6>̂ -̂̂  .^^.33:9' '- 33:3i 'v...' ,'^384.41 

Lona-fermObliHafions(2) . . ^. J'*-*' "̂ -̂  6 - ' , ^-^ ^ - j , 
Consiriictibn C^ntractiL-irOblipaiioris'f.^T ^.'^' . T" ' '>'"'''V33':o'::£. J|85,Qu.»-^::'._. j ^ l l ,.:,_ -^'"'^-, ;•" : - ^ 
Odier Long^rermjOfahEaiions^ _ ^ ' 21.5" 1:1̂  2 .9 . ^3.5\ J4.0 
Toial,CbniiriciuarCashOb]ieaiions'...W ;. w- / -~"^$^'l.999.'4.>^$7i?90:7:.^S:-973.3 S S 5 . 2 ^ ' J50l\ 

(1) Hsiimated interesi payment on long-lemi'debi are based on principal amounls outstanding at our fiscal year end and forecasted LIBOR 
rates for our senior secured credii facility. 

(2) Long-term obhgaiions include future purchase commitments. 

(3) Construciion contractual obligalions represenl the esiimaled remaining capilal expenditures on the constmcfion ofour new casino in 
CapeGirardeau, Missouri. 
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Recently bsued Aceuunluig StanJards 

Recently I.ssued Accounting Standards—In Seplember2011, the Financial Ai;co"unlirig Standards Board. ("FASB") issui;d Update No. 201 l:08,-"Testing 
Goodwill for Impairment," which amends ASC 350 "Intangibles—Goodwill and Other." This update permits entities to make a qualitative assessment of 
wheiher a reporting unit's fari- value is, more likely than not, less than its carrying amount If an entity concludesil is more likely than noi'dial die fair value of 
a reporting imil Is greater than its carrying amount, the enlrtj" is not required to perforin the two-step impairment lest fof that rcjxjrting unit; The update is 
effective for annual and interim gtxidwill impairment tests perfonned forfiscal years bcginriing after IJccember 15, 2011, with early adopiion permitted. 
During fiscal 2012, we adopted this standard, which did not materially impact bur consolidated financial statements. 

In June 2011, the FASB issued Update No. 2011-05, "Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Preserilaiion of Comprehensive Income," u;hich allows for 
the presentation of total comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other comprehensive income eilher in a .single 
coniiiiuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate bul consecutive slatemenls. In addition^ the guidance eliminates the option of presenting die 
components of other comprehensive income as part oflhe statement of changcsin'siqckh'olders' equity: "This guidance is effective Ibr fiscal years and interim 
periods wiihin those fiscal years beginning after December 15," 2011. While the adoption will impaci where we disclose the components of other 
comprehensive income in our consolitlaled I'lnancial slatemenls, we do not expect the"adopiion to havea riialerial impact on those consolidaled financial 
statements. 

ITEM 7A. Q U A N T I T A I IVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT SuRKF.T RISK 

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes iri market rates and prices,' including iniercst rates, foreign currency exchange rales, 
commodity prices and equity prices. Our primary exposure to market risk is inierest rate risk associaied with otu- senior secured credii facility. 

Senior Secured Credit Facilitj-

During fiscal 2012, wc maintained riilcrest rale swap agrecmenls "and interest rote cap arrangemenls with an aggregate notional value of $50 million and 
$100, million as ofApril 29, 2012, respectively. The swap agreemeni effectively converts portions of ttie seriior secured credri faciliiy variable debt to a fixed-
rate basis until the swap agreemeni lerminales, which occurs in fiscal 2014. 

The following table provides tnforrpatibri"al April 29,2012 about our financial instrumenls ihat are sensitive to changes in uitcrcst rates. The table 
prescnls principal cash flows and related weighled avtriage interest rates by expected niaturily dates. 
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Interest RaleSeuiitivily 
Principal (.\otional) Amount by Eip'retcd Matur i ty 

Average Inieresi (Swap) Rale 

201.1 2015 201fi 

, Kflir 
Vfllue 

2017 •Ihereflfier .Tniil 4/29/2012 

Fiscal y a r 

tdollars'io million!.) 

Liabi lUlcsl^ 
Long-term debt, 

incliidirig curreni 
portiqri' _ _̂  . , , 

F^Fiy^*]^? '"'. .'.$;6.2Cs357l5!'fs Q.-2,̂ 5̂ Q:-2:.i$ .O.L'-.'s^02.'6V:$660.8 ^$,670^ 
Average iriterest 

rate 7.38% 7.08% 7:84% 7.85% 7:85% '7.76% 

t l l iV airiabie rate _ ^ S : 5:2'_! $4 %:2 _: S d̂̂ 2 i S ' L ^ ^ 
Average mterest 

J2 te ( i )_ 4.80%. 4.g0*/» 9.97% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

• • i*'i- - 4 ' a ' - i ' ^ ' ^ '"•'•• •• ' ' ' '''°̂ ^̂  '•̂ •'•••i 't •-«.-•.-•''',r,̂ . >^Ki-̂ ''"f̂  ' '" ' '^ ' '- ' " .-Interest RafCj. .: '> .- ^ ' ^ ' J ' ' i - . • - . ,-. ..'̂  • ' . ' t . .̂  -* ' •• -
"..', Derivaiive-'-^ ^-''-l . -*• • * * - - - ' t " . ' " \ ?;:-e.„-«!^'4'i^'^'Sf-'' " T' • '̂ , 

Instruments 
jRdal«l,tb'Debt:,^-_ 

Interest rate swaps_ 
r^Pay.fixed/'re'ccive. ^ 

„variable, .$_ 

-=^JZ 

— i — - . • , ^ — _ . . . . 

-^^•$i50.0_^S'-A-'3 :1s: i-i ̂'-'''̂  .^—^s'^sbioi..^ 
Average pav rate 4,00% 4.00°,4 0.00% 0.00%. 0.00% 0.00'Ji, 

I . .'Average KCCTVC •""- ' .-: ^ •' •, ;.- ,:' • ^ " ^ ^ • v 
W . rale.v- ' •• .. :0.49% .0.60%"; 0.00%' 0.00% 0.00%- ^..j).66%'- .-

(1) Represents ihe'anriual average LIBOR from iheT'brwiird yield curve at April 29, 2012 plus the weighled average margin abo've LIBOR 
on all consolitlated variable rate debt. 

As ofApril, 29, 2012, our senior, secured credii facility- coniained variable i^ledebibasedon LIBOR with a floor bf 1.25%, which is above ihe curreni 
markel LIBOR rales wc receive underouf-inierest fate swap agreemeni. in addiiion,"we have purchased inieresi rate caps at 3% fora notional amount of 
$100 milliori to fimhei" hedge our riileresi roleexposurc. The following table depicts the esiimaled impact ori our annual interesi expense forthe relative 
changes in interest rate based upon cunenl debt levels: 

Increase lo 

variable rale 
Increasc/ldecrcaM') 

(in millions) 

^y5%ri~ ,̂__?" -̂ - 7 ' ^ I S I Z Z S I ZkiMD 
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Rcport nf Independent Rej;istcretl Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
lsle ofCapri Casriios, Inc. 

We have audiled Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as ofApril 29,2012,^based on crileria established rii Intemal 
Control—Inlegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoruig Organizations oflhe TreatJway Commission (the COSO criteria). Isle ofCapri 
Casinos;Tric.'s management is responsible'for maintaining effeciive riilcmal control over financial reportuig, and for its assessment oflhe etTectiveness of 
internal contro! over fmancial reporting uicluded in the accompanying Managernerit's'Report on Intemal Control over Financial Reponing. Our responsibility 
islo express an opinion on the company's internal control over tlnanclal reporting based on our audit 

We conducted our audit in accordance wrih Ihe slandards ofthe Public Company Accounting O '̂ersight Biiard (Uniled Stales). Those standards require 
thai we plan and perform the audh to obiain reasonable assrirance about whether tiffeciive internal control over financial reporting was maintained in Dll 
maierial reSpecis. Our audit uicluded obiariiuig an understanding of internal control over, financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
testing arid evaluating die design and operating effecliverics's of iriternal conlrol .based on'the assessed risk, arid perfonning "such other" procedures us we 
considered necessary in the cireuriistances. We believe dial our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company's intenial coniro! over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabdity of financial reporting 
and the preparaliori of financial staiemenis forexlemal purposes in accordance with generally accepied accounting principles- A company's internal control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of die assets ofthe company; (2) provide leisonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation bf financial slaicments in accordance widi gcneraily accepted accounling principles, and thai receipts arid expenditures of die company arc being 
made only in accordance with authorirations of managemeni arid directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance reganling prevention or 
tiiriely delectidn of unauthorized acquisition, use ordisposiiionof ihecompariy's assets diat coiild have a material effccton die financial slateriienls. 

Because of its inherenl limitations, intemal conirol'over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections ofany evaluation 
of effect ivent;ss to future peritxis arc .subject to the risk that corilrbls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may dcleribrate. 

In our opinion, lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. maintained, in all riialerial rc-specls,-effective internal control over fmancial reporting as of April 29, 2012, 
based on die COSO criteria. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards ofthe Public Company Accounling Oversight Board (United Stales), the consolidaled balance 
sheels of Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. asof April 29,2012, arid April 24.2011, and ihe related consolidaled statements of operations, stockliolders' equiiy, and 
cash flows for die fiscalyear^ ended April 29, 2012, Aprir24, 2011, and April 25, 2010, of isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. and our report dated JuneJ4. 2012, 
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

I:rasi SL Young LLP 

St. Louis, .Missouri 
June 14', 2012 
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Report oflndependenl Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. 

We have audiled the accompanyuig consolidated balance sheets of Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. (the Company) as ofApril 29, 2012, and April 24, 2011, 
and Ihe related consolidated slalements of operafions, stockholders' equity,aridcash flows for. the fiscal years ended April 29, 2012, April24, 2011 and 
April 25,2010. Our audits also included the fmancial-Statement schedule lisied in'thelndcx at Ilem 15(a). These fuiaiicial staiemenis and schedule are the 
responsibility of the Coriipany's management Our responsibility is to express an opinion ori these financial statements and schedule based on our audits: 

We conducted our audits in accordance widi the stantlards of ihc^Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Uniled Staies),.Thosc standards require 
thai we plan and perform die audit In obiarii reasonable assurance about wheiher the financial statements are tl-ee of maierial missiaiemeni. An audri includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting Uie amounts and disclosurcs'in die financial siateriienis. An audit also includes assessing die accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by riianagement^ as well as evaluiitirig die overaU financial slateriieril pi^eritafion. We believe that bur audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opiiupn. 

Inour opinion, the financial staiemenis referred lo above present fairly, iri all material respects, die consolidated financial posilion of Isle ofCapri 
Casinos,'Inc. at April 29, 2012 and April 24,201 l,and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the years ended April 29,2012, 
April 24, 2011 and April 25, 2010. in conformity wilh U.S. generady accepted accountuig principles. Also, in our opriiion, the relaled financial statement 
schedule, when considered in rekition to Ihe basic consolidaled financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respecls, the informalion 
set forth thcrcrii. 

We also have audited, in accordance wilh the slandards of die Public Company Accounting Oversiglil Board (Uniled States), Isle of Capri Casriios, Inc's 
interna! "conlrol over financial reporting as ofApril 29, 2012, based on die criteria i;stablished.in-/;?/t'/-Ha/ Conlrol—Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of Ihc Treadway Commission, and our report dated June 14, 2012, expressed an unqualified opinion ihereon. 

/s/ Ernsi & Young LLP 

St. Loriis'MisSouri 
Junc'14, 2012 

47 



Table of Contents 

ISLE OF CAPRI C A S I N O S ; INC. 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(In thousands evccpt shure and per share amounts) 

April 29, April 14. 
2Q12 2011 

' rl, .r 11 - • - ' • - •; - 1 -• -' ••• ' •^ \...-,-2. . , . . ^ . v ^ ^ . i . y - — ^ . ^ - - ' - • - -. i.-, ^ » j . .. • - , ^ ,••- .;, l i 

Current assels:̂  . ^ , , _, , . ^ ^ . , 
f • > - • C a s l i ^ i:ash eQuivrilenis:-:^:^ - ^ t -"̂ .̂>> ?i:. ••:̂ '-H - 'C2<^ ''"̂ •il̂  > r '; _' ^ . -„^^- . .^$J : /94 ,46L$ j75:i78i 

Markeiablc'securilies^ . ^ _ ^ ^ 24,943 22,173 
{ 7,̂  Accounts receivabie.-neiofallowance foi'doubiftil'accourils of $2:502 and Sl.OlO. respect reelv" f-i ' 6.941^" ^A9.367J 

Insurance receivable ; 7,497 . 234 
L.. iInt;tiiiicmesr«?^civahle:^.-^l'.-X ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ " • ^ ^ - J ^ ' ' : / " : ' ^ ; ^ ^ - ^ " . .• . 4 .:••{ 7 i i .^ :2: i6L.- ' ^ ; 3 ^ 

Deferred income taxes . - • ...L. . . J . . . •.....-- ^"'^- .l~-9-^Z. 
{>,''Pre^aid expenses 3nd'odier-asselS^y4.̂  .̂ -̂ "•-,«&-..'-: •.'.•''j'f,'fft,;„̂ ".t".i, [f/:,,"̂ : -p ,^ ,' '•'-" --̂  :••: f.:, ' '.^,':.-l8.950J^_:'-25;4^^j 

Assets held for sale " 46,703. — 
y -ir/-'. „''Tnm I cu'rrcnt assets ;..",: L •.̂ •.' |.̂ -. •' -g' "!'• -.'̂ .̂ l-jjâ -A'S '̂̂  -->.:-;n.ia.,,̂ .̂-"-̂  -.-•[^W., . i l l , ' -"t ^ ' ' - •, - >=. • ' "̂  202,2?3 1148 j3 59j 
Propeny_and,^uipmenl net ^ ^ ^ ^ 950,014 1,113,549 
oihcT^s^^iFT:.^'"--"•"""":•:-• :'• • ^.-.^^^^^'^~T^T^?^'' y>^-,v.-.^-'7-^.;i--~'^-'7^-'•-t - - . v " - " ^-: ' - :"- •- - . ^ ' ^ ^ 

Goodwill ^̂  [ _ ^ .330,903_ 345:303 
^-y'>Olher irila'ntiblc assets! n^"•^-^•>'^^^''^'^^'^'^^ - -.•""'-• T ' .--/rT-';56,586. --32:2071 

Deferred firiancingcosts.nel. .l,- '̂-:?^ *^'^** 
C L J R cstf icied, cash'; ahd, invesiriieriis'^ ^ " - - 'j^-'-ik" r>-„.„'ŝ .,--̂ .'."' ',t '- .-; ' % • _ " '̂/.̂ ^ .'12,551:,„,_.12,81 OJ 

Prepaki deposits and other 9,428 12,749 

LIABIUTIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'EQUITY 
Current liahdmes: - . ' ' '- ,. . . . . . - . : . ' . r" =• .^.^li.-"-: '••'•'-̂ •, - -• ,.-\ . ,̂ „ - - •- — - ' ' ' ••' 

Curtentri^^luriticsbflong-lerTridebl ^ ,̂ —-.̂  ..... 5 ..^•393 $ - y p ^ . 
^Accoi5^"mvable'-%-V . a' ' . ' ^ :%. ,^V^J i / tf-V . ̂ ^PS^^^^;^^TI^^'^?^-. VJ^tl/^.. ^^'•"^•' . ' ' .-̂  .:f23:536^ . -. 2e.̂ oTS] 
-Accrued liabilities: _ ' . ' . . . . . . . . . ...... r . 

PT- -.'>.^vroll"aritTrclaieti^/'"'' '••'' ̂ , '.''' ̂  M '"-i.J . ' j^-J^ ' • '̂''*^:, J ^ ^ ^ ' "C<' ...f:̂  ,. '~!>rr~V^'^- ;;^W.3s'566*, .̂  ,44.-18?! 
Property and other laxes 19,522 19,891 

E^::isre;«i£E^3rzr:iZ!Zi^ 
Progressive jackpots and .slot club'awards ,, 14,892 I5,2_8Q 

HESLJi^iab'driies'rclatcd'^lo'asscis'heid''fbrsi3le .•t-̂ .-,-'.,-; •"• '̂'.̂ ytji '̂la?;-;--' W ^ ^ H ? - ^ " - ; - , r'.j/i. %^^--'--:'-^-^f>2'..\^ . , " • ^ ' 
Odier • 40.549 32,332 

n-':'?":'•fotarcu'rfc'niliubiiiiics•'*-'"'•" ,\,̂ f, "-''j^. ..,yfc ,̂,-:-" ,̂.-t.a"...',.-.. -; ,#^ _'î _ '̂'̂ --i-ir-'|-. ̂  ->''..;-I'^^. • ':^.I56:U6" ^153,878J 
Long-term debt- less cunenl maturities 1.149,038 1,187,221 
DrferiSil^^?m^sLSIIfIIISI!E!ZI^^ 
Other accmed liabijities ^̂ .,̂ ^ - . r - ^ - 33,583 _ .36,305 
Odie'rlb^J^gm f̂iribiliticsX'_'.-r¥^ • '-'fV^^^^r^^^':-'',Vl-.fc•i/'^'l^^rf^^' •li:££i-^>^Ji2*rUUiliLZT6,556^^1 6,6M] 
Siockholders' equity: ^ _ __ _ 
( ./.|\Preferr'edstbck.'$.OI'-Dar value:'2!()00.(KI0"shares'audibrized: nnne'issucd-.'^ii '>-̂ '-'.. ' ' ' / • • •:;'' ' '••^ • r'"-̂ ^ '•- -::--l 

Common stock, $.01 par value; 60,000,000 shares aulhorized; shares issued: 42,066:148 ai-
April29,20I2.and42,Q63.569aiAprH24.20ir _̂  . . , j ^421 •.^21 

El,^Class,BVon)riion"stock, .<;'Qr'narvalue:'3;l)0(l-000,shiifiVs riiithmizedi'niine'is'siif'Hi-'f. -' ".-.e •'. .: ' . ; 5̂,,— -̂ " ' • ' . j , . - ^ ^ 
Addilkinal paid-in <:apilal' __̂  _^__^ 247^S5S__ 254,013 

g^^^-Reiai '̂gd^min1^V•?deficilV'̂ ,.r'̂ ^ "^%-jr"^'C:^-'.-;5TZl^^^^ A ^ . , ' i ^ ' 1 ^ r i , X " ^ "•>" <''.\--."-.;f26,658) • 103.0951 
•\ccumulaied oiher comprehensive riicome (loss) (855) (2,235) 

Treasury stock, 3,083,867 shares at April 29,2012 and 3,841,283 shares at April 24, 2011 (37,143) (46,266) 

Total liabdities and stockholders' equity $1,574,970 $1,733,888 

Sec accompanyriig noles lo consolidaled fmancial staieraents-
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TablcofContcnls 

ISLE OF CAPIU CASINOS, INC! 

CONSOLIDATED STA'I EMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(In thousands, excepi share andper share amounls) 

Fiical Vear Ended 
April 2% 

2011 
AprL 24. 

2011 
April 25. 

2010 
•'V -.-̂ La' .<' -., I ' i , 
Revenues: y.-.;;,., -'•r^J^'..„is.L 

Casino 

Food, beverage, pari-muluel and odier 

S 1,006:523 $ 
;. 32:438!^:^_..-32:i44:. •' ' 
128,560' 

i.9.63,'7. 

_.Grossrevi:aiues - . 
^^£l ; ' lS^promoliona! l i^^ 

1.I77;I58 l , i22,522^ \,(m,9SX. 
'^•.,fr :-• -'(•199".787).---?4I85.861)' <l"l7l'-:747) 

INetreveriues 
"'"-• 4 T- ' .TW 1 , -A - f — . u - . w ' ur, JW^,' .(' -.'A-, 

Operaungexpenses;,„^-. - 'v -•.••.V-̂ .-.-̂ te-.T. 
^ 5 ^ ^ ^ 

977:371 936,661 927.235 
- ' . • \ _ 

. Casino 

jammg taxes. 
Rooms 

—rr-T' 
- • • ' — • .1 ^ i f c — 

.153:743 142,642 

;^'_i^^;"-'i4'^ C J Footl,'beverage, pari^in'utuel.'and olKcĴ ;. 
Marriie and facilities . .̂  ._ ̂  . 

iikMarkelriig aiid a'dministrriuvc ̂ .," 5 ' "^ .'Tfwsi^":-' ''•.•ic.^.-'^^'i':'^:^. 
Corporale and development 

r-rp-'-AT. •-^••^—^r-!~-— - — i ->v-—-".-.ZT":'*"'''^ •.r--.*...'̂ ,—.-^^iv--.TTF-
L--.Va!uaUon charges and expense recovenes-- , ,; .i"'-:..,„--'-̂  •'='.̂ ..' , 

Preopening expense ̂  

^25F,7S0 
7,027 

•.^":4i'28i:.' 
_. 57,225 

L-:2.14i470 
40,248 

Er^"^^*r~.''^"•'-^ ;—^ :̂<rr'"r~''—=',- ",jiL."' '- ':' ""'1-3 
Depreciation and amortizalion î„ .' '-̂  r ̂ $! , ,̂ x,'--̂ 'V,' 

Tola! operating expenses 

^'30,5.49 
615 

JS'OSO^ll .1^7,613i"_i. ..95,478J r . . -

137,305 
254^7]^ 

7,960 
,40,088] 
55,559 

.223;77.8J 
46.750 

I?6;762) 

3 
892,988 834,730 854.874 

Operating income- - ;, 
Interest expense 
r-^~r—^-T- ' ^ j . . g . - — • 
Inierest incomc'.' ••-
Derivative income (expense) 

?.-. ^ y^. 'K^'^-^y:^ - ' - ^ ^ ' ' ^ - W ' ^ ^ r . ^ ' ^ ^ I ^ J ^ ^ - r ^•U:^R^>^^-\ 0I;93 lL:._:_72;361^ 
(8_7,?d5) __(91^). .__(75,434) 

"^ • ::i,903_i- l,8i;43 
(i;214) (370) 

.i_31i M 

lnco'mennssVfromcontinuiripbner.itiori1;:hefnrf;'income.lnxcs.-̂ 'i.'fa'.f-J^^>rî ^^^^^ ' . •L̂  ',f2.264),...' ,10.685 {:, 
income tax (provision) benefit (15,119) (6,950) . 

.(I',629) 
6.609 

Irieomcjloss) from continuing operations, .^-'-j i ^ - j ^ ^ •^.y- ..iJl 17.383): 
Income (loss) from disconlinued operations, includirig loss tin sale, nel of income'tax 

benefit of $2,026, $5,328 rind $2,330 for die fiscal years ended 2012,-2011 and 
2010. respectively (112,370) 

•«r^ 
hJ<riTncbriic,(los3)'altrib'utablc toWmtiibn sibckhoIderSL^aS 

.3,7351^ ,UJ5--li980j 

805 (8,253) 

$.jfl29,753)$i_^j'4;540:S.u_^("3,273) 

Earnings (loss) per Common.share atiribuiable lo common slockholdersT-basic: 
ti.Ineome'floss) fro'ra^coritiriuing operations":̂ ''fh-.••.̂ Tfr\\'î ,"̂ ..̂ t̂f';.,̂ î ;̂ '"l •<̂  . T .̂V^ f »..)jS'-"f,?-.;fO.'45)S 

Incoriic (loss) from discontinued operations iricluding gain on sale, nel of income 
taxes" (2.90) 

Net riKoSTUc^'s) au^iS&l^" cb^'on^"ibbkh"'bJdci?^ir^3V;^^ i ' ' i ^? .T7^ . $.. " '^'-'(3.35)$ J' > '0.13: $ ̂  -' (0; 101 

uilO.!l'$L:.::_.o:r5i 

0.02 (0,25) 

Earnings (loss) per common shareatin"buiablc to comnion^ stockholders—diluted _̂  
DIncVioi^nosslTram'c^miimirig oyeratiori's' •fl^^'- '--?^%-^:-^i^\- '-: --'r-F'^^T^'T^^^fO-'. 

IrKome (loss) from di.scontinucd operations iricludriig gain on sale^ nel of incomc 
laxes 

'45)S ji3i;.lo:M:S:v ^ 3 i 51 

(2.90) 0.02 (0.25) ' 

[^•Ncl riicome.(los'slaltribuialJlecoriimbri.stQckholdcfs'f'--.-;, ̂ ,• ' . t .̂d-'i'lif f •̂ '.X-...̂ ...-x.y..r-'.. ,'(3:35)$'"°-'?"'0.'I-3^S'' .'-^^fO.lOl 

^ ^ 6 J 5 9 j l 2 i 2 4 5 ^ 
lJ'i;71jZ_32,362,280'] 

Weightedaverageb^c shares 38.753,098 34,06 
.WcighiMrri '̂'Hg'dilutedTl^rcs'̂  .•~^.^'^%.'-..^^-••^tTr^.^t'.j-^A--.^;^^^^ '''^7^8.753.098/V34:l; 

Sec accompanying notes to consolidated financial siatemenls. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED S I'ATEMEN IS OF S lOCKHOLDERS' EQUITV 

(In thousands, except share amounls) 

.Accum. 
Olho'r 

Shares ot Additional Retained Cum prchciisive Tolal 
CoQiinon Common I'aidnn tlarnings Income 'I'reasorj- Stockholders' 

.Slock Stock Capilal (UcficiQ (l.0is) Slock L'fluiU 
Balance,', ^-:X^' ' -'.;,."•'"-'•'-"':' t " ' } .Z' ~'\'"'''^ •^''!_.\f'^.f'''i^ 
i;^April-26;:" '(?'"• ' .-.' '' -̂  'vy, '̂  -^-> < \ '>'̂ .-^-.:'i'-l...:L'̂ ' l^.-zi* "̂ -,--.. •-; - ' • ,- . » J 
L2OO9j;:l:^1^36.lif.089i.,-,S.:.3.6L$193;827.S^!01,828_:„S^n5;191)S(52,-399).$„128^ 
.Net loss — —^ " ^ (3,273) , , _ , - " - _ —' ^̂ 1-273) 
UnrealiKtigaiiT " ^ ^ ^ ^ ''• •'̂  - - r - " ' . * ••; . T"-*;^*^-^ ^^r''^^ ;^;*"'77^^-. ,"-.---1 
•tonTnteresi/t-"-; ^%;' , " " ' • . ' • ; ' ^ ' % •r.- - . ' ^ / % ^ i ^ - ^ : ^ ^ M l " ^ ' - ^ ' ' " ' ' ' . ^ r <• 
•^raleswap>^; ;;..-• ' .f- -^:-^:;."-^tf.' ' " ' ^ ^ ' - ^ ' ' 4 ^ ^ ^ > i , V"-'"'^ -" ^ '•' ̂  
-Hconlracls.nel' i- _ i '-̂  ' ^'i.-?'« ' *" . ;;,-• • ' y ' " ' - ; -•."'^•^^o- i. ' -- :'" ''̂  "; 
.ofiiieomtriax- ^ ^ A , ' . ' X . 7 . , n - ; ! ; - - . ; ^ ^ i : 5 < ^ ? t l^'-::.. - . ,̂̂ -̂: • 
-:S2.683-.: ' '• > -. . - ^ r ; - . .%^^ . " - ^ ^ . : - . . ^ ^ t ^^^1^:456:.;^ : • - S ^ - -;4.456J 
Deferred hedge 

adjustmcrit 
net of riicome 
tax provision 
of $1,463 .— — , ^ - — 2,449, —. .. 2,449 

ForeiglH--..' . -•>. . -: ' . .- ; _ ' - - •̂  '• • v., - ,*^,5*\>:, •= . . ' i ' ' -
Tjcunenc")-/ •.* -̂'/ V'""-' ''' - 1' ''•' '*''"'' '•{, l̂ .'--i '̂.' -'.̂ ^ -J. ^••'^••^...^•/'-'.'.i-- '; - •"..:•".*-, 
L translalion-^ • -i , , v - • ' .-̂  'y:^'i. -' -., .^' .̂̂ ^ ••.•",-• -i^l .^ ' " , '̂ •- . 4 
f..adjustments^ " _ ^'_:._— --^. —'• '^ --—'- ' ; .;V-r:: ' - "' ^226 "; 1 1 - ^ , ' - f -226, 
Comprehensive 

ferrcd 
nus shares — . — (292) — — • 292 —r 

r7^^%''T-r^^^x;6a^.y-^^^ 

incoine . _ , _ . ^ 3,85,8 
Exercise of'"*' '* ' f " ' . '^^^^"-*,";v 'j,^*' '•'*' '̂ -c '^" "~'̂  "" "'" 
i£st"ock',op'iinri-?:.._^;21^602 '.'..'^^._--,"..204- " " " ' 
l.ssuance of 

deferred 
bonus: 

Odi^r^ 
Issuance of 

restricied 
sttx:k, nel of 

Jorfeitures 6.38.3.?5 6 ' ..(6) . —. --,^ ._— .— 

^ compensation-- ' "; • * - -"r-- • / -*;" -f*- . \ " ""*• '^'-^, 
t 3xiii:hse?-^ %.- , ." • ^ : . J . ' C ^ ' ^ : 7 , 6 2 8 ^ y V - ^ ^ ^ '^ . -^^^^*«i . ^ 4 ^ ^ 7 ; 6 2 8 l 
Balance, 

April 25, 
2010 36,771.730 367 201,464 98,555 (8,060) (52,107) 240,219 

Nctincome,.. ; \ .. " " -^-. V.L^-^ ••' \'4rri '• 4:540 •̂̂ -.,-_••::.-• ,—'-,.^. -k- • •'4b40' 
Defened hedge 

adjustment 
net of income 
tax provision 
ofS3.408 — — — •— . • 5,724. 

Urueaiizcd 

i, ' 

i_si 
Foreign 

currency 
translalion 
adjustments — ~ •— — 133 — 133 

• 'c^i^h^iv-Cv^i^^'^'--••-.^ .•^„r'^r^"^.'7tr;'^v--TvV:^':TT"' 'T.-'.-'-i 
f'income:-"g:'"-^ ••-'.r'̂ r ^y>i'-;;iiife:',.'^.^-^-'': v ' Y ^ } : \ ^ ^ % ^ • k ' r ' - . '̂ ^ ^'-eS^yio'.s'fisj 
Common slock 

oftering 5,300,000 53- 51,174. .' — ' — . —. 51,227 
i-"S^isTbf^t-T'-r-riTT^''^vT'-'''f7^ 
restockootiorisv.'".."-i:500'' r ^ ^ ^ r ^ ^ ' - - { 2 ) i ' ^ ^ ' ^ ' ^ ^ : ' ' - ^ ^ y ^ ^ t r - ^ ^ 2 5 r ^ . \ .23^ 



Is.suancc of 
deferred 
bonus shares - 11,641 

F o r f c i l 5 r c s a n a ; y , / v ; : ' \ ^ - , •.'. - .. :• ' ^ ^ J ^ ' ^ I ^ ' ' % M , , ^ ' ^ - ^ ^•%,^--%^ ̂ ' ' i 

Issuance of 
reslricied 

_ ^ock , ^ _ , ; :^___—_^ ' . :M}6)^ — ..~_^^^, . ^ - ^ j ^ . ••._ — 

LSmpensriti"o"n\'^;:Vf^'-^''-' \ : ? i > ' ' ) i - ^ ^ ^ h M ^ ^ ' ' ^ : .̂ ' ^ % ^ - ^ ' . " " • { ^ ^ ' ^ '--v 'i^. 
B e x p c m e t f : l l : s L . ' J i ~ • '^ '^- '^^7;595.^_j '^^. . ' i^M':: , i :u '' ̂ ^^s:-^lzi:^~> - '?-595 
Balance, 

April 24, ^ • ^ \ l i IJ . i ^ * 

2011 ' 42,063,569 421 254,013 103,095 (2,235) (46,-266). .-309,028 
•^J£l'l<Viy^^^^• ^^f^ : ' - ' :^ -^ ' \ C ^.^^!(129^^3)!^f^, . - r^i^~4^, ;^JLi( 129;753) 
Deferred hedge 

adjustment 
net of incoriic 
lax provision 
of$789 

.b.S4iv_65„ 

Comprehensive 
loss , - . (128,373) 

•E:^i^is'e'of^%'^r7t^^^^-'''^''~r^'--V , W.-'.'-.:'f".̂ .- •-•••»^^-?:'^T^^:-:^''^rr^T""^ 
Lili^knplitJns-,-:'^ ^2.b00,-';i.. J-^, : ^^ -A2?>\^ \^r^A ̂ - J r . ^ ' l ^ : - - ?<^^>:.. ••- . . . m 
Issuance of 

restricted 
'slOTk̂  .__ 579 — (9,123) — — _ ' ^ ' ^ 3 

RSiuciioi?of - ; •:'^~^r~~- " ^ ^ ^ ' T ^ r ^ . r - j - j . ! ^ . "'"^J^T^r^T'^'^v: r •,••-;••: 

,. frt>m vested :-•• • ; : - . :, , .>•- ^ ^ • • V w ; ; ^ ^ . i ' : ^ - l - ^ ^ ^ ^ f . ' v ^ ; " - ; , . . ; ^ ; ^ ^ 
'-•and'e-xe'fcLsVd!̂ - •"".,'"• ^ ' .*--' ' >:' "..-.•̂ '̂  "̂ .r >'r-"^- *• ^ ; . r ' , . / - J \ Vi-̂ ji -;- *: • 

/.stockbased."T; ' - V / . V . ',<••, - " •„.,;:„:,.. 7 . .V--. .• •.^'•••^•,,^.,.W vx ̂  v.-."... -..•.. 
, /compcnsatiori i^l_Liv.;- '^- :^.^ . ( J i ^ l S j ^ , ^ . - ^ r . - 1 ^, . -^ . .^J^.X^is . . : '^ •-'(4.7_58) 
Siock 

compensation 
expense — — 7,710 — — — 7,710 

Balance, it.-•-,.^^ v -'s-'"- - ' •̂  ~ , ' ' / ^ 'a^v^ •-<; •"* " • ' : ' " " " ' ' % ' " ' • - H . . - ' " * - S ~"-. 
K'Aprif29,:-' -^.^--^ ' ' -• • ̂ ^ / v ^ ' - - ••;.-'^;"?v:.t';.^ M-^'^-'n'^^- ;,.̂ Vv".:% •̂ •̂• 
L2012£l.^' j -.42,0'ij6;r48-- S 42t;S2'47;855tS-',(26:658);JS r-- ::f855%(37.i43)j$;.i83.620 

See accompanying notes to consolidaled fmancial staiemenis. 
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ISLE O F CAPRI CASINOS. INC. 

CON.SOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH F L O W S 

(In thousands) 

Mu-xt Vear F.ndi-d 
April 29, April 24, April 25, 

2012 2011 2010 
.Operating activities:;.''^i., • -'....:-p^"j£'^' .^ '•''4--^:'^-i,.^.:r,i^ ̂ %.. ' - ' . a ' » . 4 " - ^ ^̂  ^.^'.''^.sa i^_!-L_iL_l-iliJ 
NgLincome (loss) • _ . S(!29,753)$ 4,540$ (3,273) 
AdiuslraentsJO reconcile tiel income,(loss).lo,net cash provided by.operatmg activities: 

Depn^ialion and amortizalion ^.j . :_ . ^ •. '.,^ . . 83,526 89,040 109,504 
|^;Amo"ruzaiiori''^kmi'ftTile^ffbftlefciTcdfuiyncriiiic^^^ '.^. .&• - -. :i„.:i, ,,,.'•6.072^ •..• '̂'6;266.- """^^^Sl^j 

Amortization of debt discount . - • 211 , 23 — 
r-r-p—T-r^~-^i--r-vr--r--!fr-?^^ .'̂ V 'J- n'?'-, ',-.-^.v^,y"t"^-")iStawr; ^ .̂ .'w.̂  V.'j "«i\.^ '^'. ' "r. ^V',', r;i. -. •-;. "'. -i. . '-'•> 7^7'^!^ 
[..^Valuauoncharges and expense recoveriesv -, . • .̂^ . .fv "â  .-. ?. Vn-,- --. • . •. , 143.-1 li-"- ., .'-̂  ^^^ -'[6.762) 

Deferred riicome taxes . ' -'. . " , ' . If .176 2;508 (455) 
i.^Stocl^cbmnei^salibn^exF^n^:^'^-^r--'-^.-iK.';^'^T-y^^ ^ W f'-:' - 1 ^ 7 r 7 1 0 - \ Jo95 .^ i . . .,7{633l 

Deferred compensatiqn expense . . . "•' ' . . . ^— . ,~~ , --• }^^. 
f," (fifiiri'l Itissori'tlerivalive.iri'slriTmcrilSv:.;;'^, I ,,^o';^;-.^t~^^.'\,\-^v., ,M;; ji",!-.' .- •-- , " "- "";i(439),, !l,2H -I ^.3'70j 

,̂Loss (gaui)on disposal of asseis . . . 95- (296) .,^22 
Clianges rilooeratuieassels"a"rid-1iabdities:••>'' ̂ ,̂! . r - ^ ^ ? , '^ ,'''^-'T-^\'i' .;: .","" fr , - . . .& ' '.^,, ' .., ' .-,„a-J 

(purchases) salcs_of iradint; securities- - • ...̂  ,̂̂^ -'^ •. - „ _(2;769) ^̂  7̂53 (>i37?) 
pA^tJ^iriiilk^r^ceivabir /'''^-'' ^ : . ^• ^•^^' - J ' ^ ' ^ - ^ 1 ^ : : ?f V >.:- ^'- .̂ . -"̂ T"̂ "̂ 2 i ) i 2 ' ^ . Vf460>',' :'3:274j 

Income laxes receivable . .. . l','?05 ^ '̂ •2-̂ 3 ' ^ . (365) 
reinsurance receivable'̂ .- / '" ^'"''•^.'•^r ,.-.,-'p: ^••^. , ,;•„ i-n'-*-l-i'';?r" lî , ..,>;• .- •, "'-' , ''^ C7,263) ,'- ,'(234)'', -2.2041' 

Prepaid expenses and other assels . .,... . _,_ 8,468 ,̂ .•̂ 26 4,546_ 

ij_A-ccorinli;nayable.and accnictniabi lilies-: • / - '^^^' i , i i , ' : / j ' ^ '^:'''''/., ^^'v^.'' .„ . iVlTTIi^gOJ)^ •|,066_- -(8,575) 

Net cash provided by operating acliviiies 118,059 123,684 106,382 

Invcstint; aciivriies:';,-.--, =* !• '^\'d'. >. i<-- ^^ --•""''̂ ^^7 '̂i'''.-i^, "j?''.''!. •*'- V •'•'^ " •T-' '^fCi"J-^^ '• --t',^ 
Purchase of propertv arid_cquipmenl ^(Z^. ' ' ' ' ) 158,6OT) (27^690) 
Proceeds fipgrdivcstimi^"'-" ^ i ^ T •-'^:':':^X^^f'^'-^^k^'m^P>[< .'̂  '̂•̂ '•̂ - •^•'•..r^: 14;784;nn;^-;.-^: .,;;,'6531 
Payments lowards gaming license . . . , ^ ^ ,., " , , (4,000) 
Net tiash" paid foracquisitinnsT.i.-':̂ ;,.;:i'r.'.''--4-'̂ >'7--,̂ ;.!::̂ .,';̂ ,î -ii;̂ ,-̂ :y-.."y -̂''̂ ^^^ ,̂-. S' .• -•, y ....'. :' - ^ < (76.167>-'" ^ i.'. j-^f 
Restricted cash and invesiments . , , 344 (9,870) 47 
N« cash• used in invcsiing a"ctivTii^&~ ':-Li' '.^.L, •:•-W*'J'-;'j^' -.y -'.'.•̂ 'f.X ' ^ "•'--': ' -„J^_ j(6Q,0.49)7Mj4,637)\:_(30,9.90) 
Finaneirigaclivities: _̂  _ . -.„„.,.,,. „ , .„ 

- PnnciMir^avriiriflts'ori'long-lcri^debi;/^^ •:::";: -'^-rT?;'.^ '>: ' ;j- at - t ,'•':: - ^ . .-r^.'l"5 J 74^ f 317,609) i:'l(8,73.0) 
Netbqnowinps (repa'ymems) on line.ofcredi,l_^_ ,̂_" ",_,̂^ .. ^ (33.000)^ i\ '^99^ (91,558) 
P r i ^^ ' s frVAToiTg-^ei^^^^bYb^rowriies•4^:-?'^"'.^-••^" "> ••^"'1^'. J -̂ 47'!I ••^•'•.:'•,;.' - T T ^ " " ^ : : ^ . •••-297.-792./"".r, : ^ j 
PaymentQ_fdcfefred/uiancingt^osls_ _ . ,̂  .v,,.,..".,j.,...," ^ r ' /^ l_ '^5 '? .?3>-.^ J^3'?i*^ 

Proceeds.froni^is's'u.iiice'ofcbriimori stock aiid exercise of .stock oplio'ris.^ ,f|,?-. --- '..r., .A." ,' -•\. .,.13r-;;.,'t51,250^- .. ,.-.-204} 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (38,727) 28,110 (103.958) 

Eft'eci of foreign currency e-xc:h"arige'"raies on'casli^' "^^'nt-.'^lk,^'^- ^.<lr!' '•ni'v-^''- ,̂ ,n'-->,,'"' ""' - ' '•^rr^.-.i''~. . G^)' ' '":2:L (19) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . . _ _ . ^ . ^ _ _ ^ 19,283 _ 7,109 (28,585) 
Cash 'arid t^sh'e'quiv^enls at begTimin^of-Vear '̂,-v'>,:̂ .i ,?'','̂ '; '^; .,;/l::}': ' 1 ' ^ ' ' ^ \ -""^. ''^' , • ,;; ,; -'75'. 178 V''*'68,069_• ,• 96^654'j 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year S 94,461 S 75,178 S 68,069 

See accompanying notes to consolidated fmancial statements. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS. INC. 

NO'TESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA lEMENTS 

(amounls in thousands, e\cept share and persharc amounts) 

1. Organization 

Orgdnizaiion—lsle ofCapri Chinos, Inc., a Delaware corporation, was incorporaled in February 1990- Kxcept where olherwise noted, die words "wc," 
"us," ''our''.and similar terms, as well as "Company," refer lo Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. and all of its subsidiaries. We are a" leading developer, owner and 
operaior of branded gaming facilities and related lixigriig and entertainment facilities in markets throughout the Unried States. Our wholly owned subsidiaries 
own;arid operate forirteeri casino gaming facilities in die Unried Slates located rii Black Hawk, Colorado; Lake Charles, Louisiana; Lula", Bilo.xi, Natchez and 
Vicksburg, Mississippi; Kansas City, Boonville and Carudierevillc, Missouri; Bettendorf, Davenport, .Marquette and Walerioo, Iowa;,and Pompano.Beach, 
Florida We are currcnlly constructing a new gaming facility Ln Cape Girardeau, Missouri, which we expect to open by November 1, 2012, subjecl to 
regulatory approval. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounling Policies 

. Basis of Presentation—liic consolidated financial statements include the" accounls ofthe Company and its subsidiaries. All sigiuficant intercompany 
balances and transactions have been eliminated. We view each property.as an operating segment and all operating segments have been aggregaltnl into,one 
reporting segment 

Discontinued operations includes our: Biloxi, Mississippi property; our foniier ciisiribs; in Dudley and Wolverhampton, England sold iri Noveriiber 2009; 
and in Freeport; Grand Bahamas exiled in November 2009. Assets and liabiliiies related to qur Biloxi operations expecicd to be sold during fiscal year 2013 
are classified as assets held for sale and liabilities relaled lo assets held for sale in ourconsolidated balance sheet asof April 29, 2012. 

Fiscal Year-End—Our fiscal year ends on the lasl Sunday in April. Periodically, this system necessitates a 53-week year. Fiscal year 2012 is a 53-week 
year, which commenced on April 25, 2011, with the fourth quarter having 14 weeks. Fiscal years 2011 and 2010 are 52TWeek years, which commenced on 
April 26, 2010 and Apri! 27, 2009, respectively. Fiscal 2013 wdl be a 52-week year: 

Reclassifications—Certain reclassifications of prior year presenlalioiis have been made io conforni to the fiscal 2012 presentation. 

Use of Eslimales—The preparation of financial slatemenls rii conformity wiih accounting principles generally accepied in the United Stales requires 
raanagcmenl lo make esfimales and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial slalernenls and accompanying noics. Acmal results coultl 
differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Wc consider all highly liquid inveslmenls purchased with an original manirity of three months or less as^cash equivalents. 
Cash also riicludes the minimum operaiing cash balances requmid by stale regulatory bodies, which totaled $24,778 and $24,230 at April 29, 2012 and 

.April 24, 2011, respectively. 

Markelalde Securities—Mari;etable securities consist primarily of tradriig securities held by our captive insurance subsidiary- The irading securities arc 
primarily debt and equity securities thai are purchased with the intention lo resell, rii the near teim. .The.tradriig "securities are canied at fair value 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conlinued) 

(amounts in thousands, except share and persharc amounts) 

2. Summary nf Significant Accounling Folieles (Continued) 

with changes in fair value recognized in current period income in the accompanying slalements ofoperalions. 

inventories—Inventories are stated at the lower of weighted average cost or markel value. 

Properly and Equipmenl—Property arid cqulpirieril are staled at cost or if purchiised througli a business acquisition, the value determined under purchase 
accountirig. Wct:apilalize the cost of purchased property and cquipmcni and eapltalizelhecost of improvements to property and equipnienl that increases the 
value or extends the useful hves ofthe assets. Costs of normal repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as, incuned. 

Depreciation is computed using the straighl-line method over the following estimated useful lives oflhe assets: 

. . Years 
, SIpnrtachin«, jofiwire£n^^ 
Fumimre, fixtures and equipmenl 5 -,10' 
i:c.-iselioid~irnpfovemems^ ,̂  ^^"l^J^^^Ltw^rTiflift^^ 
t. - •> • >•.'.:< . - " ' . • , » - ' . • '--i •. .̂ '̂  'p,-.<':;,eslimaled useful life. ..,,̂  
Buildings and improvements 7 .: 39:5 

Certain property cunenily leased in Benendorf, Iowa is" accounted for in'accordarice with Accounting Standards'Codification ("ASC") Topic 840, Leases 
("ASC 846"). 

We periodically cvaluale the carrying value of long-lived assets lobe held'and used in'accordancewidi ASC'l'opie 360, Property, Plant and f-quipmenl 
("ASC 360") which requires impairment losses to be recorded on long-lived assets used in operations.when indicators of impairment are presenl and the 
undiscounled cash flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less than Ihe assets' carryuig amounls. In thai event, a loss is recognized based on the 

"amount by which die carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair market value of the'long-lived assels. 

Co;7/to/(zef//n/(.-rcs/^Thc iniercst cosi associated with major development and construction projecis is caprializedand iricludcd in Ihc cost ofthe project. 
When nodebt is incurred specifically for a projeci; iniercst is capilalized on amounls expended on the project usirig the weighted-average cost ofour 
borrowings. Capitalization bf riilcrest ceases when the projeci is substantially compleie or developmeni activity is suspended. Capitalized inierest was $1,105, 
SI25,andS75forfiscaIyears20I2,201l and 2010. respectively. 

Restricted Cash and Investments—We classify cash and investments which are either sfaiulorily or contractually restricted as lo iis wiihtfrawal or usage 
as restricted cash short-lerrri, included in prepaid expenses and other assets," or restricted cash and invesiments long-terra based on the duradiin ofthe 
underlyriig reslriciion. Restricted cash primarily includcs.amounis related to state lax)bonds and other gaming bonds, arid amounts held in escrow relaled to 
Ica-iies. Restricied riivestmenls relate to trading securities pledged as insurance reser\'es by our captive riisurance company. 

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assels—Goodwill represents the excess of cosl ovei^the net identifiable tangible and intangible assets of acquired 
businesses and is .slated ai cost, nei of 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NO TES t o CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN IS (Continued) 

(amounls in Ihousands. except share and per share umoun(s) 

2. Summary- of Significant Accounting Policies (Continuetl) 

impairments, if any: Olher inlangible assels include values attributable lo acquired gaming licenses, customer ILsts, and trademarks. ASC Topic 350, 
Inlangibles^rGoodwill and Other ("ASC 350") requires these assets be reviewed for impairment at least annually or on an interim basis if indicators of 
impairment exist We perform our annual impairment test during our fourth quarter. If necessary, gootlwill for relevant reporting units is tested for impairmenl 
using; 1) a discounled cash flow analysis based on forecasted fiiturcrcsulls discounled at the weighted average cost of capilal and, 2);by using a markel 
approach bas"ed upon valuation multiples for similar companies. For intangible assels:with riidefiiiite lives riot subjecl to amonizalion, we review, at least 
annually, die conlriiued use of an indefinite useful life. If these intangible assets arc determined to have a finite usefiil life, they are amortized o-v-er their 
estimated remaining useful lives. 

Deferred Financing Costs—The cosis of issuing long-lemi debt arc capilalized and amortized using die effeciive inieresi method over the term ofthe 
related debl. 

Self-Insurance—Wc arc sclf-frinded up lo a maximum amount per claim for employee-related health carc benefits, workers' compensation and genera! 
liabilides. Claims in excess of ihis maximum are fully, insured through stop-loss insurance policies. We accrue for workers' compensation and general 
liabilities on a discounted basis based on claims,filed and tstiniales'of clairiis-incuiied bul riot rcjxirted. 'The estimates have been discounted al 1.1% and 2.0% 
at Apri! 29, 2012 ant) April 24,2011. respecliveiy, or a discoum of S949 and S 1,758, respectively. We utilize independerit consullanls to assist managemeni in 
its dclermriialion of estimated insurance liabilities. Asof April 29, 2012 and April 24, 2011, wchave accrued $33,514 and $33,046, respeclivcly, for 
employee-related healUi care, workers' c-omperisalion and general liabiiily claims. Accruals for employee health careand workers compensation arc included 
in accmed liabilities—payroll and accruals fbr general liabilities are included in accrued liabilities—oiher, in the accompanying consolitlaied balance sheets. 
While the total cost of clarins incuned depends on fuiurc developments, in management's opriiioii. recorded reserves are adequate to cover fuiure claims 
pay men ts-

Derivaii\e Instruments and Hedging Activities—ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging ("ASC 815") requires we recognize all of our derivative 
instruments as either assets or liabilities in the constilitlated balance sheet at fair value .nnd disclose certain qualilalive and quanlilative information. We utilize 
derivaiive financial iristrumenlstb manage inierest fate risk associated wilh apportion ofour variable rate borrowings. Derivative firiancial inslfuriients an; 
intended to reduce our exposure lo interest rate volatility. We account for changes in the fair value of a derivaiive uisirumeni depending on the intended use of 
the derivative and if the derivative has been designated as effective or, ineffective, which is eslabiished at the inception of a derivaiive. ASC 815 retpiires that 
a company formally document" at iht; uiceplionofahedge, the hedging relationship and the entity's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking 
the hedge, including identification oflhe hedging instrument, the h"«Jged item or transaction, the nalure ofthe risk beiiig hedged, the method used to assess 
effcctivcriess and the method that will be used to measure hedge riicffcctivencss of derivative instruments that receive hedge accounling treatment For 
derivative insminients designated as cash flow hedges, changes in,fair value, lo Ilic extcni the hedge is effeciive, are recognized in other comprehensive 
income until the hedged item is recognized in earnings, and ineffective hedges are recognized as other income or lt>ss below operating income. Hedge 
eftectiveness is assessed quarterly. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FIN.VNCIALSTATEMENTS (Conlinued) 

(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

2. Summary of Sit^nificanl Accounling- Policies (Confinued) 

Revenue Recognition—In accordance with gaming industry practice, we recognize casino revenues as the net win from gaming acfivifies. Casino 
revenues arc nel of accruals for anticipated payouts of progressive slot jackpots and certain table gaines whcrerii incremental jackpot amounts owed are 
accrued for games in which ceriain wagers add io ihc.jackpot total. Revenues from rooms, food, beverage, eniertainmeril and die gift shop arc recognized al 
the time the relaled service or sale is performed or realized. 

Promotional Allowances—The retail value of rooms, food and beverage ancl other ser\-ices furnished lo guesis without charge or at a discount is included 
in gross re\'enues and then deducted as promotional allowances to anive at net revenues included in Uie accompanyriig consolidaled statements ofoperalions. 
We'also record the redemption of cqupons'and pouits for cash as proriioiiona! allowances. The estimated cost bf providing such complimentary services from 
continuing operalions are included in casino expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operatiqris as follows: 

HM^al Vear Knded 
April 29. April 2J, -April 25, 

2012.'' 2011 2010 
RH<̂ ms--- • ' •," - ^ ' .. . : ; - . : • ^^l .•!; 8!603 S 8,043iS^_i7,&42j 
Food_anjl bev:eraEe • ' 6(],252 . - 52.905 " . 50,875 

Total cosl of complimentary ser\'ices 

Players Club Awards^Wc provide patrons wilh rewards basedon the amounts wagered on casriio games. A liability has been eslabiished basedon die 
estimated value oflhese oulstanding rewards, cbrisidcring'lhc'agc of:thc.poinls_and prior'rederiipliori'history. 

Advertising—Advertising costs are expensed the first lime tlie related advertisement appears. Total advertising costs from continuing operations were 
$33,207,$32,033,andS28,444 in fiscalycars2012, 201.1 antl 20IO,respectively. 

Operating Lea.sL's—We recognb^ rent expense for each lease on theslraiglit fine basis, aggregating all fiilure minimum rent payments including any 
predeiermined fixed escalations ofthe minimum rentals. Our liabilities include" the aggregate difference between renl expense recorded on the siraight-hne 
basis and amounts paid under.die leases. 

Development Costs—We pursue development opportunities tor new gaming facilities in an ongoing effort to expand our business. In accordance with 
ASC Topic 720, Other Expenses (".^SC 720), costs related lo projects in the developmeni siagc arc'rccordctl as a development expense, except for those costs 
capitalized in accordance wrih the guidance tif ASC 720.''̂ Capitalized developmeni costs are expensed,when .th"edevclopm"ent is deemed less than probable. 
Toral development costs expensed from conlinuing operations were recoi ded in the consolidaled statements of operalions in corporate and developmeni 
expenses. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA1 EMENTS (Conlinued) 

(amounts in Ihousands, cxcepi share and per share aniuunh) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Pre-Opening Co.sts—Wc expense pre-opening costs as'incurred, Pre-openitig costs include payroll, outside services, advertising, insurance, utilities, 
travel and'yarious other expenses related to new operations prior to opening. 

Income Taxes—We account for income taxes in accordance ASC Topic 740, Incorne Taxes ("ASC 740"̂ ). ASC 740 requires the recognifion of deferred 
iritxiiiie tiix liabilities, defened income tax assels, net of valuation alluwarice's related to'net operaiing loss cany forwards and certain temporary dilTercnces. 
Recognizable fumrc tax benefits are subjea to avaluation reserve, unless such tax bcnefils are delermined to be more likely than not realizable. We tecbgnizc 
accrued inierest and penalties relaled lo unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense: 

Earnings (Lo.s.s) Per Common Share—\n accordance wilh the guitiance of ASC 260, Earnings Per Share ("ASC 260"), basic earnings (loss) per share 
("EPS") is computed by dividing net incomc (loss) applicable lo common stix:k by the wcigjiled average common shares oulstanding during the period. 
Dduied EPS reflects the addilional dilution for all poteiitialIy,dilulive .securities,such as stock oplions. Any poienlially dilutive securities with an exercise 
price in excess ofthe average niarkct'piice of iiurcornmon stock during the periods prcscriicd arc not considered when calculating the dilutive effect of stock 
options for diluted earnings per share calculations as they would be and-dilulive. 

Stock Compensation—Our slock based coriipensation is"accouriled for rii accordance wilh ASC Topic 718, Compensation—Stock Compensation ("ASC 
718"), Stock compensation cosi is measured at the grant tiate, based on the estimated fair, value ofthe award and is recogruzed as expense on a slraighHine 
basis over the requisile service period for e-ach separately. ve:sfing portion ofthe iiward as if ihtr award.was, iri-ysiibstance, multiple awards. 

Atlonancefor Doubtful Accounts—We reserve for receivables thai may not be collectetL Methodologies for eslimaiing die allowance for doubtful 
accounts range from specific resei\'es lo various percentages applied lo aged receivables. Historical collection rales are considered, as arc customer 
relationships,- in determining specitlc reserves. 

Fair Value Mca.suremenis—We follow die guidance of ASC Topic 820, Fair'Value.Mcasurcmcnts and Disclosures ("ASC 820") forour financial assets 
and liabilities uicluding markelable seeurilies, restricied cash and inveslnierils and derivative iiisirumenls. ASC 820 provides a framework for measuring die 
fair value of firiancial asseis and Imbiliues. A desi:ription ofthe valuation methodologies used to measure fair value, key inputs, and sigitificani assumpfions 
follows: 

Markelable securities— The estimated fair values of our marketable" .securriies are based upon quoted prices available in active markcis and 
represent the amounls we would expect to receive if .we sold these markelable securilies. 

Rkstricled cash and inveslmenls— The estimated fair values ofour restricied cash and investments arc based upon quoted prit^s available in active 
markets and represent the amounts we would expect to receive if we,sold these restricted cash and invesiments. 

56 



Table of Contenis 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC: * 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED F L \ A N C L \ L ' S T A T E M E N T S (Continued) 

(amounts in Ihousands, except share and per share'amounts), 

2.;Sunimary of Significani Atrcounling Politics (Coritinued) 

'Derivative instruments—The esiimaled falr.value of our. derivative instruments is based on market prices obtained from dealer quotes, which are 
based oh riileresi yield c'urves. Srich quoies represent the estimated amounls WB,wotjId receive or pay tbilerralnale the coritracls-

• Recenlly Issued Accounting Siartdards—In Seplcmbct 2011, die Financial'Accounting Slandards Board, (''FASB") issued Update No'- 20! 1-08/"Testing 
Goodwill for.impairmenl," which amends ASC'350 "Intangibles—(joodwill and'Olher-" This ripdate periiiits eritities Io make a qrialilalive as"ses"smerit of 
.whether a reporting unit's fau- value is, more likely dian n6i,'less ihari'its'carrj'in'g 'amburit. If ari eiitiiy co'ncludesjt ij more likely, than noi thai Ihe fair value of 
areportingunri fs greater diari its carrying amounl, the enlily is not required to pcrfonu thelwo-step irapari'ment tesl'forthat reportjnguniI.,The updale is 
effective for.annual and interirn goodwill impairmenl lesis, performed "for fiscal years begimiing after, December.! 5, 2011;,wilh early adopiion "permitted. 
puririg fi.scal-2012, we adopied this standard.,which'did not materially impaci our. consolitlated, financial "staternenls. 

.InJline 2011, the FASB issued Update No.. 201 !-05i'"C6mprehensjve Income (Topic 220); Presentation of Comprehensive Income," which allows for 
•the presentation tif total'comprchcnsive Income, the componentsof net iricomci and. thc'comporienls of other coriiprehensiveiricbnieejiher in a single-
continuous statement of comprehensive income'of iri two'"separate but consecutive'slaleiticrij^s.;lri addriion, the guidance eliminates die option of presenting the 
components of other corii"preherisiye income as part of the sta-lernent of changes-in stockholders'; equity.'This guidance is cfrcctive forfiscal years and inleririi 
peî ibds wiihin diosc fiscal years beginrung after I^ecember 15, 2011."'While die adoption wit! Impact whefi:,wedisclose the coiripbrients of other 
coiTipiehensivc income in our consolidaled t'inancial slaleriicnls/wc do nol cxp'(;et the adoption to'have a''rii"atci"ial'iriipat;i on those consolitlated financial 
stalenienls. 

3:'Discontitiue{] Operations 

: Disconlinued operations riicludes our: casinqin Biloxi, Mis'sissippi, which is currenlly ciassifiixl_ as held for sale; and our former casinos: Dudley and 
Wolverharii'plori, England ("Rlue Chip") sold in November 2009 and Prccport,.Grand'Bahamas exited in'Kovernber.2fl09. 

The results ofour disconlinued operations are summarized as follows: 

Discontinued Operaloas 
Fiscal \'ear Ended 

"ApriTz?. 
2010' 

l^$tM.67.'45_4i|SU68-334;»;$|-^S0,008.^ 
., . . /^ _ ^ (112;564) — . ^ „ _ ^ . , 

Prelax nQSsVg"aiiî rii saleof di.s''cbmiriucd'OTeraiior^3:,;1i:^ '̂V'V.W'̂ 'V,'' "'-,'"-7r̂ j-'̂ -''ii''> l̂61i7) 
Prelax (ioiis) incorne from discontinued operations (l 14,396) (4,523) (10,583) 
Income lax benefit from discontinnt-d bperati(j'n?'t.^.lS^.:;^<>^y^ .^^.J'.-jirl.Qlb J » , 5B28 • ^^:J2::>20n 
Income (loss) froriidisi:ontinued operalions. ,(II2;370) 805 (8^253) 

• During fiscal 2012,'we entered into a definitive "purchase agreeridenl lb.sell,our.Biloxi casino operations for$45,000 subject to certain working caprial 
adjustiiienls and;regulalqry apprbv-als. As a result, we recorded a noncash pretax valuation charge ofSl 12)564 to reduce the carry-ing value of 
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3.-Disconfinued Operations (Corilirined) 

Biloxi's net assels held for sale to the expecied net realizable value'upon coriipielî ori ofthe sale'traris'aclion.^The Unnsaciion is expecied lo close before the end 
"bf calendar 2012,and we do not exp'ccttb have any cbntiimin'ginyolvcriicni'following completion of the sale. The income lax benefil of $2,026 recorded in 
disc"oniin"ued operalions for tlscal 2012 is net of a.valuation allowance of $41,029: Included In̂  net revenues from'discdntinued bpefalions iri ihe.lable above 
for fiscal 2012 is an riisurance recovery of $995 resullriig from settlement of lostprofiis arid business" uiterni'pliori at ourBiloxi property relaled to the oil spdl 
iri ihe Gulfbf Mexico durin'g fiscal 2011. _ -

The assets held for sale and liabilities related to assels held for sale are as follows: 

Accqunts receivablenet 
li/Prepaid;cxpciises;aiid o d i e r a s s e i s ^ ^ S ^ S l 

Tolal curreni assets 
Prop e rtj^and^Kj u i piiie h I,' lie i 

Total assets 

1,703. 

)lh'er:ac'cnie"d^ 1 iabil ities ̂ ^ :£^ ;g l 

Total cunerilliabihlies 4,362 

N e f ^ i S j ^ : : z s i s s z i i i S i ^ i : ^ [ i ^ ^ E - ^ • f • ^ ^ . • " - r :^3^2,3^_Lt 

, Durriig fiscal 2011, we recognized an affeiTtax gain of $2,658inc!uding certa rii. tax,bcnefils upon completion bf the Blue Chip administration process^ 
We also recognized a tax benefit of $794,in disconfinued operalions fepreseritingthe'resoluliqn of previously unrecognized tax posriions relaled lo Blue Chip 
following the completion of certain federal tax reviews. 

During fiscal 2010, we compleledthc sale of our Blue Chip casino properties under a plan bf admiriistraliqri antl have no continuing involvement in their 
operation, Tfie sale ofour Blue Chip asseis resulted in a pretax"9h"afgeqf S617 recorded in ftscal-201C). 

Interesi incoine of $5, S13,_and S25Tor fiscal years 2012, 2011, and 2010,respectivcly,' has been allocated lb discorilinued operations^ No riileiesi 
expense was allocated to our discontinued operalions as no iHirdvparty debt is to be rissuriied by the purchaser. 
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4. Flooding 

Flooding along Ihe Mississippi River caused five ofour properties to close for portions of fiscal 2012. A summEuy ofthe closure;,daies and subsequent 
rtxjperiing is as"̂ foUows:' 

Number Dajs 
. _^__ Closing IJaie Rcopeningtfate . ... Closed 

Da?ehnorl.4Qwri' '' W ^ ^ : i l ^ l<^ n^oril;r5.̂ 201'l̂ .̂ i ^V/M^':.L:20I'l' :#̂ r̂VC-"-̂ ?̂;&ŷ  ; il5(An 
C3rotheireville,'"Missourii MayjT, 2011'- May'13,- 201U . .._.„ " .12 
!':ril3̂ ^Mî 5iribî . --e*^"\-^?lfy.. '-\'-̂ Mav3'"^^QnFI;-̂ î 'eunf3^oTî  •^:"..<^^.V'^-t%C3pn 

^ " " " \ \.f.\ _ _ " . :Septeni^r2,^'20l'l - , '",","', .-,. -?'(BJ 
^NalcK'p7's"v!is"sissint-.ir-.̂  •̂ . ]d>S^ft^^^Mawkll'.j 'QWM^TT'im^^ 'H -t-'S '̂̂ ^y'̂  '4T-~^'^ 
Vicksburg,.Mississippi" ' MayTlv201i; Ma"y,27/201I, " ' .16-

(A) Six tiays" of closure inlh'e first quarter tif fiscal.2012 and nine'tlays of closure in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011. 

(B) The second casino barge reopened on September 2, 201 Lafler flood damage "was rcriiediated. 
Duringfiscal 2012 ,wc sealed all of our. insurance eialmswilh our..ih.surance'cari;ier")indrD2o"gnized $9^637, of rcvenue, riicluded in ins'ui-ance recoveries rii 

the consolidated statement ofoperalions, as reimbursement under our busincs"sjinlciruplibn;i^ Al'April 29,-2012; we have an insurance 
receirabic of $7,497. 

5. A'cquisilidn 

Acquisitionof Rainbow Casino—On'Jiine S: 2010,we compleied die acquisilion of Rainbow.Casirio-Vicksburg Partnership, L:P: ("Rainbow") localed in 
Vicksburg, .Mississippi. AVe acquired 100% of the partnership interests arid havc'inclutied 'die fe'sults of Rainbow, in ourconsolidated financial statements 
sub'sequenl Iq June 8.'26lb.'-Thealiocaiion"of th'e prirchase"pnce fof these,'paVljiership Inleresls was determined based updri estimates of fuiure cash fiows and 
eyiiluations ofthe net assets acquired. The'lrdnsactioTi was accounted for using the acquis ition method rii accordance -A'ith theaccbiiniing guidance iindcr 
Accounting SlandafdsCodificatiqii Topic,8051 Biisiness Comriinoft(?/7,v.. As a result,,th'enefaS'^els'of Rairibow were recorded al their estimated fair value wilh 
the excess .bf the purchase price overlhe fair, value ofthe net assets acquired allbcatcd.tq goodwilLJhe acquisition was fiinded by borrowings from'qur senior 
secured credii t'acdity. 
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5. Acquisition (Continued) 

The following table sets fonh the deiermination of ihe consjderaiionpaid fqr'Rairibow,and the purchase price allocation-based upon management's 
valuation oflhe net assets acquired. 

Jurie S. 
2010 

Gross,cash purchase-pricc^Ui-J-iSsSli^iwii^.^S';^ 
Deduct: ; __^ -_ -„___w__„ ;„ .™._-_ i_™_ _. 

fViC^h^^drii^dr^^^.: ^-vrv^-^ •\^^^^^^^mW^Mi^fmfn.j>.r?r^ ŝ .[.m -̂̂ mTis-jfyt 
.Cash refunded by .Sellcr.underpurchase.price adjustriiehts, , , , ' (1,293) 

^Purchas:e,pnce-f^^, ' ^ t -V -̂̂ Lfe -̂ "J.f' '-̂  H?"':^i J M ^ Kt."'.! .S ' \76 : i67J mti 
ii^'^kJ^ ^ 

f ^ ' "<^V$^ l£^298^ 
r 3 8,3 8 7 

P urch as ê  P^ee" allocaliori:' ,̂ _^_ 

Property.and equinmenl . _ _ _ ____ .. , 

Custbmer.lisi ., S: ..,9. .. ... 

''^^^^i^544HIZEI] tl^-Jr3'denam;c'^,^ii,^£fi;.c-
Cusioiherreiationships 6;700. 

.ZToial• inia"'rrgtt)ksP^^'^^l .,0^.„^''^' '~~^:WMmm:SB 
Goodwill .32.167^ 

IZS?392lI 
(1,902) 

P'.^'rOdicrassets! .'^^ t-ji ..-r: ' .fe,_^yi-«.^^>^-^-±^g^'^lffi.rgS5Jt^.-z'l: ' -:.^.-
Cunenl liabilities, 

JZr^op^iSrie5lvZl-."SC:'Zf2!M::^il ,^ 
Purchase'price 

'^:^l£^ ••.;.••-'•/- ^^(428): 
,$ 76,167 

The useful lives of asseis acquired are estimated as" follows: ciislomcr list—Ihree years: tradename; 1.5 years; customerrelalionships eight years: furnimrc 
arid equipment one to, five years: and other property arid eqiiipriicnl fifteen lo twenty-five years. Deductible goodwill forta'x purposes is approximaiely 
$33;006, " 

Nel revenue and riicome (loss) from amlinuing operatitms for tlscal 2()l l.felalcd to Rainbow were $27,935 and ($1,724), respectively. 

The pro forma rtfsullsbf operations, as if die acquisilion of Rainbow had occurred ori the first day bf fiscal 2011 and 2010 Is as follows:. 

Fiscal Vear Knded 

Net revenues 
-,-.-.- .-..^.-^,—,.,. .-.. - . -'TJ™r'j-.'.r'"T;ra'rr-7.'«B^WT-« ,̂..,„, 
• Incomc froiii,COnImuing,operations before mcome.laxcs^^iSiasi. 

- j" !̂?! ̂ "^0'"^ '̂̂ "^ '^°"!^".^"^ Qperaiions -____ 
ujBalic eahuri.gs per,sh3re,-frorii continuirifi op^atitHis^^^^**" 

Dduied'earriings per share irom continuing operations 
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6. Propet"tj' and Equipment^ Net 

Property' andcq'uipracnt net cbnsists of the following: 

Property^flrid equipment:^. 

ApHI :9, April 24. 
.2012 ' 20H 

^ ^ - ^ i ^ - - • • ->- - I I - -^ - ^ ^ , . - - • • • ; , , , J 

- ^ ^ . . . ''^^'^-'^ .^ '- •202,773 
b f ^ ^ r ' ^ 1'46.095 ,'V^!T^^yp^V69;} 

Buildings and irriprovements " . ' ' '_ .. ..-. ., 632,137' ' 627,907, 

SRivc^^tsl&d'flMf^^i^^ 
Furriiitire.'fixlures'arid equipmenl _ '" '. . . 495,469' ,55r,258 . 

Land and land improvements „ - . 
'.-LeasehoId improvements. ,",,;i,„.>\m^-:;'-vp '̂|̂ f^ 

Tolal property and equipment 1,643,158,. 
FJLessaccumulaled depreciation and,.ainurlization| 

Property iriid tiquiprri'cnl, net 

7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets' 

A roil forward of goodwill is as foljbws: 

_ 1::|84,955 
i::i:^(693 il 44)^^Z!r{ZZU406)! 

'950,0I4'"S l;113;549 

SZxsc^ Balrince^pril 25:-2010'-° ' 
Addition.from^liariibow acquisition, 

Balririce,-^Aprir24]^0ri'JJ^^^iJ^ 

r ; . : - - V - ' - ^ ^ i ^ g r = . ' S^:i^^i3I3;!36^-
32,167 

Impairnienl charge (14,400) 

BS?>:ririi29]?2oi2/^^t/ ^ ^ T < ^ ^ : ^ ^ m ^ ^ ^ m ^ ^ E £ : : ^ z ^ ^ k m ^ ^ 
Goodwill inchides accuniulalfti impauTuenl losses of $29,20!:, 

Other intangible assets consist of̂ lhe following: 

April 29.1012' April 2J. 2011 

'?T7f5'i-5r' I ' . i c r i 

Cross ,;Nct ; Gross Nel 
Carryingl^/^ecuinulnled Ciirrj-ingCarr^irS Accumulaied'Carrjing 
Ainouii 1.''Ain'orli7BiioTi .\iliounl-Ainount •Amorti/alio'n AnTouiit-

JL • iridefiriile-lived'assets^ 
Gamine licenses $44.342; $ — $44,3i2;S66,!2"6:1$. ,^:$66;!26 

T^d^^rkK'^^ri^'^'tg^^T^:^?^ 
Intangible assets—subjecl to 

amortization 
Cfisloriieflisls^ Ĵ ^̂ ?̂ %r --...:. J^7^.-.r5^39.3.g^>.fI5:393-|^^--^.tfi5?393%..^'fl2:655Vat2i738i 
Traderiariie.. / -. , ^ , 544 ^_^.(j^X.^^..,.'—-^ -.^^.'^ii. J:PJ^^ ' ~~'̂  
GnsTgmer. r̂ latioî h''ips g ^ ' : ^ ^ ' / ' ' ^ " ; 6;-7{)0 t'̂ >7(T;6Q5y^5;09 5M6:-^?g£feM(73 3)1^T967l 
• Total $74,128; $ (17,542)$56.5.8_6'S,95,912,' S (13;705)£82,2O7' 
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7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assels (Conlinued) 

Our.riidefinitc-lived intangible asseis consisi primarily of gaming licenses und trademarks for which it is reasonably assured that wc will continue to 
renew indefinitely. Our finite-lived assets consist of customer hsis amortized over 2.to 4 years, a trade name amortized over 1.5 years,-and customer 
relationships amortizrd over 8 years. The weighted average rcmaining life ofour other intangible asseis subject to amorti7.atinn is approximateiy 6.1 years. 

We recoî ded amortizafion e'xpense of$3,837, S4,271, arid $3,913 forour intangible assi-tsiiubject ItJ a'mbrtizatib'ri related to.tiur"conliriuing operations for 
die fiscal years ended 2012, 201!. and 2010, respectively. 

Future amorti7.aiion expense ofour amortizable inlangible assels is as follows: 

•2f)i3--- ^ '-- lA- - •-'t^^v^^r^rg^-:--^: ^^i^'l^^.-^'^s^^--?::';";-',---:-,-838 .J 
2014 J_̂  ^ ' 838 
joi5^-. . .:-.: ...' • ^ . - ^ ; • - ^ ':r:'r^'^^^'^'\'^^-::'^'-r.-''•-^'••' . -.•^..••'. ?838:- i 
20_I6^ . , " . __.,_, _ , ' 838__ 

Thereafter _ • 905 

Toia!̂ -̂- ' ' y - ' - ' X ^ ? ' ^ ^ " ? ' ~ ' T ^ " ^ " - ' ^ ^ r 3 ^ - ' 'S-'i '-V - , ^ 5,095:"N] 

8. Long-Terra Debl 

Long-term debl consists ofthe following: 

Aprin9, April 14, 
2012 2011 

S ^ i o r - S e c u ^ r c y C r e ' d i i ' F a ' S ^ r ^ . ? ^ ^ - ^ ^ 
Revolving line ofcredit, expires November 1,2013, interest payable at least 

quarterjy at eidier LIBOR and/or prime pjus a margin $ — $ 33.000 
P"'Vai4ablc rate' temi loansrniaturejNbvemb"er'if-2013r"piiticipal'^d interesi - '.^'.^' - -""-r! - %. -'• '' 7::^" '̂̂  
U..^P^''yn'ienisdiie'qua'ner!y,a'iejili'erJdBOR:'ari'd/br;pri^^^^^ 

7.75% Senior Notes, Interest payable semi-annually March i5 and September !5, net 
of discount ^ ^ _ ^ ^ _ _ 298.026 297,815 

•7%'̂ Scnior Subordinated Notes, inieresrpayable^seri'ii^aiiiiually^Maich' 1 arid72 ' ' "̂  '•' '""--• TTI 
I.:;sg5i;rriiber^r-':^^- _•'--•: ^ \ . S r ^ t ^ r ^ ' W ^ '^^•' . l^^'^^^^^'- '^3e€ .. ^ -'35712 75j_;357i2 75] 

Odier 4,130 4,504 
tvv"'-^ V ^ ' - - ' ' - ' ^ ' ~ ^ ' ^ \ : 7 ^ V 7 ^ ? ^ \ ! ' ? v C " ' " 7 - ^ i ^ ^ ^ • '. l-;i54.43L i:!92.594i 
Less curreni maturities 5,393 5,373 

i ? o n g , l 5 m d e b r . ^ k l S I ] L i £ 3 : E ! ^ ^ ^ ' I i Z ^ 
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8. I^ong-Term Debt (Continued) 

Sendir'Secured Credit Facdity,'ds_ainehdal and resliiied—OUT Credit Facility as amended and restated \"CTed\t Facility") consists ofa $300,000 
revolving line of credii arid'a $500,000 term-loan. Tlie Credit Facility, is securctl on a first priority basis by substantially all,of our assets and guaranteed by 
subsianlially all of our significant subsidiaries.. 

Our/net revolving line of credilavailabilily al'April 29, 2012 as limited by our maximurii senior-'.sei;ufed le\^rage cbve'rianl was appro"xirnalely $258,0(X), 
afterconsideraiibn of S29,()00 in outstanding surety bonds and letters ofcredit. VVe have ari'arinual cqii"imilmerit_fee related to the unuretJ portion of theCredit 
Facility of up lo 0,625% which is incliidcd in irileî esl expens'e in ihe'acebnipanying consolidated statements ofoperalions. .The wcigliled average effeciive. 
inierest rates of the Crî dil Fa'cllityfor. fiscal years 2012 and 20ll',were 5:46'>i>'and'6.25%iTCspectively. 

. •'liie (Credit Facility includes anumberof affiiroativeahd negative covenants.-.Additionally, we mustcomply.wilh ceriain financial covenants including 
mainienarice of a loial lev;erage ratio, stiniori secured leverage ratio and miiiiiiium interest coverage ratio;*The Cî edit Facility also resiricls our abdity to hiake 
certain invcstriicrils oftlislributions. Wc were ril compliance with the_covcnants'a"s'of'April'29*20I2i 

In-March'201 !,iwe amended atid restated our Credit Facility which (1),extended ilie raaluriiy,()f ihe credit facility, to November 1, 201-3, or if the 7% 
Senior Subo'rdiriated Notes are refiriance'd prior, to lhal_dalc,.the revolvuig line, of credit matures'oriMarcli-25, 2016 arid terrii loan riialures bn'March 25,2017 
(2) updated covenants to provide financial flexibility tlwough l)ie icim'of the loans and (3)'sef Ih'e'iriteresl'ralcio LIBOR plus a margin based on the total 
leverage ratio. As a result of the amehdrn'erit anti restrilement arid in ace6Vda"rit;e with ASC 470,-50,- ''Debt Mbdificaiions and Extinguishments." we incurtcd 
.expenses; included iri the staierpent of operaiiqns'for ihe.yearended'^^ of approxima[ely.$6,155 related lo fees and the-wriie-offbf,certa in 
ririariiortizcd deferred financing co,sis, ofwhich approximately.$3ii67.was non-cash,'arid-capitalizcddcfc'rred finaricing costs of $9,47"?. 

Asa result ofa previous amendment,,we" riicurred a charge of approximately,'S2; 143'related to fees and the write-off of certain unariiortized defened 
financing costs, ofwhich'"ap"proximately,S309 was non-cash, and capilalized deferred'financing costs bf $3',874 in fiscal 2010. 

7:75% Senior Nofe.̂ —On March 7, 2011, we issued S300,boO,of;7:75%'Senior,Notes due 2019^31 a price of 99:264% ("7.75% Senior Notes"), "fhc net 
proceeds fromthe issuant:e"were used to rep'ay "terrii loans under our.C^ 
subslaritiallyjallof our significant subsidiaries and certain other subsidiaries as describcdin Nole-20. 'All ofthe'guarantor subsidiaries are.; wholly owned by us. 
The7:75% Senior Notes arc general unsecured obligations and rank juiiior'to all of bur serJiorstjcuredriidebtcdness and senior to our senior subordinated 
indebtedness. The 7.-75% Senior Notes are redeemable, in,whole or in pari; atour option al any time on or aficr'March 15; 2015, with call pit;miums as 
defined rii'thc indeniure governing the 7.75% Senior Notes, As a result of die'issuarice,,we capilalized deferred financing costs of $5,346 in fiscal 2011 and 
$275 in fi.scal 2012. " " . . ' 

"I'he 'riidenlure governing die 7.75% Senior Notes limits, among other things, ourability and'our rcstri{;le"d subsidiaries abiiity.to borrow "money, make-
restricted,paymenis,jUse assets as security in other transactions, enter into transactions' wilh'affdjules,- pay dlviderids, or'repurchase stock. "The indenture 
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8. Long-Terni Debt (Continued) 

also limits ourability to issue and sell capital stock of subsjdiarics, sell assels in excessof specified amounls or merge with or into other companies. 

7% Senior SubordinatedI^oies—bunng 2664.,we issued S500,000 of 7% Seiiiq'r Subordinated Notes due 2014'("7%'Semor Subordinated Notes"), of 
which'S357,000 remarii omsianduig-;The':7% Senitif Subordinated Notcs.are guaranteed, on a joint and several basis,-by ail ofour sigriificant^ubsidiaries and 
certain olher subsidiaries iis describe'd in Nole 20: All of die guaranlor subsidiaries arc wholly owried by us; Tlie 7,% St:riiorSribo"rdinaied Notes are general 
urisecurcd obligations and rank junior to all ofour senior indebtedness, 'fhe 7%' Senior Subordinated Notes are redeemable, in wliole or in'p3rt,-at our option 
al'any time on or after March.!j-2009,'wjlh'call premiuriis as defm'ctliri'lhe indenture, governing the 7% Senior, Subordinated Notes. 

The riidenture governriig die 7% Senior Siiborriinaled Notes limits, among other things,'pur'ability antl our restncted subsidiaries abiiity.to borrow 
money, make restricted payments, use assets as setrurily in olh'er transaclions.jCnter into transactions wilhaffiliatcs^paydividends, of repurchase stbck..The 
indenture also limits our ability'to,issiic and sell capilal stock of subsidiaries, selj assets in excess of specified'amounts'br.iiDergcwiih oriijto other companies. 

Future Princi/>al Paymenis of Uing-ierm Debt—The aggregale,principal payine'nls'due on long-term debt as ofApril 29, 2012;overlhe next five years 
,and.thereafter, are as follows: 

2013. _. " , " . S, __, 5.393 

2015" . . . ,439' 
-.-f̂ » "̂vin'-ty;'̂ -'' *•'!.'«« 'tj' '• •»' 'ay-"''™!"***?"'ŝ 'iB*ff-g-"rr w*' ''fT^v&rfu'^TT" ••* r̂-7X'T—f̂ ''vy'î f̂~''~''~!P^W-̂ '"̂ ''T:""̂ '- 'J'̂ '"^ 201671^^^-.;, : - f^^V^?^irs^r^s : :5 .^^^ .- ...i69_j 
2017 . ill 
. Ti^^sv^vi.£^.:£i:^gissg:^sz^ 

- , 1,156.405 

S lv!54,431 

9. Other Long-Tcriri Obh'gations 

Quad-Cities Waierfroht Cohveniion'Cenier—^We entitled inio agreements with die Ciiyof Beltendoif, Iowa linderwhlch die Cityconstrucied a 
corivention'cenler which opened in January 2009, adjacent to.our hotel We lease,-manage, and provide financial arid operating support for,the.conveniion 
cenler. The.Company.was deemed, for accounting purposes only; to be ihe bwncroflhecorivciition center during the(xinstruclion'peribd.iUpon completion of 
the convenfion cenier we were precluded fi'om act;"bunlirig for ihe'transacition as a sale and leaseback dueto our continuing involvement Therefore, we are 
accounting for. the transaction "using the direct fipancirig method. As of Apri]-29.,20l2,'we have recorded in other lbn'g-lerm'obligalion.s $16,556 related to our 
liability under ASC 840 related io die convention center. Under the terms of our. agreements for die converilion 
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9. Other Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

cenler, we have guaranieed certain obligauons related to 513,815 of notes issued by the C}i.ty bf;̂ Bcttenddrf, lowa for the conveniion cenler. 

The other long term obligation will berefliM:ied in ourconsolidated balance sheels until completion oflhe lease term; at which tiiiielhe related fixed 
assels, net of accumulated depreciation, w;dl be removed from our consolidated financial statements arid the nei.remainin'g obligation qverthe net carrying 
value of the fixed asset will be recognized as a giiin (loss) on sale of the facility. 

Fuiurc mriiimum payments due under olher long-term obligations,'-inclutting inteicsl, as ofApril 29; 2012 as follows: 

•'l"rie'rc'afief._^_j;_XJi_—i^iJJ 

Total riiiiiimura paymenis 

lO.Valualian Charges and Expense Recoveries 

We recorded pretax valuation charges and expense recoveries from conlinuirig operations as follows: 

Fiscal. 2012—A^n impairmenl charge ofS 14,400 relaled to goodwillwas re'coVded at our Lula, Mississippi property as a result of our annual iriipairmenl 
test required under ASC 350; The fairvalue used in our determination of tfie impaiiment charge considered discounted cash flow and'niarkei based valuaiiori 
multiple methods. The impairment was a resuli of an expected decrease in future cash flows resultirig from the" pro longed recession and from realignment of 
riiarkel share following fltxiding during fiscal'2012. 

In connection widi the sale of Grarid Palais'Riverboat, Inc., uicluding its gaming license, a rivefboal gariiing vessel and'certarii other equipment, wc 
recbrdeda valuation charge of 516,149 to reduce die eirrying. value ofthe nci assets.sold to.lhe net proceeds realized upon sale during flscafyear 2012. 'This 
ganiing license and riveiboat were used as a portion of our Lake Charles, Louisiana gari:iing,o"perations:'We continue to operate a casino riverboat operation in 
Lake Charles. 

Fiscal f̂lVf?-̂  We recorded an expense recovery of S6,762 representing the discounted value ofa receivable for̂  reimbursement of development costs 
expended in prior periods relating to a terminated plari to develop ;f casino in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. This receivable was recorded following'a""revised 
assessnieni of coliectabiliiy. 
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II . IncomeTaxes 

Income tax (benefit) provision from continuing operalions consists bf tiie fcilltiwing: 

Fiscal Year Ended 
-.April 29. April 24. April 25. 

^ _ ^ ^ ^ ^ . .. . . .. .. . . 2012' 2QU 2010" . 

Federal • . ":""":-.-"-- 'T. • ", ". $ . l4l'5)_S (72'5) S l'8"68)-

„ 1-918; (1,208) (149) 

Federal ' ' "; 15>28^ 4,818. (1,310) 

' S^s i iE : s i i s : iZs : ^^^^^^^^ i ^ ^^S^^^g2S i 
__ _ „ . , ^ ';• 13,201 8; 158 (6,460) 

Income: tali' ( ' f ae r ie f in^ \^ io r i^ ' ^^ ;^ r^O^ ' ' ^^^^ | l^^^$ ,^ i^^ 1 '19:J:S'.ji3^%950^$t£^(6-,6(}9fi 
A reconciliation of incoriie taxes_froni_^continuing operations at the statutory corporate federal lax rate of 35% to the incorne tax (benefit) provision 

reported in the accompanying consolitlated .staiemenis of operapons'is as follows: 

KLicui Vtjar Ended 
April 29; April 24. April 25. 

Z012 21)11 2010 

St^^l^T^^t^SVniovisin-n-g'-'^^'^-rA^.^^^^^^ 
Effects of: ^ ,„. ,, . _. - , i-..„,....Lr-um, . •.^„._,, , 

Rcduciiori'ofunrccognized'lax benefits . -. (270), — (4J20) 
Ui.Qlh.er,;;.-4S«i:£'>,< '̂-.-! 1. •* •.-'::^^^:M::-?: 

Lobbying 
^ciF.riihlov'm'eTiItax'rTe'diisr'g-w^''' ^;^^i^^SdI^('l'095)vAd(588):z^^(787)^ 

- Friies&'Penaltiesi 
t:_£Ti Meals &,;lintertairim'cni:. 

58 Sl 58 

29 . 39 _(252) Qualified slock option expense (^nefit) __ . 
t M B ' ^ ' 5 r i 5 i b r i r t a n e n t - d i f i - e i a i c « ^ j f f i l < ^ i l « S l ^ ^ 

Interest ' (163) ('l31) 3J 
i f e U ^ B a & s a o d k 4 : S ; ^ ^ : ; g j ^ ^ y ^ l ^ . f e i 5 m ? ^ ^ 

Debt basis difterentiai 4;529 ' — 
1.-.. .r;^rtwiil:ii\Tnr.i?^-;i?^^^r^^^^:.'.^4?•«^•^^^^^^ rwi^i 

Valuatiori"allowarice '.. . . ' 8:742" — — 

Income lax (beneftt) provision $ 15.-119; $ 6,950 $ (6,609) 

Wc allocated the income lax provision andvaluatibn allowance between conlinuing operalions and discontinued operations consistent with the 
provisions of ASC 740. 
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11. Incoine Taxes (Continued) 

Significant components ofour domestic net deferred incoriie Mx" asset (liability) areas'follriws:, 

riscal Vcar Endtd 
April 25. 
"2012 

April 24. 
2011 

Deferred lax liabilities:. 1 ^ 1 ^ ^ P f ? ^ £LJ 
Property ̂ and "equipment̂  
.Goodwill arid inlarigiblcs_i_i£: A g . ^ rz~ J K J26;7.40) _ - .'• (29,162)1 
Gain on carlv eximguishment of debt. 
— -J ! ' " : - .' ^9,?*—~;*-ir-^f-it-5 » 

J21,641'). (21,593) 
> ' ^ ' - l ^ S r ' '"^(2:859)'?""-:-^-^^09)l 

Total deferted lax liabilities (102,953) (121,239) 

Defe"'rTcd tax assets:! H ^ 
Nel opera tin B losses 

E-:̂ vu C:—rrr:.,•• !-.-.•:--— 
Asset impairment^,-', 

36;244. 

3^'.262lIL„ 
.64,042 

Employmenl tax credits 
ld.^ccrued;cxpen3es, ..L-.:.:i 

Allemative mriiimum tax credit 
"ClOdier:,̂ ^ 
Total deferred tax asseis 

19;!71 
, ^ 6 , 9 5 2 ^ : ^ 

J,338_ 
I SJJf, 

121.738 
iValuation all6wance.ondeferred.iax assets'"«" '^' ' \: ' , , 

Net deferred lax assel 

Net'deferred lax-assei/diabililv')'^:^-:^^';.'. '̂ •̂-̂ .ffl''•̂ '̂ -̂̂ -

_(54,2l5)_._i":. 

_n,398 
.10,5213 

1";338 
T3:9iiy 
107,270 

1^0.696)] 

67,523 102,574 

I3s|aJ^(35;'43oyis__„:_(l8;665)'| 
Deferred income lax assels represent amounts available to rcthice incomc taxes payable on laxable riicome in tiiture years.- Such assels arise because of • 

lemporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases ofassels and liabilities, as well as from ncioperairiig loss and tax credri carryforwards. 
We evaluated the realizabilit)'ofour deferred tax assets and performed an analysis of all available evidence, txilh positive and negative, consistent with the 
provisions of ASC 740-10-30-17. The three-year cumulative loss isa significant piece of negative evidence and while, ri is primarily the result of a pre-tax 
charge related to marking the Isle Casriio Hoicl in Biloxi, .Mississippi assets loth'eir net realizable value arid not an indication ofconiinuing operations,'we are 
rtrquircd lo givT objective hisiorical evidence significantly riiore weight than subjective evidence; such as forecasts of future incoirie. Accordingly, in the fi.scal 
2012 fourth quarter, Ihe Company recorded a $49,519 valuation allowance on its det'erred lax a.ssets.This allowance does not preclude us from utilizing the 
deferred lax assels in the future, nor does ri reflecl a change in our long-term oudook. 

A reconciliation ofthe begriming and ending amounts of valuation allowance is as follows: 

"BalS're? April 24f 20IJ-V 
Federal 

Curtcnl year provision 

State 

A,696'£tS-;k. 
2,714 

£^•1,696^ 
49,519 

Ba]ance,'April29.^2012^ •JJ^$,-»j^l±46.$Q5-JS^ •- ^•"7;4!0; 
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11. Income Taxes (Conlinued) 

We have determined that it is more likely than not thai we will riot be able to utilize" 346,805 of the federal deferted tax assels arid have "established 
valuation allowances accortfingly. We have delermined dial it is "more likely ihan noi that we will not be able to utilize S7,4I0 ofthe state deferred tax assets 
and have established valuation allowances accordingly. 

At April 29,2012, we have federal net operating lo.ss carryforwards of $78,775 for income tax purposes, with expriation dates from fiscal 2024 to 2032. 
Apprt)ximately'S49,649 of'these net opcratiiig losses "arc amibulable to IG Holdings Colorado, Inc, arid jts'wholly-owned subsidiary.CCSC/Blackhawk, Inc.' 
("iC lioldings. Inc. & Sub"') arid can only be used to offsel incomccamed by these entities: The remaining federal net operating losses are subject to 
limilations under:lhc internal revenue code and underlyriig treasury' regulations, which may limit llieamount ultimately utilized. We also have various state 
income tax net operairiig loss carryforwartis totaling $221,535 with expiration daies from fiscal 2013 to 2032.This includes bolh consolidated arid separate 
company netopcraling loss carryforwards. I for. when recognized.ihe tax benefits relating to any reversal of die valuation allowance on defened tax assels as 
ofApril 29, 2012 will be accounted for as a reduction of income tax expcnse..,We also havea federal'genera! business and AMT credit carryfbrwards'of 
$20,509 for income tax purposes, with expiralion dales from"fiscal 2022 to 2032. Deferred income taxes related to NOL carryforwards have been classified as 

.ritincurrcni to reflect the expected utilizaiibn of the'cauyfonA'ards. 

Wc accb'tinl for unrecogiuzed lax bcnefils in accordarice.with ASC 740. A reconcifialion of the beginiuiig and entlriig amountsof unrecognized tax, 
"benefits as follows: 

April 29. April 24, April 25. 
2012 2011 2010 

Begii^ning B a l a n c e ^ l l ^ ^ -I"'~?. ^ ' ' ' ^ ^ - ' . v ^ : ^ . ' "tV^^ . '•,£: "l 'L49r-$. .t.I2!-!26 .-'S .'--^9.482? 
Gross incrcasesrrjlax positions in curreni "ficribd ___ —,̂ ,, ^̂ . ,̂, — _ ^ _ _ — 
GJTSJj-Tincreastls^th'if T«'>iiti()n"s"iii"priorp"t-rin(ls----^-"'', -; -' ' " • -. '"- ^ " ^ ' j ' • ^ - • ';,-,'-'̂ l,44 '^ —rt 

Gross dccreascs—iax posjtiqns in t^rpcriods ^_,^ — (7,Z^^.-.- (5,254) 
Settlements'..- -X"'" . ' ---^7'^ ' " "̂*,̂  '!?Ŝ -<- •,,.^. ..gj/.T T,--./^T^^^T^"-^^- . T ' -TT^ ".. ' "'("2;1Q2)*; 
Lapse of stamtc of limitations (7,419) — — 

EndriJg'Balanc^TT;!^'"' ' T ^ . ^ ^ - ' ^ l r ^ . l . . ^ ' ° . ^ - ' ^^ ' ' ^ " iZ_4 :072J ;$ Lt^49l '^S_. .12J^| 

Included in the balance of unrecognized lax benefits at April 29, 2012 arc 52,647 of tax benefits that, if recognized, would affecl the effective tax rate: 

There are no" lax benefits in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits at April 29, 2012 thai, if re-cognized, would result in adjustincnts to deferred taxes. 

We reco^ize accrued inierest and penalties related to unrecognized lax benefits rii income tax expense Related Iodic unrecognized tax benefits noted 
above, we recorded interest expense of $310 in fiscal 20! 2 related to prior periods. We accrued no penalties during the fiscal yearended 2012.'In lolal, asof 
April 29, 2012, we have recognized a liabdity of $2,060 for interesi and no amount for penalties. 

Wc believe that an increase in unrecogniz.ed tax benefits relaled to federal andslate exposures in die coming year.'lhough possible, cannoi be reasonably 
estimated and will noi be. significant. In addriion, we believe ihni it is reasonably possible thai an amount between.SO and $2,647 ofour currently remaining 
urirecognized tax positions may be recognized by the end of the fiscal year ending 
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11. Income Taxes (Continued) 

April 28,2013. These amounls relate to positions lakcn on Mississippi income tax retums for the fiscal years ending April 2002 through April 2()08. The 
Mississippi Department of Revenue has completed its examination of ihe incomc tax rclum.s for these years and has issued its'assessment Wc have filed an 
appeal and molion for summary judgment and expeci to resolve this issue during the next twelve moriths.-

On April 30, 2011, the Federal statute of lirriiiation for the fiscal years cntling AprO 30, 2006 and April 29, 2007 lapsed. Consequently, we recognized 
approximately $6,704 of Federal and S475 of state tax benefits during die fiscal year ending April 29,-2012. Related to Ihc tax benefits recognized during the 
curtcnl fiscal year, we reversed interest e.xpense of ($404) related to prior periods: 

We file income tax remrns in the U.S. Federal jurisdiction and various stale jurisdiciions. During fiscal 2010; the IRS completed iis examinafion ofour 
Federal income lax remrns I'or the 2006 and 2007 tax years which relate lo our fiscal years ended April 29.2007 and Aprd 27,-2008, respectively. We 
recorded a lax benefit of $168 rii fiscal 2010 related to ihe examination: These income tax examination changes were revicwtidby die U.S. Congress Joint 
Committee on Taxation and agreed to during the fiscal year e'riding April 25, 2010.-The tax returns forsubsc'qucntyears.afc also'subject to examination. 

We file in numerous slate jurisdiciions with varying statutes of limitations. Our unrecognized stale tax benefits are relaled to state tax returns open from 
lax ytrars 2002 ihrough 2012 depending on each slate's statute of limitations. 
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l2.'Earnings Per Share 

The follo-vving table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share (in ihousands, excepi .share and per share amounts): 

Tiscal Vear li!ndcd 

Numeraloh, \ . ^ ^ ' , ' 

Apri l 29, 
2011 

April 24. 
2011 

April 25, 
2010 

,,Liicome'(loss) applicable locoriimon shares:. - __,•, L.,j .....", i.^„..-. 
1. Incoriie.(lossyfrom conluiuiriEoiJerations aitribulabIe^t6;cbmmori stockholder'-.IS --̂  .(17.383'i$:,: :3,735:S_:^ _'1.980j 

Income (loss) from discontinued operalions (i 12,37(1) -805 (8,253) 

Net incomc flossl altri"butahlc to the'common|Slockhbldcrs>":L't-<...̂ .'.-jgi'i.̂ t,, .I-T, ,̂ '. '• '̂  

Denonunaior: . . . . 

.i$ ;f!29.753)$:.- ^-:4;540$. • ••tf3:273) 

Perioriririaiorfor.lwsic.eamings,(loss) per.shared,weight^^ average^sharesi_ 
Effecl of dilutive securities . 
-.^Empkwcc.sicick bptitms = " •". ,' ^ 

:38;753,098i;34,g66,15,9_32,245,769i 

i i l E S S S E ^ l Z I ^ ' :"—.: ;ios:558.. '1.16.5ill 
Denominator for diluted earnings (loss) per share—-adju.sted weighted average 

.shares and assumed conversions 38,753,098 34,174,717 32,362,280 

B'asic|earriiiigs,(los"s) per shai^ealtribuiable.'io.commori siocklioldcrsy-
Income (loss) from continuing operalions 

^W^. 
J0.45)S 0.11$ 

,[ricbme.{loss),from discorilinued operaiibnsL.;^ 1 

Nel income.(loss) attributable to common stockholders 

Diliited earririi'gs (16S) pcr.shafe atuibuiable;io coniraoii slticl^ldefSiii^ 
Income (loss) from conlinuing operations 

-f2.?0). .V-.0.02,. 
Q.I5 

_ ,(0.25) 

$ (3.35)$ 0.13$ (O-jO) 

CÎ  ;Inc"oriie.(lossj'froni d iscont inued opera t ions^ 

Net income (loss) allributabic to common'stockholders 

0.11 S 0-15 
;(2.90);,^. • .'Q:Q2-t.V> (Q:25) 

(3.35)$ (0-10) 

During January 20U, we completed the sale of 5,300,000 .shares of common slock'generating net proceeds of$51,227- Proceeds from our equity offering 
were used lo repay long:lcrm debt 

Due lo the loss from contriiuing operations, stock options rcpresentirig 21,845 -shares, which arc potentially dilutive, and I,l61,7l0sharcs. which werc 
anti-dilutive, were excluded from the calculalion of common shares for diluted earnings per share for fiscal 2012. Slock options representing 469,710 shares 
and495,474"shares, which were antlTdilutive, were excluded froni the calculation of common shares for diiuied'eamln^ per share for fiscal 2011 anti fiscal 
2010, respectively. 
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13. Sttick Based Compensation 

Under our amended and rcstated Long Term Incentive Plan, we have issued resiricted stock and stock options. 

RestrictedStock^Wc issue sliares of resiricted common Slock tb employees and direclors under our Long Term Incentive Plan. Restricted stock awarded 
to employees primarily vests one-diird on cachanniversary of Ihe granl date and fnr direclors vests one-half on the giant tlate and one-half on the first 
anniversary oflhe grarit date. Our "esfimate of forfeitures for restricied slock for employees and directoii is 5% and 0%, rcspecuvely. 

Stock Option.s^-We liaveissued'incentive slock oplions'and nonqualified stock options whichhave a maximum term of 10 years and arc, generally, 
exercisable inycariy installments of 20% commencing one year after the dalcof grant Asof April 29, 2012. our aggregate forfeiture rale was 11%. 

We granted slock options during fiscal 2010 and estimated Ihe fairvalue oflhe option grant on the date of the "grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton 
option-pricing mode! with the range of assumpiions tiisclosedin the foilowriig table: 

1 Fiscal Vear Knded 
• April 25,21110 

:WcigllIed•ilverage•cxkcTe^d;voiai^iIyJ^^^:;'^ w->\^' ; ' 'V.^ .67.86%! 
Expected dividend yield _̂  0.00% 
-.Weightedaverageexpected'ierm I'in-vears^ ' . :"',,.,--. -. ^'K^:. ' . -'fe."-:", j . ; . ^ . ' / . .:^. - ' .7 .,,• I 
Weighted average risk-free inieresi rate . ,, - , .̂-PlY" -. 
iWcighi^fayerage,fairfvaJue"of op'tioiis'"g"iiinieft̂ ,̂'.̂ ^ '̂̂ ' f -.J '̂̂ ^J .̂','.'';[ - ^ y ' ^ i ^ ^ '"'''- ^S:;•',;:• -.' ^ 7 ! 5 2 ^ 

Weighted avwage volalility is calculated usriigthc hi.st6rical volatility ofour stock price over a range of dates equal to the expecicd term ofa grant's 
options. The weighled average expecied lerm is calculated using hisloricaldala thai is representative of die option for which the fairvalue is lo be tletermined. 
The expected term'represents the peritxl of lime dial options granted arc expecied to be oulstanding. The weighled average risk-free rate is based on the U.S-
Treasiirj' yield curve ineffect ai,lhe lime ofthe grant for the approximate period oftime equivalenl to die grant's expected lerin. 

Slock Compensation Expense^-Tota] stock compensation expense frorii conlinuing operations rii the accompanying consolidated siatemenis of operations 
was S7,642, $7,442, and $7,467 for the fiscal years 2012, 20! I, and 2010,-rcspeciively- Wc recognize compensation expense for these awards on a siraight-
line basis over'the requisite service period for each separaiely vesting portion of the award. 
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13. Stock Based Compensat ion (Conlinued) 

Activity Under Our Share Basetl Plans—A summary of restricted slock and opiion acliviry ibr fiscal 2012 is presented below: 

Weighted Wctgtiicd 
Average Average 

Grant-Date Rierclse 
___^_^^___^______^^^_^^__^,^_^^^______^_^^_____^____ H Citric led Stock . Fair Value Cl pi ions Price 
Oiilsiaridiri'g'at A oril 24'.' 2011 d f ^ . \-. .li'tiZ^f-kZ '•" " : ; ; y =f !:B': •% .^:"^i^l t091 ;599tl^^S; ^-8:76',^- ."lv367:l'10>^S^ .11'.OSj 

Granied̂ _._̂  _ . ; _ _ . .̂^̂  ^ ' ^ . .̂  ,...-••.,•....•. .^^V^?-: ,. . ? - ^ \ ^ — —• 
Fxereised' • -'• '^.^•M"^'^r_^-AV- : : ^ ' ^ ^ - .'r •^^^^VT^T'T^T^ ' : . . Jy ' • - • ' - ' - r""^ /"^ ' _.. . - jT^ _ " 6!5Q1 
yested • • . ^-^ . , - , - > . : • .--'^^^'^-^l " -̂̂ -̂  ^- - •^ . . . - ~ ' ' 

'ForiV^ircil^dcxpii^di'""" ^ " ^ \ . : / ' . 5 ° ^ ^ '̂ •'- - - '--•^-^~^lf£^'-- '^- -:—^'^ :" ' -V ' ^ ' . :(93,4Q0) '-"_ ^7.751 

Outsianding at Aprir29,2012 890,525 S 8.99 1,271.710 S 11-33 

^\sQfA:pril29-'20i2::^-_ ''-'^'.^'-•-': f ' ' ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ' ' ' V ' ^ ' ^ ^ . / .*L : 7 - --^ ' ^ ' ^ r - - ' • ''^~- ' • • ' . ^ . . \ 
Omsianding exercisable options _ ^ n/a. ^ , 1 . 0 4 1 , 8 1 0 S 11-92 

I ' • Weiehled a veraue rcmariiriii; conifac liia I icrrii'^,.."-. ̂ ^..: J '"J 1.1.''^ W . . > ^ Q ! 9 , vei i i^ i t^ \ -̂  [•_'' \'. -' .-:-'^5 ? 1 - v"^^ .v ' ^, i W i ] 
Aggregate intrinsic valui::^^ . 

(..--.,: .(Jutsianding e'xcrcisable. ,•', J ,' '_-'„.-. :f^ 
Oulstanding ^ ,_,.„^..,.,5.566 ^ 

f NdnvesiedT-• ' . .^ " - f ~ ^ ' -••-.• ••i:Mr^:':j^^^iC^'7^:.}. . ^ T " . . . r T ~ v ~ ' T ^ 
Umecognized compensation cost $ 2:656 S 235-

—'•-.- - - ^ - ' -• - -- -̂  _» -—,- . . , —:̂  tHjp—v;^ » . ^ - ; K J — ^ , ^ , ; , _ _ ~ _ , f , ,_- r--:T-,Tj-----:?-T->g;-_\yeighied average rcmaininp.vcsiin>J period -- ' • <ft^;t ' . ' •- ^O.g.vearsS.--;-''-' ' . , - L-3;yeaiSj^,^ j 
Additional informalion rclaling to our share based plans is as follows: 

April 29. Apri(24. April LS, 
2012 2011 2010 

ReslridledSibck? I-'^ ^ V % • ' • ^ 7 " ^ "' .. / : ^ £ ^ .iT'.V y - x "';" ^ . ^ ^ : ^ ^ „ . ^ - :-'-"'"-" ,: ' ''• •! 
Fair value of rcslriclcd stock vested durin,ii the year S 7,317 $ 4,457 S 2,146 

si^kooiim^^^'h'-. -' >•.': -•-«• •jmK:^'^j^\ ':L?ii^^^j:^^^::7' 'M^:-s^--h^M~'^^ 
- Intrinsic value of stock options exercised ,^.^^^ ^..in- .- •, , , ,^ • * * •,,, •, ,•, ^ 9 . 

CJpmcc3d?fi^rn*^i 'ock^iori exL^ciseTTXTT^CiJA^^ir"'^;^..^'^'^ 'f̂  ''23.>.-''" /;̂ ,"- 264] 
We have. 1,143,246, shares available for tut urc issuance under our equiiy compensation plan as ofApril 29, 2012.. Upon issuance of resiricted shares or 

exercise of stock oplions, shares may be issued from available treasury or common shares. 

Restricted Stock Unils—Subsequenl loour fiseal year ended April 29, 2012, we granted restricted stock units ("RSUs") conlaining market performance 
conditions which will determine the ultimate amounl of shares if any lo be awarded up lo 728,570 shares. Any shares earned wUI vest SO'Ji dirce years from 
the grant tiate and 50% four-years from die grant da te The fair value of Ihese RSUs is dclefriiincd ulilizJnga lattice pricing model which considers a range of 
assuriiptinns including volatility and risk-frce interest rales. Trie aggregale compensalioncosl relaled lo these RSUs" is $2,350 to be recognized over Ihe 
vesiing periods. 
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13, Stock Based Compeosation (Continued) 

Tax tffeci of Stock Based Compensation—Upon the exercise of ceriain stock options and vested restricied stock, tlie lax benefit (provision) related to 
Stock compensalion, subjecl to cerlam limitations, is recognized as an addition lo or deduction,from Adtlitional paid in capiuil. During fiscal year 2012, wc 
reduced tiur Additional paid in capital by $4,758, refiectirig a tax provision related to the impact of .stock optionexercises and resiricted stock vesting. At 
April 29, 2012, we havedeferrcd SI ,433 of tax Ijenefiis associated with stock exercises and restricted stock vesting due to our net operaiing loss position. 

Slock Repurchase—OMT Bozid oiOmcXois has approved a stock repurchase prtigram, asaniended, allowing up to 6,000,000 shares ofourcommon slock 
to be repurchased. As ofApril 29, 2012, we have repurchased 4,895,792 shares pf common stock, arid retired 553,800 shares of common stock under this 
slock repurchase program. No shares were repurcliased infistal years 2012. 20!! or 2010. 

14,'Deferred Compensation Plans 

2005 Deferred Compensation Plan—Our 2005 Deferted Compensation Plan (the "Plan"), as amended andrcsialed, is an unfrinded di;fcrrcd 
compensation arrangem'enl for the benefit of key management officers and employees of the Company anH lis subsidiaries." The terms ofthe Plan include Ihe 
ability of die participanls'lb defer, on a pre-tax basis, salary, and bonus payments'ln excess of the ariiounl permined under IRS Code Seciion 401 (k). The 
lerrris also allow fora dist:rclionar>' aimuarraalchingconlribuiion by the Company. The Plan allows for the aggregaiion and investment of deferred amounls In 
notional investment alternatives,-including units'represent ing shares ofourcommon stock: The liability related.to Ihe Plan as ofApril 29, 2012'and Aprd 24, 
20! 1 was S2i796 and $3,016, rcspeciively, and is included in Itirig-tcnn other accrued habilities in'lhe consolidated balance sheets. Expense froni continuing 
operations forour conuibuiions related to the Plan was $69, $53 and $73 in fiscal years 2012, 2011 "and 2010, respectively. 

15, Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Inrornialiori 

Forthe fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 we made tiash payments for interesi, net of capilalized iniercst of $83,004, 884,506, and $71,623, respectively. 
We made income tax paymenis, net of refunds, of $1,547 for fiscalyear 2012 and collected an income lax refund, nel of payments, of$5,599'and $1,561 for 
fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

For fiscal 2012 and 2011, the change in accrued purt;hase of property and efluipmenl rii accounls payable riicreascd by S8,3I5 and $1,642, respectively. 

16. Employee Benefil Plan 

401 (k) Plan—Wchave a 401 (k) plan covering substantially all of our employees,who have compleied 90 days of sehdcc. Expense for our conu-ibulions 
for continuing operalions rchied lo the 401(k) plan was $1,485, $1,242. and $1;.3I5 in fiscal years 2012. 2011, and 2010, respectively. Our contribution is 
based on a percentage of employee contributions and riiay riiclude an additional discretionary amount. 
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17. Interest Rale Derivatives 

We liavc entered into various inieresi rate derivaiive agreements in order to manage market risk on variable rate loans outsianding. We ha%'e an interesi 
rale swap agreement with an aggregale nolionalvalucof $50,000 with a lualurily dale rii fiscal 2014. We have also entered into iniercst fate cap contracts with 
an aggregate nolional value ofS100,000 having maturity-dates in fiscal 2013 and paid premiums of $203 at inception. 

'fhe faiî  values of derivatives included in our consolidated balance sheet are as follows: 

Type of Derivaiive lottminenl - Balance .Shcei Localion April 29.2012 •\prll 24:2011 

Intercsi rale cap contracts,,-, 
Iriterest rate".swap conlracls 

;Prepaid dept/siis and bdier^li: 
Accrued inieresi; 

-.^^^iJi^S: 

Inieresi'raie:swap.cbnu'aeis. JtOdierlloiig-iterm •liabilities •^•.'r.:.'HVi JSt'-{'-^ .2.493, 

.29] 
Ii439 

3:594] 
The riileresi rate cap agreements meet the criteria for hedge accouriling for cash fiow, hedges and havebeen'cvaluatctl,asof Apri! 29, 2012 as being fully 

cfl'eclivc. As a result, there is noimpaci on our consolidated statement ofoperalions from changes riifair value ofthe interest rate cap agreements. The loss 
recorded in accumulated olher comprclicnsivc iricoiric (loss) for our iniercst rate cap contracts is recorded nel of deferred income lax benefits of $8 and $49 as 
ofApril 29, 2012 and April 24, 20! 1, respectively: The change'in unrealized gain (loss) ori our derivatives qualifying for hedge accoundng was $68 and S5 
for fiscal years 2012 and 20! I, respectively. 

Our interest rate .swaps no longer meet the crileria for hedge etTectiveness, and therefore changes in ihc fair value of the swaps subsequenl to the tiate of 
inelTecliveness in February 2010, arc recorded rii derivative income (expense) in the consolidaled staiemenis ofoperalions. The cumulative loss recorded in 
Olher comprehensive income floss) tlirough the date of uieffectiviiness is being amortized irilo derivative expense overlhe rcmaining term ofthe intiividua! 
interest rate swap agreements orwhen the underlyriig transaction is no longer expected lo bccrir. As ofApril 29, 2012, the weighted average ilxed LIBOR 
inieresi rale ofour interest rate swap agreements was 3.995%. 

.The loss recorded in acctimulaicd other comprehensive income (loss) ofour inierest rate swap conlracts is recorded nel of deferred incomc lax benefits of 
$506 and SI ,295, as of April 29, 20! 2 and April 24, 2011, respectively, 

E>crivative incoriie (expense) related lo die change in fair value of interesi laie swap contracts is as follows: 

Fi^al Vear Fnded 

Derivaiive intxinie (expense) -^ij 
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April 2<f. 
2012 

April 24. 
2011 

,2 ,540, ^Ir2.9i8Ji 
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17. Inieresi Rate Derivatives (Continued) 

Derivative income (expense) realized associated wilh the amortization of cumulative loss recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) for the interest 
rale swaps through the date of ineffectiveness is as follows: 

Kiical Vear Knded 
.April 29, April 24, 

- -2012 . - 20II 

'Accnniulate'd"OcT7rrio'rti7:5t'io"nt •' tTv ' g . / ^ ^ ' . ' ^ : ^ ^ ^ ^ i ' S \ ' ' ^ "• "^ ;I-.-312 "'-viS' ..', :̂  ;- 5:724^ 
Chan Kc in deferred taxes . ' " " . " , " . 7^^ - .-^•^^^ ., 
Derivative'iricbmcfel^nsc)--' . "'^V-'. "^' '^-, '••.̂ •̂~ •̂ " ^ '---•^rf2:lOn' ' :v"(9.!32)] 

The amount of accumulated olher comprehensiveincome (loss) rclateri'ioiheiiitcrcsl rate swap contraci'and ihe.inieresi rate cap conlracls maturing 
widiin the next twelve months was S608, net of tax of S365, as ofApril 29,'20I2. 

18. Fair Value 

The fair value ofour interest swap and cap contracts arc recorded usriig Level 3 inputs at Uie present ralue of all expected fumre cash fiows based on die 
LIBOR-based yield curve as of the date ofthe valuation. 

The following tabic presents die changes in Level 3 assets and liabilities measiucd ai fair value on a recurring basis for the fiscal years ended April 29, 
20l2andApril24,2011: 

Fiscal Vear Knded 

lnlcrcilRateDcri>Bii*es April 29.2012- April 24.2Q11 

Begirininet^hlahe^.^'^. '• • • ' " : • ^ ' ^ ^ ' ' 1 ^ ^ ^ ' . ' - - - ^ 5 ^ V - K . ^ - . I5.QQ4\ .. '. $ : . ; . " .: (12,927)1 
Realized gain \ . ,2 .540 7,918 

[]TunrcaTi^dTlo^eain '•..- ^ H " ^ 3 ^ i. r̂ . 1 » ^ ^ ^ ^ ! Z Z 3 ^ " ' " ' ( 2 9 ) ^ ^ '_y .-i "̂  .-'"• -^^^S^ 

Ending balance '$ (2.493), '$ (5.004) ' 
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18. Fair Value (Continued) 

Financial Instruments—The estimated carrying amounts and fair values ofour other firiancial instruments are as follows: 

At)ril2q,2012 
.Carrying 
Amount Fair Value 

Carrying 
Amounl 

Anril 24, 2011 

: j t ^ • • • ^ • ' • • i 'frAn-'W^ 

Fair Value 

Cash antl cash eg ui valenis 
Marketabfc, securi tic's y, --' ,; 

'$ . . 94,46! $ ,94,461 $ 75,178 S 75.178 
-.'.-,-•.:•" .•'^'>'C.24.943:"'"'l /24:943^ .-''.- .r22.^T73^^S/^"2271731 

Resirictcd cash and investments'. 
Notes receivablc^_J - ' " 

12,551 .12.551 12,810 12.810 
' ' i r 293T l> ' . ^ . 293 :••-.•':^:-788".':^-'' ->3:788l 

Financial liabilities:' 
Rcvol-virig line of credit: 
Variable rale lerm loans 

^-'^SV; ;^;vJ^:^- 'S^;- : - :" .^^^SV ' 33.000",^$^- ,-31^50 j 

7:75% .Senior'noles'',•=-
7%Seniors{ibordinaied notes 
Other.loriiiTierm dcbl-:̂ .̂ 

495;00fl . •*^ ;̂713 _ • .500,000 505.000 
,.^298,O26_i^-^308,829,,_:,Jilr297;8!5:=^_j-_;305!55^ 

358,615 . . . . . , -.357,275 358.168 357.275 
-"-.j>', '-1:^.-: - ^ ^ > l 3 o v ^ 3 ! T ' ^ ' l 3 o ~ ? ^ . ' ' ' " 4 : 5 ^ 

Odier long-term obligalitins 16.556 16,556 16,694 16,694 
The following mediods and assuriiptions were used to estimate the fair value.of each class of financial instrumenls for which it is practicable to cstimaie 

thai value: 

Cash and cash equivalents and notes receivable are carried at cosl, which approximaies fair value due to their short-term maturities. 

Marketable securifies and restricied cash and investmerils are based upon Level I inputs obtained from quoted prices available in active markels 
arid repftisenl die amounts we would expeci Ib receive if we sold ihese assets.. 

The fairvalue ofour long-term debt orother long-term obligations is estimated based on the quoted market price of die underlying dcbl issrie (Level 1 
input) or, when a quoted market price is not available, the disctiunte'd cash flow of fiiture payments utilriiing current rates available lo usfordebt of simdar 
remaining maturriies (Level 3 inputs). Debl obligations with a short remaining maturity have a carrying amount that approximaies fair value 

19. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

A detail of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is as follows: 

A|iril29,2QI2 
lnieri^^lri'c:mgonrt^l-iV . 'T-^^^~^J^^ '^^r ._^ ' . .M'^^•^nsHSi ' ^^^(i4)'> .. ""S 

April 24:2011 

Inierest rate swap conlracts (841) 
:(82)1 

(2,153) 

; $ i ^ ^ i S £ ( 8 5 5 ) S - : i :S i l : ' ^_^ .^(2 .235)] 
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!9. Accumulated Other Comprehensiveincome (Loss) (Continued) 

The amounl of change in die gain (loss) recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related to derivaiive in-su-umenisis as follows; 

T>i>e of Derivative liislrumcnl 

Inierest rate can contrtHrts.,? ^-•-"x'^- . ' 

Iniercst rate swap cori lracis 

1 . K*.'' -^ ^ • . ^ . i ' •^.'...' ;--. ; 

Fiscal YearEiit lrd 

Anri l 29. 2012 Ar>ril 24.2011 

: ^ - . : ' , " ' - - f ^ V ^ - S , ^ ' = > ; - ' , 6 8 , . : ' _ . S V " - ' - . M32)l 
1,312 5,724 

••• •^^^"'U^^^AJ^.^^S^.^-?:- ' :I^80^'----- '$.-^. •- - 5.692 \ 

20. Consolidaling Condensed Financial Information 

Certain of our wholly owned .subsidiaries have fully and unconditionally guaranteed on ajoinl and several basis, the payment of all obligalions under our 
7.75% Senior Notes and 7% Senior Subordinated Noics-

'ITie following wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company are guarantors, on'ajoriil and se\'eral basis, under Ihe 7.75% Senior Noles and .7% Senior 
Subordinaleti Notes; Black Hawk Holdings, L L C : CCSC/Blacklfawk, inc.; IC'HoIdriigs Colorado, Inc.; IOC-Black Hawk Distribution Company, L.L.C.: 
IpC-Boonvilie, Inc.: lOC-Canidiersville, L.L.C; IOC-Kansas Cilj'. Inc.; IOC-Lula, Ine; IOC-Natchez, Inc.; IOC-Black Hawk Couniy, fiit;.: IOC-Davenport, 
Inc.; IOC Holdings, L:L.C.; IOC Services, L.L.C.: lOCVicksburg, Inc.: IGC-VicksburgV'ULC; Rariibow G.̂ srilo Vicksburg Parlnenship. L.P.; IOC Cape 
Girardeau, LLC: Isle of Capri Bettendorf Marina Corporation.; Isle ofCapri Beltendorf, L.C; Isleof Capri Black Hawk Capital Corp.; Isle ofCapri Black 
Hawk, L.L.C; Isle ofCapri Marquette, lne:P.P.I, Inc.; Riverboat Corporation ofMississippi; Rjveiboat Services, Inc-: and St Charies Gariiing Company, 
Inc- Iiach oflhe subsitlia ries', guarantees is joint arid several with the guarantees of ihe'olhcr subsidiaries. 
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20. Consolidating Condensed Financial Information (Continued) 

Consolidaling condcased balance sheels as ofApril 29, 2012 and April 24, 2011 are as follows (in thoasands): . 

A^of April 29.'2Q12-
U\e afCapri Cotisnlidating. 
Casinos. Inc. Non- and Isleof Capri 

(Parent Guaranlor. . Guaranlor EllmlnaiinK Casinos. Inc. 
Balance .Sheet Obligorl •Subsidiaries Sulisitliarha Eplries .Cohiolidaled 

.Cuneiil assets " T r r " ^ V- _ - -f'Sr- •.52,532:$ fl20,711 j$^29;32"4iS.^^x.i'("28:^).$^•202,283J 
Intercompany receivables . ... 673,849 ,(176,882) (50;942) (446,025) "•— 
hwgsto^'ril^iA .^b'-sidiririe^vryk:"^'*'644:424' -̂ -- ( 2 9 . 7 9 5 l ' P ^ ' ^ ? ^ f 6 1 4 : 6 2 9 ' l ^ ^ ;—I 
Properti-flnd_eqiiipmem, nel 9.194 908.586 32i234. •— P^'^^'^ . 

OdiSseisi'^...- • - T ^ . •'' '• ^^£'^' ' -"(?:524)I>^384;4,69-.:i' . t l7.-20^^>^5T9'. ' . ' ' -422';673] 

Toiaiassels $1,374,475 $1,207,089 $ 27,825 $(l,034,4!9)$r,574,970 
,_iLi;j^_^-i-:^St:537;509jSi_89,213L'$f 29.6,90^^ 

Inicrcompany payables _— 446,025. , . ~ „ - ('^6;Q25)^ 
Long-lemrdebl7le?s'curtcnul J i '-:!"''-\^.S~'^ 7^1^?'Asw^^-^V,--'̂ '̂ '" ^ ? ^ ' ' " ' " ^ ^ , - : \ : . . 
U.:niaiFriliesr' . ' " . " • '*'•-:•- • t .^ ' . / i : i45l30L-j ," •3;-264: E->.'473' ' . - ' — -^1:149.038 
pdier accmed liabilities 8,045 37 175 14,445 26,531 86,196 
Sio^kholder^sVeniiitv; ^.. ^'^'^'"--^''0^.1831620^163 |-,'4;i2iiH'(T6,783)"^;(6ni629):nv.il 83T620 
Total liabdities and siockholders' 

6qriily $I,374,475",$1,2Q7.Q89 $ 27.825 5(1,034,419)$ 1,574,970 

As ofApril 24. 2011 
hit of Capri Causa lida tin i> 
Casinos, Inc. Non- and lsle ofCapri 

(Pareni Guarantor Cuaranlor (Eliminating Casinos. Inc. 
Balance Shegl DNigor) Sulniiliaries .Subiidiaries Kniries Consolidated 

: Cuii^cm'assits"t£L-~JHr'SIZIiS S '̂2S;8 S6:Sl£X 7,650i $:'3 2,27.4:$,,:.^ 
intercompany receivables 1.020,593 (226,226) (56,599) ,:(737.76^) — 

. lnv^m6nls :mVu&rar ies i^^ iJ^L^^ 
Proberty and equipmenl, nel JL0.215 1,071,415 . 31,919 — 1,113^49 
(5die"î sseis-':• "^Jrv :.̂  •.:''r^?^."'l63l8 89l',,^i^79^4^ -
Tolalassets $1,542,350$1,309,404 $ 27,559 $(1,145,425)$ 1,733,888 

Currcrifliabilities:.^,., ::;.:,t:L^S;.:i4.0,7l'^.Sk.84;565a$t29,05,0iS?j4sit":45l)SL^153;878j 
1 niercompany payables . ^__,, , . , —.m..,^^"^'?^^---,,..., ,~_. .._t237,7.6S) -. . —, 
Long^ierriTdebt, less curreni '. .^^\7% J .::^',> .̂  £'~~^?«.Qtr"^:T^?!?^^'-*- ^';;;.'•..'''^^[- '' •'tt'^ 
dS'mamritic"i!i;a^'f':f^-:/7^_::ij^^^ 
Olher'.accni.cd liabilities 9.517 1 H,205 13,744 (53,705) 83,761 
sISffiid^RV^y. '-'^TZ :^3:£a^:309,028^-.3/39i^i?I2a5jl)^(3p!5m)]^3.09^ 
Tolal liabilities and stockholders' 

equiiy $1,542,350 $1,309,404 $ 27.559 $(1,145,425)$1,733,888 
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20. Consolidaling Condensed Financial Information (Coritinued) 

Consolidating conden.sed siateincnts ofoperalions forthe fiscal years ended April 29, 2012, April 24,20! I and April-25, 2010 are as follows: 

For Ihe FLsral Vear Rndcd April 29.2012 
lsle ofCapri Consolidating 
Ca.sinos, liiC- .Nun- .and hW ofCapri 

(Parent Guarantor Giiaraiilor' Kliininaling Ca.sinos, Inc: 
.SlaiemenI ofoperalions .. Oblieorj . Subsidiaries Suhsidiaries Kniries Consolidated 
j i i v c n j i c ^ L i ' : ^ .^k^ ' . . - ' • ' • ' ' •• ^ :^^^-'".""">>>^.i:^'.,v'-,^,.i.-:#'^"'-^'" -g^ \ 
Casino. ". $ _ • —$1,006323 .$ ^ $ —$1,006.523. 
Rooms, food, b>everage,"pari:muluel 'V • „",. ,: * ,.̂  ' "̂ r/%i r.'*,^ C''/t« 
tlariU o'dici-:. "V̂ -T •;'•.'-.-.. ' - V ' •1,0'88"SI69;192.-." 19.645^.^':'-(9.290),_l 70,635 
Grossrevenues 1,088 1.175,715 9.645 ( ^ 9 0 ) ' 1 ,i77jl58^ 
Le-s's promniiona! aliovv^nces .-; _ " ' " l i^^jI?9l787")l '" ' '"l^-^,:" '" -f̂ . —'^(l99,787) 

Net revenues 1,088 975,928 9.64 5̂^ (9,290) 977,-37! 
p r - ' . •^'\- ''•'(' "•/ , ''." ̂ ^ '" :. ~^ "̂ "̂"M:.• ',:?-^'^'-" s-•. 1 
Operaungexntmses:. . • ' • - ". •'.-,„ ,.:-i •% r ' • v°*. .̂  ' \ 
Casino, __ —•,-.„i^."^-'^3 — , '. — . 153,743 
Gs^f'iaV^i-^- •-' - ' •^ '^,--251 ' jm '^^~ \~^—- -i ' F : - - ^ ' - . 251,780] 
Roonis,'food, beverage, pari-rauiuci 

andodier . l i-502__371.i67^__J,036 (9,290) .411,415 
.Manaptimenl fee expense (reveriiiel -' •(3f<~751)'' ,",34.75!'.;•? .,• • -^--h • .• "--^ -' . ! ^ ^ 
Depreciation and amortization 1,960 73^538 .552 — 76,050 

froi3i:op'eratingecpenses^_,lv_,,£IL8,-7i!.^-'-884,9,79,j^^ 

Operaiing income (loss) (7.623)_ .90,949 I.Q57 , , ̂  — 84,-383 
Tn'terestei^bense/ne'T^'j: - '̂̂ -• - '• (28:385) • • - (58:Q45)7^ '^ . (656T ' ' ""'"--- '^ . - (87.'0861 
Gain on extriiguishmem bfdcbt __ - - — ,,.._.. ,.^-7;^ .. — — 
'r^^mWewcft^fZ^TT^'T^'!^'^, T^29^'^ <-••̂ . '!''-.-T>^.^'-V.,/.^J -„ -439) 
Equity in iricome'(lb3s)6f' 

subsidiaries 54,462 —' — (54,462) . — 
irie'o'rat;(l(Ms)'fromcontiriiiing" '' . • .'••̂ " ,̂- - '^ «, '•' ' " . j ^ ^ . " ; * , Sr^S'•• .'̂ -""*:' 'l^ .. 7'"^- ?} 

boperadons before income la'xes;' '-••*. ''c.'-.ie^ ''^..^jiC^^"-*,''">">'"v**f-','"''?-iV-^s_ 'iS-j^ -1 
arid rioncomolIiHK inlerest_:,Z_^ii:-l «.893^.Xl32,9.04:S:J^ 

Income Uix (provision) benefit (36.276) 21,279 (122) — (15.119) 
Ini;'ornc'(Io^)froriicbrilinuimri'e'"-'",",.;-'-'' - "' •- ' ''.JX, ""•-̂ .'•̂  •'-, ''•*l"''^'S'"'^.J^V . ;-.j •, ,̂ 4, ,( 
1.Tolerations'. ' "^'''.: <" '.~" ->»:fl7;383). :-54;iS3?:,. • l̂ .-279; *• '(54-'462V-- :(l"7:383) 
Income (loss) of discontinued 

operatioris . " (112.370) (114,125) — 114,125 ' (112,370) 

N ^ iriS>ye7loss)!'^rr ' ' C . ' ,.'-%- ~,$,(129,753)$::(59,942)r $„ >279^$^59.6631 S7( 129.753) 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC, 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

20. Consolidating Condensed Financial Infarmalion (Continued) . 

For the Fiscal Yt;Br Eiitleil April 24.2011 
Isle ofCapri Cnnsolidaling 
Casinos. Inc. fion- and ; Isle of Capri 

(Pareiil Guaranlor Guaranlar Ktiinlnadng- Casinos, Inc., 
Stalemenl of Operalions Obligorl . Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries ' Consolidaled 
Reveriue's:: ,-'",,-" -y ' -"VtJ -. £---' './y.. '.-'^ -•'• ^ : I-,Vi-*t / w»£,.,.?^^ ' . •y-̂ :.,i..=.î  . ' '̂ ''̂  
Casino " , , _ _ ^ . S • - $ 968,423. $ _ " ^ $"' —,$968:423 

' Rooms, food,-beverage; pari-mutuel^ i-,-": •' ..*.. .Z;.!?..'" - j ^ i l ^ l ' " '" '̂'•* '̂ •''. ' •̂ -' \ ^^" ^ \ 
p:-it»t 'n̂ î-y-r' -̂ K ' . > ^ \ r . . ' - ̂ ' , . : • -." j ,67.0;^! 52̂ -3 3 1 ' ^ • -' 9,626 W^%-.i{9;5 28)U:J .5,4 ;099J' 

Gross revenues 1,670 1,120,754 -9,626. "(9,528) 1,122,522 
'Lcss^rgmotiona! allowancesa-:^lfV^i_i^~^X[8?, 'J6 l ' ) ^ l : f ^ B - ! ^ ^ S S - ± ( 1 . 8 j ; 8 6 1 ) 
Net revenues 1,670 . 934,893 9,626 (9,528) 936,661. 

Operati.rig expenses:''•- - L ' i ' , ^ . • ,..,'','-.., -"' "..j-.. , '",'-,-,:'^^.!'-'-' , , ,if:"4f', '•",, , ,',', 
Ca^no _ _^^ — . :I42:642. " — " , . r - ^1^2,642' 
Gamiiip?hxes_;;; / ^ Z ' : - ^ / ^ "^ . - '" , ^ - ' 242:949.^:" ' J^^. ' ^ - ;;. ^ ^ . ,-'242.9491' 
Rooms, food, beverage, pari-mutuel 

• and odicr_ _ ^ _ ^ i2,837__328;925 9,292 (9,528) 371,526 
MariagemenI fee e.xperise,(revcnue)'„£-_(33.259) •.33;259 .̂f;,,_,. ,.,,-:r- .̂  • '• ~ . ', i '• '-~\ 
Dcprccralion and amortization 1̂ 955 75^086 -'572 i— 77^613 
Total bpt-rating c x p c ^ j r Z ! i r r . ^ . J L533î 822;86l̂ l.̂ 9,864__Vj:(9,528)_^834;730J 
Opiating incomc (loss) _ _ ' '5^§63)__n2;0^ -(23.8) . —... 101,931, 
iriterest expense;nc'i^Ij ^ ^ 7 7 ^ ( 2 9 : 6 3 4 ) - • (6ltb46Li ' •648.1 •.""'• '"'^.:-.:f9Q.032) 
Gain on extinguishment of debt — — ..^"i . . . . -- '̂ ~' - —'. 
rigjivMiv7incn'me Iexnens^T°.- '. ">• ' n V J 2 i 4 ) 9 ^ -V. —7.E." < ^ ^ i ' '4 ' ' "SL .••^>^(L214l' 
Equity in riicomc'(loss) of 

subsidiaries ' 36,389 23 —. (-36,412) ^ 
income (loss)"ffamconiuiuirig^'V'^Y'j -r.-V^' ''•>' J y.''-\'^-\:'-.:.-- '-^J*^,-'V, ~.-> .•-%' ,̂ =Ĵ  -li 
ji^'ope'rauons'beforc.inconie'ia'xcs:--'...-''-^',}- '•'^i^'-y''•f;:l^'.^:l^^f'^•^^'''''^'•('^'^^' ''i-#l^ •"-"••V -.m 
UaridWriconmdiriBiri'teivsV:r^.l_X_:J;(.4,322);^ 5P,009__Ij(!i,410_:_(36;41.2y;i__10,6S5; 
Income tax (provision) bcncllt 8.057, (12.995) (2,oi2) ~T (6,950) 
iricoiiie'(loss) fromcoiilinuimng''^{ '»"'%.'•'.'^ ^"•' '". V-,-i '.'•'%••'•• . '." ' " .- ' ' i 
r. n'n^-raiionV '̂.- • .' ' '.:'\'- ---^ - 3;735 V :3S.014,?'>.|-|:6Q3V '-y-7.36.4l2V.t' T 3:735i 
Income (loss) of disconlinued 

operations 805 ' (4,827) 1,475 3,352 805 

Neriricomcflos's)^'lT-^^SlS,i'4-:540lSi';^33?18.7Z$.^(127^^^^^^ 

. 80 
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ISLE O F C A P R I CASINOS, INC. 

N O T E S T O C O N S O L I D A T E D FIN.ANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conlinued) 

(amounts in thousands, excepi share and per share amounts) 

20. Consolidating CondensedFinanc ia l Information (Continued) 

For Ihe Fiscal Vcar Ended April 25.2010 

SlaiemenI nf Operalions 

Isle of Capri Consolidalino 
Casinos, Inc. Non- . . and Isle of Capri 

(Pareni Guaranlar Guaranlor, FJiminatlng Xasinas, Ine. 
.(tblleor) Subiidiai-tcs' Subsidiarily Kntries' Consolidaled 

Rev'enucs:': : ' ^ -•-
Casriio 
Rooms* Rikjil 
tila'tTd^'drci^. 

- 1 ^ !?.jj-
- ™ _ , „ _ ^ _ ^ — $ •-—$ 943,234,.$' — - $ ^ $ . 9 4 3 , 2 3 4 . 
Mx^erage,Vpari-"mutiielv;,-\'-'^i;^a-;'" 
-Sx,'̂ '̂ '- ' - - '̂:.- •• : -" '--,• . - 1.320- 154'A46*-ff' "̂ '.9,654̂ --•- "-:'-(9,522):v.l.5_5,7,48J 

Gnissrevenues 1,320 J.097,580 9,654 (9,572) 1.098.982 
\ ...' .^. '-s(n^747gr^-^^l:r.,y .-̂ 'Ĵ -̂ -̂ .( 171̂ 74,7) Less^proriiotional allowances,J_ 

Net revenues 1,320 925.833 9,654 (9,572) - 927,235 

Opcraiinti expenses: : • ' • • , v . '->^.^^C--' '•*..^-i-^.,'^-<:-;'-^Hj-^ii-:' • 
Casino ' [ — 137,305 — 
Gaming""l3xes,,- - , - - ' 
RoomSj-food, beverage, pari-mutuel 

arid other 45,479 

:254=7I8, 

327,487 

_— 137,305 
^ Z ! 2 5 4 ; 7 1 8 j 

3:979 
Management fee expense (revenue). 
Depreciation and amortization 

(23.800) -23.800 
4,115 90.753 

. (9.572) 3'67,3"73 

610 95,478, 

•Totaf,operiilih''gexpenses'„i_; 

Operaiing incorne (loss) _ 
Iri'teresi,expensc':^ricl.-,- '^''^'.i. 

^1"2 5i 7,9,4:L_834;063li^4';58 9 i ^ ^ (9,5,72)^85:4:8 7.4) 

_(24,474)_ 9l;770 .5,065 — 72:36! 

Derivative incoriie (expense)_ 
iBquily^iiTriicome (loss) of" 
[ 'jSubsidiariesV-' ',^\. '̂ .̂ • 

ai0,827)„(62:564)u£lj(229)i:_v^.^^,:£ii,(73;620) 
(37Q) . - — ^ (370) 

-> 22 729 ••.(i:450):r.?^'(22.744)': 'V-^:, .'f,' 

Income (loss) from conlinuing 
operations before incoriie taxes 

_̂  and noncontrolling inieresi .(12,942) 30671 ,3.386 (22,744) (i,629) 
Lll7,922:SlP,0.09);^(I ,304): ia(- i i ; -Iz^ii '^6;609] Iiicome":tax (provision),bbnetit , ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ _ _ _ _ ^ _ 

Income (loss) from continuining 
opcra_tions_ ^^_^ _..._^_ 4,980 ^ 20.662 :2,082 (22,744) 4,980 

!nco"ra?(l6ss)'fronrdisconlitiued^'," ^--• - ''•^'^- ''',''i"\^-.\-'i! ^-"Si' .'V. '..-; . "S^.^' • '̂ 'f̂ :. 
V oMratibm.neioriax.::'^,?? .v' .- ' '.' -̂  '("8;253):i^(IQ;Q86)^^'tir(2;300)>3^l 2,-3l6̂ ;̂ 5•l• (8,25: 

Nel income (loss) S (3.273)$ 10,576; $ (218) S (10,358)$ (3,273) 
_ - -

3) 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conlinued) 

(amounls in thousands, except share and pur share amounts) 

20. Consolidating Condensed Financial Information (Conlinued) 

Consolidating condensed statements of cash flows i'or ihefiscal years ended April 29, 2012, April 24, 2011 and Apri!,25, 2010 are as follows: 

For Ibc Fiscal Vear ICndwl April 2*1.2012 
IsleofCnpri Consolidating 
Caiiiios, Inc. iNon- and Isle ofCapri' 

(Parent Guaranlor -Guarantor Ktitriiriating Casinos, Inc-
Slatement of Cash Hows- Obligor) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries - t-̂ nlrjes Consolidated 
Net cash provided by (used in) Operating v '̂  s '.." *(-"':? ~ " '̂ lii. '.',''-" •.-- \ ' . ' -..,• 1 

•K'adi ivi i ies t""-^" ' - \ ' '. ' . : • ' = : "V-> "•--•$• :12:960J$'10l^8()lt-'-$,^O'29S? S^ _ p'^.—^'iSH 18.0591 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing 

.activities... _ _-_ _ _ - - 60,306 . (57,955) _ (j.036) (61,864)^ (60,049) 
Nel cash''provideci b'y.(u'sed ui) fmaticriig'',,-' -'" "' '-t ' -"•̂ '-V .^'"T" ..-̂  . •„ ';'''.~f%~'-j """ T'T"., .." , ""̂ 'J 
r:activities r r ; "' •.:'/-^- ""- ^ r . ? "-•-'-(38;353)i^(55;202)\^;(7,Q3'6Ji ; 61.3.64.^(38,7273 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
"'equivalenls . __ _ 35,413 (11,356) (4,774) . — 19,283 Cash'and'cash'equivnlcnts at beginning off ;,̂ L . . ^..i.-'.L';' -f.i C ,j-. ;-E - . • ":- ; •- /; 

.1 ^iherier iod- ' •" .""" -- " r i - ; - ' : ^ ^ '"'i \^3;952' '--%62:105;. ' :-9;i2!.^- '^ •" — t̂ ^75.178 

Cash and cash equivalenls ai end oflhe 
period. $ 39,365 $ 50,749 S 4,347 $̂  — $ 94,461 

Forihc Fiscal Vcar Knded April 24, 2011 
lsle of Capri Conso lida tine 
Casinos, inc. Non-' and IsleofCnpri. 

.(Parent Guaranlor Guaranlor Elimiiiaiing Casinos. Inc. 
Siaicmeal of Cash Hows (Ihligdrl Stihsidiaries .Subsidiaries Enli-ics Consolidaled 
Net cash provided by (used'iS)'opcralriig>v.>.;^--5? _ ^^..:^--ff-:''^^^:K'^.::! '\, '^ ' i>^l'-, ••" iî f- • . > ^A\ 
L'^'artivitie^. -^' •--• ^ >. 'v '.'• ^•. . "^.".S -f 1̂ 527̂ $ iM9:078-..S--,^6.-l33V$' . - : -L—-.$ . '1 ?3L6841 
Net cash provided by,(used in) irivestirig 

activities,^ _ ^ _ ^ ^ . . ^.^ ^ '29;490)_(129,743). .(!0;i60)^;:_J4,756 (144,637) 
N'elcashprovidedby'(usedin)'fmancing' % '•'^^".^J.'^"'^-?^-;^^^"-'^"- ^^^ • ."-. i ' ip~T^ '. ., \. 
•-- activities >.- - • -̂  '-': •'- .-• _̂ -:. . 1 ^ ^ /'.. ':^:. 42 S :463 ^̂ ; - '25:776 'v 1 ( 1:3 7 31.- ' (24r756)'̂ -''. • 28:1101 

Effect of foreign currency e.xchange rates on 
cash and cash equiyalcriis ' — — (48)' — (48) 

NcT increase'(decrease) iri'cash arid'cashT*^"-'- ' :̂ '̂ \'-"'̂ '*'!̂ '>'A*''-''"""^T • ' ' .'̂ '''̂ <-!J-"i • '":••-'' - '-•'. I 
l-^MriiValerit!i-'"t- 'T--.^ f^-^;^-:^-'S>.:,--'^-^'l2[554U^M5;ili;^-'^l5:448r"^ ^---.'̂ 4^1-. ^'-J.lOgt 
Cash and cash equivalents al beginning of 

the period 6,506 46,994 14,'569 — 68,069 

Cash^and'cash equivalenls at endof ' lhe^ .'^•-/'"••:;.v''vo ""-̂  "?r t-'f* "- V' '. ' "-f^'i ' '" -" . '-< - : \ 
f rpmod j ' . ; ' ,•"',:•. ^ . - ^ f . J '"l^iXiL'^-^-SI •'•3'952;$ i62;-l051$I;:^9:'t2lL'.S!"':^.';::±rSS! ,^75.178j 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA'I EM EN IS (Continued) 

(amounts in thousands, e\cept share and per share amounts) 

20..Consolidating Condensed Financial Information (Continued) 

For Ihc Fiscal Vcar Kndetl April 25.2010 
Isle ofCapri Consalidaling 
Casinos, Inc. Non- ' and Isle ofCapri 

(Parent Guarantor Guarantor Rliininaling Casinos 1"^ 
Slaleriicol of Cash Hows Obligor) Siibsldlaries Subsldiai-ies Fn tries Consolidated 

.Net cash providedb""y (usecfrii) brieritriig'''^ *- '-̂  ^ •̂•̂ •' '''' :-^" = •'-£^-'̂  '̂ -J^;^- •""' r. **' r " • s'w'j-v>--i 
L-'aclividcsC-;.-' '̂.•-••' '^_^^-% ^r-^f î î̂ ĉS r;-l'9.0O2)Stl-18:277j[:$af2i893);$/^,- .:—^ $; 106.382! 
Net cash'provided by (used in) investing 
. aclivides . , ^ , ^ , , r ^ - ^ -109,297^ (30,32!) _ 722 (110.688) (30,990) 

Net c^h prdvided'oy (use'd'in)''firiancing.^ '>;•• V ' ^ ' f •- =' '^^^i''^-'."""^*''^^,!"**' , ••" T^~Y r̂̂ -..-̂  ' -" -^~I^ 
L^-idiiviiips. -:-•'•'"•...''.'^^•.l.>, :̂ ^ '̂̂ '- '̂•^^^-.'fl02L5l55VVfl̂ Q9:M3lV .̂V2:438)'•V.t'lO:68ij[v '(103-9581 
Effect of foreign currency exchange riiles ori ' • ' 

ca.sh and cash equivalents -r- . —. (19) — (19) 

Net increase (decrease)"iri cash and cash:---' '-.!->' •'""r.,.̂  ' 'v'v^\' ' ' ' '- '̂"',i '''""•̂ . »'"' ' -"* • " ,'.^ 
f' I'i^Sivalen-ts ? ^'.'>'•" "^''ffS^'^^':'Z-'Z \ .:.Ji2l27QY^ f2l.6~87¥'.„;V4.628V^ "'"";!'—'.'*^ (2S;5851 
Cash and cash equivaicnts al beginning of 

the period 8,776 68,681 ' 19,197 — 96.654 
Cash andcash'equivalcnts.il end'of the- >y. '̂;g'." :":;»,'•»/•#': . "4.1. '̂ ^̂ >̂£ ' •'• '*•"; -'̂  ' ' '\ -.r 
L : "period / T. '- :^^.:T'- ^ " : y - " ^ ^ i- • ' . ' $ . • - 6:506'$- .46.994, $*; f4T569'..s''•" —"'$•". 68:o'69 
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ISLE O F CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO C O N S O L I D A T E D FINANCIAL STATE.M ENTS (Continued) 

(amounls in Ihousands, except shure and per share amounts) 

21. Selected Quarter ly Financial Information (unaudited) 

Oursclecled quarterly financial information has included reclassifications for amounts .shown in our previously filed reports on Forms !0-Q to reflect the 

discontinued operations prcsenlaiion for our Biloxi, Mississippi, Freeport, Grand Bahama imd UK casino properties. 

Fiscal Quarters Funded 
.luly 14. October l^, January 22, April 29, 

2011 2011. '2012 2012 
NgtreVeriries-^;^ . ^ ^ T ^ - ' K : X •• ^-•''^.V'"^'^.j'-!^^5^;:^\^S5^-^227:604-Sy' -231^^^ 
Operating riicome" " ' ' . . • '" 17,693 I9J73^ __ 20,813 _26.104 
!ncon'^7l6Ts)7romVontiriuing6perations'^'\7^- t.-:" '̂v '̂̂  . 1:̂ 1' ^ ¥ : ^ * ^ - % ( 2 . 5 W / K . 'fr.030).-r -.- ' (316)^.-•-:f 13:478) 
Incomc (loss) from disconlinued operatioris, net of income laxes 236 . (127) (866) (111,313) 

Earnings (loss) per common share basic:-. 
^'Income (Ioss)'ffbmconiinuiriE:6perdti6nTb,:^-.,;:_U]:^^ 

income (loss) from discontinued operations, nel of income taxes 0.0! (0,01) (0.02) (2.85) 

F'v.NeriricQmeflosI) I '^IT?' ' -:•'.' 1-, .̂  . ; -:.-'i^ ' ^ - ^ " ^ ^ ' i K - 4 ^ ' ^ E L i M ^ ^ ) S ^ - _ j m ^ ) S l . L J ^ '^-(3~20)' 

Earnings (16ss)per common share diluied: ____^ • 
„;Income,(loss) frorifcoritinuriig nnerniinn^ - :.• .-'V. •.. ̂ •-, ..•:<,-̂ ;̂S„5'̂ .:*:_,.(0-07i$:'.,;...,,:(0-Q3)$".: (0,01 )$_- :j(0.35) 

Incomc (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income laxes 0.01 " (0.01) (0,02) (2.85) 

rTNeTi^onic flossl;. - -':., '-'̂ C ' . - . . - • -J ^ . j " ^ ' - ^ • ••^"•lII^'$lV-.(0.0.6)"s.- .:. '(0-04 j$^J,^.l 0.03)$,1 -l(3:20J 
Weighted average basic shares -38,277,150 38,753,049 ,38,982,281 38,982,28! 
\Vci^hte-d average diluliv"e'sharcs'-„'- t - 'g j 'W o-..-'^>.a'v."-.^..'^-.;F w.''v38:277:l 50^^38.751:049 .^33:982^281 . -38.982.2Sl1 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASiNOS, INC: 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FiNAN'CTAL S'lATEMENTS (Conlinued) 

(amounts in Ihousands, except share and per share aiiiounts) 

21. Selecled Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited) (Continued) 

Fiscal Qiiarters Ended 
•Julv2,S, Oclober 24. Januar* 23,- .AprU 24, 

2010 2010 2011 2011 

Operating iiiconie . 21,534 21,748 19,317 39,332 
• Ine'o"riici'lossUromco'niiririini>nberatibiis:- , î  :»-_ • & - { ' : • ; ' n ^ ^ 7 ^ f 2 M 0 5 K - , -"(I-.1921 " n!324^ -•--. ^ 8:3561 
Inconic floss) frorii discontinued operatbns, net of income taxes, ^(549)^ I'72 (1.333) . r p j . ^ , 
N'etrii^SSr(io£s^f:. •"• 'r '^ f. \ .- 7'•'^'V. ^"•^•r^^Tr~"^_-.' : ^̂ ?2.654> : -"(I".0201 • • -. lies71 .•..>. -^io.STil 
Earnings (loss) per common share basic: -... ,..,,1 •„,̂ ,.,_.„ - •-i -, 
f^'lricoJ^eTi^sI^omcori'linuiiigo-i^atioris^" "A"̂ ^̂ ^̂  - ^ (0.04)$". ' •lO:04)S '•:• .0:22l 

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, nel of income taxes (0.02) - 0.01 (0.04)^ 0.07 

{ 'VNCI iricome nos"s)-^T~^;7" ' ' " ' ' ^7T~' \ : < T "' T^''^' 'XIZZsIl-:(Q.08)SlIL"(Q.03)$__^_(0,,08)S: i J o ^ J 

Earnings (loss) per common share diluted: • 
CIiKbme.doss) i/om coniiriuing o6ei-dlibns? ". 'v ¥ - , >^' ^•s"~^(0:061S;: - (0.041$ ^"^7004JS; . 0.221 

Income (loss) from disconlinued operatioris, net of income taxes (0.02) 0.01 (0.04) 0,06 
k - Net; incorife (Ibss) _ .-̂  ̂  ^ - . . -... -' '.-.."•' .•..;; 'm. ' - ^ i , . , . . l $ i ^ ^ (0:0?j) Sl_^^ ^(Q.03 jS.'. T- . , (Q,08)S', '"- '0.281 

Weiehled average basic shares ^ ' 32,447;9Q4 32,-^,726^ 32.929.965_ 38,!Q3;04Q 
Wcigh7ed-3verage'dilrilivc'sh"arcs ; . - -̂  "• ' y ^ ."P- • % jft-^.^.'--'••<:32:447."9Q4'^.783:726 ^32-929.965. 38."252:693l 

A summary bf certain revenues and expenses from our continuing operations impacting our quarterly financial results is as follows: 

(!) The fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 coniained fourteen weeks as cbmpaied lo llie fourtliquarter of fiscal 2011 which contained thirteen weeks. 

(2) During Ihe foiulh quarter of fiscal 2012, we recorded a goodwill im|iariTtienl charge of$I4,400 related to our Lula properly and a valuation, 
charge ofS 16,149 at our i,ake Charles property associated willf the sale of Grand Palais Riverboat, Inc. 

(3) During the first and .second quarters of fiscal 2012, five of oiir properties werc temporarily closed for fiooding along the Missi.ssippi River, 

22. Rclaletl Party Transactions 

Effective in Februaiy" 2010, we amended a lease widi an entity owned by certain ofour stockliolders resulting in a paymeni of$60uimually fora parking 
area adjaceni lo one of our casriios. Prior to this lease amendment, wc leased on a monlh to month,basis this parking area and a warehouse for $23 per riionth. 

In 2005, drieof our wholly owned .subsidiaries. Isle ofCapri Beltendorf, L.C:, entered inio a Developmeni Agreemeni widi the City of Bettendorf, Iowa 
and Green Bridge Company relating to the developmeni ofa conferencc/evcnls center in Beilendorf, lowa, ihe expansion of the hotel at 
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22. Related Party Transactions (Conlinued) 

Beneiidort^and related facilities, including a skywalk belween ihe holel and conference/events center and a parking facility. Green Bridge Company is 
indirectly owned by certain ofour directors. Isle ofCapri Bettendorf, L.C.-wdl hold Green Bridge Company, harmless from certain fiirarc increascsin 
assessments on adjacent property owned hy Green Bridge Company, capped at $4,500. 

23, Coriimitmenis und Conlingencies 

Operating Leases^—The Company leases real estate and various equipment under operating lease agreements. Fumrc minimum payments over die lease 
term of non-cancelable operairiig leases with initial terms of one year or riiore consisted ol^die following at April 29, 2012: 

Fiscal Vears Ending: 

OOIV ' ' J;'- '• ( ; •?••- - ^ S 

2014 
3ni''>' "'• - T : - . ' .-•''..•'. ,-•£;.fe-^ 

2016 
20i7 . . : - . : • . ' . '-- . ' - /" ' '= • -
Therafler 

, 
-• ^ ^ -¥ ' , ^ S ! ' ' ^ . . * - ' ' * . ^ V :«'-.•'' H 

i.> ' - ^ • . . ^ . ; , t ^ - ^ ^ : ^ ' >, ^J • 

•. *'•".; (* ' . 'V« ' , -if' "•'̂ " ,-* 3 < - ! 

. 

r - • ' < . v . ' : . i < s S > - - . 

•...*. P . - ' . i ' ^ ' . 

*.^'- . ":. 4 . „ •• 

. ^ . - i I 8 S 7 2 ' : J 

17,248. 
^" .,. :ifi,fi47'j 

16,717 
: , - ' , 16.611.1 

384,372 

rToial'riiiriiriiuiiT lease: payments-y •••'" y' -'T. , "^-J î =• ss;-'^"-^ ".'.","' . •''.. ^^•'"•S* • '•=.'' ".470.I'67 1. 

Renl expense from conlinuing operalions was $28,557, $27,411, and $25,979,rii fiscal years 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. Such amounls inchide 
coniingcni rentals of $3,655, $4,129, and $4,259 in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Contingent rent is based upon casino revenues orother 
metrics as defined in our lease agreements. Certain of our leases are subject 10 renewals and may contain escalation'clauses. 

Development Projecis—Construction is pioceeduig ahead of schedule for our isle Casino Cape Girardeau devclopmerit. We arilicipale bpenriig by 
November 1, 2012, subject to regulatory approvals. We cmrenlly'estimate the cost of the project at approxinialely $135,000 and have incurred capilal 
expendilures, including capitalized iriteresi, of $49,900 lo dale, including'curtenl year capilal expenditures of $34,935, 

Our proposed casino in Nemacolin. Permsylvania was "selecled by die l^enasylvania Gaming Control Board to receive die final resort gaming license in 
Pennsylvania rit April 20! I. This award has been appealed to the Pcnnsylvariia Supreme Court by anodier applicant. We have a development and management 
agrccnieril vi'ilh Nemacolin Woodlands. Subjecl lo a successfiil ruling in the appeal, wc expeci lo compleie construction ofthe facility within approximaiely 
nine mondis after commencing construction.'We currenlly estimate llic cost of ihc project at approximately $50,000. To date, wc have incuned capria! 
expenditures, including eapilahzed interest, of $996, including $721'in fiscal 2012. The liming of additional significant expendimres is dependenl upon 
resolutiori ofthe appeal. 

Legal and Regulatory Proceedings—We and ourwholly-owried'subsidiary, Riverboat Corporation ofMississippi ("RCM"), are defendants rii a lawsuri 
filed in die Circuit Court of Adams Couniy, Mississippi by Silver L^nd.Inc. aifcging breach of contract in connection wiih our 2006 sale of casino operalions 
in Vicksburg, Mississippi, lo a third parly. Ui Januaiy 201 i, the court ruled in favofof Silver 
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23. Cflmmilments and Contingencies (Continued) 

Land and in September 2011 ilie court awarded damages of $1,979, We filed a'notice ofappeal in Noveiiiber 20! 1. While the outcome of this matter is still in 
doubl andcaniKil be predicted with any degree of certainty, wchave accrued an esiimaled liability,'including iniercst, of $2,042 in fiscal 2012. We intend to 
continue a vigorous and appropriale appeal ofthis judgment 

Our wholly owned subsidiary. Lady Luck Gamirig Cbrporaliuii, and several joint vcrilure partners have been defendants In the Greek Civil Courts arid the 
Greek Adminisirative Courts in similar lawsuits brought by the country of Greece. The actions allege that the defendants failed to'make specified payments in 
connection widi the gamriig license bid process for Patias, Greece. Although il isdifficull to delermriie ihe damages being sought from die law.suits, the action 
may seek damages up to thai aggregate amount plus riilcrest from die,daie of the action. 

In the Civil Court lawsuil, the Civil Court of First Instance ruled in our favor and disniisscd the lawsuit in 2001. Greece appealed to die Civil Appeal 
Court and, in 2003, the Court rejected the appeal. Greece then appealed to the Civil Supreme Couil and, jn 2007, the Supreme Court ruled thai the matter was 
not properly before the Civil Courts and should be before the Admriiistraiive Court. 

In the Administrative Court lawsuit, the Admriiisirative Court of Firsi histance rejected the lawsuit slating dial il was notcompeieni lo licarthe matier. 
Greece.thcn appealed lb the'Admiiuslrative Appeal Court, which court rejected the appealin 2(X)3. Greece then appealed lo Ihe Supreme Admriiisirative-
Court, which remanded Ihe matter back lo the Administrative Appeal Court fora hearing on the nierils. The rCThearing took place in 2006. and in 2008 the 
Adminislraiive Appeal Court rejecled'Greccc's appeal on procediiral grouiids. On December 22, 2008 and Januaiy 23, 2009. Greece appealed ihe rulriig lo the 
Supreme Administralive Court, A hearing has leriialively been scheduled for October 2012. 

The outcome of this mailer is still in doubt and cannoi be predicted with any degree bf ecrlairity- We intend lo continue a vigorous and appropriale 
defense to the claims asserted in ihis matter. Through April 29, 2012 we have accrutid an estimated liability, iricludriig riileresi, of $12,849- Ouraccraal is 
based upon management's estimate of the original cl^mby the plaintiffs for'losi payments.-We continue to accrue inierest on the asserted claim. Wcare 
unable lo estimale a total possible loss as information as to possible additional claims, if any, have not been asserted or quanliiled by the plaintiffs at this lime. 

We are subjecl to ceriain federal, state and local environmental protijclion, health arid safety laws, regulations ond ordriiances dial applyio businesses 
generally, and are subject to cleanup requirements af certain of oiir facilities as a result thereof We have not made, and do not anticipate making material 
expendilures, nof do we anticipate incurting delays widi respeci to environmental remediation or protection. However, in part because our present and fiiture 
developriient sries have, in some cases, been used as manufacturing fa'ciljiies br olher facilities that generale m"atcri.ils thai are required to be remediated under 
cnvri-onmcnial laws and regulations, dicrc can be no guarantee ihal additional pre-existing condiiions will nol,be discovered and wc will not experience 
maierial liabilities or delays-

We are subject to various conlriigencies and liiigation matters and have a number of unresolved claims. AUhough die idiimale liability oflhese 
contingencies, this titigaiion and diese claims cannot be determined at this time, we believe they will nol have a material adverse effecl on our consolidated 
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC, 

SCHEDULE II—VALUATION .VND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 

(In Ihuusund><) 

Accounts Receivable Keserve 
Balance at Charged to Deductions' Balance 

ReHionlng of .CtJstsaiid from al b'nd 
Period Vear Kspehses - Reserves • of Year 

tVek, EndcdA^rin9r20TIS 
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Year EndedADril25.^2QlQ, .-'-->. ...--.--y'^' . K \ ^ L ^ '5 :106- "..•• - - • . t : 4 0 0 ' - ' ( 4 . 5 5 ! ) V ' 1,9551. 

other Receivables Reserve 
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11 E.M 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN I'ANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

•None. 

ITEM 9A. CO.VIROLS AND PROCEDUI{l';S 

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDUltES 

Evaluation of Disclo.sure Controls and Procedures—Ba.sed on their evaluation as ofApril 29; 2012, our Cliief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 
Officer fiave concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rulcs'l3a-15(e)and.l5d-!5(e) under the Exchange Act) were effective lo 
ensure that the information required to be disclosed by us in ihis Annu-il Report was recorded, processed/summarized and reported within the lime periods 
specified in the SEC's rules and riisimctions for Form 10-K. 

.Managemenl's Repori on Internal Control over Financial Reporting—Our managemeni is rcsporisiblc for establishing and mariiiaining adequate internal 
coritrol over financial reporting (as defuied in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act): Our management,'riichidirig ourChief Executive OlTicerand Chief 
Financial Officer, assessed the effectiveness ofour intemal control over financial reporting as ofApril 29,2012. In making ihis assessment, our managemeni 
used ihe'criteria sel forth by the Commiitee of Sponsoring Organizalions ofthe Treadway^Comriiission in Internal Conlrol—Integrated Framework. Our 
managemeni has concluded that, as ofApril 29, 2012, our uilcmal conirol'over financial reporting is effective basedon diese crileria. Ernst &• Young LLP, an 
indepeiideni registered public accountriig firm,-who audited and reported on the consolidated fmancial statenicnts included in ihis /Vnnual Report on Form 10-
K,has issued an "ailesiation report on the cfrcctivcnessof the Company's intemal control over financialreporting as stated in their report which is included in 
Ilem 8. ' . ' ' 

Changes in Iniernal Controls over Financial Reporting—There have been rio changes in bur^irilemal conU-bIs over nnancial reporting durriig the quarter 
endedApril 29, 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affecl ourintemal controls over llnancial reporting. 

Inherent Linuiai'ions on Effectiveness of Controls—Our management,''including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial,Officer, does noi expeci 
that our disclosurc controls and procedures or our internal controls will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control'syslem, no matter how well conceived and 
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance ihat the objectives ofthe control system are met. Further, the design of a conlrol syslem,must 
reflecl ihc fact that there are resource constraints, and ihe.bcnefils of controls musl be considered relative to their costs. Because oflhe riihereni limilations in 
all conlrol systems, rio evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance ihat all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within our company have 
been detected. 

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFOItMATION 

' None 
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PART III 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPOR.\TE GOVERN.VNCE 

'Diis item has been onulled from this report and is incorporaled by reference lo Isle of Capri's definitive proxy stalemenl to be filed wilh die U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commis.sion within 120 daysafler the end of the fiscal year covered by this report. 

ITE.M 11. E.VECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

This ilcm has been omitted from diis report and is incorporated by reference lo isleof Capri's definitive proxy staicmeni to be filed with the U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commission wiihin 120 days after Ihe end of the fi.scal year covered bythis report. 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND M-VNAGEMENT ,\SD RELA1 ED STOCKHOLDER 
MA'ITERS 

The informalion required by this item relating to security ownership of management has been omitted frorn this report and is incorporated by reference to 
Isle of Capri's definitive proxy staicmeni to be filed widi the U.S. Securides and Exchange Commission witliin !20days after the end of tlic fiscal year 
covered by this rcport. 

Equity Compensation Plan.s. The following table provides iriformalion about seeurilies authorized for issuance under our 2009 Long-Term Stock 
Incentive Plan forthe fiscal 2012. 

M \± 
iVumber of securities 

remaining available for 
Number of seeurilies lu be Weij^liled-average fuiure issuance under 

issued upon esercise. of exercise price ul equity compeosalian 
outsiaadins options, ouisianding options.- plans (eicludinjc securities 

Plan caieflors wa'rraiin and rlghls' warrwrils and rlghls rcflceicd in column (n)l 
Equlrv.compeipaiion plans approved" ^ - •" ?• ; j ; "\V"''-^iifL.. '̂vS? ^g,; i*'''•• ''.̂ -'̂ - '". '•-, '-'lis-'-. J 
^-b^;^ecurilvho^de^-.g; : "^ ": .--f. - zk - ^ ^ h271-710;...,'^.:..S:r.^:-'<>• I h33 ' : .-.> I : -.1-143:2461 
Equity compensation plans not 

approved by, security, holders — — — 

h-ofai... >:-^ ---"-^'" '^^.Z.£I-£^.;^:^i;22i.7iok^s::;giii;33^:^ 
ITE.M 13, CER TAIN RELATIONSHIPS /\ND RELATED T R , \ N S A C ' H 0 N S , AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 

ifiis item has been ontined from this report and is incorporated by reference lo lsle of Capri's definitive proxy siaiement to be filed with the U-S. 
Securriies and Exchange Cotnmission within 120 days afleriheend oflhe fiscal year covered by this report. 

ITEM 14. PRLNCIPALACCOUN'TANT FEESAND SERVICES 

This item has been omitled from diis lirporl and is uicorporated by reference lo Lsle of Capri's definitive proxy statement to be tiled wilh the U-S. 
Securriies and E.xchange Commission wiihin 120 days afler the end ofthe fiscal year covered by diis report. 
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PART IV 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, F I N . V N ' C I A L S T A T E M E N T SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K 

The following documents are filed as part ofthis Form 10-K. 

(a) Consolidaled financial statements filed as partof this report are listed under Part H, Item 8. 

(b) The exhibits listed on the "Index to Exhibits" are filed with this report or incoipofated by reference as sel forth below-

All odier schedules arc omitted because they arc not applicable or not required, or because the required information is included in the consolidaled 
financial statemenl or noles thereto. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) oflhe Sccuriiies Exchange Act of 1934. Ihe regislrani has duly cau.sed this rcport to be signed on ris 
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized-

Dated: June 14.2012 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

/s/yiRGINIA M.MCDOWELL 

Vri-ginia M.- McDowell, 
Chief Exeailive (Officer. President and 

Director 
Pursuanl to the requirements ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this feporthas been signed below,by.the following persons on behalf of the 

regislrani and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

f-Jated: June 14,2012 

Dated: June 14,2012 

Daicd:June 14,2012 

/SI'VIRGINIA M. MCDOWELL 

Virginia M. McDowell, 
Chief E.xec-utive Officer, President and 

-Director 
(Principal Executive Officer) 

/s/DALE R. BLACK 

Dale R, Black, 
•Chief Financial Officer 

(Principai Financial and Accounling 
Officer) 

lnl JAMES B. PERRY 

Dated: June 14, 2012 

Daled: June 14,2012 

James B. Perry, 
E.xecutive Chairman oflhe Board 

/s/ROBERT S. GOLDSTEIN 

Robert S- Goldsierii, 
Vice Chairman ofthe Board 

Isl W. RANDOLPH BAKER 

W. Randolph Baker, 
Direcior 

Dated: June 14,2012 /s/ALAN J. GLAZER 

Alan J. Glazer, 
Direcior 
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Dated: June 14,2012 

Dated: June 14,2012 

Dated: June 14,2012 

Daled: June 14,2012 

./s/JEFFREY D. GOLDSTEIN 

Jeffrey D. Goldsterii, 
Direcior 

Is/ RICHARD A. GOLDSTEIN 

Richard A. Goldstein, 
Direcior 

/s/GREGORY J. KOZICZ 

Gregory J. Kozicz, 
Direcior 

WSCOTTE. SCHUBERT 

Scott E. Schubert. 
Director 

Daled: June 14,2012 /s.'LEES. WIELANSKY 

Lee S. Wielansky, 
Director 

93 



T a h l e o f Contents 

INDEX TO EXHIBITS 

KXHIBIT 
MJ.MBKR DF.SCRIP'llON 

2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated March 4, 2012, by and among Golden Nugget Biloxi, Inc., as Buyer, 
and Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc., as Seller, arid Riverboat Corporation ofMississippi (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit lO.l to the Curreni Report on Form'8-K filed on March 8,2012) 

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorpbniliori of Isle ofCapri Casriios, Inc. (Incorporated by 
referenccto Exhibit 3.1 lothe Annual Report on'Form IO-K filed on June 16; 2011) 

3.2 Byla-ws, as amended (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3:1 to the Curreni Report on Form 8-K filed 
on June 25.2010) . / 

4.1 Indenture, dated as of March 3, 2()04; among Isle ofCapri Casriios, Inc., the subsidiary guarantors 
named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, as ,Ti-ustee (Incorporaled by reference to Exhibri 4.3 
to the Registration Slaterilcnl on Form S-4 filed ori May 12, 2004) 

4.2 Uidennirc, daled as of March 7, 2011, among ihc Company, the guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank 
National Association, as truslee (Incorporated by reference to E.xhibii 4.1 to the Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed on March 8, 20i 1) 

10.1 Agrccmcnl, dated January 19, 2011, by and among Isleof Capri Casinos, Inc., and Mr. Jeffrey D. 
Goldstein, .Mr..Robert S. Goldstein, Richard A.-Goldstein arid GFIL Holdings, LLC (Incorporated by 
reference Io Exhibil 10.1 to the Curreni Report on.Form 8-k filed on January 19, 2011) 

10.2 Amendment Number One to Governance Agreement, dated Februarj' 23, 2011, by and among Isle of 
Capri Casriios. Inc.. GFIL Holdings, LLC, Jeffrey D.Goldslein, Robert S, Goldslein and Richard A. 
Goldslein (Incorporaled by reference to'Exhibri lO.l to the Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q filed on 
Febniary 28, 2011) 

10,3-f Amended Casino America, Inc. 1993 Stock Option Plan (Incorporated by reference to the Proxy 
Stalemenl filed on Augusi 25, 1997) 

10.4+ Isleof Capri Casinos, Inc. 2009 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to 
Exhibri 10.1 lo die Quarteriy.Report on Fomi lO-Q filed on December 4,-2009) 

I0.5t Isle ofCapri Casinos, hic. Coiporate Level Incenlive Compensation Plan (incorporaled by rcferencc to 
Exhibri lO-I to die Quarteriy Report on Form 10-Q filed on December 3, 2010) 

10.6t Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. Dclerrcd Bonus Plan (Incorporated by reference to die Proxy Statement filed 

on Augusi 15,2000) 

I0,7t Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. Deferred Bonus Plan Code Section 409A Compliance Amendment 

I0.8t Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc.'s Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan 

I0.9f lsle ofCapri Casino, Inc. Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan Adopiion Agreement 

10, lot Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc.'s 2005 Non-cmployec Director Deferred Compensation Plan (Incorporated by 
referenccto Exhibil 10.33 to Uie Quarterly Rcport Form 10-Q filed on March I, 2005) 

lO.I l-f lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. Non-employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan 
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EXHIBIT 
.N'U.MBtR UE.SCUJPTION 

lO.I2t Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc.Medical Expense Rcimburscmcni Plan (MERP) 

10.131 ..^mended and Reslated EmploymenlAgreemenl, dated January 18, 2011, between Vri-ginia M. 
.McDowell and Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. (incorporated by reference tb Exhibit 10.2 loiheCurteni 
Report on Fomi 8TK filed on January 18, 2011) 

IO.I4t Employmenl Agreement dated as of December 3, 2007, between Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. ond Dale R. 
Black (Incorporated by reference lo,Exhibit 10. Lto the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on 
December 7, 2007) 

10.15t Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, daled January 18, 2011, between James B. Perry and 
Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibil 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K 
filed on Januaiy 18,2011) 

10.16-r Employment Agreement, diited as of July 1,'2()08, between lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. and Edmund L. 
Quatmann, Jr. (Incorporaled by reference lo Exhibit 10.18 to the Annual Report on Form IO-K filed on 
July 11.2008) • 

10.17t Isle ofCapri Casinos, bic. Employment Agrceriicrit Compliance Addendum—Dale R. Black 
(Incorporated by refercnce lo Exhibit 10.-3 to the (Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on March 6, 
2009) 

10.18t Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. Employment Agreemeni Compliance Addendum—Edmund L. Qualmaim, Jr. 
(Incoiporaled by reference to Exhibil 10.4 lo the Quarterlv Report on Form lO-Q fded on Mareh 6. 
2009) 

I0.19t Employmenl Agreement dated as of Augu.sl 6, 2009, between Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. and Eric 
Hausler (Incorporated by reference.lo Exhibit 10:19 lo die Annual Report ori F'orm 10-K/A filed on 
Junes, 2010) 

10.20t Firsi Amendmeni to Employment Agreement, dated as of June 18, 2011, between Isle ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. .and Arnold Block (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Curreni Report on 
Form 8-K filed on June 29, 2011) 

10.21-j- Form Employmenl Agreemeni for Senior Vice Piesidenis of Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. (Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibri I0.19lo die Annual Report on Fonn 10-K> filed on July 11.2008) 

10.221 Form Stock Opiion Award Agreemeni (Incorporated by reference lo Exhibil 10.20 lo the Annual Report 
on Form IO-K filed on July 11,2008) 

I0.23t Form of Restricied Stock Award Agreement (Incorporaled by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the /Xunual 
Report of form IO-K filed on June 25,2009) 

I0.24t* Form of Pertomiance Based Restricted Slock Unri Agreement 

10.25 Credit Agreement, dated as of July 26. 2007 among Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc., the Lenders listed herein, 
Credii Suisse, Cayman Island Branch', as administrative agent, issuing bank and swing line lender. Credit 
Suisse Securities (US.\) LLC. as lead arranger and bookrurintir, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and 
CIBC Worid Markels Corp,, as co-syndication agents and U.S, Bank, N.A. and Wachovia Bank, 
National Association, as co-documentation agents (Incorporated by reference lo E,xhibri 10.1 to the 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 31, 2007) 
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10.26 Security Agreement, dated as of July 26, 2007, among Isleof Capri Casinos, Ine.,*its material 
subsidiaries partj' thereto, and Credit Suisse, Cayman Lslands Branch, as Admriiismitlve Agent for and 
representative of die fmancial insiriutions pari)' lo die Credit Agreement and any Hedge Providers (as 
defined therein) (Incorporated by reference lo Exhibit 10.1 to die Current Report ori Form 8-K filed on 
July 31,2007) 

10.27 Fiisi i\mendmeni to Credii Agreement, daled as of February 17, 2010, among ihe Company, as 
borrower, the financial instimtions listed iherciri: as lenders. Credit Suisse AG, Cayman Islands Branch, 
as admin i.strative agent and the other agents referred to therein ambngTsle ofCapri Ga.sinos, lnc.,'the' 
Lenders listed therein (Incorporated by reference to Exhibil 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K 
filed on February 29, 2010) 

10.28 Second Amendmeni to Credit Agreement, dated as of Mareh, 25, 2011, among lsle of Capri 
Casinos, Ini:., as,bortower, certain subsidiaries of Isle ofCapri Casinos. Inc., Ihc financial institutions 
lisied therein, as lenders. Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as adminisirative agent (as'successor 
to Credri Suisse AG, Cayman islands Branch (Ck/a Credii Suisse, Cayiuan islands Branch)), and the 
other agents referred io therein (Incorporated by reference to lixhibil lO.l to Ihe Current Report on 
Fotm 8-K filed on Match 31, 2011) 

10.29 Biloxi Waterfront Project Lease dated May 12, 1986 widi Point Cadet Developmeni Coiporation 
(Biloxi) (incorporated by reference loan exliibil lolhe Annual Report on Form iO-K tor ihc fiscalyear 
ended April 30. 1992) 

10.30 Addendum to Lease Agreemerit, dated August I, 1992, betwet;n Ihe City of Biloxi, MissLssippi, Point 
Cadei Developmeni Corporation (Biloxi) (Incorporated by reference to an exhibit to die Annual Report 
on Form iO^K iiir.thc fiscalyear ended April 30, 1992) 

10.31 Second Addendum to Lease, dated April 9, 1994, by and between UieCily of Biloxi, Mississippi. Point 
Cadet Development Corporation, the Biloxi Port Commission and Riveiboat Corporation ofMississippi 
(Biloxi) (Incorporated by reference lo an exhibit lo the Annual Report on Form IO-K for Ihe fiscal year 
ended April 30, 1994) 

10.32 Third Addenduiii to Casino Lease, dated April 26, 1995, by and between the Cily of Biloxi, Mississippi, 
Point Cadet Development Corporation, the Biloxi Port Commission and Riverboat Corporation of 
-Mississippi (Biloxi) (Incorporated by reference to an exhibri to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for die 

-fiscalyeareiided April 30, 19̂ 95) 

10-33 HUoxi Waterfront Project Lease daled as of April 9, 1994 by and between the City of Biloxi, Mississippi 
and Riverboat Coiporalionof Mississippi (Biloxi) (Incorporated by rclerence to an exhibri to die Annual 
Report on Form 10-K forthe fiseal year ended April 30, 1994) 

10.34 First Amendmeni to Biloxi Waterfront Projeci Lease (Hotel Lease), dated as of April 26, 1995, by and 
between Riverboat Corporation of Mississippi (Biloxi) (Incorporated by refcre'nce to an exhibil to the 
Annual Report on Fonri 10-K for die fiscal yearended April 30, 1995) 

10.35 Point Cadet Compromise and Selllemenl Agreement, dated Augiisl 15, 2002, by and belween die 
Secretaryof Staleof Ihe State of Mississippi, the Cily of Biloxi, Mississippi, the Board of Tmslees of 
Slate Instilutions bf Higlier Learning and Isle ofCapn Casriios, Inc. and Rivcrboal Corporation of 
.Mississippi (Biloxi) (Incorporaled by reference lo Exhibil 10.29 lothe Annual Report on Form IO-K 
filed on July 30, 2007) 
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10.36 Biloxi Walerfroni Project Garage-Podium Lease and Eascmcnidatcdasof Augu.sl 15, 2002, by and 
beiween the Secretary' of Siale oflhe State ofMississippi, the (Tiivof Biloxi, Mississippi, Ihc Board of 
Tmstces of State Instimtions of Higher Learning and lsle ofCapri (Tasriios, Inc. and Rivcrboal 
Corporation ofMississippi (Biloxi) (Incot^ratcd by reference Io Exhibit 10.30 to the Armual Report on 
Form lO-K filed on Juty'30, 2007) 

10.37 Amended and Restated Berth Rental Agreement daied May 12, 1992 between die Biloxi Port 
Commission and Riverboat Corporation ofMississippi (Biloxi) (Incorporaled by reference lo an exhibri 
to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiseal y'car ended April 30,1992) 

10.38 Second Amendriient to Berth Rental Agreement datcd'Augusi I3,-1996, (ii) Third Amendment to Berth 
Rental .Agreement dated December 14, 1999'and (iii) Letter Agreement to Berth Rental Agreemeni dated 
October 17; 2006 (Biloxi) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to die Annual Report on Form 10-
K filed on July 30,2007) 

10.39 Agreemeni on Casino Berth Tract dated as of Augusi 15, 2002, State consented to dredging, wharfmg 
and filling by Isle of areas to reconfigure Berth Tract to accommodate a larger ganung vessel (Biloxi) 
(Incorporated by reference lo lixliibh 10.33 to the Annual Report ori Form'l 0-K filed on July 30. 2007) 

10.40 Amended and Restated Lease, daled asof April'19, 1999; among Port Resources. Inc. and CRU, Inc., as 
landlords and St. Charles Gaming Compariy, lnc;, as tenant (St.-Charles) (Incorporated by reference lo 
E.xhibri 10.28 lolhe Annual Repori on Form,10-K filed on July 02, 1999) 

10.41 Leaseof property in Coahoma, Mississippi daled as of November 16, 1993 by and among Roger Allen 
Johnson, Jr., Charles Br>'ani Johnson and Magnolia Lady, Iric. (Incbipbraled by rcferencc lo die 
Registuiion Siaiement on Form S-4/A filed June 19; 2002) 

10.42 Addendum to Lease dated as of June, 22, 1994 by and among Roger" Allen Johnson. Jr., Charles Bryant 
Jolmson and Magnolia Lady, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to'Exhibri i 0,46 to Ihc Annual Report on 
Form 10-K'filed on July,28, 2000) 

10.43 Second addendum to Lease daied as 6fOctobcr.l7.l995 by and among Roger Allen Johnson, Jr., 
Charles Biyani Jolinson and Magnolia Lady,' Inc. (Incorporaled by reference to Exhibil 10.47 to the 
Annual Report on FormdO-K filed on-.luly 28, 2000). 

10.44 .Maslcr Lease betwecri 'The City of Boonville, Missouri and lOC-Boonville. Inc. formaUv known as 
Davis Ganiing Boonville, lnc, daled as of July 18,, 1997. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,40 to 
die Annual Report on Form 1()-K. filed on July 11,2(108) 

10.45 Amendmeni lo Master Lease belween The City of Boonville, Missouri arid lOC-Boonville, Inc. formally 
known as Davis Gaming Boonville, Inc: dated as ofApril 19, 1999. (Incorporated by reference to 
Exhibri 10.41 to die AnnualReport ori Forrii l6-K filed on July 11, 2008) 

10.46 Second Amendment to Master Lease between The City of Boonville, Missouri and lOC-Roonvdle, Inc. 
formerly known as Davis Gamirig Boonville, Inc. dated as of September. 17, 2001. (Incorporaled by 
reference lo Exhibil 10.42 lo the Annual Rcport on Foim lO'-K filed on July 11,2(J08) 
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10.47 Third Amendmeni to Masicr Lease between The City of Boonville, Missouri and HX^-Boonville, tne. 
formeriy known as Gold River's Boonville Resort, Inc. and Davis Gaming Boonville; Inc. dated as of 
November 19, 2001. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.43 to ihe Annual Report on Forrii 10-K 
filed on July 11,2008) 

10.48 Amended and Restated Lease .Agreement by and belween the Port Authority of Kansas City. Missouri 
and Tenant dated a s o f Augusi 2 1 , 1995 (iniiorporated by reference tb Exhibit'10.44 to the Annual 
Report on Form 10-K filed June 25, 2(109) 

10.49 First Amendment 10 Amended and Restated Lease Agreement by and between the Port Audiority of 
Kansas Cily, Missouri and Tenant dated asof October 3 1 , 1995 (Incorporated by refercnce to 
Exhibri 10.45 to die Annual Report on Fonn'IO^K filed Ju'ne 25, 2009) 

10.50 Second Amendmeni to Amended and Restated Lease Agreement by and belween the Port Authority of 
Kansas City, Missoim and Tenant dated a so f June 10, 1996 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibil 10.46 
to die /VnnualReport on Form 10-K filed'june 25, 2009) 

10.51 Assignment arid Assumption Agreement (Leiise Agreement) belwecn'FIamingb Hilton Riverboat 
Casino, LP, Isle ofCapri Casinos, bic. and IOCi-10uisasCiiy,'Iric. dated as of June 6, 2(X)0. 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit.10.44 to the Annual Report on Forin 10-K filed on July 11;-2008) 

10.52 Lease and Agreement-Spring 1995 between Andrianakos Li mried Liabiiily Company and Isle ofCapri 
Black Hawk, LLC. dated as of Augusi :l 5. 1995. (Incorporated by, rcferencc to Exhibit 10.45 to die 
Annual Report on Form lOrKTiled ori July 11,2008) 

10.53 Addendum lolhe Lease and Agreemenl-^Spring 1995 between Andrianakos Limited Liabiiily Company 
and lsle ofCapri Black Hawk, LLC. dated as ofApril 4, 1996. (Incorporated by reference lo 
Exhibit 10.46 lo die Aiuiua! Report oivFofm.lO-K filed on July 11, 2008) 

10.54 Second Addendum to the Lease and Agrecmenl-Spring 1995'belwcen Andrianakos Lliuilcd Liabilttj' 
Company and isle of C^apri Black llawl:, LLC. dated a so f March 21 , 2003 .(Incorporated by referenccto 
Exhibil 10.47 to die Annual Report on Forrii IO-K filed on July 11.2008) 

10.55 Third Addendum to the Lease and Agrecmenl-Spring 1995 between Andrianakos Limited Liability 
Company arid Isle ofCapri Black Hawk, LLC. daiedas ofApril 22, 2003. (Incorporaled by reference to 
Exhibri 10.48 lothe Amiual Report on Form I'O-K fded on July 11,2008) 

10.56 Development Agreement by and between IOC-Cape Girardeau, LLC arid ihe City.of Cape Girardeau, 
.Missouri dated as of October 4, 2010'(Intorporated by reference to Exhibil 10.2 to the Quarterly Report 
on Fonn 10-Qfded6n;Dccember3, 2010) 

21 .1" Significant Subsidiaries of Is leof Capri Casinos, Inc. 

23-1* C o n s e m o f E m s t & Young LLP 

31,1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuanl to Rule 13a-14(a) under ihe Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934 

31-2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuanl to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Sccuriiies Exchange Act of 

1934 

3 2 - 1 ' Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U-S,C. Section 1350 

32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant lo 18 U.S.C. Seciion 1350 
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MJ.MBER nE.SCRIPriON 

99.1* Description of Goverimienlal Regulation. 

101* The foilowriig financial statements and notes from the Isleof Capri Casinos, Inc. Annual Report on 
Fomi 10-K for the year ended April 29, 20.12, filed on Junel'4,'2012. fomiatled in XBRL; (i) 
Consolidated Balance Sheets; (ii) Gonsolirkiled Slalements of Operations; (iii) Consolidated Statements 

of Stockholders' Equity; (iv) Consolidaled Statements of Cash Flows; and(v) Notes lo Consolidated 
Financial Siatemenis, lagged as blocks of text. 

* Filed herewidi, 

t ,ManagemenI contract or compensalory plan or arrangemcril. 
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Exhibit 10.24 

PERFORMANCE-BASED RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AGREEMENT 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 
2009 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN 

This Perfomiancc-Bascd Restricied Slock Unit Agreement (this "Agreemeni"), entered into as of (the "Gram 
Date"), by and between (the "Participam") and Isle,of Capri Casinus, Inc. (the "Company"). 

WITNESSETH THA T: 

WHEREAS, the Company maintains the lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. 2009 Long-Term Incenlive Plan (as may be amended 
from time to time, the "Plan"), which is incorporated into and forms a part of this Agreement, and the Participant has been selected by 
the committee administering the Plan (the "Commiitee") to receive "a Full Value Award under tlie Plan in the form ofa Restricted Stock 
Unit Award (as defined in paragraph 1 below) under the Plan; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ACJREED, by and belween Ihe Company and the Participant as follows; 

1. Award. The Company hereby grants to the Participanl, and the Participant hereby accepts, an award of restricted 
stock units ("Restricted Slock Units") with tlireshold, target and maximum numbers of , , and , respectively (the 
"Resiricted Stock Unit Award"). Each Restricted Stock Unit represents the right to receive one share of Stock (or its cash equivalent as 
provided in paragraph 3(c)(iv) below), upon the temis and subject to the conditions set forth in the Plan and this Agreement and, 
e.xcepi as provided in paragraph 3(c)(iv) below, the Restricted Slock Units which become vested andpayable under this Agreement 
will be paid to the Participanl solely in shares of Stock (subject to paymeni ofany fractional share in cash as described herein). 

2. Rights as Stockholder. Except as otherwise provided herein, the Participant shall not have any rights ofa 
stockholder with respect to the Restricted Stock Units until shares of Stock are distributed to him or her in settlement of.such 
Restricted Stock Unils. 

3. Determination of Number of Restricied Stock Units that mav be Earned: Vesting: PavmcnL 

(a) Determinarion of Number of Restricted Stock Units that mav be Earned. 

(i) Except as provided in subparagraph (ii) below or otherwise ih tHis subparagraph (i), the number 
of Restricted Stock Units that may be earned by the Participant (ihe "Hamabic Restricied Stock' Units")'shali be determined as of tlie 
Measurement Date and shall be equal to the number set forth on the chan included as E.xliibit A (die "Stock Price Chart") based on the 
Company's corresponding 90-Day Stock Price, interpolated on'a linear basis between the levels of corresponding 90-Day Stock Prices 
set forth in the Stock Price Chart, reduced by the Committee, if at all and in its sole discretion, only by applying the TSR Factor, 



Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the Participant's Date ofTi;rminalion'OCCurs prior to the Measurement Date due to 
(A) termination by the Com pany without Cause or (B) the Participant's death, Disability or Retirement. Ihe number of Earnable 
Restricted Stock Units shall be determined in accordance with the.foregbing provisions of this subparagraph (i) (including after 
application of the TSR Factor) mulliplied by a fraction (not exceeding one (I)), the numerator ofwhich shall be tlie number taf 
calendar days during the Measurement Period prior (o and including the Participant's Date of Termination and the denominator of 
which shall be the tolal number of calendar days in the Measurement Period. 

(ii) In the evenl ofthe occurrence ofa Change in Coritrol on or prior to the Measurement Dale, the 
number of Restricted Stock Unils that may be eanied by the Participant (the "ciC Earnaijlc Restricted Stock Units") shall be determined 
as ofthe date ofthe Change in Control and shall be equal to the number set forth on the Stock Price Chart based on the cbrtesponding 
Change in Control Price, interpolated on a linear basis between the levels of corresponding Change in Control Prices set forth in the 
Stock Price Chart. The number of Clil) Earnable Restricied Stock Units shall not be subject to reduction based on application ofthe 
TSR Factor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the Participanl'sDale of Tenninalion occurs prior lo a Change in 
Conlrol due to (A) termination by the Company without Cause (other than a teriiiination without Cause that occurs within thirty (30) 
days prior to such Change in Control), or (B) the Participant's death. Disability or Retirement, the number of CIC Earnable Restricted 
Stock Units shall be determined in accordance wilh the foregoing,provisions ofthis subpani graph (ii) multiplied by a fraction (noi 
exceeding one (1)), the numerator of which shall be the numberof calendar days during ihe Measurement Period prior toand 
including the Participant's Date ofTerrainadtjn and the denominator of which shall be the totiil number of calendar days in the 
Mea.surement Period, Inthe event the Participant's Dateof Terminalion occurs asaresult ofthe Participant's termination of 
employment without Cause or for Good Reason, in each case which occurs witliin thirty (30) days prior to a Change in Control, tlic 
Participant will be entitled to the CIC Earnable Restricied Stock Units determined in accordance with the first sentence of tliis 
subp;tragraph (ii) without any reduction based on applicalion of the TSR Factor or reduction based on application of the immediately 
preceding sentence. 

(iii) In no event shall the numberof Earnable Resiriclcd Stock Units or CIC Earnable Restricted Slock 
Units, as applicable, exceed the maximum number pennitted by the Plan. Any dcterminalion by Ihe Committee as to the number of 
namable Restricied Stock Units'or CIC Eamable Re.stricled Stock Units, as applicable, shall be final and binding. 

(iv) The occurrence ofa Change in Control following the .Measurement Date shall not have any effect 
on the deiemiination ofthe number of Eamable ResU-ictedStoek Units or the vesting or payment schedule thereof. 

(b) Vesiing of Earnable Restricted Stock Units and Earnable CIC Restricted Slock Units. 

(i) (A) Fifty pcrccnt(50%) of the Eamable, Restricted Stock Units shall become immediately vested 
as ofthe Measurement Date and (B) the remaining fift>' percent (50%) ofthe Eamable Restricted Stock Units shall become vested 
upon the one-year anniversaiy ofthe Measuremeni Date provided that Ihe Participant's Date of Termination does not bccin-



prior to such one-year anniversary other than due to (1) termination by the Company williout Cause or (II) ihe Participiint's death, 
Disabilily or Retirement. 

(ii) (A) Fifty percent (50%) ofthe CIC Eamable Restricted Stock Units shall become immediately 
vested upon a Change in Conlrol and (B) the remaining fifty "percent (50%) of the CIC Eamable Restricted Stock;Units shall become 
vested upon the one-year anniversar>' of such,Change in Control provided that ihe Participant's Date of Termination does not occur 
prior to such one-year anniversary other than due to (I) tenninalion,by Ihe Company without Cause, (II) the Participant's death, 
Disability or Retirement, or (111) the Participant's voluntary termination of employment for Good Reason during the time period 
specified in paragraph I8(i)). 

(c) Payment of Restricted Stock Units. 

(i) (A) The fifty percent (50%) of the.Eamable Restricted Stock Units that have vested on the 
Measuremeni Date in accordance with paragraph (b) and that have nol been.forfeited shall be paid to the Participant within sixty (60) 
days following the Measurement Date, and (B) the remaining fifty percent (50%) ofthe Eamable Restricted Stock Units ihal have 
vested on the one-year anniversary of the Measurement Date in accordance with paragraph (b) and that have not been forfeited shall -
be paid to the Participant within si,xty (60) days following the one-year anniversai-y oflhe Measurement Date. 

(ii) If a Change in Conlrol occurs, except as provided in subparagraph (iii) below, (A) the fifty 
percent (50%) ofthe CIC Eamable Restricted Stock Units thiit have vested on the Change in Control in accordance with paragraph 
(b) and that have not been forfeited shall be paid lb the Participant within sixty (60) days following the Measurement Date, and (B) the 
remaining fifty percent (50%).of the CIC Eamable Reshicted Stock Units that have vested on the one year anniversary oflhe Change 
in Control in accordance wilh paragraph (b) and that have not been forfeited shall be paid to the Participant within sixty (60) days 
following the one-year, anniversary ofthe Measurement Date, 

(iii) If a Change in Conlrol occurs and provided that the Change in Conlrol also constilules'a change 
iri conlrol event pursuarit to Treasury Regulations section l,409A-3(i)(5)(v) (a "409ACIC"), (A) the fit^'percent (50%) oflhe CIC 
Eamable Restricied Slock Unhs that have vested on the Change in Control in accordanee with paragraph (b) and thai have not been 
forfeited shall be paid to the Participant wiihin sixty (60) days fbllowing Ihe,date ofthe 409A CIC, antJ (B) the remaining fifty percent 
(50%) ofthe CIC Eamable Restricted Stock Units thai have,vested on Ihe one-year anniversary oflhe Change in Controlin 
accordance wilh paragraph (b) and that have not been forfeited shall be,paid to the Participanl within sixty (60) days following the 
one-year anniversary of the 409A CIC. 

(iv) All CIC Earnable Rcslriclcd Slock Units that have vested in accordancewith paragraph (b) and 
that have nol been forfeited shall be payable solely in cash: The amount of cash payable in respect of vested CIC Eamable Resiricted 
Slock Units shall be based on the Change m'Conlrol Price. In addition, all Eamable.Restricted Stock Units that have vested in 
accordance with paragraph (b) and that have nol been forfeited shall be paid in cash 



based on the Change in Control Price if a Change in Conlrol occurs before payment is made for such vested Eamable Restricted Slock 
Units. 

4. Terminalion of Employment. Upon ihe Participant's Dale of Termination that results from termination of 
employment ofthe Participant for any reason other than (i) the Participant's termination of employment by the Company without 
Cause, (ii) the Participant's death: Disability or Retirement or (iii) the Participant's tenninalion of employmenl for Good Reason 
during Ihe time period specified in paragraph I8(i); the Participanl shall forfeit any ilien unvested Restricied-Stock Units and such 
Restricted Stock Units will terminate for no value. 

5. Adjustments lo Share.s. In the event ofa corporate transaction involving the Company (including, without 
limitation, any stock dividend, slock split, extraordinary cash dividend, recapilalization, reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-
up, spin-off, combination or exchange bf shares), the Commiitee shall adjust the Restricted Stock Unit Award (including any Eamable 
Restricied Stock Units and CIC Eamable Restricted Stock Units) to preserve the benefits or potential benefits thereof by adjusting the 
number and kind of shares subject to the Restricted Stock Unit Award, the price and kind of shares used in determining die,90-Day 
Stock Price, and the price and kind of shares used in calculating the Company's TSR. Nothing herein isintended lo liriiit the 
Committee's discrerion to make adjustments pursuant to the terms of Section 4.3 of the Plan (orany successor thereto). 

6. Section 409A. It is intended ihat the provisions ofthis Agreement comply wilh section 409A qf die Code, and all 
provisions ofthis Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in a manner consistent with the requirements of section 409A ofthe 
Code. No changes shall be made to the Restricted Slock Unit Award, incliidingbut not limited to the payment dates set forth in 
paragraph 3(c), unless such changes comply wilh section 409A of the Code and the regulations thereunder. 

7. Compliance with Applicable Laws; Limits on Dislrihiilion. 

(a) Compliancewith Securities Law.s. If the Participant is subject to Section 16(a) and 16(b) oflhe 
Exchange Act, the Committee may, at any time,,add .such condiiions and limitaiions to any of the Resiricted Stock Units (or the shares 
of Slock upon payment of tlie Restricted Slock Unit Award) as the Committee, in its sole discretion, deems necessary or desirable to 
comply wilh Section 16(a) or 16(b) ofthe Exchange Act and ihe rtiles and regulations thereunder or to obtain any cxeriiptibn 
therefrom. 

(b) Certificates; Cash in Lieu of Fractional Shares. To die extent that the Plan or this Agreement provides 
for is.suance of certificates to reflect the paj-ment of ihc Resiricted StockUriii Award, the transfer of such shares may be effected on a 
non-certificated basis, lo the extent not prohibited by applicable law or Ihe niles ofany securities cxchangcorsimilar enlily. In lieu of 
issuing a fraction ofa share of Stock pursuantto Ihe Plan or this Agreement, the Company may pay io the Participant an amount equal 
to the Fair .Market Value of such fractional share. 



(c) Lock-Up Period. The Participant hereby agrees thai, if so requested by the Company or any 
representative oflhe underwriters (the "Managing Underwriter") in connection with any registration oflhe offering ofany secuf-itics of 
the Company under the Securities Act of 1933. as amended (the "Securities Act"), the Participant shal! not sell or otherwise transfer any 
Slockorother seeurilies oflhe Company during the 180-day period.'or such olher period as may be requested iii writing by the 
Managing UndepATiter and agreed to in writing bj; the Company (the "Markel Standoff Period") following the effective date of a 
registration statement ofthe Company filed under the Securities Act. Such a-striction shail apply only lo the first registration 
statement ofthe Company to become effective under the Securities Aci that includes securities to be sold on behalf of ihe Compariy to 
the public in an underwrillen public offering under the SecuritiesAct. The Company may împose stop-transfer iastmctions with 
respect to securities subjectto the foregoing restrictions until'the end of such Market Standoff" Period. 

8. Withholding. The granl, vesting and payment oflhe Restricied Stock Unit-Award under this Agreement shall be 
subject to withholding of all applicable laxes. Such withholding obligations shall be satisfied ihrough the surrenderof shares of Stock 
or the deduction of cash payments lo which the Participant is othcrA'is'c entitled under the Plan; provided, however, that such shares 
may be used,to satisfy not more than the Company's minimum statiUory withholding obligation (based on minimum statutory 
withholding rates for Federal and s^te lax purposes, including payroll taxes, that are applicable to such supplemental taxable income). 

9. Nontransferability-. Neither the Restricted Stock Units nor any interest or righl therein or part thereof may be sold, 
assigned, transferted, pledged or otherwise encumbered in any manner otherwise than by wiil or by the laws of descent or distribution. 

i 0, Heirs and Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure iq the benefit of, the Company and its 
successors and assigns, and upon any person acquiring, wheiher by, merger, consolidation, purchase ofassels or otherwise, all or 
substantially all ofthe Company's assets and business. If any rights exercisable by the Participant or benefits deliverable to the 
Participant under this Agreemeni have not been exercised or delivered, respectively, at the time of the Participant's dealh, such rights 
shall be exercisable by the Designated Beneficiary, and such benefitsshall be delivered to the Designated Beneficiary, in accordance 
wilh the provisions ofthis Agreement and the Plan. 

11. Administration. The authority to manage and control the operation and administration ofthis Agreement shall be 
vested in die Committee, and the Committee sliall have all powers with respect lo this Agreement as it has wiih respect to the Plan. 
Any interpretation ofthe Agreement by the Committee and any decision made by il with respeci lo Ihc Agreemeni is final and binding 
on all persons. 

12. Plan Governs. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the terms ofthis Agreement shall be 
subjectto the terms oflhe Plan, a copy of which may be obtained by the Participanl from ihe office ofthe Secretary ofthe Companv 
and this Agreement is subjecl to all inlerprelalions, amcndiricnts, mles and regulations promulgated by the Committee from time to 
lime pursuanl lo the Plan. 



13. Not An Employmenl Contrncl or Contract of Continued Service. The grant of Restricied Slock Unils pursuant 
lo this Agreemeni will not confer on the Participant ariy right with respeci lo continuance of employment or other service with the 
Company or any Affiliate, nor will it interfere in any way wiih any right the Company,br any Affiliate would otherwise have to 
terminate or modify the terms of such Participant's employmenl or olher service al any time.' 

14. Amendmeni. This Agreement may be amended in accordance with the provisions oflhe Plan and may otherwise 
be amended by written agreemeni ofthe Participant arid the (Company without the consent ofany other pcrson. 

15. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision ofthis Agreement shall not affecl the validity or 
enforceability ofany other provision ofthis Agreement and each other provision ofthis Agreement shall be severable and enforceable 
to the extent permitted by law. 

16. Applicable Law. The provisions of this Agreement shall be con.strucd in accordance with the laws ofthe State of 
Delaware, without regard to the conflict of law provisions of any jurisdiction. 

17. Entire Agreemeni. The Plan antl this Agreement constitute all oflhe terms with respeci lo the subject matter 
hereof and supersede in their entirety all prior undertakings and agrecirierits ofthe Company and the Participant with respect to the 
subjecl matter hereof, including bul not limited any employrneni agreement between the Participant and the (Tompany. 

18. Definitions. For purposes of ihis Agreement, words and plirases used in this Agreement shall be defined as 
follows: 

(a) 90-Dav Stock Price. The lerm "90-Day Stock Price" means, the average ofthe closing market prices ofthe 
Slock on the principal exchange on which the stock is traded for the riinety (90) calendar day period ending with the Measurement 
Date. 

(b) Beginning Price. The tenn "BcginningPrice" means the average ofthe closing market prices ofa 
company's common stock on the principal exchange ou which such slock is traded for the ninety (90) calendar day period ending with 
Ihc first day ofthe Measurement Period. 

(c) Cause- theterm "Cause" shall mean any (i) dishonesty, disloyalty or breach of corporate policies,in each 
case that is material to the ability oflhe Participant to coniinue lo function as ail effective executive given the strict regulatory 
slandards ofthe industry in which the Company.does business;,(ii) gross misconduct on the part ofthe Participant in the performance 
ofthe Participant's duties (as determined bythe Board); (iii) the Participant's termination for cause under-pursuant to the terms ofhis 
or her employment agreement with the Company, (iv) if applicable, the Participant's failiirc to be licensed as a key person' or similar 
role under Ihe laws ofany jurisdiction where Ihe Company does business, orthe toss ofany such license for any reason, or(v) the 
Participant's repeated poor performance. 



In order lo terminate for Cause pursuant to subparagraphs (i)-(iv) above with respect to an evenl or circumstance 
Ihal may be cured during a ten (10) day period, the Board must give the Participanl advance written notice of the event or 
circumstance giving rise to the Company's ability lo terminate the Participant's employment for Cause and a ten (10) day period 
following the date ofthe written notice to cure such event or circumstance lo the Board's reasonable satisfaction. In order to terminate 
for Cause under subparagraph (v) above, (x) the Board must give the Participant advance wrilten notice oflhe repeated poor 
performance setting forth the specific details ofthe poor perfoVmance arid a ninety (90) day period following the date ofthe written 
notice lo cure such poor performance to the Bo;u-d's reasonable satisfaction and (y) such termination must occur prior lo the firsi lo 
occur of the Measuremeni Dale or a Change in Control. 

(d) Change in Conlrol Price. The term "change in Control Price" shall mean the highest price per share of 
Stock paid in a transaction or evenl that results in a Change inControl. 

(e) Date of Termination. The term "Date of Termination" means, the first day occurring on or after ihc Granl 
Date ou which the Participant is not employed by theCompany or any Affiliate, regardless ofthe reason for the termination of 
employment. Not\vithstanding the foregoing, a termination of employment shall not be deemed to occur by reason ofa transfer ofthe 
Participant between the Company and ao Affiliate or betwceri two Affiliates, and ihe Participant's employmenl shall not be considered 
terminated while the Participant is on a leave of absence from the Company or an Affiliate approved by the Board. 

(() Designated Beneficiary. The'"Designated Beneficiary" shall be the beneficiary or beneficiaries designated 
by the Participant in a writing filed with the Committee in .such form and at such time as the Committee shall require. If a deceased 
Participant fails to designate a beneficiary, or if the Designated Beneficiary does not survive the Participant, any rights that would 
have been cxerci.sablc by die Participant and any benefits disfributablclo the Participanl shall be exercised by or disri-ibutcd lo the 
legal representative ofthe estate of.the Participant. If a deceased Participant designates a beneficiary and the Designated Beneficiary 
survives the Participant but dies beifore the Designated Beneficiary's exercise of all rights under this Agreement or before the complete 
distribution of bcricfils to.lhe Designated Beneficiary under lliis Agreemeni, then any rights that would have been exercisable by the 
Designated Bericficiary shall be exercised by tlic legal representative ofthe estate ofthe Designated Beneficiary, and any benefits 
distributable lo the Designated Beneficiary shall be distributed to Ihe legal representative ofthe estate ofthe Designated Beneficiary. 

(g) Di.sabilih'. The Participant shall be deemed to have a "Disability" if, by reason ofa medically-deierminablc 
physical or mental impairment that can be expecied to result in dcaUi or to last for a continuous period of al least twelve (12) months, 
(i) the Participant is unable to engage iri any substantial gainful employment, or (ii) has been receiving benefits the Company's 
separate long-term disabihty plan for a period of at least three months. The Board shall certify whether the Participanl has a Disability 
as defined herein. 

(h) Ending Price. The lerm "Ending Price" means the average oflhe closing market prices ofa company's 
common stock on the principal exchange on which .such 



slock is traded for the ninety (90) calendar day period ending wilh the last day oflhe Measuremeni Period, or if applicable, for the 
ninety (90) calendar day period ending wilh the Last trading C>ay. 

(i) Good Rea.son. The Participant's terminalion shall be considered to be for "Good Reason" if the Participant 
terminates his pr her employment with the Company widiin thirty (30) days prior the occurtcnce ofa Change in Control or upon or 
wiihin twelve (l2) months after a Change in Coritrol following (i) a,significant reduction in the Participanl's authority, responsibilities, 
position or compensation or (ii) a maierial relocation ofthe principal place at which the Participant performs services for the 
Company, but in no evenl less than thirty-five (35) miles from the principal place at which the Participant performs such services 
immedialely prior to the Change iri Control, in either case which the Company has failed to remedy wiihin thirty (30) days after 
receipt ofthe Participant's written notice ihereof. 

(j) Last Trading Dav. t h e term "Last Trading Day" shall mean the last day on which the stock ofa Non-

Public Peer Group Company (as defined in subparagraph (p)(ii),below) is publicly traded. 

(k) Measuremeni Dale. The term "Measurement Dale" shal! mean April 26. 2015. 

(I) .Measurement Period. The term "Measurement Period" means the period commencing on the Grant Date 
and ending on ihe Measurement Date. 

(m) Peer Group Companies. The term "Peer Group Companies" means Ameristar Casinos, Inc., Boyd Gaming 
Corporation, Penn National Gariiing, Inc., Pinnacle Eritertainmcnt, Inc., arid MTR Gaming Group, Inc. 

(n) Retirement. The term "Rctiremcni",shall mean the lerrnination by a Participanl ofhis employment after 
attaining age sixty-five (65) and completing at least three (3) years of service with the Company or its Affiliates. 

(o) TSR. The term "TSR" means compound annual total stockholder relum ofa company and shall be 
determined by dividing: (i)the sum of (x) Ihe Ending Price less the Beginning Price plus (y) all dividends and other distributions paid 
on such company's common stock during the .Measurement Period (or the period commencing on the Grant Dale and ending on the 
Lasl Trading Dav, if applicable) by (ii) the Beginning Price. Any non-cash distributioiis paid on such company's common.stock during 
the Measurement Period shallbe ascribed such dollar value as may be determined by or at the discretion ofthe Committee. 

(p) TSR Faclor. "TSR Factor" shall be determined as follows after giving effect to subparagraphs (i)-
(iii) below: If. as of the Measurement Date, the Company's TSR ranks last among Ihc TSRs oflhe Cpmpany and the Peer Group 
Companies and (x) the Company's 90-Day Slock Price is less than Si LOG, tlie Committee may, in its sole discretion, reduce the 
number of otherwise Eamable Restricied Stock Units to any numbcT but not below zero (0) or (y) the Company's 90-Day Stock Price 
is $11,00 or greater, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, reduce the number of Eamable Restricted Stock Units by up to seventy-
five percent. 
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(i) If the common slock ofany company included iti the Peer Group Companies ceases to be publicly 
traded during the Measurement Period on or prior lo Noveriiber I, 2013, such company shall be excluded from the final TSR Faclor 
calculalion. 

(ii) If the common stock ofany company included in the Peer Group Companies ceases to be 
publicly traded during the Measurement Period after November 1, 2013 (a "Nnn-Pubiic Peer Group Company"), for purposes of 
deiermining the Company's TSR as compared to such Non-Piiblit;;Peer Group Company's TSR, the TSRs of bolh sueh companies 
shall be measured as ofthe Last Trading Day ofthe applicable Non-Public Peer Group Company, 

(iii) If,"as oflhe Measurement Dale, the number of companies remaining in Ihe Peer Group 
Companies is fewer than three due to the applicalion of subparagraph (i) above, in lieu of measuring Ihe Company's TSR against tlie 
TSRs oflhe Peer Group Companies, die TSR Factor shall be determined based on Ihe Company's TSR percentile ranking among the 
TSRs for the cimipanies comprising the Russell 2000'Indcx as follows:' If, as of the Measurement Dale, the Company's TSR 
percentile ranking among the TSRs forthe companies comprising,the=Russell 2000 Index as ofthe Measurement Date is in the bottom 
quartile of die Russeir20G0 Index, and (A) the Company's 90-pay Stock Price is less than $11.00, the Committee may,'in its sole 
discretion, reduce the number of Earnable Reslricied Stock Units lo'any iiumber bul not below zero (0) or (B) Ihc Company's 90-Pay 
Slock Price is Sl 1.00 or greater, the Commiliee may, in ii.s sole discreiion, reduce the number of Eamable Restricied Stock Units by 
up to seventy-five percent. 

(q) Plan Definitions. Excepi where ihe context clearly implies or indicates tlie contrary, a word, lerm, or 
phrase used in the Plan is similarly used in this Agreement, 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused Ihese presents to be executed in its name and on iis behalf, all as ofthe 
Granl Date. 

Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. 

By: 

Its: Chief Executive Officer 

By accepting this Agreement, the Participant acknowledges ihal he or she has received and read, and agrees that Ihis 
Restricied Stock Unit Award shall be subjecl to, the terms of this Agreement and Plan. 

Name of Participant 
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SIGMFlCAiVI SUBSIDIARIES OF ISLE OF CAPRI CASLNOS. LNC. 

K-Vhibil2Ll 

WHOLLV-OWNEU SUBSUHARIES :S'rATK OFlNCORrORATION 
Black'Hawk Holdriigs, L;L,G^ 
Capri Insurarice Company 

. - 1 ; * ^ _Col6'rad6^ 
Hawaii 

CCSC'Bla6k.hawk„!ric3'"^"%'...'^^^ 
IC Holdings Colorado, Inc. 
— . - "r-.^7,';T'.i«:a'; 

Colorado 

-Ivl^-J 

iOC;Black Hawk pi5lriBution.Compaliy,:Ll-Ci 
lOC-Boonvillc, Inc. 

• ^ T -

. Nevada 
[OG::Carud!ersville,, UiL-Ca 
lOC-Kansas City, Inc. 
lOCiLula. I n c t ^ i J ^ 
lOC-Naichez, Inc. 

•r - . ' ' • > . ^ ' ^ ;',Missburi'^„-^„-n, 
Missouri 

•y^^^^^rJ '^^- .^^^iMiss iss iupi 'H^ ,-? • — " . • ' > 

- • Mississippi' 

-.:^ 10GA'icksburg,'liic:_l 
IOC-Vri;kshmg, LL-C. 
lOCBIack Hatt^'.Coiiniy,Unc,-i "" 
IOC Cape Girardeau, LLC 
lOC: Davenport.-IncJ^ '̂ '*/'' 
IPC lioldriiss. L.L.C. ^ 
IOC-PA, L:.[-'x5;2m2"l 
10C_Scrviccs, L . L ^ _̂  
I s |c (if,Gapri ;B7nendb'rfj=.L.C-? 

i : ^ 

I:J2 

•Delaware^ 
Delaware 

'g-7WJ-;i'ii',--g~ 

Missouri 

J^fi i. 

•wy* 

w •J « ;•«?.. - . t > 
n ™ -

«;-U_A. 

. lowa^ ^ 
Louisiana 
Pennsylvania; -M - ̂  
Delaware 

Isje ofCapri Benendorf Marina Corporation 'lowa , 
Isle'of Capri Black'HriwLll'L.C:-;',-;^: ' - ' ' CblbradQ, •;;,_: .4^, 
lsle of Capri Black Hawk Capiial Corp. Color.idQ 
Isle.of.Gapri Marquene.-inc.^.''....^'^f.^ ,,,.̂  .J 'ilowa^:'...ia.-'' 
PPI, be . _ _ -__-- , Florida _____ 
Rariibow_Casirio:,Vicksbi]rg'Paj1nership,'LlI^,'_: ' Mississippi ̂ '',';;;",,'% 
Riverboat Corporation of .Vlississippi 
Riverboat_Seryices,''Iric.'''"^"-^^;^.':^^' ?•, '. ..̂  
Sl: Charles Gaming Company, Inc. 

Mississippi 

Louisiana 
•^'A. 1..^:-.. 
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SIGiNIFICVNT SUBSIDIARtKS OF ISLE OF C.\PRI CASINOS. INC. 
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Exhibit 23,1 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

Wc consenl to the incorporation by reference in the following Regisiralion Statements: 

(1) RcgistTdtion Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-160526) of Isle of Capri Casinos. Inc., 

(2) RcgislrdlionSlatement (Form S-« Nos.-33-61752, 33-80918, 33-86940, 333-50774.333-50776, 333-77233,333-111498, 333-123233, 
333-153337. and 333-163543) of Isle ofCapri Casinos. Inc. 

of our reports dated June 14, 2012, widi respect lothe consolidaled financial statements and schedule of isle ofCapri Casinos, lnc,, and the effectiveness of 
interna! conlrol over financialreporting, of Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. included in diis Annual Report (Form lU-K.) for ihe fiscal yearended April 29, 2012. 

/s/Hmsi & Young LLP 

St. Louis, Missouri 
Jun'e'l4, 2012 
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Exhibit 31.1 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVEOFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE i3A-14(A) 
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCH.VNGE ACT OK 1934 

L Virginia M. McDowell, Chief Executive Officer of Isleof Capri Casriios, Inc., certify Ihai: 

1. I have reviewed ihis annual reporl on Form 10-K. of lsle ofCapri Casinos, Inc.; 

2. Based on ray knowledge, ihis report does noi contain any untnie slalcnienl ofa material tact oromit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
Slatemenls made, rii light of the ciicumslances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report: 

3. Based on my knowledge, die financial staieriients, and other financial information included rii this repon, fau-ly present in all material respects die 
financial condition, results of operaiioas and cash flows oflhe registrant as of, and for, the periods "presenled in ihis report: 

4. The registrant's other certifying ofiicer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure conlruls and pnacedures (as defined in 
Exchange Acl Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and riilernal conlrol over financial rcponing (as defined in LxchangeAct Rules 13a-15(f) and I5d-I5(f)) forthe 
registrant and have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and pmccdu'res, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures lo be designed under bur suf)cr\'ision, lo 
ensure that material informalion relaiirig lothe regislrani. iricluding its consolidaled subsidiaries, is ri'iade known to us by others wiihin thoseeniriics, 
particularly during the period hi which this report is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such internal control over financial rcponing, or.caused such intemal,coriiroi overfinancial reportirig to be designed under our 
supervision, lo provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the prepaVation of financial statements for external 
purposes ril accordance wilh generally accepied accounting principles: 

(c) iivaluaied the eftccdvcriess oflhe registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
efiTectivencss of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of die end oflhe period covered by this,report based on such evaluadon; and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's iniernal coritrol overfinancial reporting thai occurred durriig the registrant's first fiscal 
quarter thai has maierially affecled, or is reasonably likely lo ninierially aficei, the registr.int's internal control overfinancial reporting; and 

5. The rcgislrant's olher certify irig officer and 1 have disclosed, based ori our most recent evaluation of internal co'nlrol over financial ieporling, lo die 
registrant's auditors and the audri commiliee of regisu-ant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalenl functions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in ihc design or operation of intcnial control over financial reporting which are reasonably 
likely lo adversely alTcct ihe regisu-ani's abiliiy lo record, process, summarize and report finaricial infomiation: and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves managemeni or other employees who have a significani role in the registrant's iniemal 
conlrol over financial reporting. 

Dale: June 14. 2012 /s/ VIRGINIA M. .MCDOWKLL 

Virgiiua M. McDowell 
Chief Executive Ofiicer 
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Exhibit 31,2 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FLNANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE i3A-l4(A) 
UNDER THE SECURITIES KXCHANCH ACTOF 1934 

I, DaleR, Black, Chief Financial Officer of lsle ofCapri Ciisinos, hic, cerdfy dial: 

1. 1 have reviewed this armual report on Form IO-K of Isleof Capri Casinos, Inc.; 

2, Based on ray knowledge,.this reporl does nol conlain any unUiie .stalemenl ofa maierial fact orbmil to slate a material fact neces.sary to make the 
slalements made. In light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, nol misleading with respect to the period covered by this repoH; 

.3. Based on my knowledge, the finaricial staieriients, and other financial information uicluded in this report,-fairly presenl in all maierial respecls the 
financial condition, results ofoperalions and cash flows ofthe registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's olher certifying ofTiccr and I are responsible for establishing and mainiariiing disclosure conuols and procedures (as defined in 
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(c) iind isd-i 5(e)) and intemal control overfinancial reporiing (as defined rii"lixchange Act Rules 13a-l 5(f) and 15d-15(f)) forthe 
registrant and have: 

(a). Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to 
ensure that material informalion "relating to the registrant, includirig iis cnnsolidated sub'^idiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, 
particularly durriig the period ui which this report is being prepared: 

(b) Designed such iniemal conlrol over financial reponing, bf caused such internal conlrol over financial reporting lo be designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the" reliabiliiy of financial reporting and the preparation of financial staiemenis for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting prriiciples; 

(e) Evaluated die effectiveness ofthe legislranl's disclosrirc controls and,proccdures'and presented in ihis report our conclusions about the 
effeclrveness oi the disclosure controls and procedures, asof the end ofthe period covered by ihis report based on such evaluadon: and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regisirant's internal control over financial reporting thai occurred durriig the registrant's first fiscal 
quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrani's internal conlrol overfinancial reporting; and 

5. The rcgisU^ni's other cerdfy-ing ofiicer and 1 have disclosed, based bri our, most recenl evaluatibri of internal conUol over financial rcponing, to the 
registrant's auditors and die audit committee of regisu^nfs board of dircciors (or persons performing the equivalenl functions): 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operafion of mtemal control over" financial reportuig which are reasonably 
likely lo adversely affect the regisu-ani's ability to record, process, sumniari;^c and report firiancial informalion; and 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thai riivolvcs management or other cmployccsWho have a significani role in the registrant's internal 
control over financial reporting. 

Date: June 14, 2012 - /s/ DALE R. BLACK 

Dale R. Black 
Chief Financial Officer 
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E-\hibh32.I 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF l-LXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUAN F TO SECTION 906 OF 
THE SARB,\NES-OXLEV ACT OF 2002 (18 U,S.C. SECTION 1350) 

In coimection with die Annual Repon of lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K forthe period endedApril 29, 2012. as filed wilhlhe 
Securities and Exchange Commission ori the date hereof (the "Arinual Report"),'!, Vri-ginia M. McDowell, Chief Execuiive Ofticer of the Company, certify, 
pursuanl to Seciion 906 oflhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Seciion 1350), dial: 

(1) The Amiual Report fully complies wilh the requirements of Section 13(a)of die Securities Exchange Actof 1934; and 

(2) The information contained in the Annual Report fairly presents, in all material respecls, the financial condilion and results of operation ofthe 
Company. 

Date: June 14,2012 /s/VIRGINIA .M. MCDOWELL 

Va-giiua M. McDowell 
Chief Execuiive Officer 
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Exhibil 32.2 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT IO SECIION 906 OF 
THE SARB.\NES::OXLEV ACT OF 2002 (18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350) 

In cunncctiun widi die Annual Reportof isleof Capri Casinos, inc. (die "Company") on Fomi 10-Kforlhe period ended April 29, 2012 as filed widi the 
Sccuriiies and Exchange Coriimission on the date hereof (ihe "Annual Rcport"), I, Dale R. Black, Chief FriiancialOfTicrer ofthe Company, certify, pursuanl to 
Seciion 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Seciion 1350), dial: 

(1) The Armual Report fiilly complies with the requirements of Secdon 13(a) of die Securifies Exchange'Actof 1934: and 

(2) The infomiation contained in the Annual Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condidbn and results of operadon ofthe 
Company. 

Date: June 14, 2012 kl DALE R; BLACK 

Dale R: Black., 
Chief Financial Officer 
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Exhibit 99.1 

DESCRIPTION OF GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS 

The ownership and operation of casino gaming facilities arc subjecl lo extensive state and local regulations.: We are required la obiain and maintain 
gaming licenses in each oflhefiirisdictions in which we conduct gaming. The limitation, conditioning or suspension ofgaming liceti.ses could (dnd the 
reviicaiion or non-renewdl'ofgaming licenses, or the failure to reauthorize gaming in certain fiirisdicdons,wijuld)_matcrially aiEersely affecl oiir dperdtidn 
in that jurisdiction. In addiiion, changes in law that resirici or prohibit our gaming operations in any juri.sdiction could have a material adverse effecl on us. 

Colorado 

The Stale of Colorado created the Division of Gaming ("Colorado Division") wiihin the Depjirtmenl of Revenue to license, impleruerii, regulate and 
supervise the conduci of limited ganiing under the Colorado Limited Gaming Act. Tlie Director of die Colorado Division ("Colorado Director"), pursuant to 
regulations promnlgaied by, and subject to the review of, a five-nicmber Colorado Limited Gaming Control Commission ("Colorado Commissions)^ has been 
granled broad power to ensure compliance widi die Colorado gamirig laws arid regulations (collectively, the "Colorado Regulations")! The Colorado Director 
may inspect without nofice, irnpound or remove any gaming device. TlieColorado Director niay^exaniuie and copy any licensee's records, may investigate Ihe 
background and conduci of licensees and their employees, and may bring disciplinary actions against licensees and their emplbyces. The Colorado Direcior 
may also conduct detailed background riivcsiigafions of persons who loan money to, or otherwise provide financing to, a licensee. 

The,Colorado Conmiission is empowered to issue five types ofgaming and gaming-relaled licenses, and has delegated auihorit)' to Ihc Colorado Director 
to issue cenarii types of licenses and approve certain changes rii ownership. The licenses 'are revocable and non-lransi'erable. The failure orinability ofthe Isle 
ofCapri Black Hawk, LLC or CCSC/Blackhawk, Inc; (each, a "Colorado Casino" or collectively, die "Colorado Casriios"), or die failure or inability of others 
associated with any ofthe Colorado Casinos, including us, lo maintain ricce.'isary gaming licenses' or approvals would have a riiaieriat ad\'ersc effect on our 
operadons. All persons employed by any oflhe Colorado Casinos, and involved, directly.or indirectly, rii gamiiig operadons'in Colorado also are required to 
obtain a Colorado gaming license. Ail licenses musl be renewed every two years. As a general rule, under die Colorado Reguladons, no person may have an 
"owriership interest" in more than three retail gaming licenses in Colorado. The Colorado (Commission has mled that a person does nol have .in ownership 
interest in a retail gaming licensee for purpo,scs oflhe multiple license prohibriion if:' 

• dial person has less than a 5% ownership interest in an insiiiuiional invcslor that has an ownership intercsi in a publicly traded licensee or 
publicly traded company attlliatcd widi a licensee; 

' a personhas a 5% or more ownership interest in an inslimiional investor, but the insiitutional investor has less.lhan a 5% ownership inieresi in a 
publicly traded licensee or publicly Iraded coriipany ufiilialed wilh a licensee; 

• an insdmiional investor has less than a 5% ownership interest in a publicly traded licensee or publicly traded company affiliated widi a licensee; 

an insiitutional investor possesses voling securities in a fiduciary capacity foranother person, and does not exercise voting conUoI over 5% or 
more oflhe oulstanding voting seeurilies ofa publicly traded licensee or ofa publicly traded company afl'ilialed with a licensee; 



a registered broker or dealer retariis possession of voting seeurilies ofa publicly traded licensee or of a publicly traded company affiliated with a 
licensee for its customers and not for iis own accburit, and exercises voling rights (br less than 5'K''of Ihe outstanding voting'securities ofa 
publicly traded licensee or publicly traded company liftlliated wiih a licensee; 

a registered broker or dealer acts as a markel maker for the siock ofa publicly Haded licensee orof a publicly traded company affiliated with a 
licensee and exercises voting rights ui less than 5% of the outsiandriig voting securities of the publicly Haded licensee or publicly uaded 
company affiliated with a licensee; 

• an underwriter is holdriig securities ofa publicly traded licensee or publicly traded company affiliated with a" licensee as part of an underwriting 
for no more than 90days'after the beginning nf such.underwriting if il exercises voting rights of less dian 5%"of Iheouislanduig vodng securities 
ofa publicly traded licensee or publicly traded company affiliated with a licensee; 

• a bookeniry u^insfer facility holds voting sccuriiies" for third panics, if it exercises voling rights with respect to less than 5'X. of die outsianding 
voiuig securilKjs ofa publicly traded licensee or. publicly traded company affiliated wilh a licensee; or 

' a person's sole ownership riileresi is less ihan 5% of ihe outstanding voling securities of the publicly Uaded licensee or publicly traded company 
affiliated wiih a licensee. 

Because weown the Colorado Casinos, our brisriiess opportunities, and'diosi;of persons.wHh an "owne"r.ship" interest" in us, orany oflhe Colorado 
Casinos, are limited to interests that comply with the Colorado Regulations and the Colorado Commission's rule. 

, In addidon, purisuant to the Colorado Regulations, no manufacturer or distributor of slot machines or as.socialed equipment may,' without nodficauon 
being provided lolhe Colorado Division within ten days, knowingly have an inieresi in any casriio operaior, allowany of its officers or any other person wilh 
a sribsiantial inierest in such business to have such an interest, employ any, person, if ihal person is employed by a casino operator, or allow any casino operator 
or person wilh a substantial interest therein to have an'riileresi in a manufacturer's or dislribrilof's business. A "substantial uilercit" means the lesser of (i) as 
large an interest in'an entity as any other person or'(ii) any financial or equiiy interesi equal to or greater ihan 5%. The Colorado Commission has ruled that a 
pcn-ion does nof havea ".substantial interesi" if such person's-lole ownership interesi in..such licensee is ihrough the ownership of less ihan 5% of the 
outsianding voling securities ofa publicly traded licensee or publicly traded affiliated company ofa licensee. 

We are a "publicly traded corporation" under Uie Colorado Regulations. 

Under the Colorado Regulations, any person or entity having any direct or indireci inieresi in agaming licensee or an applicant fora gaming license, 
including, but not limiled to, us, BLick Hawk Holdriigs, LLC, IC Holdings Colorado, Inc., IOC Black Hawk Oistribution Company, LLCoreiiherof the two 
Colorado Casriios and ihcir security holders, maybe rcquried to supply the Colorado Comniission with substantial uiformation, including, but nol limiled to, 
background information, source of funding information, a sworn statement ihai such person or cnrity is not holding his or her inierest for any other party, and 
fingerprints; Such information, investigation and licensing (or findingof .".riilabiliiy) as an "associaied person" automatically will be required of all persons 
(other Ihan certain insutudonal invesiors discussed below) which directly or indirectly beneficially own 10% or more ofa direct or indirect beneficial 
o\vnei:ship or interest in either ofthe nvo Colorado Casinos, through their beneficial.ownership ofany class of voling securities of us. Black Hawk Holdings, 
LLC, IC Holding.^ Colorado, Inc., IOC Black Hawk Distribution Company, LLCoreriher of the Iwo Colorado Casinos. Those persons must repon iheir 
interest wiihin 10 days (including riistimtional invesiors) and file appropriale applications,wiihin 45 days afier ucquriingthal interest (other dian certain 
inslitudonal investors discussed below). Person*; (including institutional invesiors) who directly or inrtircctly 



beneficially own 5% or more (bul less than 10%) ofa direct or indireci beneficial ownership or iniercst in eilher of the two Colorado Casinos, ihrough their 
beneficial ownership of any cbss of voting .securities nf us. Black Hawk lioldings, LLC, IC Holdings Colorado, Inc., IOC Black Hawk Dislribulion 
Company, LLCoreiiherof ihc iwo Colorado Casinos, musi rcport ihcir interest to the Colorado Commission wiihin 10 days aifcr acquiring that interest and 
may be required to provide additional riiforinadon and lo be found suitable, (ll is the current practice oflhe garning regulators to require i'mdings of suitability 
for persons beneficially owning 5% or more ofa direct or riidireci beneficial ownership or inierest, other than certain insuiuiional invesiors discussed below.) 
if ceriairi insiitutional investors provide specified infonuation to the Colorado Commission wiihin .45,days after acquiring their inteivst (which, under Uie 
curreni practice oflhe gaming regulators, is an iriteresi of 5% or more, directly or indirectly) and are holding for investment purposes only, ihose irivesiors, in 
the Colorado Commission's discrefion, may be permitted to own up to 14.99% oflhe Colorado Casinos ihrough iheir beneficial ownership in any class of 
voting of securities of us. Black Hawk Holdings, LLC , IC Holdings Colorado, Inc., IOC Black Hawk Distribution Company, LLC or either of the two 
Colorado Casriios, before being required to be found suitable. All licensing and irjvesligaliori fees will have to be paid hy ihe personin quesfion. 

The Colorado Regulafions define a "voling security" to be a security the holderof which isentidedto vote generally for the election ofa member or 
members of Ihc boardof direclors or board of trustees ofa corporation or a comparable person or persons of anorhcr form of business organization. 

The Colorado Commission also has the right to request information from any person dri-ecdy or indirectly riiieresied in, or employed by, a licensee, and 
Io investigate the moral character, honesty, inlegrit>'. prior acfiviiies, criminal iecoriL reputaliori, habits and asscKiatiuns of; (I) all persons licensed pursuant 
to Ihe Colorado Limited Gaming Acl; (2) all officers, directors and stockholders ofa licensed privately held corporation; (3) all officers, direclors arid 
stockholders holdriig cither a 5% or greater inierest or a controlling inierest in a licensed publicly traded corporation: (4) all general partners and all limiled 
p.'uiners ofa licensed partnership: (5) all persons ihat have a relatioriship similar to that of an officer, drieclor or stockholder ofa corporafion (such as 
members and managers ofa limited liability company); (6) all persons supplying financing or loaning moneyio any licensee connected with the establishment 
or operaiion of tiriiiled gariiing; (7) all persons having a eontfact, Icas'e or ongoing financial or business arrangement with any licensee, wherc such contract, 
lease or arrangement relates to limiled gaming operations, equipment devices or premises; and (8) all persons contracting with or supplying any goods and 
services to the gaming regulators: 

Certain public officials and employees are prohibited from having any direct of indirect inieresi in a liccn.sc or limited gaming. 

In addition, under the Colorado Regulations, every person who is a party lo a."gaming contract" (as defined below) or lease with an applicant fora 
license, or with a licensee, upon the request of the Colorado Commission orthe Colorado Director; riiust promplly provide ihcColorado Commission or 
Colorado Direcior all riiformadon that may be requested concerning financial hisiory, financial holdings; real and personal property ownership, inleresls in 
other companies, criminal history, personal hisior\'and associations, character, repuiaiion in the community and all other information Ihat might be relevant to 
a determination of whether a person would be suitable to be licensed by the Colorado Commission, Failure lo provide all informafion requested cbnstimies 
sufficieni giounds for Ihc Colorado Direcior or the Colorado Comnussionlo require a;iiceri.see or applicant to terminate its "gaming conmict" or lease with 
any person who failed to provide the riiformalion requested. In addition, the Colorado Dirccior or die Colorado Commission may require changes in "gaming 
conlracls" before an applicalion L"; approved or participation in the contract is allowed. A "gaming contract" is defined as an agreement in which a person does 
business with or on the premises ofa licensed entity. 



ITie Colorado Commission and the Colorado Division have intcrprcicd ihc Colorado Regulafions to permit ihe Colorado Commission to investigate and 
find suitable persons nr entities providing financing to or, acquiring securities from us, Blackliawk Holdings, LLC, IC Holdings Colorado, Inc:, IOC Black 
Hawk Distribution Company, LLC or cither ofthe two Colorado Casinos. As noicd above, any person or entity required to file riiformalion, be licensed or 
found suitable would be requried to pay ihe costs diereofand ofany investigation. "Although the Colorado Regulaiions do not require the prior approval for 
the cxecudon ofcredit facilities or issuance of debt securities, die Colorado regulators rescr\'e die right to approve, require changes to or require die 
tenninalion of iiny financing, including if a pereon or enfity is required to be found suitable and is not found suitable. In any evenl, lenders, note holders, and 
odiers providing l~inancing will nol be able to exercise "certain righl'; and remedies without die prior approval oflhe Colorado gaming aulhorilies. Information 
regarding lenders and holders of securities will be periodically repotted to the Colorado ganiing authorities. 

Except under certain limited cireumstances relating lo slot machine manufacturers and distributors, every person supplying goods, equipment, devices or 
services lo any licensee in return for payment ofa percentage, or calculated upon a perecrilage, of limited gamriig aciiviiy or inconie.musi obtaui an operator 
license or be listed on ihe retailer's license where such gaming will lake place.-

An application for licensure or .suiiabdity may be denied tor any cause deemed reasonable by the Colorado Commission or the Colorado Director, as 
appropriale. Specifically, the Colorado Commission and the Colorado Director must deny a liccnseioany applicani who, among other things: (I) fails to 
prove by clear and convincing evidence that the applicaril ri; qualified; {2)'fails to provide irifoiinarion and docunieiilalion requested; (3) fails lo reveal any 
fact maierial to qualification, or supplies uiformation which is untrue or misleading as'to a material fact pcrtainriig'lo qualification; (4) has been convicted of, 
or has a driccior, officer, general partner, stockhoklcr. limiled parUier or other person who has a financial or equiiy iniercst in the applicani who has been 
convicted of, specified crimes, including the service ofa sentence upon conviction of a felony rii a correctional facility, city or county jail, or community 
correctional facditj'or under the state board ofparole or any probation departmeni within ten years prior lothe dale of the applicafion, gambling-related 
offcn.scs, theft by deception or crimes involving fraud or̂  misrepresentation, is urider current prosecution for'such crimes (during the pendency of which 
license deremiuiadon may.be deferred), is a career offender or a rriember or associale of a career offender cartel, or is a professional gambler; or (5) has 
refused lo cooperate wilh any stale or federal body investigating organizcdcrimc,ofi~icial corruption or gaming oiTenses. If the Colorado Commission 
determines that a person or enfily is unsuitable lo directly or indirectly own interests in us. Black Hawk Hoklings, LLC, IC Holdings Colorado, Inc., or eilher 
ofthe IWO Coloî ado Casinos, one or more ofthe Colorado Casinos may be sanctioned, which may riiclude the loss ofour approvals and licenses. 

The Colorado Commission docs not need lo approve in ad\'ancea publicotTeringqf securriies but radier requires the filing of nolice and additional 
documenls prior to a public oficring of (i) voling securities, and (ii)non-vofing securities if any oflhe proceeds will be usedlo pay forthe construcfion of 
gaming facilities in Colorado, to dri^cdy or uidirccily acquire an interest in a gaming facility in Colorado, to finance the operaiion ofa gaming facility in 
Colorado orio retire or extend obligations for any of ihc foregoing. The Colorado Cbfiriiiission may, in its discreiion, a-quirc addilional informafion and prior 
approval of such public offering. 

Inaddition, the Colorado Regulations prohibit a licensee or affiliated company ihereof, such as us Black Hawk Holdings, LLC. IC Holdings Colorado, 
Inc., IOC Black Hawk Distribution Company, LLC or eilher oflhe two Colorado Casinos, from paying any unsuitable person any dividends or interesi upon 
any voling securities orany payments or distributions of any kriid (excepi as set forthbclow), or paying any unsuitable person any remuneration for services 
or recognizing" die exercise ofany voting rights by any urisuitablc person.-Further, under the Colorado Regulafions, each oflhe Colorado Casinos and IOC 
Black Hawk Disuibution Company, LLC may repurchase iis voting securities from 



anyone found unsuitable at the lesser ofthe cash equivalent Io the original investment in the applicable Colorado Casino or IOC Black Hawk Disuibution 
Company, LLC or ihe current market price as ofthe dale ofthe finding of unsuitabiliiy unless such voting securities are transferred to a .suitable person (as 
detemiined by the Colorado Commission) within sbtiy (60) days after the I'lnding of unsuitabiliiy. A licensee or affiliated company must pursue all lawful 
efforts torequriean unsuitable person to relinquish all voting sccuriiies, including purchasing such voting securities.'fhe staff of Colorado Division has taken 
the position that a licensee or affiliated coriipany may not pay any unsuitable person any uiteresi, dividends or other payments with respect to non-voting 
securities, other than with respeci lo pursuuig all lawful eflbrts to require an unsuiiable person lo relinquish no'n-vbling securities, including by purchasing or 
redeeming such securriies. Further, the regulations require anyone with a maierial riivolvemcni with a licensee, including a director or officer bf a holding 
company, such as us. Black Hawk Holdings,-LLC, IC Holdings Colorado, Inc., IOC Black lluwk DisU îbulion Company, LLC or eidier of the Iwo Colorado 
Casinos, to file for a fuiding of suitability if required by die Colorado Commisskm. 

Because of their authority to deny an applicalion fora license or suitability, the Colorado Commission and the Colorado Dri-ector effecdvely can 
disapprove a change in corporate position ofa licensee and wiih respect lo any entity which is required to be found suitable, or indirectly can cause us. Black 
Hawk Hoklings, LLC, IC Holdings Colorado, Inc, IOC Black Hawk Distribution Company, LLC or the applicable Cojorado Casino to suspend or dismiss 
managers, officers, direclors and olher key employees or sever relationship'; with other persons who refuse to fiie appropriate applications'or who the 
authorities find unsuitable to act in such capacities. 

Generally, a sale, lease, purchase, conveyance or acquisifion ofany interest in a licensee is prohibited without the Colorado Commission's prior, approval. 
However, because we are a publicly traded corporation, persons may acquire an interest, inus (even,.undercurrcnt staff inlerprelalions. a controlling riiteicst) 
without Ihe Colorado Commission's prior approval, but .such persons may be requri-cd to file notices with the Colorado Coinmission and applications for 
suilabdiiy (as discussed above) and the Colorado Commission may, after such acquisition, find such person urisuitablc and requrie them todispose of their 
interest. Undei some circumstances, we may not sell any inieresi in our.Colorado gaming businesses without the prior approval ofthe Cblomdo Commission. 

Each Colorado Casuio must meet specified architcclural requirements, fire safety" standards and slandards for iiccess for disabled persons. Each Colorado 
Casino ai.so must not exceed specified gaming square footige iiniils as a loial of each fioor and the full building. Each Colorado Casino may, pemiii only 
individuals 21 or older to gamble in die casino. No Colorado Casino may provide credit lo its gaming patrons. Each Colorado Casino must comply with 
Colorado's Gambiriig Paynienl Iniercepl Act, which governs the collectibri of unpaid child support costs on certain cash winnings from limited gaming. 

As originally enacted by amendmeni lo the Colorado Consiiludon, limiled slakes gariiing in Colorado was limited to slot machines, blackjack and poker, 
with a maximum single bet oi S5.00, and casinos could operate only between 8 a.ra: and 2 a,m.. On November 4, 2008, however, Colorado voters approved a 
subsequenl amendmeni to the Colorado Constimiion that allowed the towns of Cripple Creek, Black Hawk, and Central Cily lo add table games of eiaps and 
roulette; increase die maximum single bet to S 100.00, and increase the permitted hours of operaiion to 24 hours per day effecfive July 2, 2009. 

A licensee is required to provide informadon and file periodic reports with the Colorado Division, including identifying ihose who have a 5% or greater 
ownership, financial or equity interest in the licensee, or who have the ability lo control the licensee, or who have the ability in exercise significani infiuence 
ovcrdic licerisee, or who loan money or other things of value lo a licensee, or who have the riglil lo share in revenues of limited gariiing, or to whom any 
inierest or share in profits of limited 



gaming has been pledged as security for a dcbl or performance of an act. A licensee, and arry pareni company or subsidiary of a licensee, who has applied lo a 
foreign jurisdiction for licensure or pemiission lo conduct gaming, or who possesses a license lo conduci foreign gaming, is required to noiiiy the Colorado 
Division, Any person licensed by die Colorado Commission and any associaied person ofa licensee must report criminal convictions and criminal charges to 
the Colorado'Division. 

The Colorado Commission has broad auihoriiy to .sanction, tine, suspend and revoke a license tor violations ofthe Colorado Regulations. Violations of 
many provisions ofthe Colorado Regulafions also can result rii criminal penalties. 

The Colorado Constimiion currently pcrnuts gamriig only in a limited number of cities and certain commercial districts in such cities. 

The Colorado Consfimiion permits a gaming lax of up to 40^i on adjusied gross gamirig proceeds, and authorizes the Colorado Commission lo change 
the rale annually. Thecurrenl gaming tax rate is 0.2375'ii on adjusied gross gaming proceeds of up toand including S2.0 miliion. 1.9% overS2.0 million up to 
and including S5.0 million, S.55% over S5.0 mdlion up to and including $8.0 million, 10.45% ovc'r.SS.O milhon upioand including SIO.O mdlion, 15.2% over 
S10.0 million up toand includirig SI3.0million and 19% on adjusted grass gaming proceeds in excess of$l3!0 million.TheCityof Black Hawk has imposed 
an annual device fceof S750 per gamriig device and may revise it from fime to lime. The City, of Black Hawk also has iniposed other fees, including a 
business improvement district fee and irarisportafion fee, calculated based ori the nuinber of devices and may revise Ihe same br impose additional such fees. 

Colorado participates rii mulii-slatc lotteries. 

The sale of alcoholic beverages is subject to licensing, control and reguladon by the Colorado liquor agencies. All persons who direclly or indirectly hold 
a 10% or more interesi in, or 10% or more of the issued and outsianding capital stock of, anyofthe Colorado Casinos,'thi"ough.dicir ownership of us. Black 
•Hawk Holdriigs, LLC, IC Holdings Colorado, Inc., or either oflhe two Colorado Casinos, must file applicaUons arid possibly be investigated by ihe Colorado 
liquor agencies. The Colorado liquor agencies aLso may investigate ihosc persons who; directly or.indirecdy,*loan'irioney to or have any financial iniercst in 
liquor licensees. In addiiion, there are resiriclions on stockholders, direclors and officeis of liquor licensees prevenung such persons from being a stockholder, 
dirccior, officer or odienvise ialeresled in some persons lending moneyio liquor licensees and fi-om making loans toother liquor licensees. All licenses arc 
revocable and transferable only in accordance wilh all applicable laws. The Colbradd hquor agencies have Jiii fullpower to limit, condilion, suspend or 
revoke any liquor license and any disciplinary acfion could (and revocation would) have a material adverse effect upon the operations of us. Black Hawk 
Holdings, LLC, IC Holdings Colorado, Inc., or the apphcable Colorado Casino. Each Colorado Casino holds a relail gaming lavem liquor license for its 
casino,'holel arid resiaurani operadons. 

Persons directly or indirecdy inleresied in either of the two Colorado Casinos may be limited incertainother types of liquor licenses in which they may 
have an interest, and specifically caimot have an riileresi in a retail liquor license (bul may have an inierest in a hotel and resiaurani liquor license and several 
other types of liquor licenses). No person can hold more ihan three retail gaming lavern liquor licenses. The"remedies,of certain lenders may be limited by 
applicable liquor laws and regulations. 

Florida 

. In June 1995, the Florida Depanment of Business and Professional Regulation, acling through the Division of Pari-Mutucl Wagering (the "Florida 
Division"), issued its final order approving the transfer lo the Company's wholly owned subsidiary, PPI, Inc. ("PPI"), the pari-mutuel wagering permits which 
authorize the acccpiarice of pari-muiuci wagers on harness horee and quarter horse races conducled at 



the Ponipano Park Racetrack (^Pompano Park") located in Pompano Beach, Florida, flamcss horec racing at Pompano Park has been continuously conducted 
by PPI since the fime it acquired Ihe foregoing described harness horse pennit ihrough the present. The license to conduct live e\'ening harness racing 
performances at Pompario Park must be renewed annually and was mosl recently, renewed in March 2012 forthe Slaicof Florida's fiscal year beginning 
July i,-20!2 to June 30, 2013. PPI also has a quarter horse pcrnril ihal is nol currendy acdve. 

"The Florida statutes and die applicable rules and regulations ofthe Florida Division set forth rii the Florida Adminislraiive Code (the "Florida Law") 
establish a regulatory framework for pari-mumel wagering aciK'ilics in the Stale bf Florida, including licensing requirements, a taxriig slnicmre oil pari-
mutuel,permitholders and requirements for payments lo die horsemeni'including owners and breeders. TheFlofida I J W grants lo die Florida Division full 
regulatory power over all pcrriulholders and licensees, including the power to revoke or suspend any permit or license upon the willfiil violation by a 
permidiolderora licensee of the Florida Law. The Florida Division must approve any transfer of 5% or more of the siock or olher evidence of owriership or 
equity in all pari-mutuel racing pciinitholders such as PPL In addifion tb die power to suspend or revoke a peniiit or license on account of a'willful violation 
ofthe Florida Law, the Florida Diyision is also granted the power Ui impose various civil penaliies on the permidiolder or licen';ee ori account nf other 
violalions. Penalties may nol exceed SI,000 for each cbuni or scparale oftcnse. 

Pursuanl to Florida law, PPI is aulhorized to conduci full-card pari-mutuel wagering on: (1) simulcast harness races from outside Florida throughout the 
racing season; and (2) night-time (after 6 p.m.) dioroughbred races conducled outside ofthe Slate of Florida if such races are simulcast lo a Florida 
thoroughbred track and then reljroadcast to PPL PPI also has the right under Florida Law lo conduct full-card simuleasiriig of harness racing on days during 
which no live racing is held al Ponipano Park. However, on non-race days, Pompano Park musl rebroadcasi the simulcast signals to other pari-mutuel 
facilities dial arc eligible lo conduct intenrack wagering. Inaddition, Pompano Park may Iransmri its live harness races uilb any.dog racing or jai alai facility 
in Florida, uicluding facilides in Miariu-Dpde and Broward Coundes, for interlrack wageringj Pompano Park also receives live races from other Florida pari-
muma) facilities for inlertiack wagering. Florida Law esiablishes die allocation of contributions to Uic pari-mutuel pools between Pompano Park and the odicr 
faeiliiies sharing sueh signals, 

Florida Law authorizes pari-mutuel faciiifies, including Pompano Park," to;opcrate card rooms in ihose counties in which a majoriiy vote of the Couniy 
Commission has been obtained arid a local ordinance has been adopted. The Couniy Commission of Browaid County, where Pompano Park is located, has 
approved die operaliori of c'ardrooms in Brow'ard County. Although die provisions of FlriridaLaw.regarding cardroom operatioris have been amended 
freqricntly by the Florida Legislature, the amendments have gcneraily resulted in the regulatory scheme becomuig morcliberal as opposed to being more 
resiriclive. Under amendments which.became effecfive un July 1, 2007, the beneficial changes included permilting daily operadons tor any, 12 Iiour period 
wiihoul the requirement for live'racing, raising the limri on the maximum bet amounl from S2.00 ib S5.00 with up to 3 raises allowed per round, providuig 
less restrictive regulations for tournaments and allowing the operator to award prizes and create jackpots nol lied to the amount bet. 

In November 2004, the voters in the Slate of Florida amended die Florida State Constitution lo allow the voters of Miami-Dade and Broward .Coundes lo 
decide whether to approve slot machines in racetracks and jai alai frontons in Iheir respective counties. Broward County voters approved Ihal county's local 
referendum in 2005 and Miami Dade voters approved ihat county's l(x:al referendum in 2008. Legislation enacted by the Florida Legislamre in 2005, and 
amended in 2007, (the "Florida Slot l-aw") iniplcmented the constitutional amendmeni by authorising Pompano'Park and dirce odier pari-mumel facilities in 
Browaid and die pari-mutuel facilriies in .Vliaroi-Dadc Couniy to offer slol machine gaming to patrons at these facihties. Aldiough ihere are pari-muiuel 
facilities in numerous other 



counties in the State of Florida, slol machine gaming is presently authorized only in Broward and Miami-Dade County. In April 2007, a new casino facility 
was opened al Pompano Park adjaceni to the harness race facility. 

Under the Florida Slol law, the following regulatory provisions are applicable to slot machine gaming at Pompano Park: 

• The facility may be operated 365 days per year, 18 hours per weekday and 24 hours on weekends. 

The maximum numberof machines is 2,000 Vegas-style (Class 111) slot machines per faciliiy. 

The annual license fee is 52,000,000.00. 

• Effecuve July 1, 2010, the tax payable to the State of Florida is 35%'of net slot machine revenue. 

• The machines will not accept coins or currency, bul are ticket ri»ytickei out. 

The minimum age to play the machines is 21 years, 

ATMs are permitted in the facility but not on the garbing fioor. 

The Florida Division is the regulatory agency charged with the duty lo enforce the provisions ofthe Florida Law, 

.PPI also pays combined county and city taxes of approximately 3.5% on the first $250 millionof net slot naachine revenue and 5% on net slot machine 
revenue over $250 million. 

In April 2009, legisladon was passed which set forth Ihe paraniciers under which and granted the Governor authority to enter into an Indiaii Gaming 
Compact ("Compact") on behaif of the Siaieof Florida wiih the Seminole'lndian Tribe uf Florida forlhepurposeof authorizing Class III gaming. 
AdditionaUy, the legislation provided fora rcduciiori ofthe tax rale on slol machines operated by pari-muiuel faciliues from 50% lo35% with a guarantee of 
ijxriivcnuc lobe no less than the amount thai was collected iri the fiscal year eridcd June 30, 2009. The tax guarJniee was easily riiet Two new slot faciiifies 
opened in Miami-Dade Couniy after Ihe proposed effective dale ofthe legislation Tliese facilities would create enough new tax revenue to ensure'that tolal 
revenues exceeded reyenue coljccled rii the base year. The legisladon, also reduced the annual license fee from S3 million toS2.5 million forthe Staleof 
Florida's 2010 Fiscal Year and $2 million per fiscal year thereafter, Il allowed slol machines to be liiikcd usjng a progressive syslem and expanded poker 
bpe'rjiiions lo allow operation for 18 hours per day on weekdays and 24 hours per day on weekends. In addiiion, it authorized no limit poker games and 
tournaments In order for this legislation i become efieclive rii 2009 ihe following condriions musl have been met: 

(i) it musl have been approved by or allowed to become law by the Govemur; 

(ii) a Compact must have been entered into with the Seminole Indian Tribe of Florida by yVugust 31, 2009: and 

(iii) the legislature musl have ratified the Compact and the Compact musi have been published in the Federal Registry. 

All ofthe provisions outlriied above became effecfive July I, 2010. The same act expanded the number of slot facilities in Miami-Dade county by 
authorizing a license for Hialeah racetrack. The act also sel forth the mcihod for possible further expansion of slots at other pari-mulucis throughout the state 
by mandating a couniy wide referendum oii .slots. The Florida Supreme Court recenlly upheld the authority of the legislature loexpand slot licenses; the actual 
expansion at other pari-muiuels wdl be delayed due to Ihc Florida Division's recent ruling that the wording oflhe act requires further legislative acfion or an 
amendment lo the consliludon before the expaasion of slol licenses may be implemented by counlies. 



lowa 

In 1989, ihe State of Iowa legalized riverlx>ai gaming on die .Vlississippi River and other navigable waterways located in lowa. The legislation authorized 
the granting of licenses to non-profii corporations that, in Ium, are permitted to enter into operating agreements wiih qualified persons who actually conduct 
riverboat gamriig operalions. Such operators must likewise be approved and licensed by the Iowa Racing and Gamriig Coriirais'sion (the "lowa Gamriig 
Commission"). 

The Isle-Betiendorf s operator's conlracl with the Scott Couniy Regional Authority, a non-profit corporaiibn organized for the purpose of facilitating 
riverboat gaming in Bettendorf, Iowa, is automatically renewed for succeeding one-year periods as long as gaming remains approved in ScoU County. Under 
the operaior's contract, die IsIc-BeUendorf pays die ScoU County Regional Authority a fee equal to 4.1% of the adjusied gross receipts. Furtlier, the Isle-
Beilendort'pays a fee lo iheCity of Bettendorf equal to 1.65% of adjusied gross receipts. 

In June 1994, Upper Mississippi Gaming Corporation, a non-profit corporation organized forihc purpose of t"aciliiating riverboat gaming in Marquene, 
lowa, entered into an operator's agreement for the Isle-Marquettc for a period of twenty-five years. Under Ihe managemeni agreement, ihe non-profit 
urganiziilion is lube paid a fee bf S0.50 pei" passenger. Further,'pursuanl loa dbck'sile agreement (which also has -a tenribf twenty-five years), the Isle-
Marquette is requu^dlo piay a fee to the City of Marquene in the amounl of $1.00 per passenger, plus a fixed amounl of $15,000 per month and 2.5% of 
gamriig revenues (less stale wageruig taxes) in excess of S20.0 million but less.lhan S40,0 million';.5% ofgaming revenues (less state wagering taxes) in 
excess of $40.0 mdlion but less dian $60,0 miliion; and 7.5% ofgaming revenues (less state wagering taxes) inexcess of $60.0 million. 

In Oclober 2000,' ihi; Riverboat Development Authority,'"a non-profit corjioration entered uitb an operator's agreement with the Islc-Davenport lo conduct 
riverboat gaming in Davenport, Iowa. The operating agreement was amended in June 2009,The operaiing agreement requires die Isle-Davenpon lo make 
weekly payments to Ihc qualified sponsoring oiganizalion equal to 4.1% of each week's adjusted gross reccifils (as defined rii'thc enabling legisladon). 
Further, the Islc-Davenport has agreed that die Riverboat Development Authority will be paid al least ihe minimum amount of $2,000,000, which rilinimum is 
subjecl Io certain temiinalion cvenis (i.e. iiicrca,sc rii the number of area casinos or suspension of IsIcTDavenport's right uridcr its leases wilh die City, of 
Diivenpurt or any cily permits for more than 30 days) and an appropriale negofialed reduction should the casino's gaming floor lose its cunenl smoking ban 
exemption. This agreement will remain ill effect tlirough March 31, 2019^,provided thai as_ long as, Islc-Davenport has subslanfially complied with the 
agreemeni, gaming laws and'regulalions and the parties' gaming license is renewed and in eftecl, the agreement will automatically renew on an armual basis 
for successive one-year terms. In addidon. the Isle-Davcnport pays a dockriig fee, adnussion fee, ganiing tax and a payment in lieu of taxes to the City of 
Davenport Pursuanl to a dcvcIopnKnl agreement with ihe City, die Isle-Davenpoii has exclusive docking privileges in the City of Davcnporl until March 31, 
2017 in considcradon for this docking fee. The docking fee has bodi a fixed base and a per passenger increment. The fixed fee commenced April 1, 1994 at 
$111,759 and increases annually by 4%. TTie incremental component is a SO. 10 charge fnreach passenger in excessof Ll 17,579 passcngeis (which charge 
also incrcasesby 4% per year). The City is also guaranieed an annual gaming tax of 5558,789.50 per year (liased ona minirauih passenger fioor count of 
1,117,579 passengers at $0.50 per passenger). In lieu oflhe foregoing,,the Isle-Davenpon is cunenily paying ihe Cityof Davenport a fee of 1.65% of adjusied 
gross receipts. Finally, the Isle-Davenporl is obligated lb pay a payment in lieu of taxes to support the downto\^^I development districl. This annual lump sum 
paymeni is in the amounlof $123,516 plus S0.20 per passenger in excess of 1,117,579 passengers. This paymeni in lieu of taxes is further subjea lo a 
minimum $226,179 per year paymeni. 

In November 2004, the Black Hawk Couniy Gaming Assoeiadon, a non-profit corporation organized for die.purpose of facilitadng riverboat gaming in 
Waterioo, lowa cniered into an operaior's 



agreement with the Isle-Watcrloo to conduci rivcrboal gaming in Waterloo, lowa. The operating agreement requires that Isle-Waterloo make wceklj' 
paymenis to the qualified sponsoring organization equal lo4;l% ofeach week's adjusted gross receipls and an additional fee of 1.65% ofeach week's adjusied 
gross rcccipls in lieu ofany admission or dockuig fee whicli might otherwise be charged by ihe couniy or any city (as defined in Section 99F.1(I) ofthe lowa 
Code). Thib agreemeni will remain in clfect through March 31,2015 and may be exicridedby die lsle-Walerioo for three-year periods so long as it has 
subsiamially complied with gaming laws and regulations and holds a license to conduci gaming. In addiiion, the Islc-Walerk)o has agreed to pay a 
develupmenl fee to ihe Cily. Pursuant to an adnussion fee admriiisurifion and developnient agreement with die City and Black Hawk County Gaming 
Association die Isle-Walerloo shall pay a development fee equal to l%i ofeach week's adjusied gross receipts. 

lowa law permits gaming licensees to offer unlimited stakes ganiing on games approved by the Iowa Ganiing Commission on a 24-hour basis. Land-
based casino gamriig was audiorizcd on July 1,2007 and the Iowa Gaming Commission now permits licensees die option to opcraie on permanently moored 
vessels, moored barges, or approved gambling strucmres. The legal age for gaming is 21. 

A11 lowa licenses werc approved for renewal at the March 8, 2012 Iowa GamingCommission meeling. These licenses arc not transferable and will need 
to be renewed in .March 2013 and prior to the commencement ofeach .subsequent annual renewal period. 

The ovvnership and operafion of garauig faciiifies in Iowa are sribjeel lu extensive state laws, regulations ofthe iowa Gamriig Commission and various 
couniy and municipal ordinances (collectively, die "Iowa Gaming Laws"), concerning ihe responsibdity, financial stability and character, of gamriig operators 
and persons financially interested or involved in" gaming operadons. Iowa Gaming L.aws seek to: (I) prevent unsavory or unsuitable personsfrom havriig 
dircci or indireci uivotvemeni with gaming at any time or in any capacity-; (2) establish and mariiiain responsible accounling practices and procedures; 
(3) maintain effecuve conU-oI overlhe firiiicial'pracfices of licensees (including the eslablishnicnt of minimum procedures for intemal fiscal affairs,-the 
saleguarding ofassels and revenues, the provision of reliable record keeping and Ihc fding of periodic reports with the lowa Gaming Comnrissioii): 
(4) prevent cheating and fraudulent practices; and (5) provide a source of slate and local revenues through taxation and licensing fees. Changes in Iowa 
Gaming Laws could have a material adverse effect oniheTo'wa gaming operations. 

The lowa gaming operalions must submil detailed financial and operating reports lo die Iowa Gaming Commission. Certain conlracls of licensees in 
excess of $100,000 must be submitted to and approvedby the lowa Gamirig Commission. Certain officers, direclors, managers and key employees ofthe lowa 
ganiing operations arc required to be licensed by the lowa Gaming Conmiission. Gaming licenses granled to individuals must be renewed every- year, and 
licensing authorities have broad discretion with regard tu such renewals. Licenses are nol transferable. Employees associaied with gaming must obtain 
occupational licenses that are subjecl to immediale suspension under siiecific circumslances.-ln addifion, anyone having a maierial relafionship or involvement 
with Ihc Iowa ganung operations may be rcquri-ed to be found suitable or lo be licensed, iri which case diose persons would be rcquurd to pay the costs and 
t'ccs ofthe Iowa Ganiing Commission and Division of Criminal Invesligaiion in connecfion with Ihe investigation. The lowa Gaming Commission may deny 
an application for a license for any cause deemed reasonable. In addition tu its auihuriiy to deny an applicafion for license, the lowa Gaming Commission has 
jurisdicfion to disapprove a change in posifion by officers or key employees and the power to require the lowa gaming operations lo suspend or dismiss 
officers, directors or other key employees or sever relalionships with other persons who refuse to file appropriate applicafions nr whom Ihe lowa Gaming 
Commission finds unsuitable lo act in such capacities. 
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The lowa Gaming Commission may revoke a gaming license if the licensee: 

has been suspended from operaiing a gaming operaiion in another juri.sdicliun by a buard or commission of thai jurisdicfion; 

has failed to demonstrate financial responsibility sufficient to meet adequately die requirements of the gaming enterprise; 

is not the true owner of the enterprise; 

has failed to disclose ownership of blher.persons in ih'e enterprise;' 

isa corporafion lO^oofthe stock ofwhich is subject to a contract or option to purchase at any fime durriig the period for which the hcense was 
issued, unless the contracl or uplion was disclosed lo the lowa Ganung Commission and Ihe Iowa Gamriig Commi.ssion approved die .sale or 
transfer during die period of die license; 

knowriigly makes a false statement of a material fact to the lowa Gaming Commission;" 

fails.to meet a moneiary.obligafion in connection with an excursion gaming boat: 

pleads guilty to, or is convicted ofa felony; 

loans to any person, money or oiher thriig of value forthe purpose of permiuing that person lo wager on any game of chance; 

isdelinquenl in the payment of properly laxes or odier taxes or fees or a payment ofany other contraciuai obligation or debl due or owed to a city 

orcutmty:or 

assigns, grants or lunis over lo another person the operation ufa licensed excursion boat (this provision dues not prohibil assignment ofa 
managemeni coniraci approved by the lowa Gariiirig Coinrriission) or permits anotlier person lo have a share of die money received for a'diuission 
10 the excursion boat 

If ri were determined that the Iowa Gaming Laws were violated by a licensee, die ganiiiig licenses held by a licensee could be limried, made condiuonal, 
suspended or revoked. In addition, the licensee arid the persons riivolved could be subject to substantial fines for each separate violation ofthe lowa Gaming 
Laws in the discreiion of the Iowa GamingCommission. Liniilaliuns, coridifioning ur suspension ofany ganiing license could (and revocadon ofany ganiing 
license would) have a material adverse eftcci on operafions. 

•The lowa Ganiing Commission may also require any individual who has a material.relationship with the lowa gaming operations to be investigated and 
licensed ur found .suitable. The lowa Gaming Commission may require any person who acquires 5% or more ofa licensee's equity securides lo submri lo a 
background invesfigafion and be found suitable. The applicani siuckholdcr is required to pay all cusis ofthis riivesligaiiun. 

Gaming taxes approximadng 22% oflhe adjusted gross receipls will be payable by each licensee on its operations lu the Slate uf lowa. In addidon, 
asses.sments paid by cerlaril licensees during fiscal year 2004 in an amounl equal lo 2.152% ofeach licensee's adjusted gross receipts forfiscal year 2004 are 
currently being reimbursed by an offsei to state gamirig laxes paid by each licensee iridic amounl of 20% of die assessments paid each year beginnriig July I, 
3010 lor five consecutive years. The staleof lowa is also reimbursed by the licensees ibr all costs associaied wilh moniioring and enforcement by the lowa 
Ganiing Commission and the.lowa Departmeni of Criminal Invesligaiion. 



Louisiana 

In July 1991, Louisiana enacted legislation pcmiilling certain types of gaming activity on certain rivers and waterways in Louisiana. The legislation 
granled authority to supervise riverboat ganiing acfiviiies lo the Louisiana Riverboat Gaming Cummissiun and die Rivcrboal Gaming Enforcement Division 
ofthe Louisiana State Police. The Louisiana Rivcrboal Ganung Comniission was authorized to hear and deiermine all appeals relative to Ihe granluig, 
suspension, revocation, condition or renewal of all licenses, permits and applications. Inaddition, the Louisiaria Riverboat Ganiing Commission established, 
regulations concerning authorized routes, duration of excursions, minimum levels of insurance, cunslnictibn of riverboats and periodic inspections. The 
Riverboat Gaming Enforcemenl Division of Ihe Louisiana State Police was authorized to invesdgale applicants and issue licenses, investigate violalions of Ihe 
statute and conduct continuing reviews of gaming activities. 

In May 1996, regulatory oversighl of riverboat gaming was transfened to die Louisiana Gamirig Control Board, which is comprised of nine vodng 
members appointed by the governor. The Louisiana Gaming Control Board now oversees all licensing mailers for rivertioat casriios, land-based casinos, 
racinos, video poker and certain aspects of Native American gamirig other than those responsibilities reserved to the Louisiana State Police. 

The Louisiana Gaming Conlrol Board is empowered to issue up lo 15 licenses to conduct gaming activifies on a rivcrboal in accordance wilh applicable 
law. However, no more than six licenses may be granled to riverboats operating from any one designated waterway. 

The Louisiana State Police continues to be involved broadly in gaming enforcement and reports to the.Louisiana Gaming Conlrol Board, Louisiana law 
pemiits the Louisiana Slate Police, among other filings, to conlriiue io (1) conduci suitability invcsfigations, (2)"audil, investigate and enforce compliance with 
standing regublions, (3) inifiate enforcemenl and administrative acfions and (4) perform "all odicr dudes and fimclions necessary for the efficient, efficacious; 
and ihbrou^ regulafion and control of garrung aciivriies and opcrafioris""under the Louisiana Gamirig Conlrol Board's jurisdicfion. 

Louisiana gaming law specifics cenain restrictions relafing tuihc operation of rivcrboal gaming, incliiding Ihe following: 

agents ofthe Louisiana Stale Police are permitted on board at any time during gaming operalions; 

gaming devices, equipmenl and.supplies may only be purchased or leased from permitted suppliers and, wilh respeci to gaming equipmenl, from 
permined manufacturers; 

gaming may only take place in the designated gaming area while the riverboat is docked on a designated river ur walerway; 

gaming equipment may riot be possessed, mainiained or evhibited by any person on a riverboat excepi rii the specifically designated gaming area 
or in a secure area used fur inspection, repair or storage of such equipment;' 

wagers may be received only from a person present on a licensed riverboat; 

persons under 21 are not permitted in designated gaming areas; 

e.xcepi fur slot machine play, wagers may be made only wrih tokens, chips or electronic cards purchased from the licensee aboard a riverboat; 

licensees may only u,se ducking facilities and rouies fur which ihey are licensed and may only buard and discharge passengers al ihe riverboat's 
licensed benh; 

. licensees must have adequate pruiecfion and indemnity insurance: 
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• licensees musl have all necessary federal and slate licenses, certificates and olher regulaioiy approvals prior lo operafing a riveitMial; and 

• gaming may only be conducted in accordance wilh Ihc lerms ofthe license and Louisiana law. 

To receive a ganiing license in Louisiana, an applicani must be found lo be a person of good character, honesty and integrity and a person whose prior 
activifies, criminal record, if any, reputation, habits and associations do nol (1) pose a threat to the public interest of die Slate of Louisiana or to the effeciive 
regulation and conlrol of ganiing or (2) create or enhance the dangers of unsuitable, unfair or illegal praclices, methods and aciivriies in the conduct ofgaming 
ur Ihe cariying on of business and financial arrangements of gaining aclivides. In addiiion, the Louisiana Gaming Conlrol Buard will noi grant a license unless 
it finds thai, amung other thriigs: 

Ihc applicani can demonsliaie the capability, either Ihrough Uariiing, education, business experience or a combriialion oflhe preceding, to operate 
a gaming operaiion; 

• the proposed financing oflhe riveiboat and the gaming operations is adequate for the nature ofthe proposed operaiion and is from a suitable and 
acceptable source; 

• the applicani demonstrates a proven ability lo operate a vessel of comparable size, capaciiy and complexity to a rivertioat so as to ensure the 
safely of its passengers; 

the applicani submits widi iis applicalion for a license a delailed plan of design oflhe riverboai; 

Ihe applicant dcsi^aies the docking facilities to be used by die rivcrboal; 

• the applicani shows adequate financial ability lo construct and mairitain a riverboat; and 

• die applicani has a goud faith plan lo recruit, train and upgrade minorities in all employment classifications. 

/\n iniiial license lo conduci riverboai gaming operalions is valid fora icim of five yearsand legislafiuri passed in die 1999 Iegisladve session provides 
for renewals every five years thereafler. lx)uisiana gaming law provides that a renewal application forthe period succeeding the initial five-year term of an 
operator's license must be madctu Ihc Louisiana Gaining ConUul Board and must include a statemenl under oath of any andal] changes rii information, 
including financial informalion, provided rii the previous applicalion, 'I'he transfer ofa license or an inieresi in a license is prohibited. A gaming license is 
deemed to be a privilege under Louisiana law.and, as such, may be denied, revoked, suspended, cunditioned or limiled at any time by the Louisiana Ganung 
Control Board. Sl. Charles Ganiing Company, Inc. and Grand Palais Riverboat, Inc. received thcri- firsi five-year renewal of their licenses on July 20, 1999 
and received their second five-year renewal of iheri licenses on March 29, 2005^ The'third l~ivc (5) year renewal was granted to Grand Palais Riverboat, Inc. 
un July 21, 2009 and St. Charles Gaming Company, Inc. un Februaiy 23, 2010. 

On June 13, 2011, Isle entered inio an Opfion Agreement wilh Paradise Casino to salt die capilalslock of Grand Palais Rivcrboal, Inc. lo Paradise 
Casino, LLC, subsequenlly BossierCasino Venture, LLC. 

On August 18, 2011, Isle received approval fiom Ihe Louisiana GamingControl Board oflhe foilowriig transactions: 

1. St Charles Gaming Company, Inc.'s transfer ofthe Cruwn Casino, No. 1023327, lo Grand Palais Rivcrboal, Inc. in exchange for the transfer 
ofthe Grand Palais. No. 1028318, to Sl. Charles Gaming Company, Inc. 

2. IOC Holding, LLC's Uansferof 100% of the shares in Grand Palais Riverboat, Iric. to Bossier Casino Venture, LLC 

3. The merger of Bossier Casriio Venture, LLC wilh and into Grand Palais Riverboai, Inc. 
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A Stock Purchase Agreemeni was executed beiween the Parties on February 9, 2012. 

St. Charles Gaming Company, lnc, is the sole Isle licensee in Louisiana operating its gaming uperafiuns on the rivcrboal known as Grand Palais in 
Calcasieu Parish. 

Certain persons afiilialcd wilh a riverboat gaming licensee, including directors and officers ofthe licensee, direclors and officers ofany holding company 
ofthe licensee involved in gaming operations, persons holding 5% or,grealcr interests ui the licensee and persons exercising infiuence over a licensee, are 
subjcci to Ihc applicalion and suiiabilriy requiremenis of Louisiana gaming law. 

The sale, purehase, assignment, transfer, pledge or olher hypothecation, lease, disposidon or acquisition by any person of securities thai represent 5% ur 
more ofthe total outstanding shares issued by a licensee is ,subjecl to the appro-^1 ofthe Louisiana Ganiing Conlrol Buard: A security issued by a licensee 
must generally disclose these restrictions. Prior approval from the Louisiana Gaming Conlrol Boal-d is required tor die sale, purchase, assignment, Iransfer, 
pledge'or other hypolhecadon, lease, disposilion or acquisition ofany ownership inieresi of 5% or more ofany non-cnrporaie licensee or forthe transfer of 
any "economic interest" of 5% or more of ariy licensee or affiliaied gaming person. An"cconomie riileresi" is defined as any interest whereby a person 
receives or is enfified tu receive! by agreement or olher^'isc, a profit, gain, thing uf value, loan, credii, "se'curily" inierest. ownership inteiesfur other benefil. 

Fees payable lo the state for conducling gaming acfivifies on a rivcrboal include (1) $50,000 perriverboalfor Ihe first year of operation and $100,000 per 
year per riverboat thereafter, plus (2) 18.5% of net gaming proceeds. Legislation was passed during the 2001 legislative session ihat allowed those rivcrtioais 
thai had been required Io conduct cruises, mcluding the riverboats at the;Isle-Lake Charles, to remain permanently dockside beginning Aprd 1,2001. The 
Icgislafibn also increased the gaming lax fur operalors from 18.5% to 21.5%, A stamie also "authorizes local governriig authorities to levy boardriig fees. We" 
currerilly have developmeni agrecmenls in Lake Charles with cenain local governing aulhorilies in thejuri.sdicdons in which wcoperatc pursuant to which we 
make payments rii lieu of boarding fees. 

A licensee must riotifj' and/or seek approval from the Louisiaria Gaming Conlrol Board in connection wilh any withdrawals of capital, loans, ad\'ances or 
distributions in excess uf 5% of retained earnings fur a corporate licensee, or of capital accounts for a'partnership or limited liabiiily compariy licensee, upon 
complefion uf any such transaction. The Louisiana Gamuig'CbntroI Board may issue an emergency order for not more than len days prohibriing paymeni of 
profits, income or accroals by, or uivesimcnts rii, a licensee. Unless excepted or waived by the Louisiana Gaming Conlrol Board, riverbual gaming hcensees 
and iheri-afillialed gaming persons must nofify the Louisiana Gamriig Control BuanJ 60 days priur to the receipt by any such persons ofany loans or 
extensions of credit or modifications thereof. The Louisiana Gaming Contiol Board is rcquircd to investigate the reported loan, extension ofcredit or 
modification thereof and to deiermine whether an exemption exists on the requiremerit uf prior written approval and, if suchexempfion is not applicable, to 
either approve or disapprove the transaction. If ihc Louisiana Gaming Conlrol Boai-d disapproves ofa transaction, the transacliun cannoi be entered into by the 
licensee or affiliated gaming person. We are an affiliated gaming pci^on uf our, subsidiary that holds the license to conduct riverboai gaming at iheSt. Charles 
Gaming Company, Inc. 

The failure ofa licensee tu comply wilh the requirements set forth above may result in Ihe suspension or revocation of that licensee's gaming license. 
Additionally, if the Louisiana GamingControl Board fmds Ihat the individual owneror holder ofa security ofa corporate licenseor intermediary company or 
any person wiOi an economic inieresi rii a licensee is not qualified under 
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Louisiana law, the Louisiana Gamriig Conlrol Board may requric, under penally of suspension or revocation ofthe license. Ihat the person not: 

receive dividends or inierest on securides ofthe corporation; 

• exercise direcdy or inthreclly a right conferred by .securities ofthe corporation; 

receive remuneradon ur cconornic benefil from the licensee: 

• exercise significant influence over acfivifies ofthe licensee; ur 

cunfinue its uwnership or economic inierest in the licensee. 

A licensee musi periodically report the fullowing informafion tu die Luuisiana Gaming Conlrol Board, which is not confidential and is available for 
public inspecfion: (1) die licensee's net gaming proceeds from all authorized games,,(2) the "amount of riei gaming proceeds lax paid and (3)all quarterly and 
annual financial staiemenis presenting historical dala, including annual finaricial statements that have been audited by an independent certified public auditor. 

During the 1996 special sessiun oflhe Louisiana legislature, legislation was enacted placingon the ballot for a.siaiewide election a constitutional 
amendment limifing Ihe expansion of gamriig, which was subsequenlly passed by the voters. As a result; local opfion elections iue required bclbre new or 
addhional forms ofgaming can be brought into a parish. 

Proposals IU amend or supplement Louisiana's rivcrbo'al gaming .statute are frequently introduced in the Louisiana State Legislature. There is no 
assurance thai changes ui Louisiaiui gaming law will noi occur or that such changes will not have a material adverse effect on ourbusiness in Louisiana. 

Mi.ssls.sippi 

In June 1990, .Mississippi enacted legislation legalizing dockside casino ganiing for counties along die Mississippi River, which is die western border for 
most oflhe .stale, and die Gulf Coasi, which is the southern border for most ofthe state. The legislation gave each of those counlics ihe opportunity to hold a 
referendum on whether lo allow dockside casino gamriig within'iis boundaries. 

In its 2005 regular session, die legislature amended Mississippi law to allow gaming to be conducled on vessels ur cruise vessels placed upon permanent 
structures located on, in or above the Mississippi River, on, in or above navigable waters in eligible counlics along the Mississippi River or on, in or above the 
walers lying south of the counties along the Mississippi Gulf Coast. Later; after 1 lurricane Katrina, the Mississippi legislature again amended the law to allow 
land-based gaming along the Gulf Coast in very limited circunistances. Mi.ssissippi law permits unlimited stakes garning on a 24-hoiir basis and does not 
restrict the percenlage of space ihai may be utilized for gaming. There are no liriiitiitions on the numberof gaming licenses that may be issued in Mississippi. 

The ownership and operaiion of gamriig faciiifies in Mississippi are subject Iu extensive state and local regulatiun intended lo; 

• prevent unsavory or unsuitable persons from having any dri-cct or indirect riivolvement with gaming at any time or in any capacity; 

• establish and mainiain responsible accounling practices and procedures for gaming operalions; 

• mainiain effective conlrol over the financial pracficcs of licensees, inchiding establishing minimum procedures for internal fiscal afi'airsand 
safeguaidriig ofassels and revenues, pruvidriig reliable record keeping and making periodic repons; 

• provide a suuri:c of stale and ltx:al revenues ihrough taxation and licensing fees; 

prevent chcairiig and fraudulent praclices: and 
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ensure dial ganiing licensees, lo the exlenl practicable, employ Mississippi residenls. 

Siaie gaming regulations are subjecl to amendmeni and interpretation by the Mississippi Gaming Comnussiun. Changes in .Mississippi laws or 
regulations may limit or otherwise materially affect the types ofgaming diat may be conducled in Mississippi and such changes, if enacted, could have an 
ad\erse effecl on us and our Mississippi gaming operations. 

We are regisiered as a publicly traded corporation under die .Mississippi Ganiing Conlrol Act. Our ganung operations in Mississippi are subjecl to 
regulatory conU-ol by die Mississippi Gaming Commission, the Mississippi Depanmcni of Revenue and various other local, city and couniy regulatory 
agencies" (collecfively refened to as Ihe "Mississippi Gaming Auihorides"). Our subsidiaries have oblained gaming licenses from the Mississippi Gaming 
Aulhorilies. We must obtain a waiver from the .Mississippi Gamirig Commissiori before beginnriig certain proposed gaming operafions outside'of Mississippi, 
and we must notify the .Mississippi Gaming Commission in writing within 30 days after commencing certain gaming operations outside the state. The licenses 
held by our Mississippi gaming operations have terms of three years and are not transferable. The Isle-Biloxi, die Isle-Natchez and die Isle-Lula hold licenses 
effective from .May 23, 2012, dirough May 22,2015. In addriion, our wholly-owned .subsidiary, IOC Manufacturing, Inc. Holds a manufacturer and 
distributor's license, .so that wcraay pe"rfc»m_cemin upgrades to uur Mississippi player, tracking syslem.;Tliis license has a term of three years, i_s effecfive 
from June 16, 2011 through June 15,2014, and js not Iransferable. There is no assurance dial new hcenses can be_ oblained at the end ofeach three-year period 
ofa license. Moreover, die Mississippi Gaming Commission may, al any fime, and for any cause il deems reasonable, revoke, suspend, condifion, liiiiil or 
resirici a license or approval lu uwn shares of stock iriour .subsidiaries that operate in Mississippi. 

Substanfial fines for each viblaUonbf Mississippi's gamriig laws br regulations riiiiy be levied againsl us, our subsidiaries and Ihe persons involved, 
Disciplinaiy action againsl us or one of our subsidiary ganiing licensees in any jurisdiction may lead to disciplinary action againsl us orany ofour subsidiar>' 
licensees ui Mississippi, including, but not limiled to, the revocation ursuspcnsiori of any such subsidiary' gariiirig license. 

We, along with each ofour .Mississippi gaming subsidiaries, must periodically submit deiailcd financial, operafing and other reports lo the .Mississippi 
Gamriig Commission and/or the Mississippi Departirient of Revenue. Numerous liansa'clions, including but not limiled lo subslanfially ad loans, leases, sales 
uf .securities and similar financing transactions entered riilo by any of our Mississippi gaming subsidiaries must be reported to or appro'v'ed by die Mississippi 
Ganiing Commission. In addiiion, ihe Mississifipi Gaming Commission may, at its discreiion,'require addiliunal information about our operations. 

Ceriain ofour officers and eriiployees arid Ihe officer.s, dircciors and certain'key employees uf onfMissis'sippi'gaming subsidiaries must be fourid suitable 
or be licensed by the Mississippi Gaming Commission. We believe that all required findings of suitability and key employee licenses rchted lo all ofour 
Mississippi properties have been apphed for or obtained, although die .Mississippi Gamriig Commission at its discretion may require additional persons lo file 
applicafions for firidriigs of suitability or key employee" licenses. In addiiion, any p'ersori having a maierialrelaiiunship or involvemenl with us may be 
rcquircd to be found suitable or licensed, in which case those persons must pay the costs and fees associated wrih .such investigafion. The Mississippi Gaming 
Commissiori may deny an application fora findingof suilabilily for any cause dial il deems rea'sori.ible Changes in certain hcensed positions must be reported 
to the Mississippi GamingCommission. In addriion to its authority lo deny an application for a findingof suitability, the .Mississippi GamingCommission has 
jurisdicfion Io disapprove a change in a Ucensed posilion. The Mississippi Gaming Commission has the power'to require us and any of our'Mississippi gaming 
subsidiaries lo suspend or dismiss officers, 
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dritrelors and other key employees or tu sever rclafionships widi other persons whu refuse lo file appropriale applications or who the audiorities find 
un.suilable to act in such capacities. 

Employees as.socialed with gamriig musl obtarii work pcirails dial are subjecl to immediate suspension under ccrtarii circumslanees. The Mississippi 
Gaming Commission will refuse lo issue a work permii to a person who has been convicted ofa felony, commiued certain misdemeanors or knowingly 
violated tlie Mississippi Gamriig Conlrol Act, and il may refuse lo issue a work perriiit to a gamriig employee fur any other reasonable cause. 

At any fime, die Mississippi Gamuig Commission has Ihe power to investigate and requirelhefindingof suitability of any record or beneficial 
stockholder of ours. The Mississippi Gaming Control Acl reqriiriJS any person who individually or in association with odiers acquires, direcdy or indirectly, " 
beneficial ownership of more than 5% ofour common stock to rcport the acquisilion to the Mississippi Gaming Commission, and such person may be 
required to be found suitable In addiiion, the Mississippi Gaming Control Acl requires any jicrsbn who, individually or rii association with others, becomes, 
direclly nr indirecdy, a beneficial owner of more thanMO% ofour conVmon stuck,'as reported to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Com mission i Io apply fora 
'findingof suitability by the Mississippi GamingCommission and pay the costs and fees that the Mis.'iissippi Gaming Commission incurs in conducting the 
investigation. 

The Mississippi Gamriig Commission has generally exercised ris discretion to require a finding of suilabilily ofany beneficial owner of 5% or rriorc uf a 
registered publicly traded corporadon's stock. However, the Mississippi Gaming Commission has adopied a regulation that may permri certain "inslimiional" 
investors looblain waivers that allow them to beneficially own, directly or indirectly, up,lo:l5%(!9%'in certain specific instances) bf the voting securifies of 
a registered publicly traded corporation wilhom a findriig'of suitabdily. If a stockholder who mustbe found suilaiiie is a corporafion, partnership or trust it 
must submit detailed business and financial informafion, uicluding a list of beneficial owners. 

<\ny,pcrsdn who fails or refii.ses to apply fora finding ofsuilabilily or a license widiin 30 days after being ordered to do so by die .Mississippi Gamriig 
Coriimission may be fourid unsuitable. We believe that compliance by us with the liccnsuig pnxfcdures and regulatory rcquiiemcni5 oflhe Mississippi 
Gaming Commission will nol afFeci the marketability of our securities. Any person found unsuitable who holds;'directly ur indirectly, any beneficial, 
owncrshipof uur seeurilies beyond such time as the Mississippi Gaming Commission prescribes may.be guilty of a misdemeanor. We are subjecl to 
disciplinary acliori if after receiving nolice that a persun is unsuitable lu be a siockhuldei urlo have" any other rclaliunship widi us or our subsidiaries 
operadng casinos rii Mississippi, we: 

• pay the unsuitable person any dividend or odier distribufiuri upon iis voting securifies; 

* recogruze the exercise, directly or indirecdy, uf any voling rights confeired by its securities; 

• pay Ihc unsuitable person any remuneration in any form for services rendered or otherwise, except in ccrtarii limited and specific cri-cumstances: 
or 

fail to pursue all lawful efforts to rcqurie the unsuitable person to divesl itself of the securifies, uicluding, if necessary, our immediale purchase of 
the sccurides for cash at a fair market value. 

r Wc may be rcquu-cd to disclose to the Mississippi Gaming Commission upon'rcqucsi the iderilriies ofthe holders ofany ofour debt securities. In 
addriion, under the Mississippi Gaming CunUol Act, the Mississippi GamingCommission may, in risdiscredun, (I) require holders ofour securriies, 
including our noies, to file applicafions, (2) invesiigaie sueh holders and (3) require such holders lobe found suitable to own such securities. Xlihough the 
Mississippi Gaming Commission gcneraily docs not require ihe individual holders of obligalions sueh as ihe nolcs to be invesligated and found suitable, the 
Mississippi Gaming Commission retains the discrefion tu du so for any reason, includirig but not 
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iimried to a default or where ihc holder oflhe debt instrument exercises a material infiuence over the gamriig operations oflhe eniiiy in question. Any holder 
of debt securities required to apply fora finding of suitability musl pay all investigative fees and costs of the Mississippi GamingCommission in connecfion 
with sucli an invesfigafion. 

'ITic Mississippi regubtions provide dial a change in control of us may not occur wiihout the prior approval oflhe .Mississippi GamingCommission. 
Mississippi law prohibits us from mafcuig a public offcrin'gof bur securifies" withoui'dieappro'val oflhe Mississippi GanjingCoriiriiission if any partof the 
proceeds of the oiTering is to be used to finance the construcfion, acquisition or operaiion of gaining facilities iri Mississippi, or to retire ur extend obligalions 
incurred for one or more such purposes. The Mississippi Gaming Commission Jias the'authorily to.grania continuous approval of securities offerings and has 
granted such approval lo us, subjecl to renewal every three years. 

Regulations ofthe Mississippi Gaming Cummission'prohibil ccrtarii repurchases of securities nf publicly, traded corporations registered wilh the 
Mississippi Gaming Commission, including holding companies such as ours, wiihout "prior appruva I oflhe Mississippi Gaming Commission. Transaciions 
covered Pyihcsc regulafions arc generally aimed al discouraging repurchases of securities al a premium uvcr market price from ceriain holders of greater than 
3% of the outstanding securities ofthe registered publicly traded'corporal ion. The: regulations ofthe .Vlississippi Gaming Commission also require prior 
approval fora "plan of recapiiali2afion"as defmed rii such regulafions. 

We must mariiiain in die Slate of .Mississippi cunerirstdckledgers, which may be examined by the Mississippi Gaming Aulhorriies at any lime. If any 
securides are held in tmsl by an agcniorby a'noriiiiiee,;die record holder may be required io disclose the idenfityof the beneficial owner lo the'Mississippi. 
Gaming Authorities. A failure to make such disclosure maybe grounds for finding Ihe record holder unsuitable. Wc must render maximum assistance in 
determining the idenlit>' uf the beneficriil owner. 

Mississippi law requires that certificates represendng shares ofour cominon'stock bear, ri'legend to the general effcci dial the sccuriiies arc subjecl to the 
Mississippi Gaming C<mirot Act and regulafions oflhe Mississippi Ganiing Commission.'Tfie,Mississippi Gaming Commission has the audiority l6 granl a 
waiver from the legend requirement, which we have obtained; flie Mississippi Garning Commission, through the power to regulate licenses; has the power to 
impose addilional restrictions on trie holders ofour securifies at ariy. time. 

The Mississippi Gaming Commission enacted a'fegulalion iri 1994 requiring,ihat, as a condilion lo liccrisure, an applicant must provide a plan to develop 
infrasuticture faciiifies araounfing lo 25%bf thecbsl of the casino and a parking facility "capable ufaccoraiuodating 500 cars. In \999, The Miss'issippi'Gaming 
Commission approved amendments lu'this regulation thai increa.sed ihe'uifrastrucriri-e development requiremeril from 25% to 100% fur new casinns (orupon 
acquisition of a closed casriio), bul grandfathered existing licensees and development plans approved prior lu;ihc effecfive date of the new regulation. 
"Infrastructure facilities" include any ofthe following; 

• a 250-room or larger hotel of al least a Iwo-siar raring as defined by thecurrenl edition of the .Mobil Travel Guide; 

• theme parks; 

• golf courses: 

entertainment facilities: 

lerinis complexes: or 

any other facilities approved by the Mississippi Ganiing Coinmission. 
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Parkriig facilities, roads, sewage and water systems or civic facilities arc nol considered "infrastructure faciiifies." The .Mississippi Gaming Commission 
may reduce the number of rooms required in a hotel if it is .satisfied trial .sufficient rooms are a va liable _to accommodate the anficipated number of visitors. In 
2003 and rii 2006, the Mississippi Gaming Commission again amended its rcguliitinn regarding development plan approval bul left ihc 100% infrastructure 
requirement intact In 2007, the .Mississippi Gaming Comniission further amended this regulafion. Among other filings, the 2007 amendment retained die 
100% infrastructure requirement and added a requircmenl that the qualified infrastructure be owned or leased by ccrtarii specified persons. 

License fees and laxes are payable lo the Slate of Mi.ssissippi and to the counties and criics in which a .Mississippi gaming subsidiary's respective 
operations will be conducted.'Hie license fee payable to ihe stale ofMississippi is based upon gross revenue oflhe licensee (generally defined as gaming 

.receipts less payout to customers as winnings) and equals 4% of gross revenue of $50,000 or less per monlh, 6% of gross revenue ui excess of $50,000 bul 
less Ihan $134,000 per calendar month, and S% of gross revenue in excessof $134,000 per calendar month. The foregoriig license fees are allowed as a credii 
against the licensee's Mississippi income tax liability for the year paid. Additionally, a licensee must pay a $5,000 annual license fee and an annual fee based 
upon die numberof games il operaies. The gross revenue lax impused by the Mississippi communities and counlies in which our caslnooperaiions are localed 
equals 0.4% of gross rcvenue of $50,000 or less per calendar month, 0.6% of gross rcvenue uvcr 550,000 and less Ihan $134,000 per calendar mondi and 0.8% 
of gross revenue greater ihan $134,000 per calendar month. These fees have been imposed in, among other cities and coundes, Biloxi and Coahoma Couniy. 
Certaui local and private laws oflhe stale of .Mississippi may impose fees ur taxes un the Mississippi gaming subsidiaries in addifion tu the fees described 
atxjve. 

In April 2010, the Mississippi Gaming Commission adopted a regulafion amcndmenl thai imposes a flat annual fee on each casino operator licensee, 
covering all invesugaiivc fees for that year associated wiih an operaior licensee, any enliiy registered as a holding company or publicly traded corporation of 
that licensee, and any person required to be found suitable in eonnecliori with thai hcensec or any holding company or publicly traded corporation of that 
licensee. The [xirticular fee is based on the average numberof gaming devices operated bythe licensee during a twelve (12) month period, as reported to the 
Mississippi Gaming Conunission. The riivestigalive fee is $325,000 for licensees with 1500 or more gaming devices, $250,000 for licensees wilh 1000 to 
1499 gamriig devices, and 5150,000 for licensees with less than 1000 g-iming devices. TIi'c fee is payable in foui" (4) equal quarterly insiallirients. The 
amendmeni provides that should such luial invesiigalivc fees collected by the Mississippi Gaming Comniission exceed die amount allowed by'Mississippi 
stamtc, then the excess fees wdl be credited to the licensees for the following year. The amended rcgulation also provides a schedule of various fees 
applicable lo licensees and persons riot covered by the annual investigative fee. 

The Mississippi Gamuig Commission requiies, as a condifion of licensure or license renewal, dial casino vessels on the Mississippi Gulf Coast thai are 
riot self-propelled mustbe moored to wilhsland a Category 4 hurricane with 155 mile-per-hour winds and 15-fuoi tidal surge. However, after Hurricane 
Kiitrina, Isle—Biluxi reopened its casino on shore rather than on a vessel. A 1996 Mississippi Gaming Commission regulation prescribes the hurricane 
emergency procedure to be used by the Mississippi Gulf CuasI casinus. 

The sale of food or alcoholic beverages al our Mississippi ganiing locafions is subjectto licensing, control and regulation bythe applicable siale and local 
auihnriiics. The agencies invoh'ed have ftill power to limil, condilion, suspend orrevoke any such license, and any such diseiplriiary action could (and 
revocation would) have a maierial adverse effect upon the operations oflhe affecled casino or casriios. Certain ofour ofiicers and managers and our 
Mississippi gaming subsidiaries musl be investigated by the Alcoholic Beverage Conlrol Division oflhe Mississippi Departmeni of Revenue in connecfion 
with liquor pemiits that have been issued, 'fhe Alcoholic Beverage Contiol Division oflhe Mississippi l>parlment of Revenue must approv-c all changes in 
licensed positions. 
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On Ihree separate occasions since 1998, certain anii-garii ing groups have proposed referenda.dial, if adopted, would have banned gaming in Mississippi 
and rcquircd that gaming entities cease operalions within two years after the ban. All ihrcc referenda were declared invalid by Mississippi corirts because each 
lacked a requried govemmeni revenue impact statement 

Missouri 

Conducting gambiriig activifies and operating an excursion garnbling boat in Missouri are subjectto extensive regidaliun under Missuuri's Riverboai 
Gambling Act and the rules and regulations proriiulgaled thereunder,' The Missouri Gaining Co'nunissibn (the "Commission") was created by die Missouri 
Riverboat Gambling Act and is charged with regulator^' authority over rivcrboal gaming operafions in Missouri, including th"e issuarice of riverboai gamirig 
licenses lo owners, operalors, suppliers and certarii affiliates bfriverb'oat gamirig facilities. In June 2000, IOC-Kansas Cily, Inc., a subsidiary of ours, was 
issued a riverboai gaming license in conrieclion with biri'Kansas City operation., in Decemf)er.200l, lOC-Boonville, Inc., a subsidiary of ours,-was issued a 
riverboat gaming license for our Boonville operation."In June of 2007,10C-Caruthcrsyille',-LLC f/k/a Aztar Missouri Riverboat Gaming Company, L.L.C. 
was acquired by us and operates as a subsidiary of ours urider ri Missouri riverboai gaming liccn,se. In 2010, iOC-Cape Girardeau LLC, a subsidiary, of ours, 
participated in a competitive process established bythe Cpniniission,through;,which a new gamriig'facility development in Missouri would be selected for 
priorifizatibn. In Deceiuber 2Q10,^lOC-Ca'peGi)rardeau LLC won diis 'process wh"eri its'proposed gamirig facility developmeni in Cape Gu-aiideau, Missouri 
was selected by the Coriimission for prioridzaiion. While there are numeruus condriions relatriig to theupeiung'of Ihe gamuig facility in Missouri, including 
regulatory approvals, il is anficipated Ihal the facility in Cape Girardeau will be operational in die fourth quarterof 2012. 

.As a participanl in this process, IOC-Cape Girardeau LLC applied fora Class B Riverboat Gaming License in Missouri. The decision by the Commission 
lo prioritize this casino developmeril does not provide IOC-Cape Girardeau LLC with any license to open the casino once developed or any assurance ihai 
such n license will be granted. The Glass B'Liceiise required for IOC-Capc Girardeau LLC to op'erate'its,proposed gamriig facility cannoi be granted by the 
Commission unfil the gamuig facility development is substantially .'complete aifd rcadytb accept patrons,' The grant ofthis license is subject to numerous 
condiiions described below. 

In ordi;r Io obtain a license tu uperate a riverboat gaming facilily,.lhe,proposed operating business enlily must complete a Riverbual Ganiirig Application 
form requesting a Class B License. In order looblain a licenseloown and/or co'nlrol'a riverboat gaming facility as I'tsultimate holding company, 3 tympany 
must complete a Riverboai Gaming Application fonn req utstriigajClass A License. the'Raverboiit Gaming Applicafion form is comprised uf comprehensive 
questions regarding the nalure and suitability oflhe applicant Applicants whu submit ihc'Riverboat Gaming Application fomi requesling eilhcra.Class A or 
Class B.Liccn.sc undergo an extensive background investigafion by the Commissinri.-,In'addition, each key person associated wiih'the applicaiil_(including 
directors, officers, managers and owners ofa significani direct or indirect'iri tereslrii thc,Class A orClass D Litrerise applicaril) riiusi complete a Key Person 
and Level [Application (Personal Disclosure Form 1) and uridergoa substanfial background'investigatiun'. Ccrtiinkey business erifities clusely relaled Io the 
applicani or "key person busuiess enfities" niusiundergo a similar, applicafion process and background check. An applicant fora Class A or Class B License 
will not receive a license if the applicant and its key persons, includingkey persnii" business eniiries, have not established good repute and moral character, and 
no licensee shalleilhercmploy or conlracl .wilh any person who hiis pled guilty lo; or been convicled of'.'a felony, Io perform any duties directly coruieclcd 
with'the licensee's privdeges under a licerise granled by the Commission. 

Each Class B License granled enfities a licensee to conduci gambling activilies on an excursion gambling boat ur to operate an excursion gambling boat 
and the equipment Ihereon from a specific 

20 



location. Each Class A License granled eniilies the licensee ludcvclup and operate a Class B liccnsccor, if authorized, muhipic Class ti. licensees. The 
durafion uf both the Class A and Class B License inifially runs for iwo oncryear terms: thereafter, for iwo-year lernis. In conjuncfion.wilh the renewal uf each 
license, the Commission requires the t"iiing ofa Rivcrboal Gaming Renewal Applicaiion'form and renewal fees. In conjuncuon wrihcach'^renewril.rdie 
Commission may conduci an additional invesfigation oflhe licensee with specific emphasis on new irifonuafion provided in the Riverboai Gaming Renewal 
Applicalion form, fhe Commission also possesses Ihe right to periodically conduct acomprehensivejnvestigafiMi on any Class .'\. Class B, supplier or key 
person licensee since die dale Ihe last comprehensive' rii vestigation was conducted. The Coriiriiis'sion also licenses the serving of alcoholic beve'ragcs ori 
riverboats and relaled facilities. 

. In determining whether to grant a license,.the Commission considers the following faciors, among others; (i) Ihe inlegrily of die applicant;:(ii) the types 
and variety of games the applicant may offer; fiii) the quality, of the physical facility, ipgetherwilh improvements and equipmenl, and how soon the projeci 
wdl be cbropieted; (iv) the financial ability ofthe applicant io develop and operate the faciliiy successfully;'(v) the status of governmenlal actions required by 
thefacility: (vt) the management ability uflhe.applicani: (vii) compliance with applicable, staiules, roles, charters and ordinances; (viii) ihe economic, 
ecological fliid social impact ofthe facility as well as the cost of public improvements; (ix)'the cxicni of public suppon or opposition;'(x) the plan adupled by 
Ihe home dock ciiy or couniy; and (xi) effects on competitiun. 

A licensee is subjecl lo the imposriiun of penalties, suspension ur revocatibri of its license for any act that is injurious to the public heallh", safely, morals, 
good urderarid general welfare oflhe people oflhe State of Missouri, or that would discredit or lend to discredit the Missouri gaming indusiry or the State of 
Missouri, iricluding .without linutafiun: (1) failing lo comply with or make provision for compliance with Uie legislalion, the rules promulgated Uiereunder or 
any federal, state or local law or regulafion: (ii) fading to comply with anj-'riiles, order or "rril irig bftheConimission or its agents pertaining'io gaming; 
(iri) rcccivriig goods or services from a person orbusiness enfily whodoesnol hold a supplier's license but whois required lohold such license by die 
legisladon or die rules: (iv) being suspended or ruled ineligible orhaving a license revoked or suspended rii any stale or garbing jurisdicfion; (v) associaling 
with, eidier socially or in business affairs, oreroploying persons of notoriousorunsayory reputafioribr who have extensive police records, of .who hiiye failed 
fo cooperate wilh any officially constituted invesfigatory or adriiriiistradyc body and would adversely affect public confidence and trust iri gariiirig: 
(vi) employing in any Missouri gaming operation any'person known tuhavebeenitbund guilty of chealuig of using any-improper device in connecfion wilh 
any gariiijlirig game; (vii) use of fraud, decepfibn, misrepresentaiion or bribery, iu'securing any license_or pcrriiri issued pursuant to.lhe legiskifibn;" 
(viii) obiairiirig any fec'cliarge or ulher compensafion by fraud, dcccpuon of misfepreserilalibn; and (ix) incompelence, misconduct, gross negligence, fraud, 
misrcpresentadon or dishonesty in the performance of the functions or duties regulated by die .Missouri Riverbrai Gariibling Acl. 

Any..transfer or issuance of ownership interests in a publicly held gamingOicehsec or its holding company that results in an entity or group of enfities 
acting in concert ovvnriig, directly or indirectly, an aggregale ownership interest uf5%,oi-morc in.the gaming licensee must be reported to ihc Coriimission 
within seven days. Further, any pledge or hypoihccafiun "of, or granl ofa security,'intercsi in,'5% ur more ofthe ownership interest in a publicly held gaming 
Uoeiisee ot its holding company must be reported lo trie Comrnission within seven days. 'The Cnmmisyori will irripose cenain licensriig requri-ements upon a 
holder of an aggregale ownership riileresi of 5% or more in a publicly-traded Missouri^Class A or Class B licensee,'unless suchhuldcfapplies fur and obtains 
ari insfiiutional irivestur exemptiun in accordance with ihe Missouri gaming regulations.The Execudve Director oflhe Coriimissiori'may grant a waiver io an 
institudunal investoriiial holds up lu 10% ofthe outsianding 
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equity of die Missouri licensee. The Commission itself may grant a waiver to an uisiitufional investor that holds up to 209i of the oulstanding equity of Ihc 
Missouri licensee. 

Every employee participating in a riverboat gaming operation musl hold an^occupalional license. In addiliori'̂ .the" Commission issues supplier's licenses, 
which authorize the supplier licensee to sell or lease gaming equijiment and supplies to any licensee involved'iri the operauun ofgaming acfiviiies. Class A 
and Class B licensees may nol be licensed as suppliers. 

Riverboat gaming activilies may only be conducted on, or wiihin 1,000 feet oflhe mauicliannel of. the Missouii River or Mississippi River. Minimum 
and maximum wagers'on games are set by the licensee, and wagering may becon~ducIcd_oriIy with a cashless wagering system,- whereby money is converted 
to lokens, electronic cards or chips thai can only be used for wagering. No person under the age of 2r is pefmitled lo.wager, and wagers may only be taken 
from a person presenl on a licensed excursion gairbling boat 

.The Missouri Riverboat Gambling Acl imposes a 21'V'u wagering tax on adjustedgross receipts (generally dcfiricd as gross receipts less winnings paid to 
wagerers) from gambling games. The iax imposed i.s'tb be paid by the licensee tothe Commission ori"'lhe day" after die day when the wagers were made. Oflhe 
proceeds uf ihe wagering lax, lO'/o of such proceeds goes to the lucal govemnieiit where die home dock is localed, and the remainder goe"s lo the Stale of 
Missouii. 

The Missouri Rivcrtoal Gambling Acl also requires thai licensees pay a $2.00 admission.tax to Ihe Commission fnreach person admitted to a gamriig 
cruise. One dollar of the admission fee goes to Ihe State of Missouri, arid o"ne'dollarigbeS:to the home dock city in which the licensee operaies. The licensee is 
required to maintain public books and records clearly showing arriount's received from'adrnission fees/lbc total arribunt of gross receipts and the lotal amounl 
bf adjustedgross receipts. In addifion, alMoca] incomc. earairigs, use, ptoperty.aridsiileslaxes'are applicable,to licensees. From time to time" there ha'vebeen 
several proposed bids pcriding before die Missouri General Assembly.which,-individually ̂ w in eorribiniitiun, if adopted^ (1) allow gaining credits to be 

used in food and beverage purchases; (2) adjust ihc amounl of wageririg laVirapo'sed on adjusted gross receipts of licensees'and/or (3) adjust the amounl uf 

admission tax paid by the licensee for each person admiucd for a gaming cruise-

Pen/t.vi'/'''"'rrt 

In 2004, die Commonwealth of Pennsylvania established die Pennsylvania Gaming Cunlrol Board ('!PGCB") to oversee ihe crcafion uf Ihc new casino 
industry. Initially, nnly slol machines were permiUcd, but in 2010, the law^wa's revised lb authorize table games a's well (coUeclivcly, ihe "PA.Gaming Law"). 
The law created three categories of licenses—Caicgbry 1 slot rii"achinc licenses for up lô  seven licensed racetrack facilities, five Category 2 licenses (two in 
Philadelphia, une in Prilsburgh and Iwo "at large"), and three Category 3 licenses.to well-established resort hotels havriig no fewer than 275 guest rooms under 
common ownership and having substatifialyearraroundfecreadbnal guest amenities,̂ o"ri"e ofwhich Category 3: licenses cannot be issued before July, 2017. 
Holders of Category 1 and Category 2 licenses are entriled to up 16 5,000 slot niachines and 250 table gariies. Holders of Category 3 licenses are enfified to up 
In 600 slot machines and 50 lable games. 

The holder ofa Category 3 license may only permit entry into the ganiing area uf ihc facihly bythe followin'g: 

(1) A regisiered overnight guesi ofthe resort. 

(2) A patron of one or more oflhe amenifies ofthe resort. A patron of an.anienity is"any individual who is a registered attendee ofa convention, 
meeting or banquet evenl or panicipani in a sport or rcereational eyeili or any other social, cultural'or business event held al a resort hotel or who 
participates in one or more ofthe amenities provided to registered • 



guests oflhe hotel in return for non-dc miiuuius considerafiun, currently defined by the PGCR as S10.00! A patron of an amenity at the resort may 
be'permilled unlimited access to. the. gaming fiuor for one 24 hour period within 72 hours of use ofthe ameriiij-. 

(3) An aulhorized employee of die licensee or gaming service provider, ofthe PGCB orany regulatory, emergency response or law enforcemenl 
.igency while engaged in the performance of ihe employee's dufies. 

(4) An individual holtling a valid membership approved by Ihe PGCB or a guestof such individual. The_PGCB may approve seasonal or year-round 
memberships dial allow an individual to use one or more of the amenities provided by the resort, based upon the durafion ofthe membership, the 
amenity covered by Ihe riiembcrship and whether die fee charged represents the fair market value forthe use ofthe amenity. 

The first iwo Calegory 3 licenses are nof to be localed wiihin 15 linear miles'of another licensed facility. The third Category 3 license to be issued on or 
after July 20, 2017 is nol tubeiueated wiifiin"'30 linear miles uf another licensed facility. The license fee for a Category 3 slot machriie license is $5 million 
and for,a Category.3'table game operaiion cerfificate is $7.5 million. 

The first Calegory 3 license was awarded to the Valley Forge Conveniion Cenler in April 2009,which opened die Valley.Forge Casino Resort on 
March 31; 2012. IOC-PA, LL.C ("IOC-PA 0 ; a wholly ,-;oW7ied subsidiary.of Isle,'teamed up with Ncmacolin'Woodlands'Resort ("Nemacplui")and Woodlands 
Fayette, LLC ("Woodlands Fayelie")'lo develop and manage a propo.sed Category 3 casriio at Neriiacolin in'Fayette .County, Pennsylvania. The casino will be 
called "t:ady Luck—Nemaeoiin". Three other applicants competed widi'Woudlands Fayette fbr, die remaining available Calegory 3 license and rii April 2011, 
Woodlands Fayette was a'w-arded dieC^tegory 3 liccnsc.One^of the other applicants appealed-rfie award bflhc license lo W'obdlands Fayette to the 
Pennsylvania Supreriie Court and urol argument was held on March 7, 2012!,'rhe;SuprcmeCourt is required to affirrrilhe adjudicatkin unless,it finds that the 

.PGCB,commiued an error of law or dial IIK^'order, delerrariiafiun ur.decisiori'lof ihe'PGQ3.,was3rbilrary.and dicre.was a capriekius disregard of evidence. We 
are awaiting a rulriig from the Suprcriie Court. 

IOG7PA must be licensed as the manager of Lady Luck—^N'e'macoliri.'10C-;PA is required 10 praye by clear and convincing evidence its t"iiiancial stability 
and integrity, and thai of its affiliates and holding cbmpariies,'arid theiri good character; honesty and integrity., Inaddition, the lable game operation certificate 
needs to be' applied for and obtained before the opening.of Lady Luck—Nemacolin. The licenses.to be issued to Woodlands Faycnc and IOC-PA" will be 
issued for one year and will need In he renewed annually thereafter. 

The.managemeni agreement belween lOC-PA-and .Woodlands Fayette is not effective uniillhe lerms arid conditions ihereuf have been approved by the 
PGCB. In addriion, any amendmeriis lothe managemeni agreement must be siibmitled.lo the PGCB 30 "days pfior lo.lheeftccfivedaieof ihe proposed 
amendmeni and shall noi become effecfive until IhC'PGCB has reviewed and approved lli'e^terms.and condidons fiierenf' As the manageruent coriipany, IOC-
PA may be jouilly and severally liable for.ariy act or o'raissiun by Woodlands,Fayette as the slot machine licensee in violation of die Act or die regulations, 
regardless uf aciual knuwiedge by iOC-PA ofthe act bronussion. 

Certain persons alTiliaicd with iOC-PA,'including bur directors, key employees, and any persun who acquires a 5% or greater beneficial interesi ofour 
votirig securities, will be requiicd tn apply Io die PGCB,for licensure, obtairi licensure and remairi'licenscd.-Licensure requires, among other things, lh_al the 
applicanlestablishby clear and convincing evidenceihe applicant's good cha"racler,'horiesiy and integrity. In addiiiorirany tnisi that holds 5% perceni or more 
of our voting securities is required tut>e licensed bV'lhe PGCB aiid each individual,whu is a grantor, irosiee or beneficiary of ihe.trust is also required tube 
licensed by the PGCB. Under certain cireuriistances aiid.urider.the regulauons of 
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the PGCB, an "institutional invcslor," as defined under ihe regulations, which acquires ownership of 5% or more, but less dian 10% ofour voting securriies, 
niay,noI be required lu be licen.sed by the PGCB provided ihai a'notice of ownership form is filed ,wiih lhe;PGCB.'In addiiion, any beneficial.owner uf our 
votirig seciirities, regardless ofthe number of shares beneficially owned, may be requircdat the discretion ofthe PGCB to fiie an applicalion for licensure. 
The PGCB also licenses or registers various categories of individuals employed by the casino in gaming and non-gaming capacriies. 

Non-reriewat, suspension of rcvocalion of a lieense, permit, certification or rcgisiraiiun may occur for sufiicicnl cause corisislent.with die PA Gaming 
Law and public interest A person whose applicalion has been denied or whose license, pennit:'certificatinrior registrafion has bccnievoked'riiay nut apply fof 
a. license, permit, cenificafion or regislratiori lor five years from the dale of denial or rev6catio"ri, except under certain "circuinslances. In the event any uf our 
sccurityhnlders is required to be licensed and is nul found qualified, the securiP^ holder may'be lequireil by the PGCB in divest its inieresi at a price nnl 
exceeding the cost of die interest 

ll is the continuing duty of all holders of licenses^ permits, certifications or registrations lo frilly cooperate.with the PGCB in the conduci ofany inquiry 
or investigation and to provide supplementary riiformalion requested by the PGCB. 

.lOG-PA is required tonufiiy the PGCB of any "proposed appointnieni, appointment, proposed nornirialioii, nomination, election, hiring, tender of 
resignation, resignation, r'efiioval, firing, incapacitalion ur death ufany person required to be'licensed as a principal ur key employee under the PA Gaming 
Law.or die reguladons promulgated thereunder. In addition, IOC-PA is also required to nofify ,the PGCB assoon'as itbecom'es aware that it inlends lo enter 
inlu a Iransaciion,which may resuli in any new financial backeis. 

The PGCB has broad authority to sanction, l"ine, suspend and revoke a license for violations of thePA Gaming Law. 

lOC-PA_ is reqiiired to submil to the PGCB widi respect to Lady LuckTNeniiiculin:,(l) fully, signed copies of all written agreements wilh mariufacturers, 
suppliers and vendors; (2) a descripfion ofany oral agreements .with' any manufacturers, 'suppliers and vendors; (3) copies of all agreements relating tb land 
and real estate;,and (4) copies of all written agreements oradescriplioriof any oral .igfcemerits w[di a~peî s6n which ̂ involves or riiay involve payments of 
3500,000 or more per year to a Pcnrisylva'nia sloi machine licensee; toeeiher with any changes or amendments Ihereiuand any otheriagreemenlsas requested 
by ihe PGCB. " ' '^ . 

W'e musl notify ihe PGCB immediately, upon becoming aware ufany prop(is"ed arcunlemplated change in the ownership of Isle or IOC-PA by a person 
or a group of persons acfing in concert which involves any oflhe following: 

(1) more than 5% perceni ofour securifies nr other ownership interesi: 

(2) mure dian 5% of the securifies ur ulher ownership inleresls ofa corpofatibn ur other forrii of business" entity that owns, direclly nr indirectly, at 
least 20%' ofour voling or other securriies or ownership inleresls; 

(3) the sale, orhcrihan the normal course of business, of Isle or iOG-PA'sassets;and 

(4) other transactions nr occunences deemed by the PGĈ R TO he'relevani lo license qualification. 

PGCB approval is required prior lo the compleliun ofany proposed change of uwnership ttiai meets the above crileria. 

Upon a change of control of Woodlands Fayelle, trie acquirer of the ownership interest would be required lu qualify for licensure and pay a new license 
fee bf $5 milliun. The PGCB relairis the 
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discretion to eliminate the need fur qualificafion and/or reduce the license fee Required upon a change of control. 

Pennsylvania imposes up tn a 55% lax on slot machine revenues, consisting uf 34% of slut machine revenues lo the Stale Gaming Fund, 2% to Fayette 
County, 2% to Wharton Township, up to 12% to suppon live racing and 5% to the Pennsylvania Gaming Economic Development and Tourism Fund. In 
addiiion, during the inriial two years of table game operations, Pennsylvania imposes a table game lax of 14% of table game revenues lo the Commonwealth, 
plus a 2% lucal share to each uf Fayette Couniy arid Wharton Township. Following the initial two years uf operaliun, the table game Uix to Ihc" 
Commonwealth is reduced tu 12% of table game revenues, plus 2% to each of Fayette County and Wharton Township. 

Slot machine and table game operators in Permsylvania are also required In reimburse the PGCB for its administrative and operaiing expenses. The 
assessment rate oflhese fees has not been finalized bythe PGCB. In addiiion, rii order to fund operations ofthe PGCB, an riiriial loan of approximately 
$36.1 million was granled lu the PGCB from gaming tax funds received by the Cummonwealth of Pennsylvania, followed by additional loans in the aggregate 
amount of approximately 563.8 million, all uf which was tu fund the PGCB's ope'rafional costs. 

On July 11, 201 l,the PGCB adopied a schedule governing Ihe repaymeni of the approximately $63.8 million in loans by licensed gaming entities. 'Die 
schedule provides that the loans will be repaid in quarterly installments o'ver ten years, with one-tt:nlh of ihe total initial loan balance as it existed on July I, 
2011 repaid each year by the operating gariiirig facilriies, cbrrimencing on January 1, 2012. Each uperadng facihty's ponion ufQie payment for each year is 
calculated on a pro rata basis rii rclafion to an average of die facility's annual and cumulative gross lerminalrevenue. The repaymeni of iheinifial 
$36.1 miliion in appropriadon confinues lo be deferred unlil all licensees have commenced operations. Cunenily Ihcre are eleven licensed facilities 
operafional in Pennsylvania, 
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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMFLNTS" 

This Arinual Report contains statements that we believe are, or may be considered to be. "forwarcl-looking statements" wiihin the meaning ofthe Private 
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All statements other than statements of historical fad included in this Annual Report regarding the prospects ofour 
industry or our prospects, plans, financial position or business strategy, may constitute torvvard-looking statements. In addition, forward-looking'statements 
generally can be identified by the use of forward-looking words such as "may," "will," "expect' "intend," "estimate.' "foresee,' "project," "anticipate,' 
"believe," "plans," "forecasts,' "continue ' or "could" or the negatives of these terms'or variations of them or similar terms. Furthermore, such forward-
looking statements may be included in various filings that we make wilh the SEC or press releases or oral statements made by or witli die approval of one ot 
our authorized executive officers. Although we believe that the expectations reflected In these'forward'lookiiig statements are reasonable, we cannot assure 
you that these expectations will prove to be correct These lorward-looking statements are subject to certain known and unknown risks and uncertainties, as 
well as assumptions that could cause actual results to differ materially from those reflected in these forward-looking statements. Factors that might cause 
actual results to differ include, but are not limited to. those discussed in the seciion eniided "Risk Factors" beginning on page 9 of this report. Readers are 
cautioner! not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements contained herein, which reflect management's opinions only as ofthe date hereof. 
Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to revise or publicly release the results ot any revision to any forward-looking statements. You are 
advised., however, to consult any additional disclosures we make in our reports td ilie SEC. All subsequent written and oraf forward-looking statements 
attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by ihe cautionary statements contained in this Annual Repori. 



Tabic of Contents 

PART I 

ITEM I. BUSINESS 

Overview 

We are a leading developer, owner and uperaior of branded gaming faciliiies and related lodging and entertainment facilities in regional markels in ihe 
United Slates. We own and operate 15 gaming and enlertainmeni faciiifies in Louisiana, .Vlississippi, .Missouri, Iowa, Colorado and Florida. Collecfively, 
these properties feature approximately 15,000 slot machines and over 370 lable games (including approximately 110 poker tables) o"ver 3,000 holel rooms and 
more dian 40 restaurants. We also operate a harness racing track at our casuio iri-Florida. Oiir portfolio of properties provides us wilh a diverse geographic 
footprint that minimizes geographically concentrated risks caused by weather, regional ecunumic difficulties, gaming tax rates and regulafiuns imposed by 
localgamriig aulhorilies. 

Strategic Plan Componenl* 

The Isle ofCapri senior management team brings over 200 collccfive years of gamriig industry, e.xperience spannriig 20 Slates, six foreign jurisdictions 
'and over 75 individual gaming properties. Since joriiing the company in 2007, diis team developed and are exeeuiing a strategic operaiing plan dial focuses un 
the financial discipline and core operafing principles of die company in order to increase our customer's satisfaction with our product offerings while at the 
same fime increasriig slockhulder value. Our business approach is anchored by the following sUalegic components: 

Financial discipline. 

We utilize a disciplined approach to evaluate financial decisions with the condnuing goal to improve our capilal structure and financial flexibility. We 
have reduced our outstanding debt from approximalcly S1.5 bidion as of April 27,'2008 lo approxinialely S1.2 billion as of April 24. 2011, areducik)n of 
approximately $310 million. Wc achieved this reducfion primarily dirough the use of cash oblariicd from the settlement of our Hurricane Kairina claim and 
cash flows from oper.ilinn.s. We relired S 142.7 million uf uur 7% senior suburdinaledriotes fur 582:8 million dirough a tender offer in Febniary 2009 and 
prepaid $35.0niiniun of our term loans under our credri facility in March 2009. 

On January 25. 2011, wc conlinued lo improve our capital siruciurc by raisriig$51.2 million in net proceeds ihrou^ the issuance of 513 million shares of 
our comnion siock. In Mareh 2011, we issued $300 million in 7.75% senior notes and utilised ihe proceeds lo repay borrowings under our credii faciliiv. Also 
in March 2011, we entered riitoan amendmeni lo our Crcdit Facility; which, among other ihings, extended the maturity of ihe revolving credit faciliiy and 
terra loan and increased fiexibiliiy in operalions" and capilal spending. We.contuiually seek opportunifie"s to iriiprovc our capilal structure. 

Focusing on core operating principles that have proven successful. 

Our operating fucus is tu deliver a superior guesi experience by pmviding customers wiih the mosl popular gaming product in a clean, safe, friendly and 
fun envirurmieni: These areas have been shown ihrough customer research lo'cmbody the attributes of a ganiing entertainment experience raosi importanl Io 
our customers in choosing which casino to visit We emphasize, among olher ihriigs, customer courtesy and we have implemented a proprietary program in 
measure uur progress agariist .standards for certain courteous behaviors. In addiiion, many of oui capita! arid operadng plans are intended lo improve on gucsl 
satisfaction, including quality, accessibility and cleanlriiess of areas frequented by our cusiumers, such as hotel rooms and olher public areas in our hotels and 
casino floors, Wc also have iniplemenled employee incentive programs designed to encourage employees tu deliver superiur customer service and courtesy. 
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Driving value Oircxjgh product offerings and branding. 

Our curreni branding strategy includes two separate brand names: Isle and Lady Luck (which we re-launched in fiscal 2009). Through comprehensive 
market studies undcustumcr feedback, wchave found that our brands convey exciicmcnt, enlertainmeni, consistcni high-quality scrviccand value to our 
custoniers. 

We use the Isle brand primarily al properfies thai have a rc'giona! draw. These are generally casinos in larger markets where wc have expansion potenfial 
demonstrated by either the size oflhe markel or excess land thai we control. The Isle-branded properties lypically offer expanded amenriies. Such as holel 
rooms, expanded food and beverage offerings and conference and convenfion capabililies. 

Wc use the Lady Luck brand for properties thai predomriianlly di-aw local customers, which are typically in smaller markets with less expansion 
potential. The goal of the Lady Luck brand is to offer a first-class gamriig experience and high quality eniertariimeni oplions. feamring casual dining and 
popular local entertainment rii a comfortable setting. 

We have compleied Ihe refurbishmenl and rebranding of Ihree ofour exisling Isle prupertics under die Lady Luck brand: Marquette, Iowa in September 
2009, Culoradu Central Sialion rii Black Hawk, Colorado in June 2009 and Caruihcrsville; Missouri in December 2008. Assuming economic conditions 
improve and capital availability is enhanced, we intend lo rebrand addiliunal pmperiies under the Lady Luck name during the next few years. Our curreni 
expectations are that Natchez, Lula and Vicksburg, Mississippi; Lake Charles, Luuisiana; Boonville, and Kansas City, Missouri will eventually be rebranded 
as Lady Luck casriios. 

We offer all cusiomers membership in our customer loyally program, which rewards cusiomers with points and complimentary benefits that can be 
redeemed at any ofour properties by using a players' club card, .^s a result, wc have developed an extensive proprietary database that allows us to create 
effective targeted maikelingand promotional programs, merchandise giveaways, gaming tournaments and other special events. Asof April 24, 2011, our 
database coniained approximately 1.3 million members, of whom approximalcly 0.5 milliun receive regular communicafiuns from us. We believe wc 
effecdvely use uur database to encourage repeat visits and increase our cuslumei-s' Icnglhof stay at bur properties. 

Aggressively pursuing prudent growth opportunities. 

On December 1, 2010, the Missouri Gaming Commission selected our proposed casino project in Cape Girardeau (the "Cape Girardeau Projeci") for 
priorifi/aiion forthe thirteenth and final gaming license in the Staleof Missouri. We intend Io brand this casino as an Isle property, which we expect tu 
include appro.ximately 1,000 slot machines, 28 table games, three rcsiauranls, a lounge and terrace uvcrlooking ihc Mississippi River and a 750-scal event 
center at an estimated cost of $125 million. We an lieipale constmction in begin in summer 2011 and casino operations lo begin in the fourth calendar quarter 
of20I2. 

We also continue to seek lo expand our operations through acquisiliuns, such as our acquisriiun ofthe Rainbow Casriio located in Vicksburg, Mississippi 
in June 2010 for approximately S76 million. Vicksburg is located appruximalcly unc mile south of Interstate 20. die marii road connecfing Jackson, 
Mississippi to Vicksburg. The casino features 762 slot machines, 6 table games, a 224-seat Riverview Buffet, a 26-seai Crossroads Deli and 977 parking 
spots. 

Addidonally, we formed Isle Gaming Managemeni, a managemeni and consulting division oflhe Cornpany, in 2009 to leverage our experienced and 
respected managemeni team and intellectual property by nianaging and operaiing casinos owned by third parties in exchange for management and other fees. 
The goal of Isle Gaming Managemeni is to allow us to manage addilional casino properties wiihout requiring extensive capilal inveslmenl. On April 14, 2011, 
Ihe Nemacolin Woodlands Reson 
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("Nemacolin") in Famiriiglon, Penn.sylvania was selected hy die Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board for the final Calegory 3 resort gamriig license. We had 
previously enicred inio an agreement with Nemacolin lo complete the build-out uf die casino space and provide management .services fpr the casriio. The 
casino is expected tu riiclude 600 slot machines, 28 Uiblc games, a casual driiirig festaurant and lounge. We wUI pay ari arinual fee to die resort owner and in 
remrn will receive a management fee equal to die EBITDA of die casino afterpayment of die fcelo Nemacolrii. We currently esfimate the projeci costal 
approximately S50 million and expect lo be complete wiUiin nine mnnlhs ofthe conimeiicemeni of cunstmcfion. The award oflhe license to Nemacolin is 
subjecl loa 30-day appeal period, which ends on June 20, 2011, and the ubiainmenl ofa management license. 

Finally, in September 2010, we were awarded a gaming license by Nevada's Gamirig Conlrol Board, expanding die universe of oppominifics thai we can 
ulfimaiely pursue. 

Casino Properlies 

The following is an overview of our exisling casino properties as ofApril 24, 2011: 

Slol Table Holel Parking 
Pfopcrlt Pale A f nuireil or <>i>encd Machinei' f i i n i o Robmi .^pace* 

Louiiianr;;^:^'';^.i^^^;^^f r^^'^^r--m^r%M''^'^.^'<^^ %"' -/^-r" -̂ k 
W:aVc<^'^:ir\c^^-''.'T-:9"'H.^k.1<f-^^--f''^\ ^493 :.2;335l 

Mississippi 
Lula -March 2000 1,177 12 484 1,611 
Biloxi August 1992 1,219 36 709 1,339 
Natchez .M.^rch2000 617 10 - 141 645' 
Vicksburg June 2010 762 6 . — 977 

lowa 
Bettendorf .March 2000 1.022 28 514 2,057 
Rhyfiim Criy—Davenport Oclober 2000 949 15 — 911 
Marqueile March 2000 600 i! — 475 
Walerioo June 2007 1,040 52 195 1,500 

Florida 
Pompano Park July 1995/April 2007 1,448 38 — 3,800 

14,947 375 3,078 21,782 

Louisiana 

Lake Charles 

Our l.ake Charles property, which commenced operafions in July 1995, is localed on a 19-acre sile along Interstate 10, the marii thoroughfare cormcctriig 
I louslon, Texas to Lake Charles, Louisiana. The property consists of two dockside casinos oiTering 1,806 slot machines, 50 uible games, 28 poker tables, two 
hotels offering 493 rooms, a 105,000 square fool land-based pavilion and enteriainmenl center,'and 
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2,335 parking spaces, including approximately 1,400 spaces in an aliachcd parking garage. The pavilion and enlertainmeni center offer customers a wide 
variety of non-gaming anieniiies, including a 109-seal Olis& Henr>'s resiaurani, a 290-seal Calypso's buffet, a 70-seal Lucky Wins Asian-riispried restaurant 
which also includes a grab and gu deli, and Caribbean Cove feaiurriig free live entertauimeni andean accommodate 180 guests. The pavilion also has a 14,750 
square foot enteriainment cenler comprised of a 1,100-seaI special events cenler designed forconccrts, live boxing, televised pay-per-view evenls, banquets 
and olher evenls, meeting faciliiies and admriiislrafivc offices. On JuncT3, 2011, we'grantcd an opdbn agreement to a third party which could result inthe 
sale of ceiiain asseis used ai our Lake Charles, Louisiana property. The opfiun agrcci'nienl'expires'on Nuvembcr 30, 2011 and is subjcci to a number of 
condlfions. The.fiansacfion is also subjcci lo regulatory and other approvals, and passage of a local referendum to relocate the vesselto a different market If 
thenplion is exercised and the Iransaciion closes, we would continue to operate our Lake Charles hotel and land-based operations and consolidate "our gaming 
operaduns oriio one gaming vessel. 

The Lake Charles market currently consists of two dockside gaming facilities, a Naiive American casino and a pari-mutuel facility/racino. The current 
number uf slol machines in the markel exceeds 7,900 machines and table games exceed 125 tables. In calendar year 2010, the twu gaming facilities and one 
racino, in the aggrcgaie, generated gaming revenues of approximaiely S638 million; Revenues for the Native American property are not published. Gaming 
revenues forour Lake Charles properly forcalendar year 2010 were ap'piuximalcly SI38,million. Lake Charles is the closest gaming market lothe Houslu'n 
metrbpbtitan area, which has a populadon of approximately 5.5 milliori'and is loi;aIcd approxinialclyT40 miles west of Lake Charles. We believe that our 
Lake Charles property attracts customers primarily from soudieasl Texas, including Houston, Beaumont, Galveston, Orange and Port "Arthur and from lucal 
area residents. Approximately 500,000 and 1.6 million people reside within 50 and 100 miles, rcspei:lively, ofthe Lake Charles property. 

Mississippi 

Lula 

pur Lula property, which we acquried in .March 2000, is strategically localed offof Highway 49, the only road crossing the Mississippi River between 
Mississippi and Arkansas for more than 50 miles in eilher direction. The property consists of two dockside casinos conlaining 1,177 slot machines and 12 
table games, twoon-siie hotels widi a total of 4.̂ 4 rooms, a land-based pavdibn and enlertainmeni center, 1,611 parking spaces, and a 28-space RV Park. The 
pavilion and enlertainmeni center offer a wide variety of non-gamuig amenities, including a I3r-seat Farraddays' restaurant, a 328-seal Calypso's buffet and a 
46-seai Tfadewirids Marketplace, and a gift shup. 

Our Lula property is ihe only gaming faciliiy in Coahoma Couniy, Mississippi and generaial gaming revenues of approximaiely S66 million in calendar 
year 2010. Lula draws a significani amount uf busriiess from the Liulc Rock, Arkansas meUopblilari area, which has a populafion of approximaiely 675,000 
and is located approximaiely 120 miles west ofthe property. Cbahuma County is also, localed approxirnateiy 60 miles southwest of Memphis, Temiesscc, 
which is primarily scn.'ed by nine casinos rii Tunica County, Mississippi. Approximately 1.1 million people reside Wiihin 60 miles of theproperty. Lula also 
competes with Kafive American casriios in Oklahoma and a racinn in West Memphis, Arkansas. 

Biloxi 

Our Biluxi properly, which commenced operalions in August! 992, is located on a 17-acre sitcat die eastem end ofa cluster of faciiifies formerly known 
as "Casino Row" in Biloxi, Mississippi, and is the first property reached by visitors coming from Alabama, Florida and Georgia via Higliway 90.-
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In Oclober 2005, die Mississippi legislature amended its gaming laws to alluw casriios to opcraie,land-based facilities wrihrii 800 feet of die mean high 
water line. Our Bikixi property is now a land-based casino offering approximalety"l,2(X) slot machuies, 27 table games, a nuie-table poker room, a 709-robm 
hotel uicluding 200 whiripool suites, a 120-seai banquet room called "Paradise Room," 138-seai Farraddays'restaurant, a 200-seal Calypso's buffet, a 128-seai 
Cafe ai die Poriil restaurant, a 94-seal Tradewuids marketplace, a'muiti-slury fcalurc- bar, a full service Starbucks and over 1,300 parking spaces. 

The Mississippi Gulf Coast markel (which includes Bdoxi, Gulfport and Bay St. Louis) consists of 11 dockside gaming facilities, which in,die aggregale, 
generated gaming revenues of approximately SLI billion during calendar year 2010. Our Biluxi property generated gaming revenues of approximateiy 
S69 million during calendar year 2010. Approximately une million people reside wiihin 60 miles of the prppcrly. 

Natchei 

OurNalchez property, which we acquired in .March 2000, is located off of Highways 84 and 61 in weslern Mississippi. The properly consists ofa 
dockside casino offering 617 slol machines and 10 lable games, a 141-room off-site hotel localed approximatelyone mile from the casino, a 150-scat 

. Calypso's buffci and 645 parkriig spaces. 

OurNalchez property is currenlly the only gaming facility in die Natchez market arid generated total gamriig revenues of approximately S33 million in 
calendar year 2010.' We believe that Ihe Natchez property attracts cusiomers primarily from among the approximately 350,000 people residing within 60 miles 
uf the Natchez property. 

Vicksburg 

Our Vicksburg property, which we acquired ui June 2010, is lucated off Interstale 20 and Highway 61 in western Mississippi, approximately 50mdes 
west of-Jackson, Mississippi. The property consists of a dockside casino offering 762 slol machriies and six table games, a 224-seai Riverview Buffet, a 26-
seal Crossroads Deli and 977 parking spaces. 

The Vicksburg niarkei consists of five dockside casinos and approximaiely 700,000 people reside wiihin 60 miles ofthe property. 

Missouri 

Kansas City 

Our Kansas City property, which wc acquired in June 2000, is the closest gaming facility to downtown Kansas City and consists ofa dockside casino 
offering 1,161 slotmachines and 22 table games, a285-seal Calypso's buffet, a 80-scat LoneWolf restaurant a 58-seal Tradewinds Marketplace and 1,731 
parking spaces. 

The Kansas City market consisis of four dockside gaming facdriies and a Nafive American casino. Operaiing sialisiics for the Native American casino 
are nut published. The fourdockside gaiuing facilides generated gaming revenues of approximately S714 million in calendar year 2010. Our Kansas City 
property genciiiled gaming revenues of approximaiely $82 million during calendar year 2010; We believe thai our Kansas City casino attracts cusiumers 
primarily frum the Kansas City mclropolilan area, which has approximately 1.9 million residents 

A compeulor is currenlly consuiicting a $411 million casino al die Kansas Speedway localed rii Wyandotte Cuunly, Kansas. This casino is lucaicd 
approximaiely 20 miles fi'om our Kansas Cily property and is expecied lo open in the fust half uf 2012. 
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Boonville 

Our Boonvdie property, which opened in December 2001, is localed three miles off Inlerslate 70, approximately halfway between Kansas City and 
Sl. Louis. The property consists ofa sriiglc level dockside casino offering 989 slot machines, 19 lablc games, a 140-room hulcl, a 32,400 square fuol pavilion 
and cnlertainnKnt cenler and 1,101 parking spaces. The pavilion and enicrtairimcnl center offers cusiomers a wide variety of nun-gaming amenities, including 
an 83-seal Farraddays'restaurant, a 218-sem Calypso's buffet, a 24-seat Tradewinds Marketplace, an 800 seal evenl cenier, and an historic display area. Our 
Boonville property is the unly gaming facility rii cenUal Missomi and yeneraied gaining revenues uf approximately S81 mdlion in calendar year 2010. We 
believe that our Boonville casino aiiracis cusiomers primarily from the approximately 580,000 people who reside wiihin 60 miles ofthe prupeiiy which 
includes Ihc Columbia and Jefferson Ciiy areas. 

Caruthersville 

Our Carulhersville property was acquired in June 2007 and is a riverboai casino located along the Mississippi River in Souiheast Missouri. In June 2008, 
the casino was re-branded as a Lady Luck casriio widi die construction and refurbishment completed in December 2008. The dockside casino offers 595 slot 
machriies, 11 table games and 5 poker tables. As part ofthe re-branding, we renovated bur 40,000 .square foot pavilion, which riicludes a 130-seat Lone Wolf 
restaurant, bar and lounge and a 270-seal Oiis & Henry's restaurant Renovations to the riverboat, including Ihc casino floor, were compleied in the summer of 
2009, The property also operates a 10,000 square footexposifion cenler with seating for up to 1,100 patrons arid has 1,000 parking spaces. Our Caruthersville 
facility is the only casriio localed in Southeast Missouri and generated gamriig"revenues of approximately S34 million in calendar year 2010. Approximately 
650,000 people reside withui 60 miles uf die properly. 

lowa 

Beltendorf 

Our Beltendorf property, which we acquired rii Mareh 2000, is locatedoff of Interstate 74, an iniensiate highway serving the Quad Cities mclropolilan 
area, which consists of Benendorf and Davenport, lowa and Moline and Rock Island, Illinois. The property consistsof a dockside casino offering 1,022 slol 
niachines, 24 table games, 4 poker tables, 514 hotel rooms, 40,000 square feet of flexible convenlion/bariquct space, a 120rSeal Farraddays' restaurant, a 272-
seat Calypso's buffet, a 42-seal Tradewinds Marketplace and 2,057 parking spaces. We have entered into agreeriients Willi Ihe City of Benendorf, Iowa under 
which we manage and provide fmancial and operaiing support for the QC Walerfruril Convention Center thai is adjaceni lo our holel. The QC Walerfroni 
Convenfion Cenier opened in January 2009. 

Davenport 

Our Davenport property, which we acquired rii Octnber2000, is located at the iniersecliun of River. Drive and Highway 61. a state highway .serving the 
Quad Cities metropolitan area. Theproperty consists ofa dockside gamriig facility offering 949 slot machriies, 16 table games, a 209-scat Hit Parade buffet, a 
Grab-n-Go food outlet and 911 parking spaces. 

The Quad Cides metropolitan area currently has three ganung operations—our two ganiing facilities in Beltendorf and in Davenpon, and one operaior, 
which opened a larger land-based facility, including a hotel, in December 2008. The three operations in the Quad Cilics generated total gaming revenues of 

.approximately $210 million incalend.iryear 2010. Our Beltendorf and Davenpon properties generated casino revenues forcalendar year 2010 of 
approximaiely S78 million and $53 million, respecdvely. Our operalions in the Quad Cilics also compete with oilier gaming operalions 
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in Illinois and Iowa. .'Approximately 923,000 people reside within 60 miles ofour Betlendoriand Davenport properfies. 

f\/larquctie 

Our Marquette property, which we acquired rii March 2000, is located ui Marquene, lowa, approximaiely 60 miles north of Dubuque, lowa. The property 
consists ofa dockside casuio offering 600 slol machines and 11 lable games, a riiarinaand475 parking spaces". During fiseal 2010, wc completed the 
rebrandingbf the property as a Ladj' Luck casino. The facility now includes a newly themed 142-seal bulTet restaurant, an Otis and Henry's Express fund 
outlet and a Lone Wolf restaurant and bar. 

Our Marquette property is the only gaming facdily rii the Marquetic, luwa markel and generated gaming revenues of approximalcly $29 million rii 
calendar year 2010. We believe mostof our Marquette customers are from northeast Inwaand Wisconsin, which riicludes approximately 490,000 people 
within 60 miles of our property, and we compete for those cusiomers with other gaming facilities in Dubuque, lowa and Nafive American casinos in 
southwestern Wisconsin. 

Waterloo 

Our Waterloo property, which opened on June 30, 2007, is located adjacent to Highway 218 and US 20 in Waterloo, luwa. The property consi.'Jts ofa 
single-level casini) offering 1,040 slot machines, 27 table games and 5 poker tables. The property also offers a wide variety of non-gaming amenifies, 
including a 133-scat Otis & Henry's restaurant, a 208-seaI lsle buffet, a 44-seat Tradewinds.marketplace, Club Capri i-ounge. Fling feature bar, 5,000 square 
feel of meeling space, 1,500 parking spaces and a 195-room hotel, which includes 27 suites," as well nsan.indoor pool and hoi mb area. 

Our Waterloo property is the only gaming facility in ihe Waterloo, lowa markel and approximately 640,000 people live within 60 miles oflhe property. 
Wc cumpcle with other casinos in eastern loWa. We generated gaming revenues of approximately $80 milliori in calendar year 2010. 

Colorado 

lsle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk 

Isle Casino Huiel-Black Hawk commenced operafions in December 1998, is localed un an approximaiely lO-acre sile and is one oflhe first gaming 
faciiifies reached by customers arriving from I>cnver via Higliway 119, the marii thoroughfare connecting Denver to Black Hawk. Tlic property includes a 
land-based casino with 1,036 slot machines, 24 standard table games, an 11 lable'pokcrroom, a 238-room hold and 1,100 parking spaces in an attached 
p.irking garage. Isle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk also offers customers three restaurants, including a 128-seal Farraddays' restaurant, a 270-scat Calypso's buffet 
and a 40-seat Tradewinds .Vlarkciplace. 

Lady Luck Casino-Black Hawk 

Lady Luck Casino-Black Hawk, which wc acquired in April 2003 and rebranded in June 2009, is localed across the intersection of Main Streei and Mill 
Sueei from the isle Casino Hoiel-Black Hawk. The property cunsisis ofa land-based casino with 524 slot machines, 11 standard lable games, 6 poker tables, a 
164-rbomhoieI that opened in December 2005 and 1,200 parkriig spaces in our parking slmcture connecting Isle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk and Lady Luck 
Casino-Black Hawk. The property also offers guesis driiing in ris newly renovated arid rebranded 79-seat Olis& Henry's resiaurani as well asa grob-and-go 
fast ser\'e food cart that is located rii ihc main level ofthe facility. The property has also recenlly converted approximaiely 2,250 square feet of space to flex 
space that can be used for meetings and special evenls. Our Black Hawk sries arecunnecled via sky bridges. 
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When casinns having muhiplc gaming licenses in the same building arc combined, ihc Black Hawk/Ccniral City market consists of 24 gaming facilities 
(seven of which have mure than 600 slul machines), which in aggregate, gcncraied gaming revenues of approximaiely $625 million in calendar year 2010. 
Our Black Hawk propenies generated casriio revenues forcalendar year 2010 of approximately $123 million. Black Hawk is Ihe closest gaming market to Ihc 
Denver, Colorado metropolitan aiea, which has a population of approximaiely 2.9 milliori and is localed appruxirbalcly 40 miles east uf Black'Hawk and 
series as the primary feeder market for Black Hawk. 

Florida 

Pompano 

in 1995, we acquried Pompano Park, a harness racriig irack located in Pompano Beach, Florida. Pompano Park is localed off of lrilerslate95 and the 
Florida Turnpike on a 223-acre owned site, near Fort Lauderdale, midway belween Miami and West Palm Beach.,Pompano Park is the only racetrack licensed 
lo conduct harness racuig rii Florida. 

Our Pompano facility includes 1,448 slul machines, a 38-lable poker room, four reslaufanls, a feature bar and 3,800 parking spaces. 

Approximaiely 2.6 mdlion people reside within a 25-mile radius uf uur Pumpano facilriy, which competes wilh four other racinos and ihiee Naiive 
Ariicrican gaming facilriies in ihe market- While casino revenues are not available furaU markel cumpetiturs,-we esfimate dial we operate approximately 14% 
of the slot machines in the market and generated approximaiely S130 million in casirio revenues for calendar year 2010. 

Recent Changes to Florida Gaming Laws—In April 2010, changes weie made to Florida law which, amung other things, lowered our state gaming lax 
rate fiom 50% to 35% effective July I, 2010. Phis legislalion also allows the poker operalions to remain open forthe same hours asthe slut floor and removes 
the poker beilriig limits. The changes to Florida law were combined with the approval ofa ganiing compact between the Slate of Floridaand the Seminole 
Tribe of Florida. This gaming compact alluws die tribe the exclusive right outside of Mianii-Dade and Broward counlies to operate slot machines and other 
siniilar electronic gaming devices and the righl lo operate live blackjack and baccirat lablc games fur a period of five years at certain tribal gaming locations. 

Inlernalional Operations 

Lucaya—We operated a casino in Grand Bahama from December 2003 ihroujdi November 2009, when wc exited the operation. 

Blue Chip—We operated casinos in Dudley and Wolverhampton, England. These casinos opened during fiscal 2004 and were operated by us untd they 
Were sold in November 2009. 

Coventry—We operated a casino in the Coventry Conveniion Cenler from July 2007 dirough April 2009, when we terminated our lease and sold the 
casino and relaled assets. 

Marketing 

Our maikeling programs are designed lo promoieour overall, business stralegy.uf providing customers wilh a safe, clean, friendly and fun gaming 
experience at each ofour properties. We have developed an extensive proprieiar>' database of customers ihat allows us lo creaie effective targeted markefing 
and promotional programs thai are designed lo reward cuslomcr loyalty, altiaci new cusiomers lo our properties and mainiain high recognition of our brands. 
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Specifically, our markefing programs and initiatives are tailored to support ihis corporate strategic plan and are generally focused on ihe following areas: 

• Customer Research: Our markefing strategies have been developed and implemented lo meet the needsanddesiresof our casino cusiomers in 
each ofour locaiions. in order to assess these needs and desires, we engage in significani cuslomer research in each of our markels by conduetriig 
periodic survey's. Upon receipt of these surveys, we assess Ihe attilridesof uur cusiumers and die cusiomers ofour competitors' properties 
towards the mosl rinponanl auributes of iheir experience in a regional and'or local gaming facility. Wc use die extensive informafion gathered 
from diese research iruliafivcs to make marketriig, operating and development decisions that, wc believe, wfil opfimize the posidon ofour 
properties relative lo our coriipefilion-

• Branding Initiatives: Our strategic plan is designed to consolidale our property portfolio frum fnurbrands into two brands as Ihe econumy 
improves and wc undertake significani new capilal improvement programs. Tu date, we have begun this inriialive ihrough the re-branding ofour 
properties in Carudiersville, Missouri, Marquette, lowa, and the conversion of Colorado Central Siafinn in-Black Hawk, Cokirado lo Lady Luck-
Black Hawk. As a component of these re-brandirig programs, we have also impleriiented newly-branded custoriier outlets, includirig custom 
restaurants and lounges that we are expandriig ihrough our pnrtfulio lo other properties. Wc'bclieve, over lirrie, this approach will allow us Io 
more effecdvely align and promote our properties based upon cuslomer necds"arid desire's arid uiaVket our properties un a consolidated basis. 
Furthermore, wecxpecl our approach will strcamluie die costs associated'with marketing our ponfolio. 

Database Marketing: We have streamlined ourdatabase marketing injiialives across,ihepompainy in order to focus our marketing elToris on 
profitable customers who have demonstrated a,willingness lo regularly Visit our properties. Specifically! we have focused on eliminating frohi 
our database cusiumers who have historically been included in significani markeling'cfforts but have proven costly either as a result of excessive' 
marketriig expendriures on die partof the Company, or because these cusiomers have become reladvely dormanl in lerrris of cuslomer activity. 

Segmentadon: Wc have compiled an extensive daiabaseof cuslomer informafion over time. Among our mosl importanl markefing iiufiafives, we 
have riilroduccd database scgmentafion to our properties and at the corporale level in order to adjust inveslmenl rales to a level at which wc 
expeci 10 meet a reasonable level ofcustomer profit conlribuiiun. 

Relail Development: We believe that we must more effectively attract new, non-database customeis lo our properties in order to increase 
profitability and free cash flow. These cusiomers are generally less expensive to attract and retain and, therefore, currently represent a sigruficant 
oppurtuniiy for our operafions. 

Employees 

As ofApril 24, 2011, we employed approxinialely 8,600 Ibll and part-time people. We have a collective bargaining agreement widi UNITE HFRL 
covering approximately 400 employees ai our Pompano property which expires in May 2012. We believe ihat our relationship with our employees is 
s'aiisfaclory. 

Governmental Regulations 

'fhe ganiing and racing industries are highly regulated, and we must mainlainour hcensesand pay gaming taxes to continue our operadons. Each ofour 
facilities is subjecl lu exlensive regulafion under ihc laws, rules and'regulalions of diejurisdiclion where it is located. These laws, rules and regulations 
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generally relaic to the responsibility, fmancial stabdity and character ofthe owners, managers and persons with financialiniercsis in the gaming operations. 
Violafions of kiws rii one jurisdiction cuuld result in disciplinary action in other jurisdictions. A mure detailed descriplion of the regulations lu which we arc 
subjecl is contained in Exhibri 99.1 lo this Armual Repon on Form 10-K. 

Our businesses are subjecl to various federal, state and local laws and regulations in addition to gaming regulations. These laws and regulations include, 
but are not limited to, restricfions and condiiions concerning alcoholic beverages, food service, smoking, envrionmenlal matters, employees and empluynienl 
praclices, currency transacfions, taxation, zoning and building codes, and marketing and advertising. Such laws and regulatrons could change or could be 
interpreted differemly rii the future, or new laws and regulations could be enacted. Material changes, new laws or regulations, or maierial differences in 
interpretations by courts or gbvenuncntal authorifies could adversely affecl our operairiig results. 

Available Information 

For more information about us, visri our web site at www.isleofcapricasinos.cora. Our elecuonic fdirigs whh the U.S. Securities and Exchange 
Commission (including all anriual reports on Form 10-K, quarter reports on Form 10-^, and current reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to these 
r^oiis), including the exhibits, are available free of charge thmugh our web siie as soon as reasonably praeiicable afier we eleciriinically file them with or 
fumish them to the U.S. Securities and E.xehangc Commission. 

ITEM \A. RISK FACrORS 

We face significant competiUon ̂ om other gaming (derations, including Native American gaming facilities, that could have a material adverse 
effect on oiJr future operations. 

The gaming indusiry is intensely cumpclifive. and we face a high degree of cumpetifipn In the markels in which we operate. We have numerous 
compelilors, including land-based casinos, dockside casinos, riverboat casriios, casriios located on racing, pari-mumcl operations or Native American-owned 
lands and video lottery and poker machines not located in casinos. Some of riuf competiiurs may have better name recognition, markeiing and financial 

.resources than "we do; compefitors wilh more tinancial resources may diercforcbe able'lo improve the quality uf, or expand, their gaming faciiifies in a way 
thai wc may be unable to materia 

Legalized gaming is currently permitted in variuus forms diroughout the United Stales. Certain stales have recenfiy legalized, and other Stales are 
currendy considering legalizing gaming. Our exislriig gamriig fiieilities compete direcfiy widi other gaming properties in the slates in which we uperate. Our 
existriig casinos attract a significani numberof Uieri cusiumers from Houston,.Texas: Mobile, Alabama; Kansas City, Kansas; Southern Flurida; Lilde Rock, 
Arkansas"; and Denver, Colorado. Legalization of ganiing in juri.idictionsclu.ser lo diesc geographic markets other than Ihc jurisdictions in which our facilriies 
arc localed would havea maierial adverse effecl on our operating resulis. Other jurisdictiuns, including states inclose pro.ximityin jurisdictions wherc we 
currenlly have operaliuns, have considered and may consider legalizing casino gaming and odier forms of competifion. In addition, there is no limil on the 
number ofgaming licenses that may be granted in several ofthe markets in which we operate. As a resuh, new gaming licenses could be awarded in diese 
markcis, which could allow new gaming operators to enter our markets thai could have ari adverse cftcci on our operaiing results. On February 17, 201 i, a 
project was awarded a gaming license in I-ake Charles, Louisiana which, if completed, will eom'pete wrih our exisling l^ke Charles property. 

Our conlriiued success depends upon drawing cusiomers from each of these geographic markets. We expcci compcfition lo riicreasc as new gaming 
operalors enter our" markets, existing compelilors exparid their operations, gaming acfivriies expand in existing jurisdictions and ganung is legalized rii new 
jurisdictions. Wc cannoi predici wilh any certainly the elTecls of exisling and fuiure "cumpcfitiun on our operaiing results. 
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We also compete with oiher forms of legalized gaming arid enlertainmeni such as online computer gambling, bingo, pull tab games, card parlors, sports 
books, "cruisc-lo-nowherc" operations, pari-mutuel or lelephonic belting un horse racing and dog racing; state-sponsored lollerics, jai-alai, and, in the future, 
may compele with ganung al other venues. In addriion. we compete mure generally widi other forms of eniertariimeni for the discrefionary spending ofour 
customers. 

We are subject to extensive regulation from gaming and other regulatory authorities that could adversely affecl us. 

Licensing requirements. .As owners and operators ofgaming and pari-muiuel wagering facilities, we arc subject to extensive suite and local regulafion. 
Slate and local aulhorilies require us and our subsidiaries lu demonstrate suitability to obtain "and relain various licenses and require that we have registrafions, 
pemiiti and approvals to conduci gamriig operafions. The rcguhlory aulhorilies in the jurisdictions in which we operate have very broad discretion widi 
regard to dieir regulalkin ofgaming operators, and may fora broad variety of reasons and in accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations, limit, 
condition, suspend, fail to renew or revoke a license to ijonducl gaming operations ur.prevent us from owning the sccurifiesof any of our gaming subsidiaries, 
or preveni olher persons from owning an inieresi in us or doing business with us. We may also be deemed responsible for the acts and conduct ofour 
employees, Subsianfial fines or forfeiture ofassels for violations of ganiing laws or regulations may be levied agabist us, our subsidiaries andthe persons 
involved, arid some regulatory aulhorifies have the ability to require us lu suspend diii* operations. The suspension of revocation ofany ofour licenses or our 
operafions or the le\yon us or our subsidiaries ofa substanfial fine would have a maierial'adverse effccton ourbusiness. 

Tu dale, we have demunslraled suitabilitj'lo obtain and have obiariiedall goverariienlar licenses, regisuafions, permits and approvals necessary for us lo 
operate our existing gaming facilities. We cannoi assure you that we will be able to retain these licenses, registrations, permits and approvals or that we will 
tie able lb obiain any new ones iri order lo expand our business, or thatour attempts lo do so wid be fiifiely. Ldcc all ganiing operalors in the jurisdicuons in 
which we operate, we musi periodically applyio renew our gaming licenses and have die suitability ofccrtain of our direclors, officers and employees 
approved. We cannot assure you that wc will be able to obtain such renewals or approvals. 

In addifion, regulatory- authorities in certain jurisdictions musl approve, rii advance, any fesuiclions ori trarisfcrs of, agreements nol lo encumber or 
pledges of equiiy securifies issued by a corporation that is registered as an iriiermediaiy company with such stale; or that holds a gaming license. If these 
restrictions are not approved in advance, diey will be invalid. 

Compliance with other laws. We are also subject tu a variety of ulher federal, state and lucal laws, rules, regulations and urdinances that apply lo non-
gaming businesses, including zoning, cnvironmcntid, constmction and land-u.ic laws and'reguiatiuns governing Ihc serving of alcoholic beverages. Under 
various federal, stale and local laws and regulations, an owner or operaior uf real property may be held liable forthe costs of removal or remediation ofccrtain 
hazardous or toxic substances or wastes locaied on its property, regardlessof whether or not the presenl owner or operaior knows of, or is responsible for. the 
presence of such substmces or wasies. We have nol identified any issues associaied widi our propenies thalcould'reasonably be expected in have an adverse 
effect on us or the resulis ofour operauons. However, several ofour properties are located in industrial areas or were used for industrial purposes for many 
years. As a consequence, il is possible dial hisiorical or neighboring activities liave aflecled one or more ofour properties and dial, as a result, environmental 
issues could arise rii the future, the precise namre ofwhich we cannoi now predici. The coverage and attendant compliance costs associated with these laws, . 
regulations and ordinances may result in fuiure addifional costs, 
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Regulations adopied by die Friiancriil Crimes Enforcement Network ofthe U.S. Treasuiy Department require us lu report currency uansacHons in excess 
of$ 10,000 occurring withina gaming day, includriig identification of the paUun by name andstKial security number. U.S. Treasury Departmeni regulations 
also require us to report certain suspicious activity, including any Iransaciion thai exceeds $5,000, if we know, suspect or have reason lo believe that the 
transaction inv'blves funds from illegaractivity or is designed lu evade federal regulations or reporting requri-ementii. Substanfial penahies can be imposed 
against us if we fail lo comply with these regulations. 

Several of our riverboats musl coriiply with U.S. Coa.si Guard requirements as lo boat design, on-board facilities, equipmenl, persomiel and safety and 
must hold U.S. Coast Guard Cerfificales of Documeniaiion and Inspection. The U.S. Coast Guard requrî emenis also sel limris on the operalkm oflhe 
riverbuals and rriandate licensing of cenain personnel involved with die operaiion oflhe riverboats. Loss ufa riverbnai's Certificaie of Documentation and 
Inspecfion could prechide its use as a riverbual casino. The U-S. Coasl Guard has shifted inspection dudes related to permanently moored casino vessels lo die 
riidividual states. Louisiana and Missouri have elected to utilize Ihe services of die American Bureau of Shipping lo undertake ihc inspections: lowa has 
elected to handle the inspections through the lowa Department of Naiural Resources. Tlie slates will continue the same inspiecfinn criteria as the U.S. Coast 
Guard in regard Io annual ahd five year inspecfions. Depcndingonthcuuiconieofihesc inspections a vessel could become subject to dry-docking for 
inspecfion bf ris hrill, which could result in a lemporary loss of service. 

We are required to have third parties periodically inspect and certify all ofour casino barges forsiability and single conipartmenl fiooding integrity. Our 
casino barges and other faciliiies must also meel local fire .safety standards. Wc would incur additional cosis if anyof our gaming facilities werc not in 
compliance widi une or mure nf these regulalions. 

Poteniial changes iff legislation and regulation of our operations. From time to time, legislators and special inicrc.si groups have proposed legislation 
that wuuld expand, restrict or prevent gariung operations in die jurisdictions in which wc opcraic.ln addifion, I'rom liiiie to linie, cenarii anti-gaming groups 
have challenged cbnsiimiional amendments or legislalion that would limil ourability lo continue to operate in those jurisdictions in which these constitufional 
amendments or legislation have been adopied. 

Taxation and fees. State and local authorities raise a significant amount of revenue ihrough laxes and fees on gaming activities- We befieve thatthe 
prospecl of significant revenue is one ofthe primary reasons that jurisdicfions permii legalized gaming. As a result, gaming companies are ij'pically subject to 
significant taxes and fees ui addriion lo normal federal, state, local and provincial income taxes, and such laxes and fees aresubjeci to increase al any time, 
Wc pay substantial taxes and fees with rcspcci to uur operations. From time lo.iime, federal, slate, lucal and provincial legislators and officials have proposed 
changes in lax laws, or in the administration of such laws, affecting the gaming industry. Any material increase, or die adopiion of addidonal taxes or fees, 
could have a maierial adverse effecl on our fumre financial results. 

Our business may be adversely affected by legislation prohibiting tobacco smoking. 

Legislation in various forms to ban induor tobacco snioking has recendy been enacted or introduced rii many states and local jurisdiciions, including 
several ofthe jurisdicdons in which we operate. If addilional restrictions on sriiuking are enacted in jurisdiciions in which we operate, we could experience a 
significani decrease in gaming revenue and particularly, if such reslricduns are nol applicable lo all competitive faciliiies in that gaming markel, our business 
could be materially adversely affected. 
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Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our financial health and restrict our operations. 

We havea significani amount of riidebtedness. As of Aprd 24, 2011, we had approximately S1.2 billion of total debl outstanding. 

Our significani indebledness could have important consequences to our financial liealrii,.such as: 

limiting our ability to use operating cash flow or obiain addilional financing to fund workriig capital capital expenditures, expansion and other 
important areas ofour business because we must dedicate a significant portion ofour cash flow to make prriicipal and intercsi payments un our 
indebledness; 

causriig an evenl of defauh if we fail to satisfy llie financial and restrictive covenants contained in the indeniure and agreements governing our 
senior secured credit facility, our 7.75% senior notes due 2019, our 7% senior subordinated rinles due 2014 and our oiher riidebtedness, which 
could result in all of our debl becoming immedialely diicand payable,-could permii our'seciired lenders to foreclose on die assets securuigour 
secured debl and have olher adverse consequences, any ofwhich; if not cured ur waived, could have a material adverse effecl on,us; 

• if the indebledness under our 7.75% senior notes, our 7% senior subordinated notes,-our.senior secured credit facility, or our other indebledness 
were lu be accelerated, iherc can be no assurance thai our assets would be sufficient to repay such indebledness in fijll: 

placing us at a competitive disadvantage to our coriipelilors who are nut as highly leveraged; 

increasing uur vulnerabifity to and limifing uur ability lo react to changing markel conditions, changes in our iridusliv and economic downturns 
or downturns in our business: and 

our agrecmenls governing our indebledness, among udier dtings, require us lo maintain certain specified financial ralius and lo meel certain 
financial lesis. Our debl agrecmenls also limil uur abilriy lo: 

i. borrow money; 

ii. make capilal expenditures; 

iii, use assets as security in other ttansaciions: 

iv, make resuicted payments or resuicted investments; 

V. incur coniriigenl obligalions: and 

vi. seii assels and enter inio leases and iransaclions wrih affiliates. 

A substantial portion of uur oulstanding debl bears iniercst al variable rales, although we have entered into interest rale protection agreements expriing 
ihrough fiscal 2014 wilh counterparty banks with respeci to S320 million ofour term loans under our senior secured crcdri facilitj". If short-term interest rates 
rise, our interest cosl will riicrease on die unhedged portion of our variable rale indebletlness,, which will adversely affecl our results of operation's and 
available cash. 

Any ofthe factors listed above cuuld have a maierial adverse effect un our business, financial condilion and results ofoperalions. We cannoi assure you 
Ihal our business will conlriiue lo geneiale .suftlcient cash tlow, or diat fuiure available draws under our senior secured credii facility will be sufficient, lu 
enable us lo meet our liquidity needs, including those needed to sen'ice our indebtedness. 
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Despite our significant indebtedness, we may slid be able to incur significantly more debt.' This could intensify die risks described above. 

•fhe termsof die indeniure and agreements governing our scnio> securc-d ciedil facility, our 7.75% seriior nulcs, our 7% senior subordinaied notes arid our 
ulher indebtedness limit, but do not prohibit, us or our .subsidiaries from incurring significani addifiunal indebtedness inthe future. 

As ofApril 24, 2011, we had the capacity lo riiciir addifional riidebtedness, includriig the ability to incur additional indebledriess under all ofour lines of 
credit, of appraximately SI 75 million. .Approxrinately $23 millionof ihese lines ofcredit were used to support letters ofcredit and surely bonds. Our capacity 
lo issue addilional indebtedness is 'subject to the limilations imposed by the covenanls in our senior secured credit facility, the indenture governing uur.7.75% 
seniorrioles and the indeniure governing our 7% "senior subordinated notes. The indenmre governing our 7% senior subordriiaied notes, the indeniure 
governing tiur 7.75% senior notes and our senior secured credri facility contain financial and'other restricfive covenants, hut wdl nol fully prohibri us from 
incurrriig additional debt If new debt is added to our curreni level of indebtedness, the relaied risks that we no w.face could intensify. 

I f we cannot refinance our 7% senior subordinated notes on or prior lo November 1.2013, then our senior secured credit facility matures on that 
date and we may not be able to renew or extend our senior secured credit facility or enter into anew credii facility In today's difficult markets. I f ive are 
able to refinance our 7% senior subordinated notes or. in die alternative^ renew or extend our senior secured credit facility, it may be on terms 
substantially less favorable than the current notes or senior secured credit facility.' 

Our senior secured credit facility mamres on November 1,2013 if wc have not refinanced or otherwise retired die 7% senior subordinated noles un or 
prior lo such dale. Ourcash flow from operations is unlikely lobe sufficieni to'retire all of such notes at or priorto November 1, 2013- We may therefore be 
forced to refinance the 7% senior subordinated notes on maierially worse terms Ihan wc have currently. Failure to obiain new debt on favorable br reasonable 
terms lo replace existing debt could affect our liquidity and the value ofour other securities, including ourequiiy. Our ability to refmance or olher«'i,se retire 
our 7% senior subordinaied noles prior lo November 1, 2013, or in the allemative lo renew br ex lend our existing senior secured credii facility or to enter into 
a new crcdit faciliiv' to replace the existing senior secured credit facility could beimpaired if markel conditions worsen. In ihecurrent environment, lenders 
may seek more resuiclive lending provisions and higher interest rales,dial may reduce our borrowing capaciiy an'd riicreasc our costs. We can make no 
assurances thai we will be able to refmance or otherwise retire our 7% senior subordinated notes prior to Noveniber 1, 2013, and if vve are unable lodusu, 
Ihat we wdl be able to enter into a new credit I'aciliiy or renew or otlcnd qur existing senior secured credri faciliiy, or whedicr any such credii facility will be 
available under acceptable terms. Failure to obiain sufficient friiancing or financing on acceptable terms would consirarii our ability to opcraie our business 
and to continue our developmeni and expansion projects. Any oflhese circumslanees couid have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition 
and results of operalions. 

We may not be able to successfully expand to new locations or recover our investment in new properties which would adversely affect our operations 
and a vailable resources. 

We regularly evaluate oppormnities for growdi ihrough development of gaming operalions in existing or new markets, dirough acquiruig or managing 
olher gamuig entertainment facilities or through redeveloping our existing facilities. The expansion of uur operations, whether through acquisitions, 
development, managemeni conlracts ur internal growth, could divert management's attention and cuuld also cause us to incur subsianfial costs, including 
legal, professional and consulting 
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fees. To ihe extent that we elect to pursue any new gaming acquisition, managemeni or develupmenl oppurmnily, our ability to benefil from our investment 
wdl depend on many factors, including; 

• our abdiiy tu successfully idenfify attractive acquisition and develupmenl opportunifies; 

our ability to successfully operate any developed, riianaged or acquired properties; 

our ability to atuacl and relain compeleni managemeni and employees fur the new localiuns; 

ourability to secure required federal, siaicand lucal licenses, pcrnuts and approvals, which in sume jurisdictions are limited in number and 
subjecl to riilense competition: and 

• the availabiliiy of adequate financing nn acceptable lerms. 

Miiny uf ihesc faciors are beyond our conuol. There have been significani disruplions in Ihe global capital markcis Ihat have adversely impacied the 
ability of borrowers to access capital. Accordingly, il is likely that we arc dependenl on free cash flow from operations and reniainuig borrowing capaciiy 
under our senior secured credii facility to implemenl our near-term expansion plans'and fund our pkiimcd capiUil expenditures. As a result of these and other 
considerations, we cannot be sure dial we will be able to recover our investments in any new "ganiing development or management upportuniiiesor acquired 
faciiifies, or successfully expand to addifional kicalions. 

We may experience construction delays during our expansion or development projects diat could adversely affect our operalions. 

From time to time we may commence construction projects at our properties. We also evahiaie olher expansion opportunities as they become available 
and wc may rii the future engage riiadditiunaj conslrucfiun projecis. On December I, 2010, the Missouri Gaming Commission selected bur proposed Cape 
Griardcau Project I'or prioriti7.alion forthe 13th and final garning license in .die Staleof Missouri. The Cape Girardeau Projeci is expecied tu include 
approximaiely 1,000 slot niachines. 28 uible games, 3 restaurants, a lounge and terrace overlooking the Mississippi River and a 750-seat event cenler at an 
esfimaled cost of S125 million. On April 14, 201 Lour projeci al the Nemacoliri Woodlands Resort was selecled by the Pennsylvania Gaming ConUuI Buard. 
for die final Category 3 resort gaming license. We had previously entered into an agreemeni wrih Nemacolin to complete the build-out of the'casino space and 
provide managemeni services 10 Ihe casino. 'The Nemacolin project is'expecicd to riiclude 600 slot machines, 28 table games, a casual driiing restaurant and 
lounge. We currently estimate the project cost at approximately $50 million and expeci to be complete within nriie months oflhe commencement of 
construction. The anticipated costs and construcfion periods for the Cape Girardeau Project, the Nemacolin Project and olher projeas arc based upon budgets, 
conceptual design documents and conslruclion schedule estimates prepared by us in consultation with bur architects: Construction projects enlad significani 
risks, which can substantially riicrease costs or delay completion ofa project Such risks include shortages of materials or skilled labor, unforeseen 
engineering, environmental or geological problems, work stoppages, weather inlciTcrence and unanticipated cost increases. Most oflhese factors are beyond 
our conirol. In addition, difficulties or delays in obtaining any oflhe requisite licenses, permits or authorizations from regulatory aulhorilies can increase the 
cosl or delay the complefion of an expansion or development Significani budget overruns or delays with respeci to expansion and developmeni projecis could 
adversely affect our results of operdfiuns. 

If we construct the Cape Girardeau Project and we are not granted gaming licenses, our financial condition could be materially adversely affected. 

On December 1, 2010, thcMissuuri Gaming Commission selected our proposed Cape Girardeau Projeci for priurifizaiion forthe 13lh and finalgaming 
licerise in the State of Missouri. As a participanl in ihis process, our subsidiarj' IOC-Cape Girardeau LLC applied for a Class B Rivcrboal Gaming License in 
Missouri. The decision by the .Missouri Oaming Cummissiun to prioriiize iis casino 

16 



Tahle nf Contents 

develupmenl does not provide lOC-Cape Girardeau LLC with any license to open the casino once developed ur any assurance Uial such a Iicen.se will be 
granted. The Class B Ircense required for lOC-Cape Griardeau LLC to operate ris proposed gamuig faciliiy cannoi be granted by the .Missouri Gamriig 
Commissiori until die gamuig facility developmeni is subsiaritiallycumplcle and readylo accept patrons. The grant ofthis license would be subjecl to 
numerous conditions as described in "Descripfion of Government Rcgulation.s—Missouri" in Exhibit 99.1 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K forihc fiscal 
yearended April 24, 2011. If, as a result of these regulaiory conditions or olhenvise, we are unable lu receive thegaming license afier we consmict the Cape 
Girardeau Prujecl, our financial condition could be materially adversely aiTccted. 

I f we are not licensed in Pennsylvania in connection with the proposed resort casino at Nemacolin Woodlantis Resort or if our tnanagement 
agreement is not approved in its current form or i f either oflhese matters are materially delayed, we may not manage the casino or the terms upon which 
we manage may be less favorable to us. 

On April 14, 2011, die Pennsylvania Ganung ConUoI Board (Uie "PGCB") awarded a Category 3 slot machirie license to Woodlands Fayette, LLC fora 
resort casriio at the Nemacolin Woodlands Resort in Fayelle Couniy, Pennsy Ivan iii. Althuugli wc have a managemeni agreemeni with Woodlands Fayelle to 
manage the proposed casino, we have not yet been licensed by the PGCB in connection with the casinu'projeet, nor has the manageriienl agreement been 
approved by the PGCB. There is no guaranty thai we will be approved or dial the management agreemeni will be approved rii its curreni form. Further, the 
award ofthe license to Woodlands Fayette is subjecl to a 30-day appeal period which'ends on June 20, 2011. Any such appeals would be made direcily lo the 
Pennsylvania Supreme Court and could lake a sigruficant period nf time before a ruling is made by the court. If such an appeal is filed, it is possible that the 
PGCB will refrain from most, if not all, rulings rcgardingthe casino projeci during Ihc pendency of such appeal, including our licensure arid approval ofthe 
management agreement. 

I f our key personnel leave us, our business could be adversely affected. 

Our cnntriiued success will depend, among odier things, on the efforts and skills of a few key execufive officers arid the experience ofour property 
managers. Our ability lo relain key personnel is affected by" Ihc compefitiveness ofour compensalion packages and die other temis and conditions of 
employment, our eontuiucd ability to compete effecfivcly against odier gaming coriipanies and our growth prospects. The loss oflhe services ofany ufUiese 
key individuals could have a maierial adverse effecl on our business, fmancial condilion and results of opcmiions. We do nut mainiain "key man" life 
insurance for any of our employees. 

We are effectively controlled by members ofthe Goldstein Family and their decisions may differ from those that may be made by other stockholders. 

• Robert S. Goldslein, nur Vice Chairman ofthe Board, and Jeffrey D. Goldstein and Richard A. Goldstein, iwoofour directors, and various family trusts 
assix:riiled,with members uf the Goldslein family and entities assucialed wilh certarii members oflhe Goldslein family, (collectively the "Goldslein Parties") 
directly and indirectly collectively own and eonuol approximately 42.6%,'of our common stuck as ofApril 24, 201). 

.'fhe Goldstein Parties have substantial control over the eleeliun ofour board of direclors and the outcome of the vote on subslanfially all other mailers, 
including amendmeni ofour amended and reslated cerfificate of incorporation, amendment ofour by-laws and sigrrificant corporate transactions, such as the 
approval ofa merger orother transactions iiivulvuig a.sale of the Cunapany. Such substantial conlrol may have the effecl bf discouraging uansaclions 
involving an aciual ur potential changeoTcontrol, which in turn could have a material adverse effecl on Ihe markel price ofour 
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common stock or preveni our stockholders from realizriig a premium over die market price for their shares of cummon slock. The interests uf die Guldslein 
Parties may differ from those ofour other siockholders. 

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation contains provisions that could delay and discourage takeover attempts that stockholders may 
consider favorable. 

Certain provisions ofour amended and restated certificate nf beorporatiun may make it more difficuh or preveni a third partj' from acquiring conlrol of 
us, including; 

' we may nol, unfi| die Supermajority Expirafion Time (as defined below), withuul the affirmative vote ofthe holders of at leasi 66~l3% ofthe 
Company's voting power, voting as a single class, authorize, adopt ur approve certain exira'urdin'ary corporale transactions; and 

* the classification ofour board of directors and staggered three-year terms of service for each class uf directors. 

•^Supcrmajuriiy Expu^lion Time" means the first to occur of (i) the Goldstein Group ceasing lo hold common stock uf the Company reprcseniing at least 
22.5% ofour uuisian]ling comnion siock, nut uicluding any shares uf Class B conimori,sluck of shares of coriiiu'bri slbck issued upon conversion ofany 
prcfcncd stock and (ii) April 8, 2021. The "Goldstein Group" means Robert S, Goldstein^ our Vice Chairman, and Jeffrey D- Goldstein and Richard A, 
Goldsicui, two ofour director s, spouses, children arid grandchildren ofccrtain members uf the Goldstein family,and entifies assucialed wilh ceriain members 
nf the Goldsterii family. 

These provisions may make mergers, acquisitions, lender offers, the removal of managemeni and ceriairi other transaciions more difficull or riiure cosdy 
and could discourage or limit stockholder participation in such types of transactions, wheiher or not such transactions are favored by ihe .stockholders. The 
provisions also could limit the price that invesiors mighi be wilting lo pay in trie future for shares ofour eomrrion stock: Further, the existence of these arifi-
iakeuver measures may cause potential bidders tu look elsewhere, raiher than initialing acquisition discussions with us. Anyuflhe.se faciors could reduce the 
price ofour common siock. 

We have a history of fluctuadons in our operating income (losses) from, continuing operations, and we may incur additional operating losses from 
continuing operations in the future. Our operating results could fluctuate significantly on a periodic basis 

Wc earned income from continuing operalions of S 1.1 million in fiscal 2011 and sustained a (loss) from continuing operations of $(1.5) million in fiscal 
2010. Companies with flueiuadons in riicome (loss) from confinuing operations often find it more challenging lo raise capital lo finance improvements in their 
businesses and to,undertake olher activifies that remrn value to their siockholders. In additiori, companies with operating results that fiuctuate significanlly on 
aquartcrlyoi-arinualbasisexpcrienceincrcased volatility Ul their slock prices in addition lu difficulties rii raising capital. We cannut assure you dial wc will 
not have flucmafiuns in our incomc (losses) from confinuing uperaiions in the future, and should that occur, that we would not suffer adverse coasequences to 
our business as a result, which could decrease die value ofour cummon stock. 

Inclement weather and other conditions could seriously disrupt our business and havea material, adverse effect on our financial condition and 
results of (^rations. 

'I'he operations ofour facilities arc subject to disniplions or reduced patronage as a resultof severe weather conditions, natural disasters and other 
casualties. Because many of uur gaming operations are localed on or adjacent to bodies of water, these facilriies are subjectto risks ui.addition lo those 
associated with other casinos, uicluding loss of service due to casually, forces uf nature, 
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mechanical failure, extended ur exuaordinary maintenance, flood, hurricane or other severe weather conditions and ofiier disasters. In addriion, severe weather 
such as high winds and blizzards occasionally limits access to our land-based facilities in Colorado. We cannoi be sure thai the proceeds from any future 
insurance claim will be sufficieni to compensate us if one or more ofour casinos experience a clos'ure. 

Reductions in discretionary consumer spending could have a material adverse effect on our business. 

Our business has been and may confinuc lo be adversely affecled by the economic recession currentiy being experienced rii the United States, as wc are 
highly dependenl on discretionary spending by our patrons. Changes iri discretionary consumer spcndriig or consumer preferences brought about by factors 
srich as increased unemployment significani increases in energy prices, perceived or aclual deterioraliun in general economic cuni^fions, the curreni housing 
market crisis, bank failures and the potential for addifional bank failures, perceived oracluardcclinc in disposable consumer income and \yealfii,-the current 
global ccunomic recession and changes in consumer confidence in Ihe economy may coniinue to reduce customer,demand for die leisure aclivities wc offer 
and may adversely affect our revenues and operairiig cash flow. We arc not able to predici Ihe length or severity ofthe current economic cri-cumslanccs. 

The market price ofour common stock may fluctuate significantly. 

The market price ofour common slock has hislorically been volatile and may coniinue to fluctuate subsianlially due lo a number of faciors, including 
aclual or aniicipaied changes inour results ofoperalions, the announcement of significani transactions orotheragreementsby our compefitors, condiiions nr 
trends in the our indusiry or other eniertariimeni industries wilhwhich we compete; general economic conditions including diose affeclriig our customeis' 
discretionary spending, changes in die cost of air travel orthe coslofgasolirie, changes in the gaming markels rii which wc operate and changes in die tradriig 
value ofour common stock. The stock market in general, as well as stocks in the gaming sector have been subject to sigiiificanl voJaiilily and cxircriie price 
fluctuaiiuns that have sometimes been unrelated or disproportionate to individual companies' operating performances. Broad markef or indusiry faciors may 
harm the market price ofour common slock, regardless ofour operaiing performance. 

Work stoppages, organizing drives and other labor problems could negatively impact our future profits. 

Some of our.employces are currenlly represented by a labor union or have begun urganizing a drive fur labor union represenlafinn. Labor unions are 
making a concerted effort to recruit more employees in the gamuig indusiry. In addiiion, organized labor may-bcnefii from new legislation or legal 
interpretations by the curreni presidential administration. We cannoi provide ariy assurance that we will not experience additional or moric successful union 
activiiy rii the fuiure. 

Additionally, lengthy suikes orother work stoppages at any ofour casino properties or construction projects could have an adverse effecl on ourbusiness 
and result ofoperalions. 

We are or may become involved in legal proceedings that, i f adversely adjudicated or sealed, could impact our financial condition. 

From time to time, we arc defendants in various lawsuits and gaming regulatory proceedings relating to matters incidental to our business. As with ail 
liiigation, no assurance can be provided as to ihcouleome oflhese matters and, in general, litigation can be expensive and lime consuming. Wc may noi be 
successful in Ihe defense or proseculion of uur currcnt or tliiurc legal proceedings, which cnuld resrill in settlemenls or damages thai could significanlly 
impaci ourbusiness, fmancial condifion and results of operations. 
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Our insurance coverage may not be adequate to cover all possible losses that our properties could suffer.. In addition, our insurance costs may 
increase and we may not be able to obtain the same insurance coverage in the future. 

Wc may suffer damage toourproperty causedby a casually loss (such as fire, namral disasters, acts'of war or terrorism), diat could severely disrupt our 
business or subjecl us lo claims by Ihird parties who are injured ur harmed. Although we mainiain in.surancc customary in our indusiry, (inchiding property, 
casualty, terrorism and business interrupfiun insurance) thai insurance may nol be adequate bfavaiUiblc tocovcr all the risks to which our business and assets 
may be subject. The lack of sufficieni insurance for these types of acls could expose us lo heavydosses if any damages occur, direcdy or indirectly, that could 
have a significant adverse impact on om operations. 

We renew our insurance policies on an annual basis. The cost uf cuvcrage may bccomeso high that wc may need to further reduce our policy limits or 
agree lo certaui exclusions from our coverage. Among other factors, it is possible that rcginnal political lensinns, homebnd securiiy concems, other 
calastrophie evenls or any change in government legislation governing insurance coverage for acts of terrorism could materially adversely affect available 
insuiynce covera^ and resuh in increased premiums on available coverage (which may cause us to" elect to reduce uur policy limits); additional exclusions 
from coverage or higher deductibles. Among other potential future adverse changes, in the fuiure we may elect to not, or"may nut tie able to, obtarii any 
coverage for losses due to acts of terrorism. 

The concentration and evolution of die slot machine manufacturing industry could impose additional costs on us. 

A large majoriiy ofour revenues are attributable to slut machines at our casinos.Il is important, for compedtive reasons, we offer die most popular and 
up-io-daic slot machine games, wilh the latest technology to our cusiomers. 

• In recent years, slot machriie manufacturers have frequently refused lo sell slol machines featuring die raosi popular games, riisiead requirriig 
participaiing lease arrangemenls. Gerierally, a participaiing lease is subsianlially more expensive over the long-lerm Ihari the cost to purchase 3 new slol 
machine. 

For competitive reasons, we may be forced to purchase new slot machines, slot iriachine systems, or enter into participating lease arrangemenls that are 
more expensive than our curreni costs associated wilhlhe conlriiued operation ofour exisling slol rnachincs. If the newer slot machriies do not result in 
sufficient incremental revenues to offsel the increased investment and participating lease costs, it could adversely affecl our profiiabilily. 

« ' * • • • t » 

In addiliun lo die foregoing, you should consider each of die,faclurs sel forth in this Anriual Report in evalualing our business and uur prospects. The 
factors described rii our Pan I, Item IA arc not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known tons or ihal we currenlly 
consider imraaieriai may also impair our business operations. This Annual Rcport is qualified rii its entirely by diese risk faciors. If any of Ihe foregoing risks 
actually occur, our business, financial condifion and results of operation could be materially harmed. In that case, the irading price ofour securities, including 
our common stock, could decline significanlly. 

ITEM I B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 

None. 

20 



Table of Conienis 

1 T F : M 2 . PROPERTIES 

Lake Charles 

We own approximately 2.7 acres and lease approximaiely 16.2 acres of land in Calcasieu Parish, Louisiana for use in connection with our Lake Charles 
operatioris. This lease automatically renewed in March 2010 for five years and we have die option to renew ri forl4 additional terms of five years each, 
subjecl ID uicreases based on the Consumer Price Index ("CPl") with a minimum of 10%. and coristruction of hotel facilities on the property. We own Iwo 
hotels in Lake Charles with a total of 493 roonis. Annual renl paymenis under die Lake Chailes lease arc approximately $2.1 million. 

Lula 

We lease approxrinately 1,000 acres of land in Coahoma Couniy, Mississippi and utilize approxinialely 50 acres in conneciion with the operations in 
Lula, Mississippi. Unless icrmuialed by us at an earlier dale, Ihe lease cxpiresin 2033:, Rent under,the lease is currendy 5.5% of gross gamirig revenue as 
reported'to the Mississippi Ganung Commission, plus Sl 00,000 annually. We also own approximately 100 acres in Coahoma County, which maybe ufilized 
for future development 

Biloxi 

We lease the real estate upon which some uf our land-based facilities, includirig the casinu, are localed from iheCily of Biloxi and Ihe Mississippi 
Secretary of Slate at curreni annual renl of $595,508 per year, plus 3%u of uur Biloxi property's gross gaming revenues, net uf slate and local gaming taxes arid 
fees, in excess of $25.0 mdlion. The lease terminates on July 1. 2014, but it is renewable alour opiion,for four additional icrmsof five years each and one 
more option renewal term, concluding on January 31.2034, subjectto rent increases basedon the CPl, limited to 6% for each renewal period. 

In April 1994, in connection with Ihe construcfion ofa holel, we entered into a lease for addUional land adjoining our Biloxi property. This lease with the 
City of Biloxi and the Mississippi Secrelary of Stale is fur an inifial tcrmof25 years. With options to renew for six additional terms of ten years each and a 
final option period concluding December 31, 2085. Current annual rent is $665,500 plus 4% of gross non-gaming revenues, as defined rii the lease, and 
renewals are subject to rent increases basedon ihc CPI. The annual rent is adjusted after each I'ive-year period based on increases in the CPI, limited lua \(f/u 
increase in any five-year period. 

in Augusi 2002, wc cniered inio a lease for two addilional parcels uf land adjoining our property and the hotel. On the parcel adjuriiing die Biloxi 
property, wc consirocled a rnulli-level parking garage dial has approximately 1,000 parking spaces.,There is addilional ground level parking on a parcel of 
landin Iront uf the garage, alsn subjecl to diis lease, with approximaiely 600 parking spaces. We have coristrucled a 400-room addifion to the existing hotel on 
the p-ircel leased next to Ihe existing hotel. In addition, we may construct a hotel above the parking garage. This lease with the City of Biloxi and the 
Mississippi Secretary of Stale is for an iniiial term of forty years, wilh one opfion to renew for an addhional twcnly-five years and additional opUons 
thereafter, with the consenl of the Mississippi Secrelary of Slate, consistent widi theterm ofthe lease described in die precedriig paragraph. When combined 
wilh the base and percentage rents described for the leases in the preceding two paragraphs, amiual rent under those Iwo leases and ihis lease was S3.8 million 
for lease year enduig July 31, 2010, and estimated lo be $3.8 million for Ihe lease year ending July 31, 2011. Such amuunis are subjecl lo decreases due to 
niarket adjuslments and increases based on dieCPL Alsu, we are lesponsiblc for annual renl equal to 4% of gross relail revenue and gross cash revenue (as 
defmed in the lease), but without double counting. If the renl minimum described in.the precedriig seniences is not olherwise satisfied from other rents, then 
this percentage renl is nol in addiiion lolhe minimum renl, bul raiher is Io bcapplied to that minimum. 
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Wcalso lease our Biloxi berth from the Biloxi Port Commission at an annual renl ofthe greater of $510,000 or l%of die gross ganiing rcvenue net of 
stale and local gaming laxes. The lease terminates on July 1, 2014 and we have ihe uptwn to renew it for six addiliunal lerms of five years each subjecl to 
increases based on Ihe CPl, limiled lo 6%i for each renewal period. 

In conneciion widi and pursuanl to a settlement between the City of Biloxi and the Suilc of Mississippi concerning die control and managemeni of die 
area where wcare localed, we also have agreed lopay die Cily of Biloxi's lease obiigafions Io the Stale ofMississippi for an agreed upon period of time. This 
amounl is $580,000 per year, payable on June 30, subject id'increascs based on the CFI and decreases if there are olher tenants of ihc subjecl property. This 
obligation ends after June 2018 but may be renewed for thirty years. 

Natchez 

Through numerous lease agreements, we lease approximately 24 acres of land in Natchez, .Mississippi that are used in connection wilh the operations uf 
uur Nalchez property. Unless terminated by us at an earlier date, the leases have varyriig expiration dales ihrough 2037. Annual rem under the leases total • 
approximately S 1.2 million. Wc also lease approximalcly 7.5 acres uf land thai is utilized for parking al ihc faciliiy. Weown approximaiely 6 additional acres 
ofproperty in Natchez, Mississippi, as well us Ihe property upon which onr hoiel is localed. 

Vicksburg 

Wc own approximately 60 acres in Vicksburg, Mississippi which are used in connection with die operations ofour Vicksburg property. 

-Kansas City 

We lease approximately 28 acres of land from the Kansas City Port Audiority, in connection wilh the operaiion ofour Kansas City properly. The terra of 
the original lease was Icn years and was renewed in October 2006 for an addiliunal five years. The lease includes seven addilional five-year renewal oplions. 
The minimum lease payments correspond Io any rise or fall rii ihe CPI, initially af̂ er the ten-year temi ofthe lease or^Octobcr 18, 2006 and thereafter, at each 
five year renewal date Rent under the lease currenlly is Ihegrealcr of $2,6 million (minimum rent) per year, or 3.25% of gross revenues, less 
corifplimentarics. 

Boonville 

We lease our 27 acre casino sile in Boonville pursuant lo a lease agreement with the City of Boonville. Under the terms of agreement, we lease the sile 
fora period of ninety-nine years. In lieu of rent, we arc assessed addilional amounts by die Cily of Bonn villc basedon a 3.5% tax un gaming revenue, up lu 
$1.0 million, which we recognize as addilional ganiing Wxes. 

Caruthersville 

Wc own approximately 37 acres, including uur riverboai casino and 1,000 parking spaces in Caruthersville, Missouri. 

Bettendorf 

Weown approximaiely 24.6 acres of land in Bettendorf, lowa used in connection with the operalions ofour Bettendorf property.. We also operate under a 
long-lerm lease wilh the City of Bettendort", the QC Waterfront Convention Cenler that is adjaceni tu onr new hotel lower. Fuiurc minimum payments 
assucialed with the convenlinn cenler are approximately $1.1 mdliun per year. We 
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also lease approximaiely cighi acres of land ori a month-to-monih basis from an entity owned by members of the Goldstein family, including Robert S. 
Goldstein, our Vice Chairman ofthe Board and Jeffrey D. Goldsterii and Richard A. Goldslein, directors ofour company, which we utilize for parking. The 
inriial term oflhe lease expires 60 days afler written nufice is given lu eilher party and rent under the lease is currently $60,000 annually. Wc terminated a 
lease fur wareliouse space in January 2010 with the same entity. 

Davenport 

Pursuant lo various lease agrecmenls with the City of Davenpon, we lease approximately 12 acres of land in Davenport, Iowa used in conneciion wilh 
the operations of our Davenport property. The aggregale annual renl on these leases is approximalcly, $0,2 million and ihey have varying expiration dales 
duough 2022. 

Marquette 

,We lease the dock site ril Marquette, Iowa tiial is used in connection Widi our Mai quelle operatioris": The lease exprî es in 2019, and annual rent under the 
lease is appro.ximately $180,000, plus Sl.OO per passenger, plus 2.5% ofgaming revenues (less State wagering laxcs) inexcessof $20.0 milliori but less than 
$40.0 million: 5% of gaming revenues (less stale wagering laxcs) rii excess of $40.0 million but less than 560.0 million; and 7.5'}^ ofgaming revenues (less 
stale wagering ta.xes) ril excessof $60.0 million. We have an easemenl relaled lo an overhead pedBlrian bridge and driveway that is an annual payment of 
approximately $6,300. We also own approximaiely 25 acres of land forthe pavilion,:saieIliie offices, warebouse.lots by the marina'and other propert>'. 

Waterloo 

We own approximately 54 acres of land in Walerioo, Iowa used in eumieciion with theoperalion ofour Waterloo property. We also entered into a three-
year lease agreement for 17,517 squarc feet of warehouse space. Rent under this lease is currently $5,021 per month. 

Isle-Black Hawk 

Weown app"roxiniately 10 acres of land in Black Hawk, Coloiado for use in ennncction widi bur Black Hawk uperafiuns. The property leases an 
additional parc-el,of land adjoining die Isle-Dlack Hawk where llie Lady Luck Hotel and parking are located. This leaseis for an initial ierm of nine years widi 
oplions 10 renew for 18 addriional lerms of five years each wrih the final uplion period coneludriig June 1, 2094. Arinual rent is currenlly $1,85 million 
indexed to correspond lu any rise or fall in the CPl al une-year inler\'als, noMo exceed a 3% increase or decrease from the previous year's rale. 

Lady Luck-Black Hawk 

Weownor lease approximately seven acres of land in Black Hawk, Colorado for use in eonnecliori with the Lady Luck-Black Hawk. The propert>'leases 
an addifional parcel of land near the Lady Luck-Black Hawk for parkriig as described above. This lease is for an initial term of 10 years with options to renew 
for nine additional lerms of 10 years each with the final opiion period concluding Augusi 2094; Currendy the annual rent is $576,000 and renewals are suhjeci 
Io 20% rent increases uvcr the rote ofthe previous terra, 

Ptxnpano 

We uwn approximately 223 acres al Pompano. 
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Odier 

We own all of die riverboats and barges utilized at nur faciliiies. We also'own or lease all of uur gaming and non-gamriig equipment 

Wc lease our principal corporate office in Creve Cucur, Missouri, and office space in Biloxi, Mississippi. 

Wc own addifiunal property and have various property leases and options to "either lease ur purchase property that are nol directly related tu our existing 
operafions and that may be udlized in die future in connection with expansion projecis at pur exisling facilities or developrnent of new projecis. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

Our,wholly owned subsidiary. Lady Luck Gaming Corporafion, and several joiiit venture partners have been defendants ui the Greek Civil Courts and die 
Greek Adminisualivc Courts in similar lawsuits brought bythecuunlry uf Greece. The acfions allege iKaithe defendanis failed lo make specified payments in 
connection wilh the gamuig license bid process for Pattas, Greece.-Although it is difficiilt to determine Ihe damages bcriig sought from die lawsutts, ihc aclion 
may seek damages up to that aggregale amounl plus interest from the dale ofthe action. 

In the Civd Court lawsuil, ihe Civil Court of Fri-Sl Inslance ruled in ourfavor and disriiissed the lawsuit in 2001. Greece appealed lo the Civil Appeal 
Coun arid, in 2003, the Court rejected the appeal. Greece then appealed to the Civil.Supreme Court and, in 2007, the Supreme Court ruled that the matter was 
not properly before the Civil Couris and should be before the Admriiisirative Cuurt. 

In the Adminisirative Court lawsuil, the Administrative Court of First instance rejected die lawsuit Slating dial it was not compeleni tu liearthe matter. 
Greece then appealed to the Adininistrafive Appeal Court, which cuurt rejected tiie appeal in 2003. Greece then appealed lo the Supreme Administrative 
Court, which remanded the matterback lo the Adntinistralivc Appeal Court for a hearing on themerris.The re^hearriig look place in 2006, and rii 2008 die 
Adiuinisiralive Appeal Court rejected Greece's appeal un procedural grounds. On December 22; 2008 and January 23, 2009, Greece appealed the ruling to the 
Supreme Admriiisu-aiive Court A hearing lias tentatively been .scheduled fur October 2011. 

The outcome of Ihis matter is still in duubl and cannot be predicted wrih any degree ofceruint}'. We intend to continue a vigorous and appropriale 
dcfcrise lotheclarins asserted in this matter. Through April 24, 2011, we have accrued ari esiimaled liability including riilcrest of $iL7 million. Our accrual is 
based upon management's esfimate uf the original claimby the ptaintifis furiosi paymenis. We condnue Io accrue inieresi on the asserted claim. We are 
unable lb estimate a total possible loss as information as to possible additional clairiis, ifany, have not been asserted or quantified by the plainfiffs at this fime. 

We and our wholly-owned subsidiary, Riverboai Corporation ofMississippi ("RCM"), are defendants'in a lawsuil filed in die Circuit Coun of Adams 
County, Mississippi by Silver Land, Inc., alleging breach of conlracl in connection with our 2006 sale of casino operations in Vicksburg, Mississippi, to a 
third parly. In January 2011, the court ruled iri favor of Silver Land arid scheduled a hearing for damages. "The hearing is cuncmly scheduled for September 
201 land Silver Land has asserted damagesof approxirnateiy $2.4 million, plus iniercst from the original judgment date in January 2011. The outcome ofthis 
matter is still in doubt and cannot be predicated wilh any degree of cenariiiy. We intend to coniinue a vigorous and appropriale defense to the claims asserted 
by Silver Land in this matter. After damages are assessed, wc plan lu appeal thejudgrrieni ofthe circuit court and we believe il is more likely than not we will 
obiain a favorable ruling un appeal. 
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Wc arc .subject lu certain federal, slate and local environmental protcclinn, health and safely laws, fegulatiuns and ordinances ihai apply to businesses 
gerierally. and are subjecl to cleanup requirements at certarii ofour faciliiies as a result fiiercof We have nut made, and du nol anticipate making material 
expenditures, nor do we anficipaie incurring delays with respect lo environmental remediation or protection. However, in part because our present and fiimrc 
development sites have, in some cases, been used as manufacturing facilities orother faeilifies that generrite materials that are requri-ed 10 be rcmediaied under 
environmental laws and regrilations, there can be nu guarantee that additional pre-existing conditions will not be discovered and we wilt nol experience 
material liabitities or delays. 

W'e arc subjecl io various contingencies and lifigation mattersand have a numberof unresolved claims. Although theuHiniale liability of these 
contingencies, this litigation and these claims cannoi be determined al this time, we believe they will not have a material adverse effect on our corisolidaled 
financial position, results of operadons or cash flows. 

r rEM 4. [REMOVED AND RESERVED] 

25 



Tableof Conicnls 

PART II 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGIS! RANTS COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MAITERS AND ISSUER PURCH^VSES OF 
EQUITY SECURITIES 

('•>) 

Market Information. Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under die symbol "ISLE". The following tabic 
preserils die high and low closriig sales prices for our comnion slock as reported bydie NASDAQ Global Select Market for the fiseal periods 
indicated. 

H h ^ " 

First Ouarter(duT]ugh'Juric''d.3.'20l i \ „'J^,^^^.: ' '^ ' i ' ^ s : '-; '9:73';s ._-7.89J 

Fiscal Year Ending April 24, 2011 . 
K^^^iKKolS^^g^^ r < r •^9.S9--;S:.:.T8:85l 
ThirdQuarter _̂ .-. .11.16 _ 7.80 
•Second'0^iw7-, ^ ^ ^ i > f ^ 1 ' ; ^ ^ ^ : ^ f ^ i ^ ! h ^ - / ' ' ^ - ^ ^ l k f::-f. -."..' -,-••8.95// •' ••"6i66.l 
First Quarter- 12.41 " 8.37 riPii vu;iut:i • . ,i^.tt o.j > 

Fi sea 1 -Year Endine Anril ̂ 25. 2010 ..M--. -S^Vj^f^_^£ A._ ' ,,^^^. . ? • '-''^. .̂ •'' ^- ' 
Fourth puarter 
•Third ,0uane'rt:__il^ 
Second Quarier 
Firi;i Quarterof - V -

~r^ r-r-jT—ra ^-T'.Tj 

T.-f-' 3/"S"C~ •:7;r^'W7srT>; 

-• " - ^ ' . K - '^•-^. 
" T ^ ' ^ ~ ^ T " , 9:4l.--r'":,7:2i;i 

12.25 9.75 
. y ^ ^ - . ^ v . ^ 1 ^ . 5 Ljt : ^'X:13.78 -• ' _ 8.651 

ii. Holders of Common Stock. As of June 13, 2011, there were approximately 1,344 holders ofrecord ofour commun stock. 

iii. Dividends. We have never declared or paid any dividends with respeci loour common stock and die current pohcy of our board of directors is 
to relain earnings to provide for the growdi of our company. In additiori, our senior secured credit fai:iliiy and the indentures govenung our 7% 
seriior subordinaied notes and our 7.75% seriior noles limit our ability to pay dividends^ See "item 8—rFinancial Suitemenis and Supplementary 
Dala—Isle ofCapri Casinos^ lnc:—Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—Note X." Consequendy, no cash dividends are expected to be 
paid on our common'slock in the furesecablc fuiure. Further, ihere can be nu assurance that our cuirent and proposed operations would generale 
Ihe funds needed lo declarea cash dividend or that we would have legally available funds to pay dividends, in "addition, we may fimd part ofour 
opefationsin the fuiure from indebledness, Ihelerms of which may further prohibit or resUici the paymeni of cash dividends. Ifa Holder of 
common slock is disqualified by the regulatory authorities from owningsuch shares, such holder wdl not be permitted to receive any dividends 
wilh respeci to such .stock. See "Item 1—Business—Governmental Rcguiaiions." 

(b) Issuance of Unregistered Securities 

None. 

(c) Purchases ofour Common Stock 

Wc have purchased our common stock undei stuck repurchase programs. H hese programs allow forthe repurchase of up lo 6,000,000 shares. To date wc 
have purchased 4,895,792 shares uf comnion slock under these prograins. These programs have no approved dollar amount, nor expiration dales. No 
purchases were made during die fiscal year ended April 24, 2011. 
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COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULAl IVET OTAL RETURN* 
Among Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc., ihc NASDAQ Composite Index 

and the Dow Junes US Gambling Index 

4/30/06 4/29/07 4/27/08 4/26/09 4/25/10 4/24/11 

Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. NASDAQ Composite Dow Jones US Gambling 

$100 invested on 4/30/06 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends. 
Indexes calculated on monlh-end basis, 

Copyrighl© 2011 Dow Jones & Co. All rights reserved. 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA. 

The following Uible presents our selected consolidaled financial dala fur the five most recent fiscal years, which is derived from uur audited cunsuhdaled 
financial slalements and the nules in those staiemenis. Because die data in diis table dues nut provide all ofthe data cuntauied in ourconsolidated financial 
statements, includriig ihe related noles, you should read "Managemenl's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condilion and Results of Operafions," our 
consolidated fmancial siatemenis, uicluding the relaled noles coniained elsewhere in this document and other data we have filed with the U.S. Securifies and 
Exchange Commission. 

Fiscal Vcar Kndcdm 
April 2A. April 25, April 26. April 27. -•Vpril 29, 

2DII 2010' 2009 2008 2007 
(dollan in miUians, e\cvpl per tharc diU) 

Sliiirmeai of Operalions Ljt_l̂ =-:r '- '^,l 'v"'-'I..i^.iii^L_u.W%—^--' VL.: ^S'^V. ' ^ J . f'~.'j^ r • -< - r ?,'" F- ''• ''• r..,^^".... "- . .- .J 

Revftiues: _ „ „ . _,.„.,. -- . • 

iii..-:,.'AC.'.w!.J,ijr«'i^'i^L!:-.i>.j^:,.^"'-.^ ^-'-'^''^J,^R?J^'-'""^'"'i'S!^'i.X"^^^^^^ 
Rooms 40J 43,0 46.4 49.5 • 49,6' 

p - - . ^ j . ^ v ^ ^ ^ r ^ ^ ; ^ v g ^ ; ^ r ^ ; ^ ^ ^ ^ - ^ r ^ ^ r§Z-r,_^-^„^-,.. : i ^ . 7 f "J^iT 'Î S.f̂  -\^A :145.6l 

Hutricnne aiid other iiisiirancc rccmtrics — — 62.9 0.4 2,8 

Les.s promotional ailowaiK-ei (206,5) "(I9"t6i. (I9S.6) (200.9). (214.1) 

r '-'" 'f' • 4'''• >'-,'" • '^''^''~% ' • ̂ '^t \^. ̂  "jh. . 'K^- '^vS'^^ '-?> '^f^','^^" gl,-':̂ 'Mr.(xi5.o... '. ""999:8: : I :Toa:()":̂ i .091:4 . 973.3 J 
Ongialing exnenses: __ _ „ ^ - ' •- • • - 1 , . . . ' . _ , . 
iF' '>'^^i?C'-5h»t;inn : - " - "•'•' . - ^ " > f '7£-'.«4r, r Z i ^ ^ r ^ ^ ^ ^ . , ' ^ ^ 1 7 ^ ' g .. • 158.6 .^ ^I53.B - ,15l.6\ ::Il5l.l. . .l"S4.2l 

;Gamiiitj taxes 250:1' 262.2 269.9 2S5,J 213.7 
^ J : 1 , S ^ ' , •Rooms .-, „f, ,.g. - ^ V , -, •.,.^./->..i:_- ..;.- , .j--."> . ^ > . - V ? : , ; - • ">.a- ' . m . g - . /i;_-l:.,.. . 12.5 - • .:io.6J 

45.0 ^ _44.a _ 51.5 . 570 44.6 
,60.5''./'''61.5 •'' -'"friji.",.-^,^5J:^,::':i5T^ 

Markeiiim ami ndininbtralive . 253.4 253.1 256.2 270.1 256.4 

Food.bevcra«e.pari-miiiui;laiidoiber 45.0 44.3 51.5 . 57.0 44.6 

. F.xiynsc recovcfig.-i ami nihcr char>,ts, nct_ 

Tolal operating e.\peiisei 909.1 935,8 973.5 1,026.3 910,0 

OperjimKina.mctX.Xj^';--"-':,!.-,.-'^^,^ ^ C i r . J ^ ^ . \ . - J . , i . : y U t - . » ??>->--.^,^,^!;—. •• .,95,9 . . , 64.Q.n. .134.5 N-- 65.2 t -6531 

lntM2sl_exn«ge ^ _ ^ ^ . . ^ (91.9) . (75.4) (92.0) ^(IW.S)^ [S8.ll 
W îî iiiE î̂ ^^^L&Jiil'Z .̂'i-"-~rl\'̂ '̂ .̂ ^ '̂̂ '̂:̂ "?'?^?'.̂ '̂ '• '̂•jT^y'̂ TsiT''̂ '" .•̂ .-•'' i:9.'^j^-Ji!^^_2yi57--lT27\? 7.'ol 
Other -, " (1.2) (0.3i — - — • — 
Gain ntishi o'n e^Hi cuingSi^toent of debl .-'''^-.', . r j / - - ̂ ' • ^ . . ' --'S'̂ fL?'--̂ ' . ^ j " ' ; ^y^j" ' ' , ' .•-•-' - ^ ' ^ y • 4— _,.;'-' 5^^ '•- li (15.j j • . r --.} 

Income flos-s) from eonlinuine operati ons before income ta.xes and incJtidinn non con lol I ini; inierest 4 J (9.9) 102J (53,7) (15.8) 

Income Qow) from comfnuiiiB opcfaiion.-. JnchidiiH! no neon troll in K inieresi 111 (1.5) 6IJ (32,R) (15.0) 
liieoiSe Oois)'lrdm"disc6iiiinued opciaiirin'iTiict'"brincQmc i ^ e s ^ 

Nel income (low) indndinn iioncon toll ins intcict 
l.e>,s nci incQinc.(Iosi) annbutablc to the nDConu-ulling 

Nei income (losi) attributable to common stockliolders , S 4.5 S (3.3)S 43.6 S (96.9)5 (4,6) 

lncomc'(!^s)iieiconniionslareanribiilableioconihion~Mockbolder>'^l, .-'r-.^".f":-'i 'tf.'^ft-'-J''?-,-^'---^.''^-''•^'^'""^,";."',-.^.?^-J ^-','"..~r.'' ;,,-.-,j 

Ba.sic 
1^,.-. - A v ,?v^. ii>,"f7 "-•' ^^^^UncomcOos.slfrgmcMiinu;iit!'Speraiiwis::g^v^- •_^=- ,ri? • :5f :0.03i;S't. (0.051S>-,.r.95.:SV(1.24)S; j(0.6ll 

Income (iois) from discoiniiiued opî talions 0,10 (0.05) (0.5^) (1.92) 0.46 

Diluted 

__ . , _ , ^ ''-^ (3;3) 43,6 {92^) (Ll) 
i ^ - j ^ i i ^ i ^ ^ ^ ^ - i t ^ ^ g ^ - - ^ ^ ? ^ ^ , tvS^ ' -^ : . ^.^^iT-' - . ^ ^ . ^y4;9)^?3.5T 

;<---,. •,.,->• - f:*̂ -'.;-̂  --, Income flf>«1 from ^liiiuinBoneralinn,sy ,-| -•-.,..:.%'- ^^Sy-f.Q.aijS- .^m.riit S ^ |.9.S:S,..fl-24)Sv^ fO.611 

Income (low) from discnnliniied opcrntinns O.IO (0,05) (0,56) (1-92) 0.46 

LS!lF5EiZ-^j^^^i?Nc?iVc^?H'^^'Jt^^'^ 
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Fiscal'^'cnrKndcdfl) 
AprU:-!, April 25, April 26, AprU 27, April 29. 

2011 ' 2010 2009 200S 2007 
(dollars in milliDiii. cxcepi per share data) 

"-^"^--•'\--:iL..-fe.^.""^''-v^ • ;'^ • •^ iu^ - . . i&^ 
Net ci\li provided by (used in): _^ ^ ' , , . , „ - .,u . . . . . . . . . . 
1̂  • • ..•'' • •• -,"- '"a '̂̂ iihi '»^;s-i-.i^s>T^^7^"!^^ >". - W^-: "̂  • 1 ?V7.r':s °"' -1 ofi.T^s^ -, 190.6 • sf •. '• i ̂  14.". s ̂ ^ • •' m9l 

Inv-eiJiiiBactiyitJes. -^.'^^Ck-r' ' ^ ^ ' : ^ , .-(-^•^'.. .,.. ..y^-^-"-J'- • .•••^'^^-^^ 
jT̂  J.',:V" .̂- rin^'i^'^^iilii^hrr^'^W:^:'- ' '^ ,:- ,«n"s7.2i" .•>»' .hjl- . 
Capitalcxpendiiures___ ^ ^ • • • •l^"''^'. (2'7.7)_.,.._ ,.._(58,6) (1905) 

Balance Sbeel Uam: :i .: ' . J - " .» .̂-̂ ^ ^ ? î̂  • fc . -̂  .'• <̂ i ' J^ .-̂ ^ ^ , - - . . . , ^ . . _. . ._.̂ _ 

,75,2 -S 6B:l S ;96.7, S -91:8 Cash and ca"* equivalents . . . , , , . , ^ . n . - - u . -, 
r i i ^ ^ . 3 ' , - T ^ ' ^ ^ B J ^ y ^ ^ ^ ^ > : - ' - ^ ' ' - ^ ! " - ' : ^ h - C l - C n ^i-73j.9',A ; -JI.674:HM'--W'1.782.7;- -^.r--1^74,2' 
LonK-tennddii. includingciincnt ponion l.l'9;,6'- •̂. ., l.:60,9 . UOI.l, •I.507J 1.418.0 
SiJcUiofdcni',cn;.iV't^','C>r^^;^;"^':,f-^"v^/'-^^;r,^i^s% .'3(W-0-,.i./ ' 24ii.?j ^ i r ^ ' j n i . ..?:-, ^••iss.n'i.V'V' h i ^ i 

Oper»ting Dan: • . . . - • . 
Mii^"r'nfsl[n'.n.i^hinfa'-.•'*''•' " ? '•^' V ^ ^ r " ' ^ ' '̂ ^- '' ' " - ""•'^"^^ V^l'4^947,f<'r "" l4.S79;;'lf , .f " 1537.1.; .'.jf ;^15J93"^ ,', , .-.-1'll 12 f j 

Number of table i;ame.s . . . . . . . . . . .^ . ..K. •••• -^iL' .̂. ••";• ^^\ -̂ ^̂  „ '̂̂ -̂ 324 
Nimiba- of hoiel ' ^ I K . s't' .• 'i, „ ' j^^l-}. / , v'-'n'ife-" ^-:'-, V^-^V?'"' •^j0'.}3.i)7S^':%, ' " x '3 rO?̂ .. ! • V,,, ^ -' 0^;. ' ° (- 3:107'' / ^ ^ - 2.674 j 
N'tindier of parking snacoi 21.782 20.6%" 22 J390 2 L229 19.484 

(I) OuiGscalyearendcd April 30. 2006 iiK-liidea 53 weeks while all oiherfiscal years include 52 vvceks:Tlie resulis refieci Lucaya, Blue Chip. Coveutiy, Bos-sierCity 
and DUI previous Vicksburg properlies a.s discontinued operalions, Wc opened uewc^ino operaiion.'. iii Pompano,'Florida uid Waterloo, iowa in April 2007 and 
June 2007, icspcctivcly. Wc acquired our cajiuo operaliuiis in Carulliersville. Mi.ssouri in June 2007.' We acquired uui cunenl casino operations in ,Vicksburg. 
.Vlussis.sippj in June 2010. 
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n KM 7. MANAGKMKNT'S DISCUSSION AM> ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAl. CpiNDIIION /\>'1> RESUI.IS OF OPERATIONS 

You should read the following discussion together wid) the financial statements, including die related notes and Che other financial information, 
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

F:(eeulive Overview 

We are a leading developer, owner and operator of branded gaming facilities and relaled lodging and entertaihraent facfiifies in regional markets in the 
Uniled States. We have sought and established geographic diversity to limii die risks caused by wcadier, regional economic difiiculiies, gaming tax rales and 
regulations of local gaming authorities. Wccuixendy opcraie casinos in Mississippi, Louisiana, Mi^ouri, lowa, Colorado and Florida. We also opcraie a 
hahiess racing track al our casino in Florida. 

Significant Accomplishments Impacting Current anti Future Operalions—During the fiseal year ended April 24, 201!, wc completed several significani 
.iccomplishmenis as follows: 

Acquisition 

Acquisition of Rainbow Casino—We acquired Rainbow Casino—Vicksburg Partnership, L.P. ("Rainbow") located in Vicksburg, Missi,ssippi on 
June 8, 2010 acquiring 100% of the partnership inleresls for $76,2 million and have included the results of Rainbow in ourconsolidated financial 
Slalements subsequent to June 8, 2010. The acquisition was funded by borrowings from our senior secured credii facility. 

Capital Transactions 

Equity Offering—During isunary 20\\ , wc completed the sale of 5.3 million shares of common stock generating nel proceeds of S5I:2 million. 
Proceeds from our equiiy oftering have been used to repay long-icrm debl, 

Senior Notes—On March 7, 2011, we issued S300 milliun of 7.75%senior"notesdue 2019. Proceeds from this debt issuance werc used to repay 
borrowings under our senior secured credit facility. 

Senior Secured Credit Facility—On March 25, 201 l,wc amended our senior secured credit facility. Following this amcndmenl, our credii facility 
totals S800 million, consisfing ofa S300 mdlion revolving line uf credit and a S500 million lemi loan. Th'e credit faciliiy maiurcs on November 1, 2013, 
or if the 7% senior subordinaied notes are refinanced on or prior to ihaidaic, ihe revolving line of credit matures on March 25, 2016 andthe term loan 
matures on March 25, 2017. 

These equity and debt transacfions have resulted in a rcduciion in our total debl, extension ofour maturifies and provide borrowing capacity lo t'tind 
current and future capital expendimres for both our exisfing properlies and for our development projects. 

Development Acuviiies 

Cape Girardeau—On December I, 2010, our proposed casino in Cape Girardeau, Missouri was selected bythe Missouri Gaming Commission for 
prioridzaiion forthe 13'''and final gaming license in the State of Missouri. We had previously entered into a developmeni agreement with the Citj'of 
Cape Girardeau. The projeci is expected to include 1,000 slot niachines. 28 lable games, three restaurants, a lounge and terrace overiooking the 
Mississippi River and a 750-seal evenl 
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cenier. Wecurrenlly esfimate the cosi of the prujecl at approximately $125 million widi S13.0 million spenl through April 24, 2011. Weaniicipalc 
opening by the end of calendar 2012. 

Nemacolin—On April 14, 2011, our proposed project ai the Nemacolin Woodlands Rcsori.was selected by Ihe Pennsylvania Gaming Control 
Hoard forthe final categoi^' 3 gaming license in Pennsylvania. We had previously entered into an agreemeni wilh Nemacolin 10 complete the budd-oui 
ofthe casino.space and provide managemeni services of the casino. The casino is expected to include 600 slot machines,'28 table games; a casual dining 
restaurant and lounge. We will pay an annual fee to the resort owner and in relum will receive a managemeni fee equal to the EBITDA ofthe casino 
after payment ofthe fee lb Nemacolin. We cmrendy esfimate the cost ofthe projeci at approximately $50 million ahd expeci lobe complete within nine 
months of the commencement of construcfion. The award ofthe license Io Nemacolin is .subject to a-30-day appeal period, which ends on June 20, 2011, 
and the obiainmcnt ofa managemeni license. 

Operating Results—OUT operafing results for die periods presented have been affecled, bodi posifively and negatively, by curreni economic condiiions 
aiid several olher facibn; discussed in detail below. Our hisiorical operating results may not be indicative ofour iuiui-e resuhs bfopcrations because oflhese 
faciors and the changing compefilivc landscape in each ofour markcis, as well as by.factors discussed elsewhere herein. This Management's Discussion and 
Analy-sis of Financial Condifion and Resulis of Operalions should be read inconjunctionwidi and giving considcradon lo Ihe following: 

liems Impaciing Income (Loss) from Continuing t?perar/o/7S—Significani items iropactiiig our income (loss) from continuing operations during the 
fiscal years ended April 24, 2011, April 25, 2010 and April 26, 2009 are as follows: 

Floritia Gaming Law Changes^B^cclivc }u\y 1, 2010, the state pordon ofgaming taxes applicable to our Pompano property was reduced 
from 50% to 35% ofgaming revenues. Addifionally, this legislalion removed poker betting limits and allowed us tb c.-ipand our poker hours from 
12 hours per day to 18 hours per day .Monday througli 'l*huniday and 24 hours per day on Friday through Sunday. Our casino revenues and gaming 
taxes reflecl the favorable impact oflhese changes in state gaming law's. 

Increased Competition—The opening ofa new hotel in October 2009 by a competitor in Black Hawk, Cokirado has had a negative impaci on 
our Black Hawk, Colorado property. 

Expense Recoveries and Other Charges, nef—During fiscal 2010; we recorded an odicr expense rcductiod of S6.8 million representing die 
discounled value ofa receivable for reimbursement of developmeni costs expensed in prior periods relating to a lerniinated plan to develop a 
casino in Pillsbuigh, Pennsylvania. This receivable was recorded following our assessment of colleciabilily. 

As a result ofour annual impairment tests of goodwill and long-lived intangible assets' under ASC 350, we recorded impairnienl charges of 
SIS.3 million alour Black Hawk property in fiseal 2009. The results from operations forfiscal 2009 also include a Sll.9 million write-off of 
construction inprogress at our Biloxi property following our decision nol to continue a previously anticipated construction project, and a 
$6.0 million charge following our terminafion of anagreement for a potential development ofa casino in Portland, Oregon. 

Hurricane and Odier Insurance Recoveries, net—OUT insurance recoveries for fiscal 2009 include S92.2 million relating lo the final 
settlement of our Hurricane Katrina claim at our Biloxi propeiiy and odier insurance recoveries. 

Gain (Loss) on Early Extinguishment of Debt—Dunng fiscal 2009, we retired $142.7 million ofour senior subordinaied notes, dirough a 
tender offer, for a cash payment of S82.8 million utilizing the proceeds from our Hurricane Katrina setdemeni and repaid 
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